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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
(To the Extent Indicated Herein)

Registrant's Definitive Proxy Statemenbé&ofiled with the Securities and Exchange Commisgiarsuant to Regulation 14A in
connection with the solicitation of proxies for tRegistrant's 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholderbée held on May 24, 2002, is hereby
incorporated by reference in Part Il of this repor

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statements incorporated by referenamotained in this report discuss our future exai@ms, contain projections of our results of
operations or financial condition and include otiferward-looking" information within the meanind Bection 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Secufitielsange Act of 1934, as amended. Our actualteesdy differ significantly and
materially from those expressed or implied in fordvbooking statements made or incorporated by esfes in this report. Forward-looking
statements that express or imply our beliefs, plabgctives, assumptions or future events or perémce may involve estimates,
assumptiongiisks and uncertainties. Therefore, our actualltesund performance may differ significantly andtemilly from those express
in the forward-looking statements. Forward-lookgtgtements often, although not always, include wordphrases such as the following, or
the negative of such words or other comparableiteiogy:

. "will likely result,"
. "are expected to,"
. "will continue,"

. "is anticipated,"”

. "estimate,"

. "believe,"

. “predict,"

. "potential,”

. “intends,"

. "plans,"

. "projection,” and
. "outlook."

You should not unduly rely on forward-longistatements contained or incorporated by referenthis report. Actual results or
outcomes may differ significantly and materiallgrr those predicted in our forward-looking stateraehte to the risks and uncertainties
inherent in our business, including risks and utadeties in:

. clinical trial results,

. obtaining and maintaining regulatory approval,

. market acceptance of and continuing demand fopmducts,

. the attainment of patent protection for any of ¢hpsoducts,

. the impact of competitive products, pricing andmeiirsement policies,
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. our ability to obtain additional financing to suppour operations,

. the continuation of our corporate collaborations] a



. changing market conditions and other risks detadkddw.

You should read and interpret any forwaroking statements together with the following doeuis:

. our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q,
. the risk factors contained in this report underaaption "Additional Business Risks," and
. our other filings with the Securities and Exchaf@genmission.

Any forward-looking statement speaks orgdyohthe date on which that statement is made. Waet update any forward-looking
statement to reflect events or circumstances ttatraafter the date on which such statement is matdess required by law.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are focused on the development of biophaeutical products based on our patented genedetechnologies for the prevention
and treatment of serious or life-threatening diessaBotential applications of our gene deliverhtetogy include:

. Gene therapies for cancer,

. DNA vaccines for infectious diseases or cancer, and

DNA therapeutic protein delivery.

Gene Therapies for Cancer.We currently focus our development on innovatiancer therapies designed to induce an immune
response against cancer cells without causingusesigle effects. We have retained all rights toioternally developed cancer product
candidates. Our lead immunotherapy product cangliddiovectin-7®, completed enroliment in advancéidical testing with a low dose in
patients with metastatic melanoma. We expect toptetm the collection and analysis of data from BHhand Phase lll registration trials, i
determine in the second half of 2002 whether tha dee sufficient to support the filing of a Biolod-icense Application, BLA, to seek
marketing approval from the U.S. Food and Drug Adstration, FDA. Allovectin-7® is also in Phaseclinical testing in patients with
newly-diagnosed tumors of the head and neck aachi&gher dose in patients with metastatic melandrhea.higher dose of Allovectin-7®
may be considered for further development as thdase become available. Our second immunotherapgjupt@andidate, Leuvectin®, is in
Phase Il clinical trials for high-risk patients twvibcally confined prostate cancer. We expect twance our future development plans for
Leuvectin® in the second half of 2002.

DNA Vaccines. We believe DNA vaccines may have the distinginig characteristic of combining a safe and cofgtetiize technique
with preventive or therapeutic potential. DNA vaws have been shown to induce a cellular immummrss. These features make DNA
vaccines a promising approach for the preventightegatment of diseases caused by elusive pathagehsas the human immunodeficiency
virus, HIV. Merck & Co., Inc. is using our naked BN\platform technology as part of a "prime-boostteiae regimen in preventive and
therapeutic Phase | clinical trials for HIV. Prirheest is an approach that seeks to optimize theuimemesponse by using two different forms
of vaccination in sequence, typically with naked D8k the "prime" component. The prime-boost regimsed by Merck in these trials
combines a naked DNA prime vaccine with Merck's-ngplicating adenoviral vector boost vaccine. Irepagate program, we have worke:
conjunction with the U.S. Navy in efforts to devela vaccine for preventing malaria. Preliminaryuiesfrom a Phase /1l study showed the
safety of a multi-gene DNA vaccine and the abitifjthe vaccine to prime cellular immune respon¥ésal scientists, in cooperation with the
U.S. government, are looking to apply new enhantéefnologies to develop a preventive malaria vacthiat uses our DNA technologies to
provide 6 to 9 months' protection. The initial icalion for use will be aimed at adding a protectigecine to the licensed malaria prophylaxis
used by travelers and the military. We have licdragr technology to Aventis Pasteur, a divisiodweéntis S.A., and Centocor, Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Johnson & Johnson, Far tlevelopment of DNA vaccines against specificeatargets.

DNA Therapeutic Protein Delivery. Our technology for the optimized delivery oéthpeutic proteins has been licensed by Aventis
Pharma and Vascular Genetics Inc., VGI, for thévde} of angiogenic growth factors. Any resultifgetapeutics may help the body to grow
blood vessels, typically where blood flow has bessiricted, such as the heart in coronary artesgadie and the limbs in peripheral vascular
disease



We have established relationships throiggnsing our technology to a number of corporatiborators, including:

. Merck & Co., Inc.

. Two divisions of Aventis S.A.:
Aventis Pasteur

Aventis Pharma

. Merial

. Centocor, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Johm&oJohnson

. Boston Scientific Corporation

. Human Genome Sciences, Inc. and its affiliate, Wiasdsenetics Inc.

We have also established relationshipsion gccess to complementary technologies from catpaollaborators including:

. CytRx Corporation
. Ichor Medical Systems, Inc.
Background

Pharmaceutical medicine traditionally faesi®n the discovery and development of chemicapoamds as therapeutics. More recently,
biological agents such as therapeutic proteinsnamaoclonal antibodies have been developed as tezdsmThese agents typically act by
enhancing or blocking biological activities, by tlsting or attacking infectious or malignant ager by restoring proper chemical balance
within affected tissues. The effectiveness of cluairind biological agents is often limited by togide effects and the inability to maintain
effective levels of the agent where it is needed.

One possible answer to the weaknesseseuiqus approaches may be found in the novel thatmseof gene therapy. "Gene therapy"
refers to a collection of processes that add er gknes, the basic units of heredity found inBidieg cells, in order to improve the body's
natural ability to fight disease or to make a digwmmore sensitive to other kinds of therapy.

Genes themselves are sets of instructemtyded by DNA, with each gene causing cells tdyce, or express, one of the thousands of
different proteins essential to cellular structynmwth, and function. The improper expressionwarea single gene can severely alter a cell's
normal function, frequently resulting in a diseaSene therapy offers an approach to the treatrmehpeevention of disease by introducing
genes into cells to direct the expression of spepibteins.

Historically, gene therapy was accomplishgdnserting the desired gene into a delivery elehior vector. The most common vectors
were viruses that had been genetically disabletiathey could not reproduce and infect othersc&lene therapy approaches using viruses
suffer several drawbacks that may limit their wiptesid usefulness, including adverse immune resparsginflammation that may inhibit
the activity of the virus-based therapy and prevepeated administration.

Our Gene Delivery Technology

The key discovery leading to our patentekied DNA gene delivery technology was that musskues can absorb genetic material
directly, without the use of viral components, autdsequently express a desired protein for peretging from weeks to several months.
Our gene delivery approach typically involves tiesign and construction of plasmids, DNA segmentsselends are
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attached together to form a highly stable closeg.|dhese plasmids contain the gene encoding titeiprof interest, as well as short
segments of DNA that control the rate and locatibprotein expression. Plasmids can be manufactinredigh straightforward fermentation
and purification technique



Since the initial discovery of our naked ®kchnology, our researchers have improved thgydes our plasmids to provide increases
in efficiency of gene delivery, expression and inmogenicity. In addition, we are developing othanfalation and delivery technologies,
including the use of lipid molecules, syntheticymoérs called poloxamers, and electrical stimulatialbed electroporation, to enhance gene
delivery or increase the immune response in DNAwecapplications. We call ourselves "The Naked DB@mpany ™"ecause our produ
candidates are based on these non-viral gene delivethods, and because we own broad rights tainerbn-viral gene delivery
technologies through our series of core patents.géne delivery approach may offer novel treatnadternatives for diseases that are
currently poorly addressed. Benefits of our gerlveley technology may include:

. Broad Applicability. Our gene delivery technology may be useful inedigping novel treatments for cancer, vaccines to
prevent or treat infectious diseases and methodfitiently deliver human and animal therapeutiotpins.

. Convenience. Our gene therapies are intended to be admingstiee conventional pharmaceuticals on an outpatiasis.

. Safety. Our product candidates contain no viral compah#mt may cause unwanted immune responses, orisctr
malignant and permanent changes in the cell's ipemetkeup.

. Repeat Administration.Our product candidates contain no viral companémdt may preclude multiple dosing with a single
product or use in multiple products.

. Ease of Manufacturing.Our product candidates are manufactured usiadgstiforward fermentation and purification
procedures.
. Cost-EffectivenessOur gene delivery technology may prove to be noost-effective than therapies which require geneti

modification and controlled propagation of viratters. Once introduced into the body, the DNA ieied to stimulate the
production of a therapeutic protein over a prolahgeriod of time, which may be more cost-effectiven administering the
protein itself. It may also cause fewer potentidé ffects, which itself may reduce per patieeatment costs.

Potential applications of our gene delivimghnology include gene therapies for cancer hiiclwvthe expressed protein is an immune
system stimulant or cancer-killing agent; DNA vaas for infectious diseases or cancer, in whickekpressed protein is an antigen; and
DNA therapeutic protein delivery, in which the eggsed protein is a therapeutic agent.

Business Strategy
There are three basic elements to our basistrategy:
Develop Products Independently
We currently focus our resources on thejmahdent development of cancer therapeutics and ¥2d&ines for infectious diseases.

Cancer. We believe that the large and rapidly growirgrket for cancer products is poorly addressed Istiag treatment alternative
In addition, we believe that this market is atthazto Vical because:
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. Clinical testing usually can be conducted in a $mamber of patients and benefits can be deteatddrarified in reasonably
short periods of time.
. Clinical testing occurs in patients with advandédd;threatening diseases with limited treatmetg¢mlatives, which may
expedite the regulatory approval process.
. Product acceptance is supported by objective dlimata, potentially reducing marketing costs.
. Treatment decisions are made at regional cancéerseny oncologists who can be served by a sndkialized sales force.

Vaccines. According to thélan for Preventing Emerging Infectious Diseaspsablished by the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, CDC, "Vaccines are among the very pegections we have against infectious diseases.bélieve our technology may lead to
the development of novel preventive or therapetdixines for infectious disease targets because:

. DNA vaccines may be applicable to diseases for wbanventional vaccine methods have been unsuctessf

. The safety of DNA vaccines may increase public ptargce of preventive care.



. Vaccines are perceived by government and medicahumities as an extremely efficient and -effective means ¢
healthcare.

. DNA vaccines use straightforward manufacturing peses, making them simple and cost-efficient tdyce.

We intend to retain significant particigatiin the commercialization of our proprietary oanand DNA vaccine products, although we
may choose to enlist the support of a marketingnpato accelerate market penetration.

Develop Future Product Opportunities

We are actively pursuing the refinemenbwf plasmids and lipids, development of future piaid, evaluation of potential enhancements
to our core technologies and exploration of altéveagene delivery technologies. We also seek t@ld@ additional applications for our
technologies by testing new approaches to diseageot or prevention. These efforts could leadurter independent product development
or additional licensing opportunities. In additieve continually evaluate compatible technologieproducts that may be of potential interest
for in-licensing or acquisition. Our research aedelopment costs for the year ended December R, 2¢ere approximately $22.1 million.

Expand the Applications of Our Technology Througttr&tegic Collaborations

We collaborate with major pharmaceutical Aiotechnology companies and government agengiesiding us access to complement
technologies or greater resources. These collabosaprovide us with mutually beneficial opportigstto expand our product pipeline and
serve significant unmet medical needs. We licenssléctual property from companies holding compatary technologies in order to
leverage the potential of our own gene deliverjtetogy and to further the discovery of innovatiew therapies for internal development.
We license our intellectual property to other conipa in order to leverage our technologies for igpfibns that may not be appropriate for
our independent product development efforts.

Product Development

We are focused on the development of biopheeutical product candidates based on our patgyaiee delivery technology. A number
of therapeutic protein and vaccine product candilate

currently under development for the preventiorreatment of cancer, infectious diseases and otherd®rs. The table below summarizes
both our independent and collaborative product kdgweent programs. We are exploring various appboatfor poloxamer and
electroporation technologies, and we are investigateveral potential cancer and infectious disgaseine targets. Our current clinical
development focus is on the innovative cancer fliesa Allovectin-7® and Leuvectin®.

Clinical trials are used to determine wieethew drugs or treatments are both safe and sffedraditionally, clinical trials are done in
three phases. Phase | clinical trials mark thé fiimse a new drug or treatment is administereduiméins and are normally conducted to
determine the safety profile of a new drug. Phésériical trials are conducted in order to detampreliminary effectiveness, or efficacy,
optimal dosage, and to confirm the safety profilease Il clinical trials are often large scale [tincenter studies conducted to compare a
treatment with a currently approved therapy. Atetina single trial may incorporate elements froffedint phases of development. An
example might be a trial designed to determine bafhty and initial efficacy. Such a trial may keéerred to as a Phase I/ll clinical trial.
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Product Development Programs
Product Area Project Target and Indication(s) Development Status(1) Development Rights
CANCER
Allogeneic Allovectin-7®

therapeutic vaccine Melanoma—Iow dose Phase Il Vical
Melanoma—high dose Phase I Vical
Head and neck canc Phase || Vical

Immunotherapeutic Leuvectin®
protein Kidney cancer(2) Phase II Vical

Prostate cancer Phase I Vical



Tumor-associated Undisclosed Preclinical/Phase | Centocor
antigen therapeutic Undisclosed Research Aventis Pasteur
vaccine Undisclosed Research Vical

INFECTIOUS DISEASES

Preventive vaccine Malaria Phase I/l Vical
Human immunodeficiency virus, Phase | Merck
HIV
Hepatitis B, hepatitis C, human Research Merck

papilloma virus, herpes simplex,
tuberculosis, influenza

Undisclosed Research Vical
Therapeutic vaccine HIV Phase | Merck
Hepatitis B, human papilloma virus Research Merck

PROTEIN THERAPEUTICS

Cardiovascular VEGF-2 Phase I Vascular Genetics
therapeutic protein Undisclosed Phase | Aventis Pharma
Catheter-based Research Boston Scientific
VETERINARY
Preventive vaccines Various undisclosed Research Merial
Therapeutic protei Undisclosec Researcl Vical
) "Research" indicates laboratory studies to evalagietential product candidate in a nonclinicalisgt "Preclinical” indicates that a specific pratigandidate has shown utility
meeting a targeted medical need in a nonclinidsihgge and is undergoing toxicology testing in pmegtion for filing an Investigational New Drug ajmaltion.
@) This program is under reevaluation following distiouation of the clinical trial on April 19, 2001.
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Gene Therapies for Cancer

Cancer is a disease of uncontrolled celwvgin. When detected early and still confined téangle location, surgery or irradiation can of
be curative. However, neither surgery nor irradiais considered curative for cancer that has gpita@ughout the body. Chemotherapy can
sometimes treat cancer that has spread throughetiody; however, a number of non-cancerous &lih as bone marrow cells, are also
highly susceptible to chemotherapy. As a resuktnottherapy often has fairly significant side eféeétinally, because each of these treatn
only acts for a short period of time, it is comntorsee cancer return after apparently successtairnrent.

Immunotherapy, using the patient's own imengystem, may have advantages over surgery,atiaadi and chemotherapy in the
treatment of cancer. It is generally believed thatimmune system can recognize cancer cells astdogehem. Yet many cancers appear to
have developed the ability to "hide" from the imralgystem. A treatment that can augment the immes@onse against tumor cells by
making the cancer more "visible" to the immune esystvould likely represent a significant improvementancer therapy. Immune-
enhancing proteins such as interleukin-2, IL-2, emelferon-alpha, IFN-alpha, have shown encougésults. However, these agents often
require large and frequent doses that regularlylr@ssevere side effects.

We have researched several delivery enimagts that may complement our core gene delivetyni@ogy. Our current clinical-stage
gene therapy approach consists of injecting imnsfineulating genes complexed with a cationic lipalieery vehicle, DMRIE/DOPE,
directly into malignant tumorsFollowing injection, the lipid delivery vehicle faitates uptake of the gene product into tumorsellhere it
directs the production of protein. Recent prechhitudies indicate that poloxamers, when combinigid other enhancing technologies, can
elicit tumor antigen responses in mice. Local eggien of immune-stimulating proteins often resirtthe same local effect from the protein
with fewer systemic toxicities. These and othedifiiys are being pursued in additional preclinitaties.

In addition, non-viral gene therapies mégroan added margin of safety compared to viradobtherapies, as no viral particles are
contained in the formulation. The ease of manufacttoutine treatment administration performechia ¢linic with minimal discomfort, and
the excellent toxicity profile suggest that nonaligene therapies may offer advantages over cumedtlities of therapy.

Preclinical studies in animals have demmastl the safety and potential efficacy of thisrapph. Subsequently, in early human studi
low incidence of treatment related adverse evemtsbieen observed. Our two lead non-viral gene piesdeing developed are reviewed
below.

Allovectin-7®



Allovectin-7® is a DNA/lipid complex containg the human gene encoding HLA-B7, which is foinfdequently in the human
population. Allovectin-7® is injected directly intamors, and is designed to make malignant cefisems HLAB7. The treatment may trigc
an immune response against tumor cells, both kpealtl systemically, by enabling the immune systemetognize other features of tumor
cells.

Metastatic Melanoma. The American Cancer Society, ACS, estimatesaapately 53,600 new diagnoses and 7,400 deatins fr
melanoma in 2002 in the United States. Currenltigre are no consistently effective therapies femaded cases of malignant melanoma.
Treatment for these patients normally includesralioation of chemotherapy, radiation therapy, amdery. In patients with metastatic
melanoma, median survival typically ranges fromteigleven months. The toxicity associated witthsdeDA-approved treatments as IL-2 or
IFN-alpha is often significant, resulting in sersoor life-threatening side effects in the majoafypatients treated.

We believe immunotherapies such as Allanet® represent an attractive approach for patieiitis advanced melanoma. In multi-
center Phase I/l and Phase Il clinical trials o&éictin-7® was
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well-tolerated and several patients developed denaguctions in overall tumor burden or maintaistable disease. Unadjudicated results,
combined from three clinical trials, were updated®ecember 1999 at the Eighth International Gerexdpy of Cancer Conference.
"Adjudication” refers to the process by which imjaorit efficacy results reported by trial investigatare reviewed to determine whether they
meet protocol-specific endpoints. These early céihtrials provided evidence of the excellent safebfile of Allovectin-7®. Side effects

from Allovectin-7® were primarily mild. The most gonon complaint was temporary pain at the injectib®. The side-effect profile for
Allovectin-7® appears superior to those of FDA-ap@d treatments for metastatic melanoma.

Based on the promising data from earliei@l trials and discussions with the FDA, we hefjgo concurrent registration trials, a Phase
I clinical trial and a Phase 11l clinical trialpf Allovectin-7® in May 1998. Based on recommenalasi of an independent Data and Safety
Review Board, we announced in May 2000 that we deohtinue to recruit patients as planned in our dwgoing registration trials with
Allovectin-7®. Following a face-to-face status rewi meeting in March 2001, the FDA reconfirmed theeptability of the company's
registration program to support marketing apprdavidle Phase 11l data meet the study objectived,iithe company meets product
manufacturing and other typical regulatory requieais. According to the FDA, a robust clinical out@regarding improvement in time to
disease progression would be sufficient to warcansideration for marketing approval as long asetlieno detriment in response rate. In
March 2001, the FDA also reconfirmed that the Phisagistration trial could, on its own, providébasis for marketing approval, if the data
meet the clinical endpoints. The FDA further comixd that data from the Phase Il trial and pri@grivith Allovectin-7® could support a
submission based on Phase Il trial results, assyithiat the Phase Il data are consistent withr @kperience.

At the May 2001 annual meeting of the Ammani Society of Clinical Oncology, we presented yundidated, interim safety and efficacy
data from our Phase Il Allovectin-7® registratioialtfor patients with late-stage metastatic mefaaoThe trial enrolled patients who had
failed other treatments. We reported on 73 patiehis received at least one injection of Allovecti®; the intent-to-treat patient population.
The preliminary conclusions based on these unachtelil data were that the median duration of regpand response rate suggested clinical
activity of Allovectin-7®, and that the safety pitefof Allovectin-7® remained excellent comparedwihose of FDA-approved treatments
for metastatic melanoma. The trial had endpoint b5 percent systemic clinical response rate aaiodirmonth median duration of respor
Unadjudicated data from the investigation sitegested that treatment with Allovectin-7® resulteagystemic clinical responses in
10.9 percent of the patients, with a median dunatioresponse of 4.9 months, and an additional gér2ent were reported to have achieved
stable disease. These Phase Il data alone woelg liot support accelerated FDA approval. Neatlpfihe drug-related side effects were
mild or moderate. Final data from the investigasites may be reviewed independently, which couddiemially change the results.

In September 2001, we completed enrollne€@00 patients in a randomized, controlled PhHsegistration trial to evaluate the safety
and efficacy of Allovectin-7® for the treatmentafemotherapy-naive patients with metastatic melandtalf the patients received
dacarbazine, the only chemotherapeutic agent diyrapproved by the FDA for metastatic melanomae ©ther half received dacarbazine
plus Allovectin-7®. The objective of the trial wasdetermine if Allovectin-7® treatment can incredise response rate or time to disease
progression. The trial design allowed for as mas280 patients. We chose to complete enrolime®d@tpatients based on discussions with
the FDA in March 2001 and a statistical analysisxghg that this number would be sufficient to derstoate the required robust clinical
outcome in one of the trial's primary endpointspiiavement in time to disease progression.

We expect to complete the collection, asiglgnd adjudication of data from the Phase llistegtion trial in the second half of 2002.
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Based on preliminary data that injecteddrsrappear to respond more frequently than normtiejelesions, one strategy to increase the
response rate to Allovectin-7® is to inject muldipimors rather than single tumors as in prioristudn addition, higher doses of Allovectin-
7® may generate a stronger immune response. In Fgt2084., we initiated a Phase Il clinical trial evating higher doses and differe



treatment regimens. The new clinical trial, whismot part of our registration program, combinesleding doses of up to a 200-fold increase
compared with the registration trials. It also a#ofor the distribution of that increased dose sdanany as five tumor lesions. We believe
that the combination of higher dose and multipladuinjections may provide a relevant increasefficacy. Recruitment is progressing well,
and we have now enrolled more than 50 patientsisn80-patient trial. As a result, we have sucagdlys€ompleted the dose-escalation phase
of this trial and are now testing the full 2 mgsdan multiple tumor injections.

Head and Neck Cancer.Head and neck cancer includes several typksalized tumors affecting the oral cavity, theylart or
pharynx. The ACS estimates approximately 37,800 diagnoses and 11,100 deaths from these canc2@®in the United States. When
found early, head and neck cancers are often ttedth surgery or irradiation therapy. Results afhslard treatment depend on factors sur
the number of tumors, their size, and their spediftation.

Unadjudicated results from three sequemise | and Phase Il clinical trials testing Adotin-7® in patients with advanced squamous
cell carcinoma of the head and neck were publighége July 2001 issue of tiechives of Otolaryngology—Head and Neck Surgémg
data were compiled from a single-center, Phasadysand two multi-center, Phase Il studies forgrats with unresectable head and neck
cancer who had failed to respond to conventioredapies. Of 69 patients who completed the firgtiment cycle in the three clinical trials, 6
patients appeared to achieve clinical responsels,as0 percent or greater reduction in tumor boyrded 14 were reported to have stable
disease, with less than 50 percent reduction ertlean 25 percent increase in tumor burden. Thegfonding or stable patients went on to a
second treatment cycle. Upon completing the set@adment cycle, 5 patients appeared to have @apaesponse, and 6 patients were
reported with stable disease. The reported duratisesponse for the 5 responding patients ranged 20 to 79 weeks. The duration of
response for the 6 stable patients appeared te faoig 20 weeks and remaining stable to 34 weeksvéctin-7® was generally well-
tolerated, with no serious drug-related side e$fedte concluded that treatment with Allovectin-@@peared to be safe and that further stt
were warranted in patients with less-advanced heddeck cancer.

Based on these conclusions, we initiatetuli-center Phase 1l clinical trial in February@0with Allovectin-7® in up to 25 patients
scheduled for surgical treatment of eastgage cancer of the oral cavity and oropharynx.drimaary goal in the clinical trial is reduction thfe
tumor prior to surgery. Additional objectives indeiassessment of the immune response to Allové@irevaluation of the treatment's
toxicity, and analysis of the time to disease pesgion. Recruitment for this clinical trial has beery challenging, with one patient enrolled
as of December 31, 2001.

Leuvectin®

Leuvectin® is a DNA/lipid complex contaigithe gene encoding IL-2, a cytokine that playsla in stimulating immune response.
Systemic IL-2 protein therapy is currently approbgdhe FDA for treatment of certain cancers, laiadministration is associated with
serious toxicity in the majority of patients. Wepext that Leuvectin®, when injected into tumord] eause the malignant cells to produce IL-
2. Local expression of IL-2 may then stimulate plagient's immune system to attack and destroyuimet cells. Because Leuvectin® delivers
IL-2 locally rather than throughout the body, ityraovide efficacy comparable to the protein treatirwith fewer side effects. Leuvectin®
being tested in Phase Il clinical trials for patgewith prostate cancer.
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Kidney Cancer. As announced in April 2001, we discontinued Bhase Il clinical trial with Leuvectin® for patisnwith metastatic
kidney cancer because the efficacy did not meetimttargets required to continue the trial. Weehewsmpleted our investigation into this
matter and have concluded that a change in theulation likely resulted in reduced expression of2LWe expect to announce our future
development plans for Leuvectin® in the second 6B#002.

Prostate Cancer. According to the ACS, prostate cancer is tledsd leading cause of cancer fatalities among meinei United State
with an estimated 189,000 new diagnoses and 3@e&8aths from prostate cancer in the United Stat29@2.

Preclinical studies demonstrate that Letim@ccan stimulate an anti-tumor immune responsgresj prostate cancer cells in the
laboratory. In May 1997, we initiated a Phasenichl trial at the University of California Los Aalgs, UCLA, to evaluate the safety and
efficacy of intraprostatic Leuvectin® in two groupkpatients: those who are pre-prostatectomy bibéing rising prostate-specific antigen,
PSA, following local irradiation therapy. Unadjudied results of the trial were published in May 20§ Dr Arie Belldegrun at UCLA
( Human Gene Therapyl2(8): 883-92). Dr. Belldegrun reported on 24gy#s with locally advanced prostate cancer whoevedther
scheduled to undergo surgical resection of th&istate or who had failed prior local therapy wittadiation therapy. Patients received 300,
750 or 1,500 pg of Leuvectin® administered intrapatically under ultrasound guidance on days 18nd

There were no grade 3 or 4 toxicities reggghrThe most common side effect seen was smallate@f blood in the urine. Patients also
reported mild to moderate temporary rectal bleeding perineal discomfort. Of the 24 patients indtuely, 16 (67 percent) demonstrated a
temporary decrease in their PSA on day 1, and 8€5cent) continued to demonstrate a decreas8AndR day 8. Prostate tumor samples
were taken at the time of surgery or on day 1haseé patients who failed irradiation therapy. As@of the prostate biopsies demonstrated
an increase in the number of infiltrating T cebidwing treatment



Based on these results, it was concludadittraprostate injection of Leuvectin® is safe avell-tolerated in this patient population at
doses up to 1,500 pg and that further study of ketin® in this indication was warranted. On theiba$ these data, we initiated two multi-
center Phase Il clinical trials in June 1999. Thaseies are ongoing. We expect to announce ourgutevelopment plans for Leuvectin® in
the second half of 2002.

Vaxid

In collaboration with Stanford Universityddical Center, we were developing a plasmid-badé¢4 Baccine,Vaxid, against low-grade,
non-Hodgkin's, B-cell lymphoma/axid contains a patient-specific gene encoding a cheniatic molecule of cancerous B-cells. In
March 2001, we announced positive safety and immenicity results in an initial Phase I/Il clinidaial. The treatment appeared to have
been well-tolerated by patients, and appearedve panerated both cellular and humoral immune resp® We have no immediate plans to
pursue further development \gbxid.

gpl100 Vaccine

In collaboration with the National Cancestitute, we supported development efforts foresiplidbased DNA vaccine, which may ca
cells to produce a modified melanoma-related pndtebwn as gp100. This protein was expected tgerign immune response against
melanoma tumor cells. Our funding of this progrardexd in October 2001. We have no immediate plapsitsue further development of this
program.
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Outlicense of Cancer Targets

See "Collaborations and Licensing Agreemmerorporate CollaboratorsGutlicensing,” for discussion of Centocor and AveRtasteu
collaborations in cancer targets.

DNA Vaccines for Infectious Diseases

Our infectious disease program is drivenhyge overarching criteria: the complexity of threduct development program, competition,
and commercial opportunities. Vaccines are generattognized as the most cost-effective approacifectious disease health care.
However, the technical limitations of conventiomatcine approaches have constrained the develomfeffective vaccines for many
diseases. We believe our potential vaccine prodikaisid be simpler to manufacture than vaccinesennathg cumbersome and labor-
intensive techniques involving difficult tissue ttuke procedures and live viruses. In addition,geme delivery technology has the potential to
speed certain aspects of vaccine product developsoieh as preclinical evaluation and manufacturinigas demonstrated a favorable safety
profile and contributes to a potent cellular immuesponse.

Over the past decade, hundreds of sciemtifblications have documented the efficacy of Di&cines in contributing to potent immt
responses in dozens of species from fish to nonhyrimates, and human volunteers. Among the masintevas a January 2002 report in
the scientific journalNature, on a study conducted by Merck in which a primedtaaccine regimen employing our patented naked DN
non-viral gene delivery technology was used tatedic immune response in monkeys against a hybria ©f HIV that can replicate and
cause clinical disease in monkeys. Prime-boost spgroach that seeks to optimize the immune resspby using two different forms of
vaccination in sequence. In this study, Merck us@dnaked DNA plus adjuvant to prime the immung@oese with Merck's non-replicating
adenoviral vector vaccine to boost the responsis. vidtcine combination was shown to provide potefiilar immune responses. In
February 2002, Merck presented its initial humata d@m ongoing Phase I clinical trials at th® @onference on Retroviruses and
Opportunistic Infections. Merck's preliminary argifysuggests that its HIVdagvaccine candidates for the prevention and treatoieHtV-
1 elicit specific antiviral cellular immune respessand are generally well-tolerated in the ongsingies. The Retrovirus Conference
presentation marked the first time Merck scientistge discussed data from human testing of Metalddeading HIV-1 vaccine candidates—
an HIV-1gagDNA vaccine and an HIV-fagreplication-defective adenovirus vaccine.

In the Merck studies, the naked DNA prinaecine was formulated in a solution containing CRIO5, a poloxamer that Merck licensed
from CytRx Corporation. A recent license agreenters also given us access to CytRx's technical 8spemnd large library of poloxamers,
including CRL-1005, with the exception of four infus disease targets licensed to Merck, plusaaraarget. We intend to use this
technology to enhance our in-house vaccine devetoppipeline as we explore possible infectiousalisdargets.

One of these targets is malaria. The U&yMNoresented data on a collaborative Phase ifiical trial of a DNA vaccine to prevent
infection with malaria. Further details on thesd ather relationships can be found in "Collaboragmd Licensing Agreements—Corporate
Collaborators—OQutlicensing," and "—Research Inttits."

DNA Therapeutic Protein Delivery



Therapeutic proteins are one of the mayisstd biotechnology. Although recombinant proteii @ntibody products have established
successful markets, gene delivery techniques tdym®these
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proteins in vivo are still under development. Tosbiecessful, gene-based delivery of protein thertagewill need to meet the following
criteria:

. Appropriate level of protein expression, with camications maintained within the therapeutic windoffering the required
efficacy without unacceptable toxicity;

. Absence of immune response to expressed self psot@iowing repeat dosing if necessary;
. Adequate bio-distribution, delivering the proteinthe right place in the appropriate amounts;
. Varying degrees of regulation depending upon seagplications.

Significant technical hurdles may needembiercome in the commercialization of this tecbgglfor protein therapeutic applications.
The biggest hurdles include the inability to tightdgulate protein expression and, in some cagsessttieve adequate levels of protein
expression. For regulated proteins, the greatedlectye is to combine an efficient promoter witham-toxic small molecule. Protein
therapeutics that have a narrow therapeutic winddlxalmost certainly require tightly regulated egpsion of the gene delivered.

Based on the performance characteristicaipturrent naked DNA technology, therapeutic girst with a broad therapeutic window ¢
cancer immunotherapeutics are the product frana@selopment areas with the highest probabilitiesticcess. An example of a specific
potential application can be found in the emerdielgl of angiogenesis, the therapeutic goal of Whcinducing the growth of blood vessels
to replace those blocked by disease. Angiogenesidbben shown to occur by the exogenous admimistrat angiogenic growth factors. We
believe that the sustained delivery of these grdattors will be both safe and effective, and thattherapeutic window for local delivery
will be broad. Thus, although several attemptsitermittently deliver recombinant specific angiogegrowth factors directly have been
unsuccessful, we believe our approach to deliveallp genes that encode the desired growth fagagaite promising. Local delivery of
angiogenic growth factor genes is in human tri@iher potential applications are still being testednimal models. See "Eellaboration an
Licensing Agreements—Corporate Collaborators—Oeitiging."

See also "—Collaboration and Licensing Agnents—Research Institutions," for discussion otrae@t manufacturing and contract
regulatory support for the National Institutes adith Vaccine Research Center in Infectious Dissas®d the Institute for AIDS Vaccine
Initiative.

Veterinary Applications

Prior to its development for human theramy, gene delivery technology was extensively testeanimals. Research scientists have
published numerous papers detailing favorable t®guimany species and covering a broad rangeseide indications. Animal health
encompasses two distinct market segments: livestycknimals bred and raised for food or other potst and companion animals, or pets.
Serving the animal health markets requires higffigient manufacturing and specialized distributidmannels. Consequently, we have
licensed our gene delivery technology for developina@d commercialization by others. We are indepetigd conducting research on an
undisclosed veterinary therapeutic protein appbcatSee "—Collaboration and Licensing AgreementsfpOrate Collaborators—
Outlicensing."

Intellectual Property

Patents and other proprietary rights asem$al to our business. We file patent applicatitmprotect our technology, inventions, and
improvements to our inventions that we considerdrtgnt to the development of our business. We belibat our patent portfolio is the most
comprehensive of any company in the non-viral géelevery sector.
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We also rely upon trade secrets, know-temmtinuing technological innovations and licensipgortunities to develop and maintain our
competitive position. We have filed or participassllicensee in the filing of more than 40 patgmiiaations in the United States and have
made over 360 additional counterpart foreign fiirig foreign countries relating to our technolo@ur patents and patent applications cover,
for example, naked DNA gene delivery for immuniaatand delivery of therapeutic proteins, specifiéADconstructs and formulations of
gene-based product candidates, methods for praglptiarmaceutical-grade DNA, and several familiepad molecules and their uses in
gene delivery. Many of these patents have beerdsky the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, PT@u#ber of patent applications ¢



pending in the United States, and correspondingidarapplications have been filed.

We and our exclusive licensors have receiveamerous U.S. and foreign patents covering varampects of our proprietary technology.
Most of these patents are recently issued and t@vaiderable patent life remaining. These patenatslescribed as follows:

Core Gene Delivery TechnologyWe own rights to issued U.S. patents coveringcoue gene delivery technology, including
patents on methods of administering gene sequdoct®e purposes of expressing therapeutic protirisr inducing immune
responses. Other issued patents specifically dbeeadministration of genes into blood vesselsthacheart.

In October 2001, we announced our intention to aptbe ruling by the Opposition Division of the Bpean Patent Office
revoking on formal grounds our patent coveringribaviral delivery of genetic material. AccordingEaropean patent
procedures, issued patents may be opposed bygimtieested in challenging the issued claims. @dtent covering our core
DNA delivery technology was issued in 1998 and wassequently opposed by seven companies. The QGippd3ivision
ruled that, as a result of amendments to the clamade during the process of obtaining the Europadent and during the
opposition process, the claims did not comply viathropean patent laws. Our appeal, which we w#! ffiy the end of

April 2002, will seek to overturn the revocationdave may also use additional patent applicatibasdre pending in Europe
to secure patent protection for our core gene dsfitechnology. We intend to vigorously defend patent position in the
European opposition proceedings. If we are notessfal in the appeal and opposition proceedingsnas lose part or all of
our proprietary protection on our product candidateEurope.

Core Lipid Technology.We have received issued U.S. patents coveringemuns examples of cationic lipid compounds that
are used to facilitate delivery of gene therapiesame tissues. These patented compounds incladipitths contained in our
lead product candidates, Allovectin-7® and Leuve®tiPatent protection of these key lipids alsolwen obtained in Europe
and Japan.

Specific DNA TherapeuticsWe have supplemented the broad patent coverameilied above with patents covering specific
product applications of our technology. To date haee received patents issued in the United Statesring Allovectin-7®
and Leuvectin® and other patents related to gelieedg to the heart, including delivery of a vasmuéndothelial growth
factor, VEGF, for example.

DNA Process TechnologyAs a result of our pioneering efforts to develog tise of pure DNA as a therapeutic agent, we
also led the development of manufacturing procefsgsroducing pharmaceutical-grade DNA. We haweeieed issued U.S.
patents covering various steps involved in the @semf economically producing pure plasmid DNAgbarmaceutical use.

At the beginning of 2000, prosecution obtef our allowed U.S. patent applications and orfe. |patent application that we licensed
were under suspension by the PTO pending resolofipossible
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interference proceedings with one or more partid®awn to us. For two of these three applicatitims,suspensions were lifted during 2000,
and patents were issued in 2001. One of thesetpat@s issued to us in April 2001, and expandsooad ownership of naked DNA gene
delivery technologies by including the adminiswatbf naked DNA into any tissue for the purposéndticing an immune response. The o
patent, issued in October 2001, broadly coverstingection of genetic material into tumors orreumnding tissue using viral, lipid-based or
other non-viral gene delivery compositions. We hiisensed exclusive commercial rights to this pafeam the University of Michigan. The
third patent application has been returned to agihwsecution status.

In addition, a patent was issued to us &y 001 that covers naked DNA delivery of VEGFHe heart to promote angiogenesis.

Some components of our géyesed product candidates are, or may become, pdtbptothers. As a result, we may be required taio
licenses to conduct research, to manufacture, wraidet such products. Licenses may not be availablcommercially reasonable terms, or

at all.

See "—Additional Business Risks—Our patemts proprietary rights may not provide us with deyefit and the patents of others may
prevent us from commercializing our products,” &hlde legal proceedings to obtain patents and titigeof third-party claims of intellectual
property infringement could require us to spend eyosnd could impair our operations."

Commercialization and Manufacturing

Because of the broad potential applicatmfsur technology, we intend to develop and conuiaéize products both on our own and
through corporate collaborators. We intend to dgvelnd commercialize products to well-defined sgécmarkets, such as oncology,
infectious diseases, and other life-threateningaties. Where appropriate, we intend to rely otegfi@amarketing and distribution alliances
for manufacturing and marketing produc



We believe our plasmid DNA can be produicecbmmercial quantities through straightforwarthientation and purification techniqu:
The separation and purification of plasmid DNA iktively straightforward procedure because efittherent biochemical differences
between plasmid DNA and the majority of other baatecomponents. In addition, our lipid formulatenonsist of components that are
synthesized chemically using traditional, readdgleable organic synthesis procedures.

We produce and supply our own plasmid DNAEII of our research needs and clinical triald extend to produce sufficient supplies for
all foreseeable clinical investigations. In Janu20@2, we signed a 15-year lease on a facility weabelieve will be sufficient for foreseeable
commercial manufacturing requirements. We also gadgacontract manufacturing of plasmid DNA invgational products for selected
clients. We may also choose to have outside orgtaizss manufacture our products.

Collaboration and Licensing Agreements

We have entered into various arrangemeitktscarporate, academic, and government collabosalicensors, licensees, and others. In
addition to the agreements summarized below, wduwctrongoing negotiations with potential corpored#aborators.

Corporate Collaborators—Qutlicensing

Merck & Co., Inc. In May 1991, we entered into a research cotlaian and license agreement with Merck to develog
commercialize vaccines utilizing our gene deliviesghnology to prevent infection and disease in mgnl connection with the 1991
agreement, we granted Merck a worldwide exclusoenke to preventive vaccines using our technoémginst seven human infectious
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diseases including: influenza; HIV; herpes simplepatitis B virus, HBV; hepatitis C virus, HCV;man papilloma virus, HPV; and
tuberculosis. Merck has the right to terminate #gseement without cause on 90 days written notice.

In addition, Merck has rights to therapeutses of preventive vaccines developed underdf& agreement. In December 1995 and
November 1997, Merck acquired additional rightsléeelop and commercialize therapeutic vaccinesnag&PV, HIV and HBV. Under th
November 1997 amendment, Merck made an investmevital of $5.0 million for approximately 262,008ares of our common stoc

In September 1997, we entered into an pitd license agreement granting Merck the rightsse our technology to deliver certain
growth factors. The agreement resulted in a payneoens of $2.0 million. Merck terminated this agrest in June 2000.

In November 1999, we received a $2.0 milljiayment from Merck, which extends Merck's licettsdevelop and commercialize
therapeutic vaccines against HIV and HBV. In Decent®99, Merck initiated a clinical trial with akesd DNA vaccine to prevent AIDS. In
January 2000, Merck paid us a $1.0 million milestpayment for the start of this trial. In May 2080grck commenced the therapeutic
vaccine trial.

In November 2001, we received a $3.0 miliiayment from Merck in accordance with our licagsahgreement. The payment extends
the term of Merck's worldwide rights to use our @lONA technology to develop and commercializedpeutic vaccines against both HIV
and HBV. We recognized this $3.0 million as licenseenue in the fourth quarter of 2001. In conrmectiith these agreements, Merck has
paid us approximately $25.1 million, including &.0 million payment for the investment in our coamstock, through December 31, 2001.
Merck is obligated to pay additional fees if carteésearch milestones are achieved and royaltie®bsales if any products are developed
and commercialized. For some indications we ma lavopportunity to co-promote product sales.

Merck is currently testing naked DNA vaasrfor HIV in human trials. Human testing begaatember 1999 in uninfected volunteers
and, in May 2000, in volunteers already infectethwdlV and receiving highly active anti-retrovirdlerapy. At its annual business briefing in
December 2000, Merck highlighted its investigatiddB/ vaccine program as a key research initiatimeApril 2001, Merck highlighted the
success to date of its HIV vaccine developmentamog which includes a vaccine based on our patard&dd DNA gene delivery
technology. Merck presented preclinical data frestHIV vaccine program and reviewed the statudiofoal trials at the 2001 Keystone
SymposiumAIDS Vaccines in the New Millennium,Keystone, Colorado, and AtDS Vaccine 200ih Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. In
January 2002, Merck's research results, publighéuei scientific journaNature, described the use of our naked DNA technologyndmkeys
in the ongoing efforts to develop a vaccine to cabthlV.

The report itNaturedescribed studies conducted by Merck includingidystn which a vaccine regimen employing Vical'sepaed
naked DNA, non-viral, gene delivery technology wasd in a prime-boost regimen with naked DNA pldishgant to prime and Merck's non-
replicating adenoviral vector to boost. This vaeaiombination was shown to provide potent cellitranune responses to a hybrid form of
HIV that can replicate and cause clinical diseasménkeys. In February 2002, Merck presented it&ilnuman data from ongoing Phase |
clinical trials at the 9" Conference on Retroviruses and Opportunistic Iidast Merck's preliminary analysis suggests thsaHitv-1 gag
vaccine candidates for the prevention and treatwieHtV-1 elicit specific antiviral cellular immunesponses and are generally well-
tolerated in the ongoing studies. The Retrovirusf€ence presentation marked the first time Memi&rgists have discussed data from
human testing of the Merck's two leading I-1 vaccine candidat—an HIV-1 gagDNA vaccine and an HI-1 gagreplicatior-defective



adenovirus vaccine.
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Aventis. In September 1994, we entered into a reseaptlgn, and license agreement with the vaccine fiaatwrer Aventis Pasteur, a
division of Aventis S.A., granting them optionsacquire licenses for the use of our proprietaryeggelivery technology to develop and
commercialize vaccines against specific infectidiseases. Subsequent option exercises and additiemsually led to licenses for a total of
four preventive vaccine targets: cytomegalovitdslicobacter pylori, malaria and respiratory syncytial virus.

In October 1997, we entered into an agre¢émeanting Aventis Pharma, a division of Aventig\San exclusive worldwide license to
use our gene delivery technology to deliver centagnrologically active proteins for potential traaint of neurodegenerative diseases.

In December 2001, we completed an agreenestructuring with Aventis Pasteur. Aventis Pastghtained rights to use our patented
gene delivery technology for specific oncology &ions. In exchange, Aventis Pasteur paid a sopibn fee and gave up rights to deve
and commercialize the infectious disease vaccilvesntis Pasteur has the right to terminate thigagrent without cause on six months
written notice.Simultaneously, we reacquired rightgene therapies for neurodegenerative disehaews/ere previously licensed to Aventis
Pharma.

In 1999, Aventis Pharma began testing #iieed DNA delivery of a gene encoding an angioggrievth factor in patients with
peripheral vascular disease, a severe loss of Bloadcaused by blockage of arteries feeding ttot émd lower leg. They licensed the rights
to our gene delivery technology for cardiovascalaplications using a specific angiogenic growthidam June 2000. The angiogenic growth
factor agreement, which remains in effect, resuilteah initial payment to us of $1.5 million anduttb generate milestone payments plus
royalties if products advance through commerciéitira Aventis Pharma has the right to terminate #jreement without cause on 60 days
written notice.

Through December 31, 2001, we had recespgutoximately $10.3 million under all of the Avenéigreements. The restructured
agreement provides for us to receive additionahpats based upon achievement of certain definegktoihes and royalty payments base
net product sales.

Pfizer Inc. In January 1999, we entered into a collaboeatésearch and option agreement with Pfizer toldpvend commercialize
DNA-based delivery of therapeutic proteins for aalitnealth applications. Pfizer had an option taoban exclusive royalty-bearing license
to our technology for these applications. The aptgpired in January 2002. Under the agreemergePifnade an investment in Vical of
$6.0 million for approximately 318,000 shares of common stock. Pfizer also paid us a $1.0 millipafront option fee and $1.5 million for
research and development over the life of the ageae

Merial. We entered into a corporate collaboration indal995 relating to DNA vaccines in the animalltiearea with Merial, a joir
venture between Merck and Aventis S.A. Merial hpsoms to take exclusive licenses to our gene dglitechnology to develop and
commercialize DNA vaccines to prevent infectiousedises in domesticated animals. In December 1988al\paid us $1.6 million for the
initial exercise of options and extension of optiamder the agreement. In March 2000, Merial magi@yanent to extend their option to
March 31, 2001. In 2001, Merial further extendetiays under the 1995 agreement. Through Decemhet(Bl, we had received
$6.0 million under this agreement. If Merial exers additional license options and markets thesgnes, cash payments and royalties on
sales would be due to us. Merial has the righ¢tminate this agreement without cause on 30 daifgewnotice.

Human Genome Sciences, Indn February 2000, we signed a reciprocal, nyybearing license with Human Genome Sciences, Inc.
HGS. Under the agreement, we have the option tgixely license up to three genes from HGS foregbased product development. HGS
has the option to license our gene delivery teatmofor use in up to three gene-based productsh gaty has until
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September 30, 2004, to exercise their respectitiorap As of December 31, 2001, neither party haat@sed any of their options.

Vascular Genetics Inc. In February 2000, we granted an exclusive, ltgyearing license to Vascular Genetics Inc., V&Eompany
in which HGS is a major shareholder, for naked Ditivery of a gene encoding Vascular Endotheliadvah Factor 2, VEGF-2. In
exchange, we received a minority equity interest@l represented by preferred stock.

VGI has conducted Phase | and Phase italitrials using naked DNA delivery of the VEGFg2ne to promote the growth of blood
vessels in patients with coronary artery diseaggedpheral vascular disease. The FDA placed thetk@s on a clinical hold in 2000. We
learned from VGI in October 2001 that their Phds#elelopment program is off clinical hold, andytheve announced that they are
advancing toward new clinical trials. See "AddigBusiness Ris—We may suffer a material financial loss due totiblu if additional



shares of VGI stock are issued at a price belowissurance price, or due to permanent impairmeéwGif is unable to successfully complete
its development plans.”

Centocor, Inc. In February 1998, we entered into an excluboemse and option agreement allowing Centocor, Bubsequently
acquired by Johnson & Johnson, Inc., to use oue getivery technology to develop and commerciatizgain DNA vaccines for the poten
treatment of some types of cancer. We receiveditialipayment of $2.0 million plus reimbursemeh$6.2 million of patent costs. In 2001,
we also received scheduled milestone payments.ofrfilllion. We may receive additional payments lagpon achievement of milestones
and royalty payments on product sales. Centocotheasght to terminate this agreement without eamrs 180 days written notice.

Boston Scientific Corporation. In April 1997, we entered into a sublicensecagnent with Cardiogene Therapeutics, Inc., formerly
known as Genocor, Inc., for the development of ei@thbased intravascular gene delivery technologietiour license agreement with the
University of Michigan, described below. Bostonetific Corporation has subsequently acquired @ametie Therapeutics' rights under this
agreement. We received $1.1 million in October 1888er this agreement. The agreement providessftw teceive royalty payments on any
related product sales. Boston Scientific has thlettio terminate this agreement without cause oda3@ written notice.

Corporate Collaborators—Inlicensing

Ichor Medical Systems, Inc.In October 2001, we entered into an exclusgre@ment with Ichor Medical Systems, Inc. to depelo
products based on our gene delivery technologydatidered using Ichor's proprietary electroporatigatems. Both companies are applying
this innovative approach toward the initial develmmt of selected products.

CytRx Corporation. In December 2001, we entered into an exclusgreement with CytRx Corporation which grants tdhesrights t
use or sublicense CytRx's poloxamer technologyt@ece viral or non-viral delivery of polynuclealin all preventive and therapeutic
human and animal health applications, except for fofectious disease vaccine targets licensedaocckand prostate-specific membrane
antigen. In addition, the agreement permits ourafisgytRx's technology to enhance the deliveryrotgins in prime-boost vaccine
applications that involve the use of polynuclecidis part of the agreement, we made a $3.8 millifront payment and agreed to make
potential future milestone and royalty payments Titense fee is being amortized to expense oecestimated ten-year average useful life
of the technology.

Under the Merck, Aventis, Merial, CentoddGS and VGI agreements, we would be required youpato 10 percent of some milestone
payments and a small percentage of some royaltmeats to Wisconsin Alumni Research Foundation, WARte CytRx and Ichor
agreements would require us to make payments ®&>Cand Ichor, respectively, and to WARF only if tiesults of our research
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resulted in the generation of revenue. Under thet@oScientific agreement, if we were to receiviestone or royalty payments, we woulc
required to pay up to 25 percent of some of thesenents to the University of Michigan. See "—Reskdnstitutions—Wisconsin Alumni
Research Foundation," and "—Research Institutionse-Oniversity of Michigan."

Research Institutions

Office of Naval Research.In September 1998, we entered into an agreewiémthe Office of Naval Research, ONR, for deystent
work on a potential multi-gene DNA vaccine to pretvmalaria. Malaria is a severe infectious disedm@acterized by fever, headache and
joint pain, which if untreated can lead to deattfiettion normally occurs when the parasite entesistan's bloodstream during a mosqu
bite. There is currently no effective vaccine agathe disease.

In August 2000, a Phase I/1l clinical tneds initiated to test the safety and efficacy ahied DNA vaccine to prevent infection by the
malaria parasite. In November 2001, the U.S. Naeggented preliminary trial results at the 50th AarMeeting of the American Society of
Tropical Medicine and Hygiene. The preliminary fésindicated that vaccination was safe and wéd#rtded, and caused specific T-cell
immune responses against encoded antigens. Althalligblunteers contracted the disease, measursmadet the challenge indicated
specific antibody and T-cell immune responses, Wwhiere stronger in volunteers receiving the vacttia® in volunteers who did not receive
the vaccine, suggesting a vaccine-induced primepanakite-induced boost effect. Results of tha provide the basis for planning further
development toward a malaria vaccine product. \Bc#&ntists, in cooperation with the U.S. governinare looking to apply several new
enhancing technologies to develop a preventive niaalaccine that uses our DNA technologies to gied to 9 months' protection. The
initial indication for use will be aimed at thewe and military markets, for which there are cathglicensed medications that have
limitations such as drug resistance, side effentscuration of treatment both before and afterdkav

The agreement with the ONR, as amendedrinaly 2002, could provide us with up to $5.5 willin funding through April 30, 2002.
Through December 31, 2001, we had recognized reveh$5.0 million of the total contract amount. WMtend to pursue additional
agreements with ONR to continue funding for thisalepment program, however, we may not be ablaterento any further agreements.

The University of Michigal In October 1992, we entered into a licenseagent with the University of Michigan and obtairiad



exclusive license to technology for delivering gdr@sed products into cancer cells and blood vebgatatheters. In April 1997, we entered
into a sublicense agreement, the rights under wénielcurrently held by Boston Scientific Corporatitor the development of catheter-based
intravascular gene delivery technology.

Wisconsin Alumni Research FoundationUnder a 1989 research agreement, scientighe &iniversity of Wisconsin, Madison, and our
scientists co-invented a core technology relatédttamuscular naked DNA administration. In 199%, keensed from WARF its interest in
that technology. We paid WARF an initial license #end agreed to pay WARF a royalty on sales ofpaoglucts incorporating the licensed
technology and a percentage of up-front licenserges from third parties.

Contract Manufacturing and Regulatory Support

National Institutes of Health,—National InstitutsAllergic and Infectious Disease/Division of Al$2001, we performed contract
manufacturing of DNA for infectious disease vacsin@der three contracts with the NIH. One of thms@racts continues into 2002. Total
revenue recognized under these contracts was $llidinm 2001. We also provided regulatory supporDivision of AIDS under one
contract. Total revenue recognized under this echfn 2001 was $0.3 million.
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International AIDS Vaccine Initiative. In 2002, we signed a contract with Internatlohl®S Vaccine Initiative, IAVI, a not-for-profit
entity, to provide clinical supplies. The initigrin of this contract extends to December 31, 2082reafter the term shall be renewed
automatically for successive one-year periods srdéther party gives at least 90 days prior ndticerminate. The Chairman of our Board of
Directors, R. Gordon Douglas, M.D., serves on tbhar of Directors of IAVI. Our President and Chiefecutive Officer, Vijay B. Samant,
serves on the Project Management Subcommittee\dif. IA

Scientific Advisory Board

In September 2001, we named a Scientificigaty Board, SAB, consisting of academic and itidalsexperts in such fields as gene
therapy, vaccines, oncology, drug delivery and gens. We intend to meet with members of the SAB&nper year to discuss research and
development strategies, though certain membersam@ynunicate with our scientists more frequentldiszuss the details of specific
projects. All SAB members have been granted optiorzcquire shares of our common stock. Each SABilbee has entered into a consult
agreement specifying the terms and scope of this@agwelationship with us, which provides that twmsultant will not consult or otherwise
provide services to any other company engagedrie tfeerapy without our prior consent. We do noielvel that termination of any individual
consulting agreement would materially affect ousibass. All of the SAB members are employed by ey®k other than us and may have
other commitments to, or consulting or advisorytcaets with, other entities which may conflict @ngpete with their obligations to us. See
"—Scientific Advisory Board Members."

Competition

The field of gene-based drug developmentis and rapidly evolving, and it is expected tatowie to undergo significant and rapid
technological change. Rapid technological develogmeuld result in our product candidates or tettgies becoming obsolete before we
recover a significant portion of our related resbadevelopment, and capital expenditures. We mipgréence competition both from other
companies in the field and from companies whichehather forms of treatment for the diseases weaageting.

We are aware of several development-stade=atablished enterprises, including major phaeutéeal and biotechnology firms, which
are exploring gene-based drugs or are activelyge@ym gene delivery research and development.eTinetude Avigen, Inc., Cell
Genesys, Inc., Introgen Therapeutics, Inc., Tath&enetics Corp., Transgene SA, and Valentis, &magng others. We may also experience
competition from companies that have acquired oy atauire technology from companies, universitieg ather research institutions. As
these companies develop their technologies, theydaaelop proprietary technologies which may mathriand adversely affect our
business.

In addition, a number of companies are Wgieg products to address the same diseases thatemargeting. For example, AVAX
Technologies, Inc., Corixa Corp., Antigenics, In@ancerVax Corp., Maxim Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ardt&, Inc., among others, are
conducting advanced clinical trials for the treatingf melanoma. In addition, Introgen Therapeuties,, Onyx Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and
ImClone Systems, Inc., among others, are conductingal trials of their products to treat headlareck cancer. If these or any other
companies develop products with efficacy or safebfiles significantly better than our products, may not be able to commercialize our
products, and sales of any of our commercializedipets could be harmed.

Some of our competitors and potential caitqrs have substantially greater product develaptreapabilities and financial, scientific,
marketing and human resources than we do. Compeetitay develop products earlier, obtain FDA appiof@ products more rapidly, or
develop products that are more effective than thiwsker development by us. We will seek to expandechnological
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capabilities to remain competitive; however, reskand development by others may render our teolggadr products obsolete or
noncompetitive, or result in treatments or curgsesior to ours.

Regulatory agencies such as the FDA aner @bvernment agencies may expand current requirisnfi@r public disclosure of
development information for gene-based product ldgwveent data technology which may harm our comipetjposition with foreign
companies and U.S. companies developing non-gesediEroducts for similar indications.

Our competitive position will be affected the disease indications addressed by our pradunttidates and those of our competitors, the
timing of market introduction for these productsl dhe stage of development of other technologiegitivess these disease indications. For us
and our competitors, proprietary technologies athiity to complete clinical trials on a timely issnd with the desired results, and the al
to obtain timely regulatory approvals to marketstheroduct candidates are likely to be signifieamhpetitive factors. Other important
competitive factors will include the efficacy, safereliability, availability and price of productsd the ability to fund operations during the
period between technological conception and comialesales.

Government Regulation

Any products we develop will require redatg clearances prior to clinical trials and adafithl regulatory clearances prior to
commercialization. New human gene therapies areagg to be subject to extensive regulation byFibA and comparable agencies in other
countries. The precise regulatory requirements whith we will have to comply are uncertain at ttimse due to the novelty of the gene-
based products and therapies currently under dewedot. We believe that our potential products balregulated either as biological
products or as drugs. Drugs are subject to reguathder the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Aalp@ical products, in addition to being
subject to provisions of that Act, are regulatedanthe Public Health Service Act. Both statutes matated regulations govern, among other
things, the testing, manufacturing, safety, efficdabeling, storage, record keeping, advertisamgl other promotional practices. FDA
approval or other clearances must be obtained éefmmical testing, and before manufacturing andkaiing of biologics or drugs.

FDA approval is required prior to marketmgharmaceutical product in the United Statesofitain this approval the FDA requires
clinical trials to demonstrate the safety, efficacy potency of the product candidates. Clinidalgrare the means by which experimental
drugs or treatments are tested in humans. Newglesréypically advance from research through pnézdi testing, and finally through seve
phases of clinical trials, or human testing. Chigials may be conducted within the United Statem foreign countries. If clinical trials are
conducted in foreign countries, the products umigselopment as well as the trials are subjectdalegions of the FDA and/or its
counterparts in the other countries. Upon succkssfapletion of clinical trials, approval to markée therapy for a particular patient
population may be requested from the FDA in thetéthBStates and/or its counterparts in other coestri

Clinical trials are normally done in thrngleases. Phase | clinical trials are typically cartdd with a small number of patients or healthy
volunteers to determine the safety profile, theégvatof drug distribution and metabolism and easlidence on effectiveness. Phase Il clinical
trials are conducted with a larger group of pasiaiflicted with a target disease in order to datee preliminary efficacy, optimal dosages
and expanded evidence of safety. Phase Ill clini@@b involve large scale, multi-center, compamatrials that are conducted with patients
afflicted with a target disease in order to provéd®ugh data for the statistical proof of safefficacy, and potency required by the FDA and
other regulatory authorities. For life-threatendigeases, initial human testing generally is dangatients rather than healthy volunteers.
These studies may provide results traditionallyaoted in Phase |l trials and are referred to agSBH/II" trials.
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Obtaining FDA approval is a costly and tiomsuming process. Generally, in order to gain Fid&market approval, preclinical studi
must be conducted in the laboratory and in anin@dehsystems to gain preliminary information oregent's efficacy and to identify any
major safety concerns. The results of these studisubmitted as a part of an application foraedstigational New Drug, IND, which the
FDA must review and allow before human clinicahisican start. The IND includes a detailed dedoriptf the clinical investigations.

A company must sponsor and file an INDdach proposed product and must conduct clinicdiesuto demonstrate the safety, efficacy,
and potency that are necessary to obtain FDA apprdte FDA receives reports on the progress di @hase of clinical testing and it may
require the modification, suspension, or termirmatib clinical trials if an unwarranted risk is pesged to patients. Human DNA therapeutics
are a new category of therapeutics and the clini@dlperiod may be lengthy or the number of pat8emay be numerous in order to establish
safety, efficacy, and potency.

After completion of clinical trials of a weproduct, FDA marketing approval must be obtaingthe product is regulated as a biologic, a
Biologic License Application, BLA, is required.tie product is classified as a new drug, a New ypglication, NDA, is required. The
NDA or BLA must include results of product develogmh activities, preclinical studies, and cliniadhls in addition to detaile
manufacturing information.

Applications submitted to the FDA are sgbje an unpredictable and potentially prolongeprapal process. The FDA may ultimats



decide that the application does not satisfy itexa for approval or require additional precliaior clinical studies. Even if FDA regulatory
clearances are obtained, a marketed product isauoj continual review, and later discovery ofymasly unknown problems or failure to
comply with the applicable regulatory requirementsy result in restrictions on the marketing of adurct or withdrawal of the product from
the market as well as possible civil or criminalctions. Before marketing clearance is securedmtiieufacturing facility will be inspected

for current compliance with Good Manufacturing Ri@es, GMP, by FDA inspectors. The manufacturirglity must satisfy current GMP
requirements prior to marketing clearance. In aoldjtafter marketing clearance is secured, the fiaatwring facility will be inspected
periodically for GMP compliance by FDA inspectaasd, if the facility is located in California, bygspectors from the Food and Drug Branch
of the California Department of Health Services.

In addition to the FDA requirements, thddNas established guidelines for research involhimgan genetic materials, including
recombinant DNA molecules. These guidelines applgiitrecombinant DNA research that is conductefdaitities supported by the NIH,
including proposals to conduct clinical researafoliing gene therapies. The NIH review of cliniti@l proposals and safety information is a
public process and often involves review and appirby the Recombinant DNA Advisory Committee of k.

In both domestic and foreign markets, safesny approved products will depend on reimbuesginfrom third-party payers, such as
government and private insurance plans. Third-paetyers are increasingly challenging the pricesgathfor medical products and services.
If we succeed in bringing one or more products &okat, these products may not be considered ctesttizle, reimbursement may not be
available, or reimbursement policies may advera#isct our ability to sell our products on a prafite basis.

We also are subject to various federatesdad local laws, regulations, and recommendatielasing to safe working conditions,
laboratory and manufacturing practices, the expamtiad use of animals, and the use and disposaz&rbdous or potentially hazardous
substances, including radioactive compounds aratficius disease agents, used in connection withesearch. The extent of government
regulation which might result from any future ldgign or administrative action cannot be accuyapeédicted.
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Human Resources

As of March 1, 2002, we had 152 full-tirmaoyees, 21 of whom hold degrees at the doctéeatd. Of these employees, 121 are
engaged in, or directly support, research and dewetnt activities, and 31 are in administrative business development positions. A
significant number of our management and profesdiemployees have prior experience with pharmacaidind biotechnology companies.
None of our employees is covered by collective dimigg agreements, and our management considet®red with our employees to
good.

Facilities

We lease approximately 51,000 square festamufacturing, research laboratory and officecega an established commercial
neighborhood in northern San Diego, Californiahate sites and with three leases. The leasesratenin 2004. We have the option to renew
two of these three leases for an additional fiveryeeriod and can renew the third for two additidiva-year periods.

In January 2002, we signed a 15-year l&@seg new building, in Sorrento Mesa, in northeem®iego. The new facility will hold
approximately 68,400 square feet of manufactuniegearch laboratory and office space. This sitealdw us to join most of our personnel
under one roof while also allowing us to increasernanufacturing capacity for both clinical and eoercial production, with the planned
addition of a 500-liter or larger fermenter andoasated processing equipment. As this is a buildpoacess, phased-in occupancy should
commence by the end of 2002. We will continue tlllloe leases on our three existing facilities Iuhgy expire. We intend to sublease the
majority of this space as it becomes available.

Within our existing facilities, we have mdiactured sufficient quantities of pharmaceuticalee product to supply our previous and
ongoing clinical trials, including the current regation trials. In addition, we have manufactupeekclinical and clinical supplies of DNA for
our corporate collaborators, for government agenaie for numerous academic researchers.

ADDITIONAL BUSINESS RISKS

You should carefully consider the risks describeld\, together with all of the other informatiorcinded in this report, before decidi
whether to invest in our common stock. In addittbe, risks and uncertainties described below aretihe only ones facing us because we are
also subject to additional risks and uncertaintiet presently known to us. If any of these riskaally occurs, our business, financial
condition, results of operations or cash flow cob&lseriously harmed. This could cause the tragimge of our common stock to decline,
you may lose all or part of your investme

None of our products have been approved for salef We do not develop commercially successful produstwe may be forced to curtail
or cease operations



Very little data exists regarding the spftd efficacy of gene therapies. All of our potglinproducts are either in research or
development. We must conduct a substantial amduadditional research and development before a8y br. foreign regulatory authority
will approve any of our products. Results of owgearch and development activities may indicatedbapotential products are unsafe or
ineffective. In this case, regulatory authoritie mot approve them. Even if approved, our produnay not be commercially successful. If
we fail to develop and commercialize our produsts,may be forced to curtail or cease operations.
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We have a history of net losses. We expect to canie to incur net losses and we may not achieve oraintain profitability.

To date, we have not sold any productsdandot expect to sell any products for the next years. Our net losses were approximately
$9.2 million, $8.5 million and $6.9 million for 2002000 and 1999, respectively. As of Decembef80]1, we have incurred cumulative net
losses totaling approximately $62.4 million. Moreowve expect that our negative cash flow and ®f®sen operations will continue and
increase for the foreseeable future. For 2002, ave florecast a net loss of between $28 million8&imillion. We may not be able to
achieve the projected results. We may never gemetdficient product revenue to become profitabfe. also expect to have quarter-to-
quarter fluctuations in revenues, expenses, arsg@$psome of which could be significant.

We may need additional capital in the future. If adlitional capital is not available, we may have towrtail or cease operations.

We may need to raise more money to contiheeesearch and development necessary to bringroducts to market and to establish
manufacturing and marketing capabilities. We magksadditional funds through public and private ktofferings, arrangements with
corporate collaborators, borrowings under leasssliof credit or other sources. We may not be abtaise additional funds on favorable
terms, or at all. If we are unable to obtain addiil funds, we may have to reduce our capital edipegnes, scale back our development of |
products, reduce our workforce and license to stpesducts or technologies that we otherwise weakk to commercialize ourselves. The
amount of money we may need will depend on mantpfagcincluding:

. the progress of our research and development pregra
. the scope and results of our preclinical studiesdimical trials
. the time and costs involved in:
. obtaining necessary regulatory approvals,
. filing, prosecuting and enforcing patent claimsj] an
. scaling up our manufacturing capabilities.
. the commercial arrangements we may establish

The regulatory approval process is expensive, timeonsuming and uncertain which may prevent us from letaining required approvals
for the commercialization of our products.

Our product candidates under developmettlamse of our collaborators are subject to extenand rigorous regulations by numerous
governmental authorities in the United States ahdracountries. The regulations are evolving ancewain. The regulatory process can take
many years and require us to expend substantialiress. For example:

. The FDA has not established guidelines concerrirgtope of clinical trials required for gene tipéza.

. The FDA has not indicated how many patients it vétjuire to be enrolled in clinical trials to edisib the safety and efficacy
of gene therapies.

. Current regulations are subject to substantiakme\by various governmental agencies.

26

Therefore, U.S. or foreign regulations copitevent or delay regulatory approval of our pidwr limit our ability to develop and
commercialize our products. Delays could:

. impose costly procedures on our activities;



. diminish any competitive advantages that we attain;

. negatively affect our ability to receive royalties.

We understand that both the FDA and NIHcanasidering rules and regulations that would negpublic disclosure of commercial
development data that is presently confidentials Plotential disclosure of commercial confideniidbrmation, if implemented, may result
loss of advantage of competitive secrets.

We believe that the FDA and comparableifpreegulatory bodies will regulate separately eadduct containing a particular gene
depending on its intended use. Presently, to cowialze any product we must sponsor and file alaguy application for each proposed
use. We then must conduct clinical studies to destnate the safety and efficacy of the product nesngsto obtain FDA approval. The results
obtained so far in our clinical trials may not leglicated in our on-going or future trials. Thisymaevent any of our potential products from
receiving FDA approval.

We use recombinant DNA molecules in oudpiad candidates, and therefore we also must comipiyguidelines instituted by the NIH
and its Recombinant DNA Advisory Committee. The Ndblld restrict or delay the development of ourdoiat candidates.

Adverse events in the field of gene therapy, or witrespect to our product candidates, may negativelynpact regulatory approval or
public perception of our products.

The death in 1999 of a patient undergoingal-based gene therapy at the University of Bgluania in an investigator-sponsored trial
was widely publicized. This death and other advexsmts in the field of gene therapy could resuljrieater governmental regulation of gene
therapies, including our non-viral gene delivershteology, and potential regulatory delays relatmthe testing or approval of our product
candidates. In addition, the field of gene therigpynder increased scrutiny, which may affect codpct development efforts or clinical
trials.

For example, one patient who had underg@ament with Allovectin-7&or advanced metastatic melanoma died more thanrtewath:
later of progressive disease and numerous othtarfaafter receiving multiple other cancer theraphe death was originally reported as
unrelated to the treatment. Following an autofdsy,death was reclassified as "probably relatetfiedreatment because the possibility could
not be ruled out. We do not believe Allovectin-7@&sna significant factor in the patient's death.

The commercial success of our product ahatds will depend in part on public acceptancéefuse of gene therapies for the prevention
or treatment of human diseases. Public attitudesbeanfluenced by claims that gene therapies asafe and our gene therapies may not
gain the acceptance of the public or the medicadroanity. Negative public reaction to adverse evantaur trials or gene therapy in general
could result in greater government regulation dridter labeling requirements of gene therapiesuising our gene therapies, and could ¢
a decrease in the demand for any products we msslate

Our patents and proprietary rights may not provide us with any benefit and the patents of others mayrpvent us from
commercializing our products.

We may not receive any patents from ourenirapplications. Moreover, if patents are issieedls, governmental authorities may not
allow claims sufficient to protect our technologynally, others may challenge or seek to circumwgnhvalidate our patents. In that event,
the rights granted under
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our patents may be inadequate to protect our @ty technology or to provide any commercial advge.

Our core gene delivery technology was ceddry a patent issued in Europe, which was oppbgegven companies under European
patent procedures. In October 2001, we announcethtantion to appeal a ruling by the OppositiowiBion of the European Patent Office
that revoked our patent on formal grounds. If weerast successful in the appeal and opposition pdings we may lose part or all of our
proprietary protection on our product candidateBunope.

Others may have or may receive patentsiwtintain claims applicable to our products. Thestents may impede our ability to
commercialize our products.

The legal proceedings to obtain patents and litig&in of third-party claims of intellectual property infringement could require us to
spend money and could impair our operations.

Our success will depend in part on ourightib obtain patent protection for our productsl gmocesses both in the United States ar



other countries. The patent positions of biotechgpland pharmaceutical companies, however, cangidyhuncertain and involve complex
legal and factual questions. Therefore, it is diffi to predict the breadth of claims allowed ig tiiotechnology and pharmaceutical fields.

We also rely on confidentiality agreemenith our corporate collaborators, employees, cdasts and certain contractors to protect our
proprietary technology. However, these agreemeaisime breached and we may not have adequate resried®uch breaches. In addition,
our trade secrets may otherwise become known epiendently discovered by our competitors.

Protecting intellectual property rights davery expensive. Litigation will be necessargmdorce patents issued to us or to determine
the scope and validity of third-party proprietaights. Moreover, if a competitor were to file agratapplication claiming technology also
invented by us, we would have to participate inrgerference proceeding before the PTO or in aidoreounterpart to determine the priority
of the invention. We may be drawn into interferennagth third parties or may have to provoke integfeces ourselves to unblock third-party
patent rights to allow us or our licensees to coneiaéize products based on our technology. Litigattould result in substantial costs and
diversion of management's efforts regardless ofehalts of the litigation. An unfavorable resultitigation could subject us to significant
liabilities to third parties, require disputed rigtio be licensed or require us to cease using sech@ology.

Our products and processes may infringbediound to infringe on, patents not owned or malgd by us. Patents held by others may
require us to alter our products or processesjobitenses, or stop activities. If relevant claiofghird-party patents are upheld as valid and
enforceable, we could be prevented from practitiegsubject matter claimed in the patents, or neaseljuired to obtain licenses or redesign
our products or processes to avoid infringemeniumber of genetic sequences or proteins encodgegistic sequences that we are
investigating are, or may become, patented by sttfes a result, we may have to obtain licensesgt tise or market these products. Our
business will suffer if we are not able to obtagehses at all or on terms commercially reasonbles and we may not be able to redesigi
products or processes to avoid infringement.

Competition and technological change may make ourrpduct candidates and technologies less attractiva obsolete.

We compete with companies, including majoarmaceutical and biotechnology firms, that anrspiag other forms of treatment or
prevention for diseases that we target. We alsoempgrience competition from companies that hageiaed or may acquire technology
from universities and other
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research institutions. As these companies devéleip technologies, they may develop proprietanyitipss which may prevent us from
successfully commercializing products.

Some of our competitors are establishedpzones with greater financial and other resour©éiser companies may succeed in
developing products and obtaining FDA approvaldatitan we do, or in developing products that apeeneffective than ours. While we will
seek to expand our technological capabilities toaie@ competitive, research and development by stivél seek to render our technology or
products obsolete or noncompetitive or resultéatiments or cures superior to any therapy develbpers. Additionally, even if our product
development efforts are successful, and even ifabaisite regulatory approvals are obtained, oadpct may not gain market acceptance
among physicians, patients, healthcare payerstenchéedical communities. If any of our product cdatits do not achieve market accepte
we may lose our investment in that product, whidyroause our stock price to decline.

The method of administration of some of our producttandidates can cause adverse events in patients;luding death.

Some of our potential products are desidodzk injected directly into malignant tumors. fichare medical risks inherent in direct tumor
injections. For example, in clinical trials of guotential products, attending physicians have puedtpatients’ lungs in less than one percent
of procedures, requiring hospitalization. In aduitia physician administering our product in arestigator-sponsored clinical trial
inadvertently damaged tissue near the heart ofiarpawhich may have precipitated the patientatideThese events are reported as adverse
events in our clinical trials and illustrate thediwal risks related to direct injection of tumoFfiese risks may adversely impact market
acceptance of some of our product candidates.

Commercialization of some of our potential productslepends on collaborations with others. If our coliborators are not successful or
if we are unable to find collaborators in the future, we may not be able to develop these products.

Our strategy for the research, developraadtcommercialization of some of our product caattid requires us to enter into contractual
arrangements with corporate collaborators, licexidarensees and others. Our success dependshgperformance by these collaborator
their responsibilities under these arrangementsmieSeollaborators may not perform their obligatiassve expect or we may not derive any
revenue from these arrangements.

We have collaborative agreements with sgy@rarmaceutical companies. We do not know whetiese companies will successfully
develop and market any products under their reseeagreements. Moreover, some of our collaboramesalso researching competing
technologies to treat the diseases targeted byallaborative programs. We may be unsuccessfuhiarang into other collaborativ



arrangements to develop and commercialize our ptedu

We may suffer a material financial loss due to diltion if additional shares of VGI stock are issued ta price below our issuance price,
or due to permanent impairment if VGI Is unable tosuccessfully complete its development plans.

In February 2000, we received Series BdPrefl Stock in VGI in exchange for a license toteehnology. This investment is recorded
on our balance sheet at estimated fair value odake of investment of $5.0 million. The prefergtdck is convertible into common stock of
VGI. If additional shares of VGI common or prefatrgtock are issued at a price below our issuarice,fthe conversion rate would change
and the percentage of our equity ownership in VGUul decrease.

VGl is a privately-held company developgene-based delivery of the angiogenic growth fagteGF-2 for cardiovascular applicatior
VGI has completed Phase | and Phase Il trials. $t{BI
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needs to raise substantial cash to complete itslolement plans, and there can be no assurancehéhtiterapy will work or that the FDA will
approve such a therapy. VGI, which currently has éenployees and limited resources, may not betaldeccessfully commercialize a
product even if it receives FDA approval. We do believe there has been any permanent impairmenirtonvestment to date, however, this
may change depending on the funding and developstetus of VGI, which is beyond our control.

If we lose our key personnel or are unable to attret and retain additional personnel, we may not belale to pursue collaborations or
develop our own products.

We are highly dependent on the principaiiers of our scientific, manufacturing, clinicagulatory and management personnel, the
loss of whose services might significantly delayvent the achievement of our objectives. We déps our continued ability to attract,
retain and motivate highly qualified management scidntific personnel. We face competition for dfied individuals from other companie
academic institutions, government entities andrabhganizations in attracting and retaining pergnfo pursue our product development
plans, we will need to hire additional managememspnnel and additional scientific personnel tdqrer research and development, as well
as personnel with expertise in clinical trials, gmment regulation and manufacturing. We may nauseessful in hiring or retaining
qualified personnel.

We may not be able to manufacture products on a comercial scale.

We have limited experience in manufactuong product candidates in commercial quantities.ay be dependent initially on
corporate collaborators, licensees or others toufa@ture our products commercially. We also willrbquired to comply with extensive
regulations applicable to manufacturing facilitidée may be unable to enter into any arrangemernthéomanufacture of our products.

We may not be able to sublease our existing manufacing, research laboratory and office sites upon eampletion of our new facility.

We currently hold three leases at thressdidr our existing manufacturing, research lalmoyaand offices facilities. The leases do not
terminate until 2004. These spaces will becomenassively unnecessary during the scheduled phasedeupancy of our new facility. We
may be unable to sublease the sites as we vaeate th

We have no marketing or sales experience, and if vege unable to develop our own sales and marketingapability, we may not be
successful in commercializing our products.

Our current strategy is to market our pietary cancer products directly in the United Statrit we currently do not possess
pharmaceutical marketing or sales capabilitiegrtter to market and sell our proprietary cancedpets, we will need to develop a sales
force and a marketing group with relevant pharmticaexperience, or make appropriate arrangemeitlisstrategic partners to market and
sell these products. Developing a marketing anesdalrce is expensive and time consuming and abelkdy any product launch. Our inabil
to successfully employ qualified marketing and saglersonnel and develop our sales and marketirahdaigs will harm our business.

Health care reform and restrictions on reimbursemetmay limit our returns on potential products.

Our ability to earn sufficient returns omr @roducts will depend in part on the extent tackihreimbursement for our products and rel
treatments will be available from:

. government health administration authorities,
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. private health coverage insurers,
. managed care organizations, and

. other organizations.
If we fail to obtain appropriate reimbursam it could prevent us from successfully comnadizing our potential products.

There are efforts by governmental and thiadty payers to contain or reduce the costs dtfheare through various means. We expect
that there will continue to be a number of legiskaproposals to implement government controls. dm@ouncement of proposals or reforms
could impair our ability to raise capital. The atlop of proposals or reforms could impair our besis

Additionally third-party payers are incrggigy challenging the price of medical products aedvices. If purchasers or users of our
products are not able to obtain adequate reimbwsefar the cost of using our products, they magdo or reduce their use. Significant
uncertainty exists as to the reimbursement stetnswly approved health care products, and whetteguate third-party coverage will be
available.

We use hazardous materials in our business. Any dtas relating to improper handling, storage or dispsal of these materials could be
time consuming and costly.

Our research and development processel/mtiee controlled storage, use and disposal odiftkius materials, biological hazardous
materials and radioactive compounds. We are sutjdeteral, state and local regulations govertiirguse, manufacture, storage, handling
and disposal of materials and waste products. Afithove believe that our safety procedures for hiagdnd disposing of these hazardous
materials comply with the standards prescribedalydnd regulation, the risk of accidental contammmaor injury from hazardous materials
cannot be completely eliminated. In the event oderident, we could be held liable for any damabasresult, and any liability could exce
the limits or fall outside the coverage of our irsce. We may not be able to maintain insurancaceaptable terms, or at all. We could be
required to incur significant costs to comply witlrrent or future environmental laws and regulation

We may have significant product liability exposure.

We face an inherent business risk of exgtuproduct liability and other claims in the et/éhat our technologies or products are
alleged to have caused harm. These risks are imhiarthe development of chemical and pharmacedyticalucts. Although we currently
maintain product liability insurance, we may novéaufficient insurance coverage and we may nalbe to obtain sufficient coverage at a
reasonable cost. Our inability to obtain produahility insurance at an acceptable cost or to @ttser protect against potential product liab
claims could prevent or inhibit the commercialipatof any products developed by us or our collaioosaWe also have liability for products
manufactured by us on a contract basis for thirtigs If we are sued for any injury caused by teehnology or products, our liability could
exceed our total assets.

Our stock price could continue to be highly volatié and you may not be able to resell your shares at above the price you paid for
them.

The market price of our common stock, titat of many other life sciences companies, has haghly volatile and is likely to continue
to be highly volatile. The following factors, amoathers, could have a significant impact on thekstgprice of our common stock:

. the results of our preclinical studies and clinic&lls or those of our collaborators or compesitor for gene therapies in
general,
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. evidence of the safety or efficacy of our potenpiedducts or the products of our competitors,
. the announcement by us or our competitors of tdolgial innovations or new products,
. governmental regulatory actions,
. changes or announcements in reimbursement policies,
. developments with our collaborators,

. developments concerning our patent or other prapsigights or those of our competitors, includiitiggation,



. concern as to the safety of our potential products,

. period-to-period fluctuations in our operating fesu
. market conditions for life science stocks in gehenad
. changes in estimates of our performance by seesi@tnalysts.

We are at risk of securities class action litigatio due to our expected stock price volatility.

In the past, stockholders have often brbsghurities class action litigation against a camypfollowing a decline in the market price of
its securities. This risk is especially acute fehecause life science companies have experiemeategthan average stock price volatility in
recent years and, as a result, have been subjexnt tverage, a greater number of securities aletsan claims than companies in other
industries. We may in the future be the targetrflar litigation. Securities litigation could relsin substantial costs and divert management's
attention and resources, and could seriously hambuasiness.

Our anti-takeover provisions could discourage potetial takeover attempts and make attempts by stockHders to change management
more difficult.

The approval of two-thirds of our votingsi is required to approve some transactions atakinsome stockholder actions, including
the calling of a special meeting of stockholders tre amendment of any of the anti-takeover prowisicontained in our certificate of
incorporation. Further, pursuant to the terms afsiackholder rights plan adopted in March 1995 haree distributed a dividend of one right
for each outstanding share of common stock. Thghésrwill cause substantial dilution to the owrgpsof a person or group that attempts to
acquire us on terms not approved by our Board céd@rs and may have the effect of deterring hotdikeover attempts.
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Executive Officers

The executive officers of Vical are electathually by the Board of Directors. Substantiarges were made in 2001 to our senior
management ranks. Alan Dow joined us as Vice Peesidnd General Counsel, David C. Kaslow, M.D., egsointed to the newly created
position of Chief Scientific Officer, Kevin R. Brken was named Vice President, Manufacturing, anddDa Pyrce was appointed Vice
President, Business Development. Our executiveafiare as follows:

Name Age(1) Position

Vijay B. Saman 49 President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

David C. Kaslow, M.D 43 Chief Scientific Officel

Martha J. Demski 49 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secrete

Kevin R. Bracker 53 Vice President, Manufacturir

Alan E. Dow, J.D., Ph.C 46 Vice President and General Coun

Jon A. Norman, Ph.C 53 Vice President, Resear

David J. Pyrce 45 Vice President, Business Developm

Q) As of December 31, 2001

Vijay B. Samantoined us as President and Chief Executive Officdovember 2000. Mr. Samant has 23 years of diver$. and
international sales, marketing, operations, andhless development experience with Merck. From 1838id-2000, he was Chief Operating
Officer of the Merck Vaccine Division. From 19901698, he served in the Merck Manufacturing Divisés Vice President of Vaccine
Operations, Vice President of Business Affairs, Brdcutive Director of Materials Management. Mrnfaat earned his M.B.A. from the
Sloan School of Management at the Massachusetititasof Technology in 1983. He received a mastéegree in chemical engineering
from Columbia University in 1977 and a bacheloggre in chemical engineering from the UniversftBombay, University Department of
Chemical Technology, UDCT, in 197



David C. Kaslow, M.D.joined us as Chief Scientific Officer in Octobei020 Dr. Kaslow has more than 15 years of vaccisearch
experience, including the last two at Merck, mesently as Head of the Department of Vaccine Rebemrd Technology. From 1986 to
1999, he held various senior research positiotisealational Institutes of Health, including Heddhee Recombinant Protein Development
Unit and the Malaria Vaccine Development Unit a tiaboratory of Parasitic Diseases. Dr. Kaslowh®en awarded numerous professional
honors, including the U.S. Public Health Servicegbanding Service Medal. He has published somest@itific papers, and authored more
than 20 review articles and book chapters. He hold®-holds 13 patents. Dr. Kaslow received hishiebor's degree from the University of
California, Davis, in 1979, and his M.D. from theh®ol of Medicine at the University of Californi@an Francisco, in 1983.

Martha J. Demskijoined us as Chief Financial Officer in Decembe88.@nd currently serves as Vice President, Chigdigial Officer
Treasurer and Secretary. From August 1977 untiingi us, Ms. Demski held various positions with Baf America, lastly as Vice
President/Section Head of the Technology Sectibe.&so served as an adviser to Bank of America statewide basis regarding the
biotechnology industry in California. Ms. Demskcedved a B.A. from Michigan State University in #9&nd an M.B.A. in Finance and
Accounting from The University of Chicago Gradu&thool of Business in 1977.
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Kevin R. Brackerjoined us as Vice President, Manufacturing in Oetd001. From July 1998 to October 2001, Mr. Brackes Vice
President, Process Engineering and Manufacturinfiversal Preservation Technologies, Inc. anag@ur of Engineering for Molecular
Biosystems, Inc. from November 1995 to July 1998 krings experience in commercial scale-up of baoptaceutical manufacturing
facilities, process development and optimizatiord direction of research, pre-clinical, clinicalpguction and contract manufacturing. Prior
to November 1995, he held a variety of processesmgineering positions with Gilead Sciences, Ined a predecessor company, Vestar, Inc.,
with Baxter International, and with E.I. duPontidemours and Company. Mr. Bracken earned his M.§egein chemical engineering from
the University of Rochester in 1973, and his B&yrde in chemical engineering from the Universftipelaware in 1970.

Alan E. Dow, J.D., Ph.D.joined Vical in June 2001 as Vice President andegadrCounsel. Dr. Dow came to Vical from Pillsbury
Winthrop LLP, where he was a Senior Attorney paicy general corporate and intellectual propentyfiar clients in the United States and
abroad. His focus was in the areas of biotechnglgggomics, pharmaceuticals, agricultural biote&dmwand chemistry. From 1998 to 20
Dr. Dow was Corporate Counsel, Intellectual Propddr Pharmacia Corporation, and from 1994 to 1888vas an Associate Attorney with
Klarquist, Sparkman, Campbell, Leigh & WhinstorRafrtland, Oregon. Dr. Dow earned his J.D. from ft@hLaw School in 1994, his Ph.
from Harvard University in 1992, and a B.S. degreehemistry, with high distinction, from the Unisity of Maine at Orono in 1977.

Jon A. Norman, Ph.D.joined us in January 1993 as Vice President, ReseBrom 1986 until joining us, Dr. Norman was Gwup
Leader/Section Head for the Departments of Pharlogg@nd Biochemistry at Bristol-Myers Squibb Corgition. He was a Senior Research
Scientist at Ciba-Geigy Corporation from 1981 t88.9Dr. Norman received his B.A. in 1970 and MA 1072 from the University of
California at Santa Barbara and his Ph.D. in Bioaks&y from the University of Calgary in 1977, aftehich he was awarded a fellowship at
the Friederich Miescher Institute in Basel, Swilaed.

David J. Pyrcgoined us in October 2001 as Vice President, Bssifizevelopment. Since 1993, Mr. Pyrce was a GeRardher of Bet
Creek Capital Management, a healthcare-based meaestmanagement firm. In addition, he served ae Piesident and Senior Healthcare
Analyst at First Security, Van Kasper & Companynira993 to 1997 and as Vice President, Corporater@amtations and Investor
Relations, at Imagyn Medical Technologies from 1897999. He was Vice President of Diagnostic Pat&léor Glyko Biomedical, Inc.,
from 1991 to 1993, and Director of Business Develept at SmithKline Beecham from 1986 to 1991. Fi®@W9 to 1986, he advanced
through several sales and marketing positions ateB#iealthcare, lastly as Vice President of SateMarketing. Mr. Pyrce received an
M.B.A. in Financial Management and an M.S. in FitiahMarkets and Trading from the Stuart SchodBuo$iness at the lllinois Institute of
Technology in 1984. He received a B.S. degree att@mistry and Molecular Biology from Northernnltis University in 1978. He is also
an alumnus of the Advanced Executive Program aK#ilegg School of Business at Northwestern Uniitgrs

Scientific Advisory Board Members
Members of our Scientific Advisory BoardyB are selected by our executive officers. Our SA8mbers are as follows:

C. Thomas Caskey, M.D., F.A.C.Ra,world-renowned leader in genomics and genetcgntly served as Senior Vice President of
Research at Merck Research Laboratories and age€rand President of The Merck Genome Researdtutesinc. He is President and
Chief Operating Officer of Cogene BioTech Ventuildgsl,, Chairman of the Board of Lexicon Genetias] @ member of the Board of
Directors of Athersys Inc., and currently servesasdjunct professor at Baylor College of
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Medicine. In addition to his work in the pharmadeaitindustry, Dr. Caskey has served as PresidethiecAmerican Society of Human
Genetics and as a member of the advisory committeeke National Institutes of Health's Programvisdry Committee on the Hum:



Genome, and the Department of Energy on Mappingdtirman Genome. He was awarded the DistinguishedsT&eneticist in 1998 and the
Presidency of the Human Genome Organization in 1898ember of the National Academy of Sciencestaednstitute of Medicine, he is
the recipient of numerous research and teachingdswBr. Caskey is board certified in internal no@ti, clinical genetics and biochemical
and molecular genetics, and earned his medicabdatetfrom Duke University.

Phyllis Gardner, M.D.,is a tenured associate professor in the Departoféviedicine at Stanford University School of Mediei She
has conducted extensive research in cell biologjuding gene therapy, with emphasis in the arezystic fibrosis. She has received
numerous national awards and honors, including-twilty Development Award from the Pharmaceuticsddarch and Manufacturers
Association Foundation and Burroughs Wellcome Rgacstholar in Clinical Pharmacology. In 1998, Dar@ner co-founded Genomics
Collaborative, Inc., a functional genomics comp#ogused on developing target discovery and valitaimtellectual property. From 1996 to
1998, she also served as Vice President of Resaarthead of ALZA Technology Institute of ALZA Camation, a pharmaceutical compe
specializing in drug delivery technologies. Sherently serves on the Board of Directors of seveoahpanies, including Aronex, Health He
Network, Pharmacyclics, and Aerogen Inc. Dr. Gardeeeived her medical doctorate from Harvard Mald&chool.

Paul A. Offit, M.D.,is Chief of Infectious Diseases, the Henle Profes§émmunologic and Infectious Diseases, and Daeof the
Vaccine Education Center at the Children's Hospit&hiladelphia. He is also Professor of Pediataicthe University of Pennsylvania Sct
of Medicine. Dr. Offit is an internationally recaged expert in the fields of immunology and virojodfe is a member of the Advisory
Committee on Immunization Practices to the Cerdebisease Control and Prevention, CDC. He haswedeumerous awards, including
the J. Edmund Bradley Prize for Excellence in Peidiaand the Young Investigator Award in vaccieeelopment. Dr. Offit is the co-holder
of a patent on a bovine human reassortant rotavaiasine and serves as a consultant to Merck omabeine's development. Dr. Offit has
written two booksyaccines: What Every Parent Should Knowith Louis Bell, M.D., andBreaking the Antibiotic Habit: A Parent's Guide to
Coughs, Colds, Ear Infections, and Sore Throatith Louis Bell, M.D., and Bonnie Fass-Offit. Heceived his medical doctorate from
University of Maryland.

Eric N. Olson, Ph.D.js a world leader in scientific discovery and basigearch into the workings of muscle cells. Hgeegch has
defined the molecular events that control cell d@wment, particularly discovering genes that cdrttie development of heart muscle and
skeletal muscle cells. Dr. Olson has been an Hskedul Investigator of the American Heart Associgtand his previous honors include the
Edgar Haber Cardiovascular Research Award, the isareHeart Association Basic Research Prize, afidH@art Institute Award for
Outstanding Contributions to Cardiovascular Medicibr. Olson is Director of the Hamon Center fosiBaCancer Research and Professor
and Chairman of the Department of Molecular Biolegiyhe University of Texas Southwestern Medicait€e He is also an elected member
of the American Academy of Arts and Sciences aed\htional Academy of Sciences. Dr. Olson recehisd’h.D. in biochemistry from the
Bowman Gray School of Medicine of Wake Forest Ursitg, and completed postdoctoral fellowships atAmerican Heart Association and
National Institutes of Healtl

Douglas D. Richman, M.D.Professor of Pathology and Medicine, Universitfalifornia, San Diego, UCSD, and VA Healthcare
System, is a recognized expert in infectious dsgeand medical virology. He is Director of the UCSBnter for AIDS Research
Dr. Richman is also a Fellow of the American Asation for the Advancement of Science, the Amerigasociation of Physicians, and the
Infectious Disease Society of America, and is a mmof the NIH AIDS Vaccine Research
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Committee. Dr. Richman's laboratory is creditechwfite discovery of HIV drug resistance in 1988, ao is focused on several aspects of
HIV infection: 1) the investigation of antiviral wigs and drug resistance; 2) the pathogenesis andrie responses of primary HIV infection;
and 3) the mechanisms involved with latent HIV atfen. Dr. Richman received his medical doctorat8tanford University, where he
completed his residency.

George W. Sledge, M.Dis the Ballvé-Lantero Professor of Oncology at &mdi University. Dr. Sledge specializes in the tregit of
breast cancer, and is active in research involmongoclonal antibodies and anti-angiogenesis. krblie, he chaired the committee that
developed the School of Medicine's first multi-didinary cancer program, the Breast Care and Rekd2enter. Dr. Sledge has served as
chairman of the Hoosier Oncology Group's Breastc@anommittee, as a member and vice-chairman dtétstern Cooperative Oncology
Group's Breast Cancer Committee, and as a memlblee efditorial board ofhe Breast JournalHe is editor-in-chief o€linical Breast
Cancer. He is an active member of the American Assoaiatis Cancer Research and the American SocietZlioical Oncology.

Dr. Sledge received his medical degree from Tuldniwersity.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We currently lease approximately 51,000asgdeet of manufacturing, research laboratorydadfide space in northern San Diego,
California, at three sites under three leases.|@dmes terminate in 2004. Total current monthlyaleon the facilities, excluding common area
maintenance costs, is approximately $135,000.

In January 2002, we signed a 15-year lé@se new, 68,400 square foot facility in SorreResa, in northern San Diego. The projected
level monthly rental on this facility, excludingtiesated common area maintenance costs, is apprtediyr235,000. Under generally
accepted accounting principles, we have to recegeizel monthly rent expense over the entire |gas®d. This level monthly rent



calculated by adding the total rent payments dverentire lease period of fifteen years and theiditig the result by the 180 months of the
lease. We have the option to renew this leasenfeetadditional five-year periods beyond the extjgina and have a one-time purchase option
at 110 percent of fair market value which we cagreise in year nine of the lease. We will contitm@old the leases on our three existing
facilities until they expire. We intend to subledise majority of this space as it becomes available

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In October 2001, we announced our intentiioappeal the ruling by the Opposition Divisiontleé European Patent Office revoking on
formal grounds our patent covering the nonvirahagy of genetic material. According to Europeatepa procedures, issued patents may be
opposed by parties interested in challenging theed claims. The patent covering our core DNA @ejitechnology was issued in 1998 and
was subsequently opposed by seven companies. Times@ipn Division ruled that, as a result of ameedis to the claims made during the
process of obtaining the European patent and dtinegpposition process, the claims did not comytii European patent laws. Our appeal,
which we plan to file by the end of April 2002, ixskek to overturn the revocation, and we may assoadditional patent applications that are
pending in Europe to secure patent protection fmrcore gene delivery technology. We intend to kagsly defend our patent position in the
European opposition proceedings.

In the ordinary course of business, wesaparty to lawsuits involving employee-related reiett We do not believe that an unfavorable
outcome in any of these matters would have a nshtadiverse effect on our financial condition owuttsof operations.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Not applicable.

PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdatpha Market under the symbol "VICL." The followgrtable presents quarterly informat
on the price range of high and low sales pricestfercommon stock on the Nasdaq National Marketiferperiods indicated since January 1,
2000.

High Low

2000

First Quarte! $ 735 $ 25.0C
Second Quarte 39.81 13.0C
Third Quartel 29.8¢ 15.5(
Fourth Quarte 26.6% 14.5(
2001

First Quarte! $ 205C % 8.52
Second Quarte 18.0C 8.6¢
Third Quartel 14.1C 8.3t
Fourth Quarte 14.0C 9.5¢€

As of March 15, 2002, there were approxatyal69 stockholders of record of our common stwitk 20,071,344 shares outstanding.
have never declared or paid any dividends and tlexyect to pay any dividends in the foreseealtileréu
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes certain sidd financial data for each of the five years ehdecember 31, 2001. The information
presented should be read in conjunction with tharfcial statements and notes included elsewhehgsimeport.

Year ended December 31,



2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Statements of Operations Data:

Revenues(1):

License/royalty revenue $ 757: % 5027 $ 8,29 % 504  $ 6,471
Contract revenue 3,79¢ 2,597 2,417 87¢€ 1,32¢
11,36¢ 7,62( 10,71: 5,92( 7,80z

Operating expenses:
Research and development 22,07 18,51« 15,34« 12,05¢ 11,93¢
General and administrative 6,52: 5,26¢ 4,37¢ 3,65( 3,73¢
Total operating expenses 28,59 23,77¢ 19,72( 15,70¢ 15,66¢
Loss from operations (17,229 (16,159 (9,009 (9,789 (7,86€)
Investment income(2)(3) 8,28¢ 9,357 2,22¢ 2,46¢ 2,447
Interest expense (297) (205) (129 (162) (192)
Net loss before cumulative effect of accountingnte (9,240 (7,007) (6,909 (7,48)) (5,61))
Cumulative effect of accounting change(1) — (1,510 — — —
Net loss $ (9,240 $ (8,517 $ (6,909 $ (7,48)) $ (5,61))
| | ] ] ]
Net loss per share (basic and dilut $ 0.4¢) $ 043 $ 0.4 $ 0.47 $ (0.3€)

Weighted average shares used in per share catmifati A0 e HE A L5 8

As of December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

(in thousands)

Balance Sheets Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities $ 134,08 $ 148,14: $ 37,67F $ 40,18 $ 45,55t
Working capital 130,93: 145,56¢ 35,99¢ 38,39¢ 44,85¢
Total assets 154,49! 162,90: 45,05¢ 44,84+ 50,69
Long-term obligations 4,54¢ 5,121 74C 801 1,232
Stockholders' equity 142,15¢ 150,79 38,66¢ 40,82« 47,19«

1) In the fo_u_rth quarter o_f 2000, we changed our rereer@cognition a_ccou_nting policy to conform to_tbqui_rements of SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin N611"Revenue

Recognition in Financial Statements," SAB 101, asenfully described in Note 2 of the notes to doafcial statements.
@) In January 2000, we completed the sale of 3,450s0@0es of Vical common stock in a public offerindnich raised net proceeds of approximately $1b¥lBon.
@) Investment income in 2001 included realized gaim¢he sale of marketable securities of $1.1 milliBealized gains were not material for previousygaesented.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management's Discussion amélsis of Financial Condition and Results of Ofieres contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties.udésl herein the words "may," "will," "expects,htigipates,” "estimates," "intends," "pla
"predicts,” "potential,” "believe," "should," antrslar expressions intended to identify such fordvtnoking statements. Such statements are
only predictions and our actual results could diffeterially from those anticipated in these fomvlooking statements as a result of certain
factors, including those set forth under "Busines®d "Additional Business Risks," as well as thdiseussed elsewhere in this report. This
discussion and analysis should be read in conjometith the financial statements and notes incluglsdwhere in this repol



Overview

We are focused on the development of biophaeutical products based on our patented genedetechnologies for the prevention
and treatment of serious or life-threatening dissaBotential applications of our gene deliverjatetogy include:

. Gene therapies for cancer,
. DNA vaccines for infectious diseases or cancer, and
. DNA therapeutic protein delivery.

We are actively pursuing the refinemenbwf plasmids and lipids, development of future piaid, evaluation of potential enhancements
to our core technologies, and exploration of al&ue gene delivery technologies. We also seeleteldp additional applications for our
technologies by testing new approaches to diseasteot or prevention. These efforts could leaduxter independent product development
or additional licensing opportunities. In additieve continually evaluate compatible technologieproducts that may be of potential interest
for in-licensing or acquisition.

We collaborate with major pharmaceutical hiotechnology companies, and government agetité give us access to complementary
technologies or greater resources. These collabosaprovide us with mutually beneficial opportigstto expand our product pipeline and
serve significant unmet medical needs. We licenssléctual property from companies holding competary technologies in order to
leverage the potential of our own gene deliverjt@togy and to further the discovery of innovatieaw therapies for internal development.
We license our intellectual property to other conipa in order to leverage our technologies for igpfibns that may not be appropriate for
our independent product development efforts.

We are developing vaccine product candgifiteinfectious diseases primarily in collaboratisith our corporate collaborator, Merck.
We have recently regained rights to develop andneernialize infectious disease vaccines and gemnafties for neurodegenerative diseases
that were previously licensed to Aventis Pharma/awnehtis Pasteur, two divisions of Aventis S.A. Wave license agreements allowing
Centocor and Aventis Pasteur to use our gene dglieehnology to develop and commercialize DNA waes for the potential treatment of
types of cancer. We have an agreement with Bost@n®fic for the use of our technology in cathdbased intravascular gene delivery. We
also have an agreement with Merial for use of eahhology in DNA vaccines for animal infectiousedise targets. We have a reciprocal,
royalty-bearing license with HGS granting us thé@pto exclusively license up to three genes fid@®S for gene-based product
development. HGS also has the option to licenseyene delivery technology for use in up to thremegkased products. In addition, we
granted an exclusive, royalty-bearing license td \&Jrivate company in which HGS is a major
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shareholder, for naked DNA delivery of a gene witbential use for angiogenesis. We also have aseagent with Aventis Pharma for naked
DNA delivery of a separate angiogenic growth factor

We have an exclusive agreement with Ichatavelop products based on our gene delivery tdofy and delivered using Ichor's
proprietary electroporation systems. Both compaaiesapplying this innovative approach toward tiigal development of selected produt
We have also entered into an exclusive agreemehtQ@yitRx that grants to us rights to use or subkeeCytRx's poloxamer technology to
enhance viral or non-viral delivery of polynuclet®s in all preventive and therapeutic human anchalnealth applications, except for four
infectious disease vaccine targets licensed to Mand prostatespecific membrane antigen. In addition, the licemgeement permits our u
of CytRx's technology to enhance the delivery aft@ins in prime-boost vaccine applications thablag the use of polynucleotides. As part
of the agreement, we made a $3.8 million up-frayrpent in December 2001, and potentially may makaé milestone and royalty
payments. The license fee is being amortized temrsg using the straight-line method over the estiden-year average useful life of the
technology.

To date, we have not received revenues fransale of our products. We expect to incur sutiistl operating losses for at least the next
few years, due primarily to the expansion of osesrch and development programs, the cost of prealistudies and clinical trials, spend
for outside services, costs related to maintaiingintellectual property portfolio, our relocatitma new facility, and possible advancement
toward commercialization activities.

Losses may fluctuate from quarter to quaasea result of differences in the timing of exggnincurred and the revenues received from
collaborative agreements. Such fluctuations magidpeificant. As of December 31, 2001, our accunadateficit was approximately
$62.4 million. We expect our net loss for 2002 ¢odetween $28 million and $32 million. The anti¢guhincrease in net loss compared with
2001 reflects the expected reductions in licengecamtract revenues, an anticipated decline ingtmrent income, higher planned expenses
related to preclinical research and developmengnaros, and consolidation of our facilities in a rleeation.

Change in Accounting Principle



In December 1999, the SEC issued Staff Anting Bulletin No. 101, "Revenue Recognition im&icial Statements," or SAB 101. S,
101 reflects the SEC's views on revenue recognitidstorically we recognized revenue from initiethnology option and license fees in the
period in which the agreement was signed, if thegee no significant performance obligations renragnRevenue from milestone payments
was recognized as revenue as the collaboratonashibe milestones. SAB 101 requires that, wherethas been no culmination of the
earnings process, payments must be deferred aognieed over the period over which the revenueeented to have been earned. As such,
we defer and recognize payments from technologipond license fees, and milestone payments tregpériod in which the revenue is
deemed to have been earned.

Under option and license agreements whichat require research to be performed by us aretemte collaborator pays an upfront fee
for an option to a license to our technology, whelve that SAB 101 would require us to recognizerivenue from the upfront payment over
the option period. For those agreements which doetuire research to be performed by us and wihereollaborator pays an upfront fee for
a license to our technology, or where the collatowraolds an option that is then exercised to detemse, we believe all significant
performance obligations were met and the culminadithe earnings process occurred upon grantiadi¢bnse to the technology. For these
types of transactions, our only remaining perforogaobligation after the grant is to maintain anfedd the patents and patent applications.
The collaborators do not receive access to anyagiggror enhancements to our technology.
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Under certain agreements, we are paid timie research and development services duringebearch period specified in the
agreement. For these agreements, historicallypaggnized the revenue on the research servicbe agtvices were provided. This
accounting is unchanged under SAB 101. HowevereuS8éB 101, we believe that any upfront optionicerhise payment under this type of
agreement would have to be deferred and recogoizedthe research period.

In the fourth quarter of 2000, we completed evaluation of payments we received under auious option and license agreements. We
identified one agreement with Pfizer entered intd999, which we believe, under SAB 101, would ieja change in accounting as of the
implementation date of January 1, 2000. The amofirdvenue recognized in 1999 that under SAB 104 dederred as of January 1, 2000,
was $1.5 million.

We implemented SAB 101 in the fourth quaaie2000, by restating the first three quarter@@d0 financial statements to apply SAB
101 effective January 1, 2000. The statement ofatipms for 2000 reflects a one-time charge toiegsof $1.5 million for the cumulative
effect of the change in accounting principle agafuary 1, 2000. In 2001 and 2000, we recognizptbapnately $0.7 million per year of tt
deferred license revenue under the new revenugméam policy.

On a pro forma basis, if the impact of SBEBL. had been implemented effective January 1, 188%ro forma net loss and the pro forma
net loss per common share for the year ended Demedih 1999, would have been $8.4 million and $0ré&&pectively, compared with the
reported net loss and the reported net loss pemzonshare of $6.9 million and $0.43, respectively.

Results of Operations

We had revenues of $11.4 million for tharyended December 31, 2001, compared with $7.6mith 2000. License revenue of
$7.6 million in 2001 included scheduled milestoagments of $3.0 million from Merck and $1.0 millitnom Centocor, and royalty and ot
revenue of $1.0 million. License revenue in 20G&bancluded recognition of deferred license fee$1o8 million from Merial and VGI, and
of $0.8 million primarily from the Pfizer agreemeat a result of applying the change in accounticiple discussed in the section above.
Contract revenue of $3.8 million for 2001 includgd5 million of revenues from the contract with tBBIR for the development work on a
potential DNA vaccine to prevent malaria, revermoenf contracts and grants with NIH, and revenue fRfimer and other agreements. The
ONR agreement, as amended in January 2002, coalitprup to $5.5 million in funding through Apri032002. Through December 31,
2001, we had recognized revenue of $5.0 milliotheftotal contract amount. We intend to pursuetaddil agreements with ONR to
continue funding for this development program; hegrewe may not be able to enter into any furtlyreaments.

We had revenues of $7.6 million for theryeraded December 31, 2000, compared with $10.7omilh 1999. License revenue of
$5.0 million in 2000 included $1.5 million of licea fees from a June 2000 license agreement withtAsvEharma and royalty and other
revenue of $1.0 million. License revenue in 20@®ahcluded recognition of deferred license fee$1o8 million from Merial and VGI and
$0.7 million from the Pfizer agreement as a restiipplying the change in accounting principle d&sed in the section above. Contract
revenue of $2.6 million for 2000 included $0.9 ioifl of revenues from the contract with the ONR graye from contracts and grants with
NIH, and revenue from Pfizer and other agreem

We had revenues of $10.7 million for tharyended December 31, 1999. License revenue in d8$8.3 million included $2.0 million
from Merck to extend an agreement covering thefap&®NA vaccines and $1.0 million for the starteoPhase | clinical trial of a preventive
DNA vaccine to protect against HIV infection, $1lllion of option fees and $1.2 million of equitygmium pursuant to January 1999
agreements with Pfizer, and $1.0 million from Mef@ the initial exercise of options covering pegtive DNA vaccines for animal health
infectious diseases. The equity premium fi
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Pfizer was a result of Pfizer purchasing approxatya818,000 shares of Vical common stock for $6illion at $18.87 per share. The price
per share reflected a twenty-five percent premiwer ¢the trading price of the common stock. The gguiemium was recognized as license
revenue in 1999. License revenue also includedgration of previously deferred license fees of $hillion from Merial, and royalty and
other revenue of $1.0 million. Contract revenuasl®09 were $2.4 million, primarily from the ONRdipayments under the January 1999
agreement with Pfizer.

Our license revenues are expected to deeies?2002, primarily as a result of scheduled shilee payments from Merck in 2001 which
will not recur in 2002. We also expect that corttrewenue will be lower in 2002, primarily as au®f our current contract with the ONR
ending on April 30, 2002, and due to the expiratbour Pfizer collaboration in January 2002.

Research and development expenses incre&a$2@.1 million in 2001 from $18.5 million in 20@ue to increased personnel, facilities,
preclinical and intellectual property costs. Reskand development expenses increased to $18i6miitl 2000 from $15.3 million in 1999.
The increases in 2000 generally were due to expargdiour preclinical and clinical activities, bHaotluded increased costs in facilities and
personnel. Clinical trials expense decreased t $8lion in 2001 from $4.1 million in 2000 due tioe discontinuation of the Leuvectin®
kidney cancer clinical trial. Clinical trials exp@mincreased to $4.1 million in 2000 from $3.6 imillin 1999 due to increased activity in the
Leuvectin® kidney cancer clinical trial. As we mdieeward in 2002, we expect research and developegense to increase as we expand
our preclinical programs to broaden our future |iyge We further expect these efforts to drive @ages in headcount, spending for outside
services, and costs related to intellectual prgp&te also expect to incur increased costs asudt igfsrelocation to a new facility and possi
commencement of commercialization activities.

General and administrative expenses ineckas$6.5 million in 2001 from $5.3 million in 20@nd $4.4 million in 1999. The increast
2001 is attributable primarily to increased costssupport personnel, travel, and increased cansigind professional fees. General and
administrative expenses increased to $5.3 millioRG00 from $4.4 million in 1999. The increase @92 compared to 1999 is attributable
primarily to increased costs for consultants, pgsienal fees, support personnel, and recruitingodinelr expenses related to the hiring of a
new CEO.

Investment income decreased to $8.3 millio2001 from $9.4 million in 2000. Investment imee in 2001 included realized gains on
sales of marketable securities of $1.1 million, paned with $0.1 million in 2000. Investment incorarcluding the gains on the sale of
investments, decreased in 2001 compared with 208Qalsignificantly lower investment rates of retuesulting from the Federal Reserve
Board's repeated lowering of interest rates. Soheioinvestments were purchased prior to the réolug in interest rates and currently are
yielding higher returns than we can expect whemvesting the proceeds upon maturity. Thus, ourésteyields and investment income
expected to be lower in 2002. Investment incomeeiaged to $9.4 million in 2000 from $2.2 million1A99 as a result of higher investment
balances due to the January 2000 sale of 3,45@/@s of Vical common stock in a public offerifbis sale raised net proceeds of
approximately $117.5 million.

Interest expense increased to $0.3 millc2001 from $0.2 million in 2000, and from $0.1lllon in 1999. The increase is due to higher
average balances of capital lease obligations anll hotes payable. Interest expense is expectedrease in 2002 as the capital lease
obligation increases due to increased capital spgnd

For the full year 2001, we reported a nsslof $9.2 million, or $0.46 per share, comparét anet loss of $8.5 million, or $0.43 per
share, for 2000. The net loss for the year endemti@ber 31, 2000, included a one-time charge targsof $1.5 million for the cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle as ofuday 1, 2000. This one-time charge was to refleetimpact of SEC Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 101, "Revenue Recognition." We repdréeloss before cumulative effect of change in anting principle of $9.2 million for
2001, compared with $7.0 million for 2000. The

42

increase in loss before the cumulative effect efdhange in accounting principle was primarily suteof lower investment income and hig
research and development spending. Net loss befinelative change in accounting principle in 20QG\87.0 million, or $0.36 per share,
compared with $6.9 million or $0.43 per share i994.9Revenues were lower and expenses were high2@00 compared with 1999, as set
forth above. The lower revenue and higher expewses substantially offset by higher investment mecas a result of the January 2000 sale
of additional shares of Vical common stock.

Other Matters

Since inception, we estimate that we hgensapproximately $130 million on research andettgpyment of which approximately
$54 million was for our two major programs, Alloviee7® and Leuvectin®. The majority of this $54 tah was for Allovectin-7®.
Allovectin-7® is currently in Phase Il and Phase Il registratigals in melanoma. We do not know if the clinit@l data will be sufficien



to support a BLA or whether further trials will beeded. Since we have never commercialized a prbefiere we are unable to predict the
costs of commercialization. Accordingly, we canpdict when commercialization might occur or howam additional cost we may incur
until a product is on the market. Leuvectin® isrently in Phase Il clinical trials in prostate cancAdditional clinical trials will be needed if
we choose to advance toward commercialization. Atingly, we are unable to estimate when this prodaadidate might be commerciali:
and how much additional spending will be requiigee "Gene Therapies for Cancer—Allovectin-7®—Letim&' for a more detailed
explanation of the status of Allovectin-7® and Leatin®.

We have several other product candidatéiseémesearch and preclinical stage. It takes nyaays from the initial decision to screen
product candidates, perform preclinical and sadtidies, and perform clinical trials leading ugptssible FDA approval of a product. The
outcome of the research is unknown until each stagfee testing is completed, up through and iniclgdhe registration clinical trials.
Accordingly, we are unable to predict which potehgiroduct candidates we may proceed with, the &intecost to complete development,
and ultimately whether we will have a product apea by the FDA.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, we have financed qerations primarily through private placementsahmon stock and preferred stock, public
offerings of common stock, and revenues from caoltative agreements. As of December 31, 2001, wenmakiing capital of approximately
$130.9 million compared with $145.6 million at Dedeer 31, 2000. Cash and marketable securitieetbtgproximately $134.1 million at
December 31, 2001, compared with $148.1 millioB@tember 31, 2000. In January 2000, we sold 3,880s8ares of common stock,
including an over-allotment to the underwriterst60,000 shares, in a public offering for $36.50 gfaare. Net proceeds were approximately
$117.5 million after deducting underwriting feeslasifering costs.

Cash used in operating activities decliteefi8.2 million in 2001 compared with $8.6 millien2000, despite a higher net loss, becau
increases in noncash charges such as depreciatiothederred compensation. Positive cash flow frbenreduction in receivables together
with increased accounts payable and accrued expems® than offset the negative impact of the meean deferred revenue. Cash used in
operating activities in 2000 was $8.6 million in0B0compared with $6.0 million in 1999. The increaseash used in operating activities was
due to an increased net loss, increased deferveduwe and increased receivables which more thaetaffie positive cash flow impact of an
increase in accounts payable.

Cash provided from investing activities &%.4 million in 2001. Cash used in investing\atiis was $106.1 million in 2000. In 2001,
we sold marketable securities and invested in egsiivalents of a shorter term. In 2001, we alsd $8i.8 million for a license to certain
technology. In 1999, cash used
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in investing activities was $0.7 million. The inaee in cash used in investing activities in 2000 pared with 1999 was due to our use of the
net proceeds from our follow-on stock offering neést in marketable securities. Capital expendsitime2001 and 2000 increased over the
respective prior years.

Cash provided from financing activities2®01 was $0.1 million compared with $120.0 milliar2000. The decrease was a result of our
January 2000 public offering of 3,450,000 sharegiofl common stock, which raised net proceedsppfaximately $117.5 million. Cash
provided from financing activities in 1999 was $8lion, consisting primarily of proceeds from skooption exercises. In both 2001 and
2000, payments on notes payable and capital léasesmased over the respective prior year due teeased balances of notes payable and
capital lease obligations.

In 2002, we expect that our total net aaséd will increase because of expected reductiofisanse and contract revenues, an
anticipated decline in investment income, highanpkd expenses related to preclinical researcllevelopment programs, and consolida
of our facilities in a new location. Annual rentpense, excluding common area maintenance, is eegpéxtbe approximately $2.8 million for
the new facility compared with a $1.6 million rempense incurred in 2001 for the existing fac#iti€he new lease has specified annual rent
increases. Under generally accepted accountingiptas, we have to recognize level monthly rentegrge over the entire lease period. This
level monthly rent is calculated by adding the ltotat payments over the entire lease period tddii years and then dividing the result by
180 months of the lease. Accordingly, this levelt iger square foot is significantly higher than detual base rent per square foot we will pay
on the new facility in 2002. We will not begin pagirent on the new facility until September 2002.

Capital equipment spending will be sigrafidy higher due to the new facility. In Januar®20we renewed our capital equipment credit
line and increased it to $4.3 million. This crddie will be used to finance laboratory and scigngquipment, and part of the equipment
needed for the new facility. We expect to need axiprately $4 million to $6 million in capital in egss of our current credit line and will
seek to have the credit line increased or pursd#iadal financing with other parties. In the everd are unable to obtain this additional
financing, we will need to use existing cash todftine capital purchases.
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We will attempt to sublease the vacant spa@xisting facilities to recover our existingitgpayments plus amortization of leasehold
improvements. However, if we are unable to do so,n@t loss and cash outlays will increase accgigin

To finance certain leasehold improvemergsarrowed from a bank $1.0 million in 2001 and2®hillion in 2000. These borrowings
converted to term loans payable over 42 monthsaiie J2001 and June, 2000, respectively. The teamslbear interest approximating the
bank's prime rate. At December 31, 2001, outstandorrowings under the term loans were $1.6 miJleomd currently have interest rates of
4.75 percent and 4.50 percent, respectively.

We expect to incur substantial additiomslerarch and development expenses and general miisichtive expenses, including
continued increases in personnel costs, cost®tetatpreclinical testing and clinical trials, ddesservices, facilities, intellectual property ¢
possible commercialization costs. Our future capiiquirements will depend on many factors, inahgdtontinued scientific progress in our
research and development programs, the scope amitsref preclinical testing and clinical trialegttime and costs involved in obtaining
regulatory approvals, the costs involved in filipgpsecuting and enforcing patent claims, the impacompeting technological and market
developments, the cost of manufacturing scgdeand commercialization activities and arrangameai'e may seek additional funding thro
research and development relationships with s@itpbtential corporate collaborators. We may alek selditional funding through public or
private financings. We cannot assure that additifinancing will be available on favorable termsatrall.

If additional funding is not available, &sticipate that our available cash and existingeEiof funding will be adequate to satisfy our
operating needs through at least 2003.

Critical Accounting Policies
Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiztthe reported amounts of assets and liakslgied disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial stages and the reported amounts of revenues and sepenring the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Spealilfyjc management must make estimates in the foligwaireas:

Investment, at cost. In February 2000, we received an investme®dries B Preferred Stock in VGI in exchange fdcerise to our
technology. The investment is recorded on our lzalameet at estimated fair value on the date @fsitinvent of $5.0 million. The preferred
stock is convertible into common stock of VGI. tfditional shares of VGI common or preferred stoekiasued at a price below the price
the preferred shares of VGI were issued to ustdteeof conversion of the preferred shares into ¥@hmon stock would change and the
percentage of our equity ownership in VGI wouldréese.

VGl is a privately-held company developgene-based delivery of the angiogenic growth fa¢teGF-2 for cardiovascular applicatior
VGI has completed Phase | and Phase Il trials. $iBIneeds to raise substantial cash to comptstddvelopment plans, and there can be no
assurance that the therapy will work or that thé\Ridll approve such a therapy. VGI, which currentigs few employees and limited
resources, may not be able to successfully comalaeia product even if it receives FDA approvak @6 not believe there has been any
permanent impairment to our investment to date,dvan this may change depending on the fundingdawdlopment status of VGI, which is
beyond our control. If a change were to occur i @ithe abovanentioned factors or estimates, a material changkl®ccur to our reporte
results of operations.
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Intangible assets. We capitalize the license fees we pay to aeqaircess to proprietary technology if the technplegxpected to ha
alternative future use in multiple research andeftigsment projects. The cost of licensed technolagts is amortized to expense over the
estimated average useful life of the technologylis case, 10 years). We also capitalize certastsarelated to patent applications.
Accumulated costs are amortized over the estimatedomic life of the patent, which is generallyy2@rs and usually commences at the
the patent application is filed. Costs relateddtept applications are written off to expense attitme such costs are deemed to have no
continuing value. Intangible assets are amortizédgihe straight-line method. We review long-liassets and intangible assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurastaimdicate that the total amount of an assetmoape recoverable. An impairment l¢
is recognized when the estimated future cash flexpected from the use of the asset and the evetigpsition are less than its carrying
amount. Loss of legal ownership or rights to patemtlicensed technology, or significant changesunstrategic business objectives and
utilization of the assets, among other things, d@ive rise to asset impairment.

Clinical trial expenses. We account for our clinical trial costs by esdting the total cost to treat a patient in eaafiaal trial and
amortizing this total cost for the patient over g¢stimated treatment period, beginning when thiepaénrolls in the clinical trial. This
estimated cost includes payments to the trialaitk patient-related costs, including lab costsiteel to the conduct of the trial. Cost per
patient varies based on the type of clinical ttiad site of the clinical trial, the method of adistration of the treatment, and the lengtl



treatment period for each patient. Treatment psri@y from one month to one year, depending orlihial trial. As actual costs become
known to us, we may need to make a material chamger estimated accrual, which could also matsriffect our results of operations.

Revenue recognition

We earn revenue from licensing access t@mprietary technology, and by performing sersioeder research and development
contracts and manufacturing service contracts. Aerfully explained in Note 2, we changed our mdthbaccounting for certain payments
under collaborative agreements. Effective JanuaB0@0, any initial license or option payment rgediunder an agreement under which we
also provide research and development servicezagnized over the term of the research and dewedopperiod. Payments for options on a
license to our technology are recognized over gitmo period. Fees paid to extend an option aregeized over the option extension period.
Upfront license payments are recognized upon congigning if the fee is paid within 30 days, imnefundable and noncreditable, and if
there are no significant performance obligatiomsaiming. Revenue from milestones is recognizedhasrilestones are achieved and
collection of payment is reasonably assured. Revemader research and development contracts andfatéuming service contracts is
recognized as the services are performed. Advaageents received in excess of amounts earnedassifabd as deferred revenue.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In 2001, the Financial Accounting StandaBdsrd, FASB, issued SFAS No. 141, "Business Coatlins," and SFAS No. 142,
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." To date lveae not entered into any business combinatiodefized in SFAS No. 141. We would
have to adhere to SFAS 141 if we were to enterangpsuch business combinations in the future.

The primary changes resulting from SFAS Nt consist of how goodwill and intangible assétsbe segregated, amortized (or not
amortized), reviewed for impairment (if any), anidatbsed within the footnotes to financial statetsedVe do not currently have any good
and are continuing to assess the impact of adopfi®@FAS No. 142 on other intangible assets anddbpective results of operations,
financial position and cash flows.
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In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS Ndal, IAccounting for the Impairment or Disposal ofrigpLived Assets." SFAS No. 144
addresses financial accounting and reporting feiintipairment or disposal of long-lived assets. SN&S 144 supersedes SFAS No. 121,
"Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assetisd for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of," #melaccounting and reporting
provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, "Reporting thesRks of Operations—Reporting the Effects of Diglag a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurringekts and Transactions," for the disposal of a segmof a business, as previously defi
in that Opinion. The provisions of SFAS No. 144 effective for financial statements issued fordisgears beginning after December 15,
2001, with early application encouraged, and gdlyegiee to be applied prospectively. We do not@iptite that the adoption of SFAS No. :
will have a material effect on our financial positior results of operations.

The FASB has issued SFAS No. 138, "Accagntor Certain Derivative Instruments and Certagdbing Activities—an Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 133." This statement amends S¥&3.33. Our adoption of this pronouncement didhave a material effect on our
results of operations or financial condition asdeenot currently hold derivative financial instrumte and do not engage in hedging activities.

ITEM 7.a. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE A BOUT MARKET RISK

We are subject to interest rate risk. @uestment portfolio is maintained in accordancédwitir investment policy which defines
allowable investments, specifies credit qualityndrds and limits the credit exposure of any siiggaer. No investments in equity securities
are made in our investment portfolio which considtsash equivalents and marketable securitiesfA¥cember 31, 2001, 46 percent of the
investments would mature within one year, and atitiathal 51 percent and 3 percent would mature iwittvo and three years, respectively.
The average maturity was nine months. Our investsnane all classified as available-for-sale semifTo assess our interest rate risk, we
performed a sensitivity analysis projecting an agdair value of our cash equivalents and marketabturities using the following
assumptions: a twelve-month time horizon, a ninetimaverage maturity and a 150-basis-point increaseerest rates. This pro forma fair
value would have been $1.3 million lower than thearted fair value of our investments at Decemble2B801. Our rate of return on
investments, excluding the realized gains on s#El@s/estments, has decreased as the Federal RéBeavd has lowered interest rates. Some
of our investments were purchased prior to thectds, and are currently yielding higher retumsnt we could expect when reinvesting the
proceeds upon sale or maturity. Thus, our intgrests and investment income are expected to beddwv2002.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consolidated financial statements amqblementary data of us required by this item atdm®th at the pages indicated in Item 14(a)

().

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE



Not applicable.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Directors
Our directors are as follows(1):
Name Affiliation
R. Gordon Douglas, M.L Chairman of the Board, Vical Incorporat
Vijay B. Saman President and CEO, Vical Incorporai
M. Blake Ingle Inglewood Venture
Patrick F. Latterell Venrock Associates, and Latterell Venture
Partners

Gary A. Lyons Neurocrine Biosciences, In
Robert C. Merton Harvard University Graduate School of Busin

and Hancock, Mendoza, Dachille & Merton, L

(1) The following changes have occurred on our Boarigéctors since our 2001 Annual Meeting: Mr. D8lmith passed away in
July 2001; Mr. Philip Young resigned in Februar®20and Dr. Robert Merton joined in March 2002.

The information required by this item, withspect to directors, is incorporated by referdrmm the information under the caption
"Election of Directors" contained in our 2002 Dédfive Proxy Statement. The required information @ming our executive officers is
contained in Part | of this report.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item isdmporated by reference from the information urttiercaption "Executive Compensation”
contained in our 2002 Definitive Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this item is@mporated by reference from the information urttiercaption "Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management" contained in20@2 Definitive Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

The information required by this item isdmporated by reference from the information corgdiunder the caption "Certain
Transactions" contained in our 2002 Definitive Br&tatement.

PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, A’ ND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
€)) (1) Financial Statements
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The financial statements required by ttamiare submitted in a separate section beginmngage F-1 of this report.

Report of Independent Public Accounta F-1
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2001 and F-2
Statements of Operations for the three years ebéedgmber 31, 20C F-3
Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the thremyended December 31, 2( F-4
Statements of Cash Flows for the three years eDéedmber 31, 200 F-5
Notes to Financial Statemer F-6

(2 Financial Statement Schedules

Schedules have been omitted because afbsence of conditions under which they are requirdzecause the required
information is included in the financial statemenitghe notes thereto.

3)  Exhibits

Exhibits with each management contractoongensatory plan or arrangement required to bé &ite identified. See paragraph
below.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

No reports on Form 8-K were filed during tuarter ended December 31, 2001.

49
(©) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description of Document

3.1())(9) Restated Certificate of Incorporatic
3.1(i)(9) Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Comp
4.1(9) Specimen Common Stock Certifica
4.2(2) Rights Agreement dated as of March 20, 1995, betwlee Company and First Interstate
Bank of California.
4.3(10) Stock Purchase Agreement dated November 3, 198webr the Company and Merck &
Co., Inc.
4.4(11) Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of January 29, b8tween the Company and Pfizer
Inc.
10.1(4)(a) Stock Incentive Plan of Vical Incorporate
10.2(5)(a) 1992 Directors' Stock Option Plan of Vical Incorated.
10.5(3) Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Companyindirectors and officer:
10.5(3)(a) Employment Agreement dated August 20, 1992, betwleeiCompany and Mr. George J.
Gray.
10.€(3)(a) Employment Agreement dated November 2, 1992, betwee Company and Dr. Jon A.
Norman.
10.7(3) Stock Purchase Agreement dated February 20, :
10.§(3) Lease dated December 4, 1987, between the Companyexus/GADCo.-UTC, a
California Joint Venture, as amend
10.¢(6)(b) Research Collaboration and License Agreement ddggd31, 1991, between the Company
and Merck & Co., Inc
10.12(1)(b) License Agreement dated January 1, 1991, betwee@dmpany and Wisconsin Alumni
Research Foundatio
10.141)(b) License Agreement dated October 23, 1992, betwee@bmpany and the Regents of
University of Michigan.



10.1€(7) Research, Option and License Agreement dated Sbpte?, 1994, between the Company
and Pasteur €rieux Sérums & Vaccins

10.1%(8) Amendment dated April 27, 1994, to Research Cotiatian and License Agreement dated
May 31, 1991, between the Company and Merck & [Da.,

10.1¢(10)(b) Amendment dated November 3, 1997, to Researchlitolition and License Agreement
dated May 31, 1991, between the Company and Mer€lo& Inc.

10.2((12) Amendment No. 4 to the Lease dated December 4, H#®®een the Company and Nippon
Landic (U.S.A)), Inc., a Delaware Corporation (ascessor in interest to Nexus GADGO-
UTC). License Agreement dated February 24, 2008yden the Company and Human
Genome Sciences, In

10.23(13)(b) License Agreement dated February 24, 2000, bettvee@ompany and Human Genome
Sciences, Inc

10.22(13)(b) License Agreement dated February 24, 2000, bettvee@ompany and Vascular Genetics
Inc.

10.2%(14)(a) Employment Agreement dated November 28, 2000, itlee Company and Vijay B.
Samant

10.2¢(15)(a) Employment Agreement dated May 30, 2001, betweerCttmpany and Alan E. Do\

10.25(16)(a) Employment Agreement dated September 13, 2001 deetithe Company and David C.
Kaslow.

10.2¢(c) Amendment No. 4 dated December 7, 2001, to Rese@mtion and License Agreement
between the Company and Aventis Pasteur (formebfeRir Mrieux Sérums & Vaccins)
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10.2% Lease dated January 30, 2002, between the Companiikoy Realty, L.P. a Delaware
Limited Partnershig
10.2¢(a) Amendment Dated February 5, 2002, to EmploymentAgrent dated November 28, 2000,
between the Company and Vijay B. Sam:
23.1 Consent of Arthur Andersen LL|
99.1 Letter to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comoms®garding representations from
Arthur Andersen LLP

1)
(2)

(3)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)
(8)
(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

Incorporated by reference to the Company's Regjmtr&tatement on Form S-1 (No. 33-56830) filedJanuary 7, 1993.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the s@ummber to the Company's Report on Form 10-KHefrfiscal year ended
December 31, 1994 (No. 0-21088).

Incorporated by reference to the Exhibits of thmasaumber filed with the Company's Registratiorié3teent on Form S-1 (No. 33-
56830) filed on January 7, 1993.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filedmiihe Company's Registration Statement on Forn{fe8\o. 333-66254) filed on
July 30, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filediwiihe Company's Registration Statement on Form{(l$68333-30181) filed on
June 27, 1997.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of therany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the qaraghded September 30, 1994
(No. 0-21088).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of the Comga Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quaetedied September 30, 1994.
Incorporated by reference to the Company's Qugrkeport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Jund 384 (No. 0-21088).

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the samumber filed with the Company's Registration&tant on Form S-3 (No. 33-
95812) filed on August 15, 1995.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the samumber to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK 1@ the year ended
December 31, 1997.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the samumber to the Company's Quarterly Report on Fdd+ for the quarter ended
March 31, 1999.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the samumber to the Company's Quarterly Report on Fdd+ for the quarter ended
September 30, 1999.



(13) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammmber to the Company's Quarterly Report on Fd-Q for the quarter ende
March 31, 2000.

(14) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the saumber to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK 16 the year ended
December 31, 2000.

(15) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the saumber to the Company's Quarterly Report on F@+ for the quarter ended
June 30, 2001.

(16) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the samumber to the Company's Quarterly Report on F@d+ for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001.

(a) Indicates management contract or compensatorygrlarrangement.
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(b)  The Company has received confidential treatmeedfin portions of these agreements.

(c) The Company has requested confidential treatmecgrddin portions of these agreements.

(d) Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statement schedules of Vicabrporated required by this item are set fortthatpages indicated in Iltem 14(a)(2).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoedmly authorized on March 28, 2002.

VICAL INCORPORATED

By: /sl VIJAY B. SAMANT

Vijay B. Samant
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beenresidielow by the following persons on bel
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To Vical Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying balance she#tsalfincorporated, a Delaware corporation, as eE@mber 31, 2001 and 2000, and the
related statements of operations, stockholderstyeand cash flows for each of the three yearfhitngeriod ended December 31, 2001. These
financial statements are the responsibility of@mmnpany's management. Our responsibility is toesgan opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audi&bagdards generally accepted in the United Statesse standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabgut whether the financial statements are fregaterial misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and gignifestimates made by management, as well asatirgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesgonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referealove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Vical Incorporated as
of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results operations and its cash flows for each of theetlyears in the period ended
December 31, 2001, in conformity with accountinmpgiples generally accepted in the United States.

/sl ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
San Diego, California
February 1, 2002

VICAL INCORPORATED

BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2001 2000
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 43,736,06 $ 16,480,08
Marketable securitie— available-for-sale 90,351,40 131,663,76
Receivables and oth 4,635,53 4,413,07
Total current asse 138,723,01 152,556,93
Investment, at co: 5,000,001 5,000,001
Property and Equipmer
Equipmeni 8,225,63; 6,978,90!

Leasehold improvemen 4,800,50: 3,062,77



Less— accumulated depreciation and amortiza

Intangible Assets, nt
Other Asset:

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expel
Current portion of capital lease obligatic
Current portion of notes payat

Current portion of deferred reven

Total current liabilities

Long-Term Obligations
Long-term obligations under capital leas
Notes payabli
Deferred revenu

Total lon¢-term obligations

Commitments and contingenci
Stockholders' Equity

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value — 5,000,000 steard®rized —none

outstanding

Common stock, $0.01 par value — 40,000,000 sharmazed —
20,056,344 and 20,011,244 shares issued and aditsganespectivel

Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive incc
Accumulated defici

Total stockholders' equit

See accompanying notes.

13,026,13 10,041,68
(7,966,25) (6,504, 64)
5,059,87: 3,537,04!
5,406,501 1,638,93!

305,34t 170,30:

$ 154,494,73 $ 162,903,21

$ 4,492,000 $ 3,895,53.
846,34 611,77

657,14 317,76

1,794,85 2,162,47.
7,790,35: 6,987,54.
1,616,67 1,413,60

973,81 707,86

1,954,92 3,000,00.
4,545,41; 5,121,47;

200,561 200,11;
203,543,98 203,106,68
816,66 649,65
(62,402,24) (53,162,25)
142,158,96 150,794,19

$ 154,494,73 $ 162,903,21
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VICAL INCORPORATED

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Revenues
License/royalty revenu $ 7,572,19 $ 5,027,440 $ 8,294,28:
Contract revenu 3,793,901 2,592,64. 2,417,19

11,366,09 7,620,05! 10,711,48




Operating expense

Research and developmt 22,073,09 18,513,74. 15,343,58
General and administratiy 6,522,29 5,265,271 4,376,47.
28,595,39 23,779,01 19,720,05
Loss from operation (17,229,30) (16,158,96) (9,008,57))
Other income (expense
Investment incom 8,285,88! 9,356,72. 2,229,18:
Interest expens (296,57 (204,599 (129,829
7,989,311 9,152,12' 2,099,35!
Loss before cumulative effect of change in accagnfirinciple (9,239,99) (7,006,83) (6,909,21)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi — (1,510,03)) —
Net loss $ (9,239,99) $ (8,516,87) $ (6,909,21)
I I I
Net loss per common share (basic and dilut
Loss per share before cumulative effect of changeecounting
principle $ (0.4¢) $ (0.3¢) $ (0.49)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ — (0.07) —
Net loss per common she $ (0.4¢) $ 043 $ (0.43)
I I I
Weighted average shares used in computing nepkrssommon
share 20,032,36 19,688,75 16,135,59
I I I
See accompanying notes.
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VICAL INCORPORATED
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
Common Stock
Additional Accumulated Total Total
Paid-in Other Comprehensive  Accumulated Stockholders' Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Equity Loss
BALANCE, December 31, 1998 15,866,54 $ 158,66' $ 78,332,48 $ 69,44( $ (37,736,16) $ 40,824,42. $ (7,435,09))
I
Issuance of common sto 317,96¢ 3,18( 4,790,46. — — 4,793,64.
Stock option exercises 16,62 16€ 169,92¢ — — 170,09:
Unrealized loss on marketable securities arising
during holding perioc $ (191,19)
Reclassification of realized gain included in rosts (29,050
Unrealized loss on marketable securities — — — (210,24) — (210,24) (210,24)
Net loss — — — — (6,909,21) (6,909,21) (6,909,21)
BALANCE, December 31, 199 16,201,13  162,01: 83,292,87: (140,80)) (44,645,38) 38,668,69 $ (7,119,45)
I
Issuance of common stock 3,450,001 34,50( 117,430,12 — — 117,464,62
Stock option exercises 360,10¢ 3,601 2,383,68: — — 2,387,28!
Unrealized gain on marketable securities arising
during holding period $ 865,94
Reclassification of realized gain included in rostd (75,487



Unrealized gain on marketable securities — — — 790,45¢ — 790,45¢ 790,45¢
Net loss — — — — (8,516,87)) (8,516,871) (8,516,87))
BALANCE, December 31, 200 20,011,24. 200,11  203,106,68 649,65¢ (53,162,25) 150,794,19 $ (7,726,41,)
——
Stock option exercises 45,10( 451 281,88¢ — — 282,34(
Non-cash compensation expense related to gran
stock options — — 155,41¢ — — 155,41¢
Unrealized gain on marketable securities arising
during holding perioc $ 1,250,65:
Reclassification of realized gain included in restd (1,083,64)
Unrealized gain on marketable securities — — — 167,00° — 167,00° 167,00°
Net loss — — — — (9,239,99) (9,239,99) (9,239,99)
BALANCE, December 31, 200 20,056,34 $ 200,56. $ 203,543,98 $ 816,66! $ (62,402,24) $ 142,158,96 $ (9,072,98)

See accompanying notes.

VICAL INCORPORATED

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss

Year Ended December 31,

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating

activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Compensation expense related to grant of stockiag
Change in operating assets and liabilit
Receivables and oth
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Deferred revenu

Net cash used in operating activit

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Sales of marketable securiti
Purchases of marketable securi
Capital expenditure
Deposits and othe
Licensed technology expenditut
Patent expenditure

Net cash provided from (used in) investing actg

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issuance of common stock, t
Proceeds from notes payal
Payments on notes payal
Principal payments under capital lease obligat

Net cash provided from financing activiti

2001 2000 1999

$ (9,239,99) $ (8,516,87) $ (6,909,21)
1,882,87 1,200,32: 1,041,35:
155,41 — —
(222,45) (441,45() (2,538,91))
596,47 55,88¢ 1,558,391
(1,412,69) (913,69;) 826,16¢
(8,240,37) (8,615,80) (6,022,22))
188,382,83 69,433,85 28,135,86
(146,903,47) (173,781,97) (28,255,34)
(2,004,90) (1,317,54) (441,32
(135,04) (23,837 (13,08¢)
(3,750,001) — —
(188,14() (364,23) (86,38¢)
35,401,27 (106,053,73) (660,27¢)
282,34( 119,851,91 4,963,73;
1,107,701 1,192,301 —
(502,38() (273,55 (160,32
(792,58:) (770,61) (539,130)
95,07¢ 120,000,04 4,264,26i



Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 27,255,98 5,330,501 (2,418,23))
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 16,480,08 11,149,58 13,567,81
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 43,736,06 $ 16,480,08 $ 11,149,58

Interest paic

»

326,70-

L5

196,38

$ 128,41:

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Investing andr€ing
Activities:
Investment in preferred stock of Vascular Gendticsin
exchange for grant of licen:

»
|
»

5,000,00t

©®
|

©
©

Equipment acquired under capital lease finan 1,230,23 1,428,15. $ 685,70!

Stock options exercised through swap of outstansliages
owned by optionee, which shares received by theaom
were then retire

&
|
&

3,447,47

©»
|

See accompanying notes.

VICAL INCORPORATED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization and Business Activity

Vical Incorporated, the Company, a Delaw@poration, was incorporated in 1987 and has t@elveubstantially all of its resources
since that time to its research and developmemgrpms. The Company is focusing its resources odekelopment of biopharmaceutical
products based on its patented gene delivery téohies for the prevention and treatment of serimulife-threatening diseases.

All of the Company's potential products ereesearch and development. No revenues havedmreated from the sale of any such
products, nor are any such revenues expected feasitthe next few years. The products curremifjen development by the Company are in
various stages of development. Most product canelidaill require significant additional researcldatevelopment efforts, including
extensive preclinical and clinical testing. All prect candidates that advance to clinical trialingstvill require regulatory approval prior to
commercial use, and will require significant cdstscommercialization. There can be no assuranagtite Company's research and
development efforts will be successful and that efiihe Company's potential products will provétosafe and effective in clinical trials.
Even if developed, these products may not recegalatory approval or be successfully introducedi miarketed at prices that would permit
the Company to operate profitably. The Company etgp® continue to incur substantial losses andyanerate positive cash flow from
operations for at least the next few years. Norasge can be given that the Company can generfiitsiesat product revenue to become
profitable or generate positive cash flow from @iens at all or on a sustained basis.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiztthe reported amounts of assets and liakslgied disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial stagens and the reported amounts of revenues and seenring the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Property and Equipmel

Equipment is recorded at cost and depretiaver the estimated useful lives of the assedis 53years, using the straight-line method.
Leasehold improvements are recorded at cost andtiastover the shorter of the life of the remagniaase term or the remaining useful life
of the asset using the strai-line method



Intangible Asset

The Company capitalizes license fees paattuire access to proprietary technology if dodmology is expected to have alternative
future use in multiple research and developmenepts. The cost of licensed technology rights i®dired to expense over the estimated
average useful life of the technology, 10 yearse Tompany capitalizes certain costs related tanpafgplications. Accumulated costs are
amortized over the estimated economic lives optents, generally 20 years, and generally commagratithe time the patent application is
filed. Costs related to patent applications aretemioff to expense at the time such costs are dée¢mhave no continuing value. Intangible
assets are being amortized using the straightrtiegnod.
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Asset Impairmer

The Company reviews long-lived assets atahigible assets for impairment whenever eventhanges in circumstances indicate that
the total amount of an asset may not be recoverAblémpairment loss is recognized when estimategdré cash flows expected to result
from the use of the asset and the eventual disposite less than its carrying amount.

Research and Development Cc

All research and development costs areresgxbas incurred, including costs incurred to perfeesearch and manufacturing service
contracts. Research and development costs inchldges and personnel-related costs, supplies atérials, outside services, costs of
conducting clinical trials, facilities costs and @ntivation of intangible assets consisting of ileteual property and licensed technology rig
The Company accounts for its clinical trial cosgselstimating the total cost to treat a patientanheclinical trial, and amortizing this total ci
for the patient over the estimated treatment pdveginning when the patient enrolls in the clinicill. This estimated cost includes paym:
to the site conducting the trial, and patiesited lab and other costs related to the cormafutie trial. Cost per patient varies based ortype
of clinical trial, the site of the clinical triathe method of administration of the treatment, tnedlength of treatment that a patient receives.
Treatment periods vary from one month to one yégpending on the clinical trial.

Revenue Recognitic

The Company earns revenue from licensingssto its proprietary technology, and perfornsaryices under research and development
contracts and manufacturing service contracts. &erfully explained in Note 2, in 2000 the Compahwanged its method of accounting for
certain payments under its collaborative agreemé&ftsctive January 1, 2000, any initial licenseoption payment received under an
agreement under which the Company also providesirels and development services is recognized begetm of the research and
development period. Payments for options on a $iegn the Company's technology are recognizedtbeenption period. Fees paid to extend
an option are recognized over the option exteng@iod. Upfront license payments are recognizedgomtract signing if the fee is paid
within 30 days, is nonrefundable, noncreditablel trere are no significant performance obligatimmaining. Revenue from milestones is
recognized as the milestones are achieved andctiolieof payment is reasonably assured. Revenueruedearch and development contracts
and manufacturing service contracts is recognizsdthi@services are performed. Advance payments/egtin excess of amounts earned are
classified as deferred revenue.

Net Loss Per Common She

Basic and diluted net loss per common sfaareach of the three years in the period endezkBer 31, 2001, has been computed using
the weighted average number of shares of commaik siatstanding during the three periods ended Dbeeidl, 2001. Diluted loss per sh
does not include any stock options as the effectidvbe antidilutive.

F-7

Income Taxe

Deferred tax liabilities and assets areeined based on the difference between the fiahatatements and the tax basis of assets and
liabilities using the estimated enacted tax rateffact given the provisions of the enacted taxslavvaluation allowance has been recogn
to offset the entire amount of the deferred taxetadmsed on the weight of available evidenceithaimore likely than not that some or all of
the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The carrying amounts of financial instruntsesuch as receivables, other assets, accountblpayral accrued expenses reason



approximate fair value because of the short matofithese items. The Company believes the carrgingunts of the Company's notes
payable and obligations under capital leases ajypaig fair value because the interest rates oretimssruments change with, or approxim
market interest rates. See Note 3 for fair valueash equivalents and marketable securities.

Comprehensive Loss

The Company has implemented Statementrafrigial Accounting Standards, SFAS, No. 130, "RépgComprehensive Income."
Accordingly, in addition to reporting net loss, tBempany has displayed the impact of any unrealigéd or loss on marketable securities as
a component of comprehensive loss and has dispky@gnount representing total comprehensive lassdch period presented. The
Company has presented the required informatiohdrstatements of stockholders' equity.

Business Segmer

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 131, I¥sces about Segments of an Enterprise and Rdla@uhation,” and has determined
that it operates in one business segment deditatedearch in gene delivery technology. The Coiyipaiperations are in the United States.
All revenues are generated from the United Stated,all long-lived assets are maintained in theddhStates.

Reclassification:
Certain prior year amounts have been rsifiad to conform to the current year presentation.
Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting 8tads Board, FASB, issued SFAS No. 141, "Businesslfinations," and SFAS No. 142,
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." To date @@mpany has not entered into any such businesbinations as defined in SFAS
No. 141. The Company would have to adhere to SFASIML1 if it were to enter into any business coratioms in the future

The primary changes resulting from SFAS Nt consist of how goodwill and intangible assétsbe segregated, amortized (or not
amortized), reviewed for impairment (if any), aridotbsed within the footnotes to financial statetaefihe Company does not currently have
any goodwill and is continuing to assess the impéeidoption of SFAS No. 142 on other intangiblseds and the respective results of
operations, financial position and cash flows.
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In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS Nal, IAccounting for the Impairment or Disposal ofrigpLived Assets." SFAS No. 144
addresses financial accounting and reporting feiintipairment or disposal of long-lived assets. SN&8S 144 supersedes SFAS No. 121,
"Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assetsd for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of," #melaccounting and reporting
provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, "Reporting thesRkis of Operations—Reporting the Effects of Diglag a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently OccurringeBts and Transactions," for the disposal of a segmof a business, as previously defi
in that Opinion. The provisions of SFAS No. 144 effective for financial statements issued fordisgears beginning after December 15,
2001, with early application encouraged, and gélyesiee to be applied prospectively. The Compangsdoot anticipate the adoption of SF
No. 144 will have a material effect on the Compaiiiyiancial position or results of operatio

The FASB has issued SFAS No. 138, "Accagntor Certain Derivative Instruments and Certagdbing Activities—an Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 133." This statement amends S¥&3.33. The adoption of SFAS No. 138 did not harémpact on the Company's
results of operations or financial condition as @mmpany does not currently hold derivative finahgistruments and does not engage in
hedging activities.

2. Change In Accounting Principle

In December 1999, the Securities and Exgh&@ommission, SEC, issued Staff Accounting Buidléto. 101—"Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statements," or SAB 101. SAB 101 refl¢btsSEC's views on revenue recognition. Histogidile Company recognized revenue
from initial technology option and license feeghe period in which the agreement was signed iftheere no significant performance
obligations remaining. Revenue from milestone pay@as recognized as revenue as the collaboreézed the milestones. SAB 101
requires that when the earnings process has notdubeminated, payments must be deferred and rezedraver the period over which the
revenue is deemed to have been earned. As sud@pthpany defers and recognizes payments from témgoption and license fees, and
milestone payments over the period in which thenee is deemed to have been earned.

Under option and license agreements whichat require research to be performed by the Cosnpad under which the collaborator
pays an upfront fee for an option to a licenseneo@ompany's technology, the Company believes3A&t 101 requires the Company to
recognize the revenue from the upfront payment theoption period. For those agreements whichal@aquire research to be performec



the Company and the collaborator pays an upfranfdea license to the Company's technology, octikaborator holds an option that is tl
exercised to get a license, the Company believesgalificant performance obligations were met #mel culmination of the earnings process
occurred upon granting the license to the technolBgr these types of transactions, the Compamyysremaining performance obligation

after that is to maintain and defend the patendspatent applications. The collaborators do notageess to any upgrades or enhancements tc
the Company's technology.

Under certain agreements the Company wiastpgerform required research and developmenwices during the research period
specified in the agreement. For these agreemesteribally the Company recognized the revenuehenrésearch services as the services
were provided. This
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accounting is unchanged under SAB 101. Howevereu8éB 101 the Company believes that any upfrotibopor license payment under
this type of agreement would have to be deferretranognized over the research period.

In the fourth quarter of 2000, the Compaampleted its evaluation of payments the Compaogived under its various option and
license agreements. The Company identified onecaggat with Pfizer Inc entered into in 1999, whibh Company believes under SAB 101

would require a change in accounting as of the é@mglntation date of January 1, 2000. The amourgw&iue recognized in 1999 that under
SAB 101 was deferred as of January 1, 2000 wasr$illién.

The Company implemented SAB 101 in thetfoguarter of 2000 by restating the first threertpra of 2000 financial statements to
apply SAB 101 effective January 1, 2000. The stateémf operations for 2000 reflects a one-time ghao earnings for the cumulative effect
of the change in accounting principle as of Jandag000, of $1.5 million. In 2001 and 2000, then@®any recognized approximately
$0.7 million per year of this deferred license mawe under the new revenue recognition policy.

On a pro forma basis, if the impact of SBEBL. had been implemented effective January 1, 188%ro forma net loss and the pro forma
net loss per common share for the year ended Deme®ih 1999, would have been $8.4 million and $0r&&pectively, compared with the
reported net loss and the reported net loss pemmonshare of $6.9 million and $0.43, respectively.

3. Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

The Company invests its excess cash inidstsiments of financial institutions, of corpaoais with strong credit ratings, in U.S.
government obligations, and in money market fumidseertificates of deposit in financial institutearThe Company has established
guidelines relative to diversification and mat@dtithat maintain safety and liquidity. These guidk are periodically reviewed and modified
to take advantage of trends in yields and intaregst. Cash equivalents are short-term, highlydiqwestments with original maturities of
less than three months. Cash equivalents of $4Blidmand $15.3 million at December 31, 2001 a®@@, respectively, are primarily in
commercial paper, asset backed securities, fedgeaicy discount notes and money market funds.

The Company classifies its marketable sgéesras available-for-sale and records the urzedlholding gains or losses as a separate
component of stockholders' equity. Net investmeobdime in 2001 included realized gains on the Saheasketable securities of $1.1 million.
Realized gains or losses are calculated basedessptrific identification method. Realized gain$osses were not material for the years
ended December 31, 2000 and 1999.
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At December 31, 2001, marketable securg@ssisted of the following:

Amortized Market Unrealized
Cost Value Gain
U.S. government obligatior $ 50,508,04 $ 50,649,39 $ 141,34¢
Corporate bond 22,370,29 22,760,55 390,26!
Asset backed securitis 11,622,36 11,819,26 196,89
Certificates of depos 2,999,95. 3,017,22i 17,26¢
International bon 2,034,08! 2,104,98I 70,89!

$ 89,534,74 $ 90,351,40 $ 816,66



Approximately 46 percent of these secigitigture within one year of December 31, 2001,aanddditional 51 percent and 3 percent
mature within the next two and three years, respaygt

At December 31, 2000, marketable securd@ssisted of the following:

Amortized Market Unrealized
Cost Value Gain
U.S. government obligatior $ 41,574,83 $ 41,797,68 $ 222,84«
Corporate bond 70,124,05 70,422,93 298,87
Asset backed securitis 9,846,52; 9,940,90: 94,38¢
Certificates of depos 6,491,49' 6,512,62! 21,12¢
International bon 2,977,19 2,989,62 12,43(

$ 131,014,10 $ 131,663,76 $ 649,65t

4. Intangible Assets

At December 31, intangible assets consistede following:

2001 2000
Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Patents and patent applicatic $ 2,153,33. $ 465,58. $ 1,965,19. $ 326,25’
Licensed technology righ 3,750,001 31,25( — —
$ 5,903,333 $ 496,83. $ 1,965,19. $ 326,25

Amortization expense is included in reskamd development expense in the accompanyingrstats of operations. Amortization
expense was $0.2 million, $0.1 million, and $0.1liom, for the years ended December 31, 2001, 20001999, respectively.

5. Significant Contracts and License Agreements
Merck & Co., Inc.

The Company has entered into three sepagagz=ments in 1991, 1992 and 1997 with Merck & @w., Merck, which provide Merck
with certain exclusive rights to develop and conuisdize vaccines using the Company's gene delitesrignology for certain disease targets.
The 1991 and 1997
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agreements are for human vaccine targets and g2dgreement is for animal vaccine targets. Meesklltensed seven preventive human
infectious disease vaccines using the Company's delivery technology pursuant to the 1991 agre¢iuas has licensed the rights to
develop and market therapeutic vaccines againgtuhean immunodeficiency virus, HIV, and hepatitisiBis, HBV. A September 1997
agreement between the Company and Merck, whichtepdvierck the rights to use the Company's geneetglitechnology to deliver certain
growth factors as potential treatments for a rasfggpplications including revascularization, exgdira June 2000.

In November 1999, Merck paid the Company $illion to extend an agreement covering theréipelaked DNA vaccines. In
December 1999, Merck started a Phase | clinicall ¢fi a preventive naked DNA vaccine to protectiagtaHIV infection. This event triggere
a milestone payment of $1.0 million which the Compeeceived in January 2000. The Company accruedetenue for this milestone in
December 1999. In November 2001, the Company redei$3.0 million payment from Merck in accordandth its licensing agreement.
The payment extends the term of Merck's worldwigbts to use our naked DNA technology to develop market therapeutic vaccines
against both HIV and HBV. The Company recognizes $8.0 million as license revenue in the fourtlader of 2001. Through December
2001, the Company had received a total of $25.liamilinder these agreements, including a payme#bdf million in 1997 for Merck's
investment in the Company's common stock. Liceagenues recognized under these agreements weren#8o® in 2001 and 1999, and
none in 2000. The two remaining agreements profiadéhe Company to receive additional payments dagon achievement of certain
defined milestones and royalty payments based bproduct sales



Pfizer Inc

In January 1999, the Company and PfizerPizer, entered into a collaborative and optigreament and a stock purchase agreement.
Under the terms of the collaborative and optioreagrent, Pfizer paid the Company $1.0 million inapfees. In addition, the Company
agreed to provide access to two full time equiviadgnployees to assist Pfizer in its research andldpment efforts for $0.5 million of
research and development expenses annually far yler@rs. Under the terms of the stock purchaseagmet, Pfizer made an investment of
$6.0 million for approximately 318,000 shares @& ompany's common stock at $18.87 per sharectiefiea 25 percent premium. The
$1.0 million option fee and the $1.2 million premmiwn the purchase of stock were recognized as vevien1999, and the balance of the
common stock investment, net of costs to issushiages of stock, was reflected in common stockaaiitional paid-in capital in 1999. The
collaborative and option agreement was allowedpire in January 2002.

As explained in Note 2, the Company chariteethethod of accounting for these types of agesgmin 2000. The accompanying 2000
statement of operations reflects a cumulative eHdfustment for approximately $1.5 million to detlee amount of revenue recognized in
1999 that under SAB 101 is required to be recogh@er the contractual research period in 2001284®). In 2001 and 2000, the Company
recognized $0.7 million per year of the deferreétise revenue under the new revenue recognitieeypdhrough December 31, 2001, the
Company had received a total of $9.0 million uritiese agreements, including Pfizer's investmetitéarCompany's common stock. The
Company recognized $0.5 million, $0.6 million ar@i4bmillion of revenue in 2001, 2000 and 1999, eesipely, for research and
development work and $0.1 million for contract miaeturing in 2000.
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Human Genome Sciences, |

In February 2000, the Company and Humam@enSciences, Inc., HGS, entered into a recipmagallity-bearing license agreement.
Under the agreement, the Company has the optierdasively license up to three genes from HGSy&e-based product development.
HGS has the option to license the Company's gelneedetechnology for use in up to three gene-bgsediucts. Each party has until
September 30, 2004 to exercise their respectivieroptAt December 31, 2001, neither party has sedeany gene for an initial option
exercise.

Vascular Genetics Inc.

Under a February 2000 license agreemeaiCtimpany granted an exclusive, royalty-bearingnke to Vascular Genetics Inc., VGI, a
privately held company in which HGS is a major sthatder, for naked DNA delivery of a gene with paiel use for revascularization. In
exchange, the Company received a minority equisrést in VGI, represented by preferred stock. itederred stock is convertible into
common stock of VGI. This investment was recordegstimated fair value of $5.0 million on the dafenvestment, and is reflected as
Investment, at cost, in the accompanying balaneetshThe investment is being accounted for usiagbst method. The Company also
recorded a liability for deferred revenue of $5.0lian at the date of investment. The deferred rexebalance at December 31, 2001 of
$3.0 million from this agreement, is being recogdizatably each month through September 30, 208énke revenue recognized under this
agreement was $1.1 million and $0.9 million in 2@0GH 2000, respectively. The VGI clinical trialsre@laced on clinical hold by the FDA
2000. The Company learned from VGI in October 20@i their Phase Il development program is offichhold, and they have announced
that they are advancing toward new clinical tri&&l will need to raise substantial funding in ardie continue these clinical trials. If
additional shares of VGI common or preferred staekissued at a price below the price that theepred shares of VGI were issued to the
Company, the rate of conversion of the preferredeshinto VGI common stock would change and thegrgage of the Company's equity
ownership in VGI would decrease.

Merial

In March 1995, the Company entered intorparate alliance relating to DNA vaccines in tihégal health area with Merial, a joint
venture between Merck and Aventis S.A. Merial hpisoms to acquire exclusive licenses to the Comisaggne delivery technology to
develop and commercialize DNA vaccines to prevefeidtious diseases in domesticated animals. Mergale payments of $1.1 million in
1999, and $1.0 million in 1998 to extend the omionder this agreement. Additionally, in Decemt®99, Merial paid the Company
$1.6 million for the initial exercise of optionsdextension of options under the agreement. In M2B90, Merial paid an additional
$0.2 million to extend the broad option to Marcl®20in 2001, Merial paid $1.0 million to extend thgtions to March 31, 2002. Through
December 31, 2001, the Company had received adb$.0 million under this agreement. License rexerecognized under this agreement
was $0.7 million, $0.9 million, and $2.1 million 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. If Merial eisas additional license options and
markets these vaccines, cash payments and royaitiest product sales would be due to the Company.
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Aventis Pasteu



In September 1994, the Company and Avétdieur entered into an agreement that includedearch collaboration and options for
Aventis Pasteur to take exclusive licenses to the@any's gene delivery technology for each of iifectious disease vaccine targets.
Through 1996, Aventis Pasteur had exercised fotiomg. In December 2001, Aventis Pasteur and thagamy restructured this agreement.
Aventis Pasteur obtained rights to use the Compaaghnology for specific oncology applicationsekthange, Aventis Pasteur agreed to
pay a small option fee and gave up rights to tfectious disease targets. Through December 31,,200 Company had received $7.8 mill
under this agreement. No revenue was recogniz2d(a, 2000 or 1999. The restructured agreemenigesvor the Company to receive
additional payments based upon achievement ofinefédined milestones and royalty payments basegebdproduct sales.

Aventis Pharmi

In October 1997, the Company and Aventigr®la entered into an agreement granting Aventisn®pan exclusive worldwide license
use the Company's gene delivery technology to dpvetrtain gene therapy products for potentiaktneat of neurodegenerative diseases.
Under the terms of the agreement, the Companywed&i1.0 million, which was recognized as revemu£997. Simultaneously with the
restructuring of the Aventis Pasteur agreementandbnber 2001, the Company reacquired rights to themapies for neurodegenerative
diseases. In June 2000, the Company and AventisrRhentered into a license agreement granting As@ftarma rights to use the
Company's technology to deliver a growth factoregfam which Aventis Pharma holds rights. The Conypaateived $1.5 million, which was
recognized as revenue in June 2000. This agregmeavitles for the Company to receive additional pagta based upon achievement of
certain defined milestones and royalty paymentedbas net product sales.

Centocor, Inc.

In February 1998, the Company enteredamtagreement allowing Centocor, Inc., Centocorsegbently acquired by Johnson &
Johnson, Inc., to use the Company's gene delieehnblogy to develop and market DNA vaccines ferghtential treatment of certain types
of cancer. The Company received a payment of $2lbmunder the agreement, which was recognizectasnue in 1998. In 2001, the
Company recognized license revenue of $1.0 mifiiom scheduled milestone payments from Centocoe. Company may receive further
payments plus royalties if Centocor successfullyettips products using the Company's technology.

Boston Scientific Corporatio

In September 1998, the Company and Bostiengfic Corporation entered into a license andapagreement for the development of
catheter-based intravascular gene delivery teclgyolbhe agreement provides for the Company to vecaiyalty payments on net product
sales.

Office of Naval Research

In September 1998, the Company signed parative agreement with the Office of Naval Rede&nadevelop a multi-gene malaria
DNA vaccine and test its ability to protect humagsinst malaria. This agreement, as amended irmda@002 could provide up to
approximately $5.5 million of funding to the Compahrough April 30, 2002, of which $1.5 million, $0million, and $1.8 million of
contract revenue was recognized under this agreeem@001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
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Other Research and Licensing Agreements

The Company also received revenue undearek and licensing agreements and contract seagieements with other entities
including the U.S. government of which approxima®2.8 million, $2.0 million and $1.3 million wasaognized as revenue in 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively.

Ichor Medical Systems, Inc.In October 2001, the Company and Ichor MedByatems, Inc. entered into an exclusive agreeroent t
develop products based on the Company's naked [blblogy and delivered using Ichor's proprietdegteoporation systems. The two
companies are applying this innovative approachatdvthe initial development of selected products.

CytRx Corporation. In December 2001, the Company entered intaxalugive agreement with CytRx Corporation granting
Company rights to use or sublicense CytRx's polearrhnology to enhance viral or non-viral delwef polynucleotides in all preventive
and therapeutic human and animal health applicsitiexcept for four infectious disease vaccine tarligensed to Merck and prostateecific
membrane antigen. In addition, the license agreepemmits the Company's use of CytRx's technologgnthance the delivery of proteins in
prime-boost vaccine applications that involve tbe af polynucleotides. As part of the agreemertGbmpany made a $3.8 million up-front
payment in December 2001, and will potentially makeare milestone and royalty payments. The licdesds being amortized to expense
over the estimated ten-year average useful lith@technology.

Wisconsin Alumni Research Foundation and/&hsity of Michigan License Agreemer In 2001 and 2000, the Company contin



research and exclusive license agreements witle thgmnizations for continuing research and liceitgds to technology related to gene
therapy. The agreements grant the Company thetagiimmercialize any product derived from speditiechnology. The fees paid by the
Company are not material and are expensed as é@tcurr

Under the Merck, Aventis Pasteur, MeriateAtis Pharma, Centocor, HGS and VGI agreemergsCtdmpany would be required to pay
up to 10 percent of some milestone payments antbdl percentage of some royalty payments to WiscoAkimni Research Foundation,
WAREF. The CytRx and Ichor agreements would reqtieeCompany to make payments to the respectivagrarand to WARF if the results
of the Company's research resulted in the generaficevenue. Under the Boston Scientific agreerrietite Company were to receive
milestone or royalty payments, the Company woulddogiired to pay up to 25 percent of some of tipegenents to the University of
Michigan. Royalty expense for these agreements®@atmillion in 2001 and 1999, and $0.2 million2d00.

6. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expensesstedsif the following at December 31:

2001 2000
Accrued clinical trials cos $ 1,810,431 $ 1,732,96
Employee compensatic 1,410,22 932,54(
Accounts payabl 43,85: 139,17-
Other accrued liabilitie 1,227,49; 1,090,85!

$ 4,492,000 $ 3,895,53
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7. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

The Company leases its office and resefadlities and certain equipment under operating eapital leases. The minimum annual rents
on the office and research facilities are subjedbtreases specified in the lease or based orgekan the Consumer Price Index subject to
certain minimum and maximum annual increases. Tdrafany is also required to pay taxes, insuranceopedating costs under the facilities
leases. Two of the three facilities leases carebhewed for one additional five-year period andtttiel facility lease can be renewed for two
additional five-year periods beyond their expiratio 2004. The equipment capital leases are sedyrasdbstantially all equipment of the
Company.

Operating Capital
Leases Leases
Years ending December &
2002 $ 1,74339. $ 1,027,29:
2003 1,793,86: 948,73t
2004 1,885,64. 658,94(
2005 — 157,55¢
Total minimum leas
Payment: $ 5,422,89! 2,792,52.
I
Less amount representi
Interest (329,499
Present value of capital lease paym: 2,463,02!
Less current portio (846,34
Long-term obligations under capital leas $ 1,616,67
I

Rent expense for the years ended Decenmh@0®1, 2000 and 1999, was $1.6 million, $1.4iarlland $1.1 million, respectivel



Cost and accumulated depreciation of eqaeigrand software under capital leases were asifsilo

Accumulated

Cost Depreciation Net
December 31, 200 $ 3,590,28 $ 1,399,280 $ 2,191,001
December 31, 20C $ 2,820,67' $ 1,008,90¢ $ 1,811,76!

In January 2002, the Company signed a Bsdgase for a new building in northern San Diggaljfornia. The new facility has
approximately 68,400 square feet of manufactuniegearch laboratory and office space. The Compalhgantinue to hold the leases on its
three existing facilities until they expire. Ther@pany intends to sublease the majority of this sf@ecit becomes available. The new lease
requires the Company to pay taxes, insurance aexhtipg costs. The lease provides for specifie@deled rent increases annually. The
Company has the option to renew this lease foethdglitional five-year periods beyond the expiratend has a one-time purchase option at
110 percent of fair market value which the Compeauy exercise in year nine of the lease. Minimursde@bligations on the new facility are
as follows: $1.0 million in 2002, $2.3 million ir0@3, $2.4 million in 2004, $2.5 million in 2005 agB06, $2.6 million in 2007, and
$29.0 million thereafter until conclusion of thade term in August 2017. Additionally, in Janua®®2, the Company renewed its capital
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equipment credit line and increased it to $4.3iamill This credit line will be used to finance labtmry and scientific equipment, and part of
the equipment needed for the new facility.

Notes Payabli

During 1999, the Company entered into arfing agreement with a bank which provided for imaxn borrowings of $1.0 million for
certain leasehold improvements at the bank's prateeless 0.25 percentage points. Under the teffgsdfinancing agreement, any
outstanding borrowings at June 1, 2000 convertedtésm loan payable over 42 months at the bamiiseprate minus 0.25 percentage points.
As a result, on June 1, 2000, $1.0 million conweftem the financing agreement to a note payakle below. During 2000, the maximum
borrowings on this financing agreement were $1anj the weighted average borrowings were $0.Bioni and the weighted average
interest rate was 8.6%.

During 2000, the Company entered into adlamfinancing agreement as noted above which plex/ifor maximum borrowings of
$1.3 million for certain leasehold improvementshat bank's prime rate. Under the terms of thisnfdieg agreement, any outstanding
borrowings at June 1, 2001 converted to a term @able over 42 months at the bank's prime radeofMdecember 31, 2000, the Company
had used $0.2 million under this financing agreemearing 2001 and 2000, the maximum borrowingghos financing agreement were
$1.3 million and $0.2 million, the weighted averdgerowings were $0.6 million and $0.1 million athé weighted average interest rates
were 8.2% and 9.3%, respectively. On June 1, 2BDB million converted from this financing agreermnna note payable, see below.

Notes payable consist of the following acBmber 31:

2001 2000

Note payable to bank, payable in monthly installtaeri $30,952 through 200

plus interest at the bank's prime rate (4.75% aeber 31, 2001 $ 1,083,33. $ =
Note payable to bank, payable in monthly installteeri $23,810 through 200

plus interest at the bank's prime rate less 0.26%0¢o and 9.25% at December

2001 and 200(respectively’ 547,61¢ 833,33¢
Amounts payable to bank under unsecured finanajngesmen — 192,30(

1,630,95: 1,025,63:
Less current portio (657,14 (317,76
Notes payabli $ 973,80¢ $ 707,86

Annual maturities of debt are as follov

2002 $ 657,14
2003 633,33:
2004 340,47

$ 1,630,95.



Financial covenants under the agreemeniinecamong other things, that the ratio of lial@h to tangible net worth not exceed 0.3 to
1.0, and that the Company maintain liquid asseth sis cash and certificates of deposit, U.S. trgdsilis and other obligations of the federal
government, and readily marketable securities tdagt $20.0 million. The Company was in compliawith these covenants as of
December 31, 2001.
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Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, the gamy is a party to lawsuits involving employee-tethmatters. Management of the Company
does not believe that an unfavorable outcome incditlyese matters would have a material adversetedi the Company's financial
condition or results of operations.

8. Stockholders' Equity
Preferred Stocl

The Company's certificate of incorporatias,amended, authorizes the issuance of up to B@@Bhares of preferred stock. The Board
of Directors is authorized to fix the number of @saof any series of preferred stock and to detegrttie designation of such shares. Howe
the amended certificate of incorporation specifiesinitial series and the rights of that series.sNares of preferred stock were outstanding a
December 31, 2001 or 2000.

Common Stock

The Company's certificate of incorporatias,amended, authorizes the issuance of up to@O@D shares of common stock. On
January 20, 2000, the Company completed a pulfcing of 3,450,000 shares of its common stock@tiee of $36.50 per share. Proceec
the Company, net of underwriting fees and offeempenses, were approximately $117.5 million.

Stock Plan and Directors Option Plan

The Company has a stock incentive planeumdhich 4,200,000 shares of common stock areveddor issuance to employees, non-
employee directors and consultants of the Compaing.plan provides for the grant of incentive andstatutory stock options and the direct
award or sale of shares. The exercise price oksiptions must equal at least the fair market valu¢he date of grant. The maximum tern
options granted under the plan is ten years. EXoetnnual grants to directors which vest at teet mnnual meeting, options generally vest
25 percent on the first anniversary of the datgraht, with the balance vesting quarterly overrdraining three years. The plan has also
limited the number of options that may be grantedrty plan participant in a single calendar ye&@00,000 shares.

The Company also has a directors stocloogilan that provides for the issuance to non-eygadirectors of up to 210,000 shares of
common stock, of which options for 202,500 shawesetbeen granted through December 31, 2001. dtiamticipated that there will be any
future grants under the directors plan.
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The following table summarizes stock optiamsactions for the Company's stock option pfanthe years ended December 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999:

Weighted Average Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price Fair Value of Grants
Outstanding
December 31, 1998 1,815,04' $ 13.3¢
Granted 546,90( $ 17.8¢ $ 13.0¢
Exercised (16,629 $ 10.2:
Forfeited (50,05) $ 15.1¢
Outstanding
December 31, 1999 2,295,26! $ 14.4¢

Granted 783,67F $ 21.1¢ $ 15.62



Exercised (487,21) $ 11.9¢

Forfeited (132,32) $ 20.2¢
Outstanding
December 31, 2000 2,459,40 $ 16.71
Granted 662,80( $ 12.2: % 8.8¢
Exercised (45,100 $ 6.2€
Forfeited (439,03) $ 17.0¢
Outstanding
December 31, 2001 2,638,060 $ 15.7¢

The following table summarizes informatesout stock options outstanding under the Compatgtk option plans at December 31,
2001:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Range of Number Remaining Exercise Number Exercise

Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Life Price Exercisable Price
$ 0.16— $11.7¢ 540,12- 2 3 9.6¢ 241,54¢ $ 8.71
$ 11.85— $14.1¢ 528,73: 75 $ 13.31 260,03¢ $ 13.67
$ 14.19— $16.31 552,96 64 $ 15.47 454,22¢ $ 15.44
$ 16.38— $20.6¢ 634,72t 84 $ 18.2¢ 251,49! $ 18.3(
$ 20.75— $59.0¢ 381,51¢ 81 $ 24.11 232,76: $ 23.4:
$ 0.16— $59.0¢ 2,638,06! 75 $ 15.7¢ 1,440,07. $ 15.7¢
—— —

The number of shares and weighted averdge pf options exercisable at December 31, 200@02nd 1999 were 1,440,071 shares at
$15.79, 1,191,609 shares at $14.01, and 1,219tg88sat $12.65, respectively.

The Company has adopted the disclosureqmalyisions of SFAS No. 123. Accordingly, no comgation cost has been recorded for the
fair value of the stock options issued to employaedirectors under the plans. Had compensationfoothe Company's stock option plans
been
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determined consistent with the provisions of SFAS N3, the Company's net loss and net loss pemmonshare would have increased tc
pro forma amounts indicated below:

2001 2000 1999
Net loss— as reportel $ (9,239,99) $ (8,516,87) $ (6,909,21)
Net loss— pro forma $ (15,446,90) $ (15,277,44) $ (11,591,99)
Net loss per common she— as reportel $ (0.4¢) $ (0.47) $ (0.49)
Net loss per common she— pro forma $ 0.77) $ (0.7¢) $ (0.72)

The fair value of each option grant wainested on the date of grant using the Black-Schofg®n-pricing model with the following
weighted average assumptions used for grantsfraskinterest rates of 4.24% (2001), 5.79% (20809, 5.70% (1999), and expected
volatility of 81% (2001 and 2000) and 71% (1999 éxpected option life of four (2001 and 2000) &wd (1999) years and a dividend rate
of zero are assumed for the years presented.

The Company accounts for stock optionstgiito consultants in accordance with Emergingdssiask Force, EITF, 96-18,
"Accounting for Equity Instruments that are Isste®ther Than Employees for Acquiring or in Conjtioie with Selling Goods or Services."
In September 2001, the Company created a ScieAtifiisory Board composed of n@mployee advisors. These advisors were issued ®
options under the stock incentive plan at an egerprice of $11.63. The options expire on Septerb2011. In accordance with EITF 98;
the estimated fair value of these options is baimgrtized to expense over the four-year vestingpgaf the options. Compensation expense
of $0.2 million is reflected in research and depeb@nt expense in the accompanying statement otipes for the year ended December



2001. The estimated fair value of the options iseasured at each quarter end during the vestingdo@nd compensation expense is
recognized based on the remeasured fair value.

9. Related Parties

Included in other assets at December 301 20id 2000, is the long-term portion of notes iked#e, representing amounts due from
officers and employees of the Company. Imputedéstes applied at the applicable federal rate. [bha agreements allow for the notes t
forgiven under certain circumstances over the ttexe or four years. The long-term portion is $@ition and $0.1 million at December 31
2001 and 2000, respectively. The current portinaluided in receivables and other, is $0.1 millibDacember 31, 2001 and 2000.
Receivables and other also includes $0.4 millioa tuthe Company from a third party for the saléhefhome of an executive officer as part
of his employment agreement.

The Company has employment agreements wvitieh salary continuation payments could be reglirnder certain circumstances for
three current executive officers. Under the terfrthese agreements, if the Company terminatesxbeutive officer's employment without
"cause," or the executive officer resigns for "goedson," as defined in the agreements, the Compaingontinue to pay base compensation,
plus prior year cash bonus in the case of the G&yetween six and twelve months depending oratitreement. These agreements also
specify that any earnings from employment or caivegiduring this period will offset any salary contation payments due from the
Company.

Two of the agreements also provide foraientelocation payments, for temporary living exgemnand housing differentials to be paid for
specified periods of time. In 2001, these paymtitded $0.2 million. Additionally, these agreenseptovide for future loans in an aggregate
amount of $1.0 million for the purchase of residenby the executive officers. Imputed and payatikrést will
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be applied at the applicable federal rate. Theréuliman to the CEO would be secured by a secondl afeteust on the residence. In

December 2001, the Company purchased one exeaftiver's home at a loss of $0.2 million, and madg0.3 million, interest free loan to
this executive officer. This loan is forgivable ofeur years and interest is imputed at the appleéederal rate. In January 2002, the
Company entered into another loan agreement wigtsdime executive officer. The agreement provideghie loan in the amount of

$0.2 million to be repaid after four years and ¢oskecured by a second deed of trust on the resdbmerest, at the applicable federal rate, is
due and payable monthly.

10. Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2001, the Company hagable net operating loss carryforwards of apprately $61.7 million and research and
development credit carryforwards of approximatedy5million to reduce future federal income taxany. These carryforwards expire
through 2020 and are subject to review and posattijlestment by the Internal Revenue Service.

In 1999, one of the Company's product adeteis, Allovectin-7®, was granted orphan drug destign for the treatment of invasive and
metastatic melanoma by the FDA's Office of OrphesdBcts Development. Orphan drug designation pesvizertain tax benefits for
qualifying expenses. In 2000, another of the Comisgoroduct candidates, Leuvectinias granted orphan drug designation for treatmk
renal cell carcinoma.

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 limits a compamgbility to utilize certain net operating lossldax carryforwards in the event of
cumulative change in ownership in excess of 50grar@s defined. The Company has completed numérargings that have resulted in a
change in ownership in excess of 50 percent, aseatbfThe utilization of net operating loss andd¢eedit carryforwards may be limited due
these ownership changes.

The Company has a deferred tax asset gbajppately $36.3 million related primarily to it®hoperating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. A valuation allowance has been ratzggl to offset the entire amount of the defereeddsset as it is more likely than not that
some or all of the deferred tax asset will notdedired.

11. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a net defined contribugerings plan under section 401(k) of the Interraldtiue Code. The plan covers
substantially all employees. The Company matchgsd@rae contributions made to the plan according $pecified formula. The Company's
matching contributions totaled approximately $0ifliom in 2001, 2000 and 1999.
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12. Summary of Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

The following is a summary of the unauditggrterly results of operations for the years dridecember 31, 2001 and 2000. The
summary for the year ended December 31, 2000 teftechange in accounting principle effective Janta 2000, discussed in Note 2 (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2001
Revenue: $ 2,43 % 1,777 $ 2,38 $ 4,771
Research and development cc 5,21t 5,27¢ 5,321 6,26:
Total operating expens 6,97( 7,192 6,90z 7,52¢
Net loss $ (1,979 $ (3,27¢) $ (2,557 $ (1,429
Net loss per common share (basic and dilu $ 0.10) $ (0.1¢) $ 0.1%9) $ (0.07)
Weighted average shares used in per share catou 20,01 20,02: 20,04( 20,05¢
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2000
Revenue: $ 1,181 $ 2,947 $ 161: $ 1,87¢
Research and development cc 4,317 4,71( 4,52¢ 4,96:
Total operating expens 5,64 6,02( 5,787 6,32t
Net loss before cumulative effect of accountingntje (2,729 (63E) (1,687%) (1,957
Effect of accounting chang (1,510 — — —
Net loss $ (4,239 $ (635) $ (1,687 $ (1,957
Net loss per common share (basic and dilut
Loss per share before cumulative effect of accognti
change $ 0.19 $ 0.05 $ (0.0¢) $ (0.10
Effect of accounting chang (0.0¢) — — —
Net loss per common shé $ (0.22) $ (0.09) $ (0.0¢) $ (0.10
Weighted average shares used in per share catgu 19,02: 19,82: 19,89¢ 20,00¢
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE (To the Extémiicated Herein)
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

PART I

PART Il

PART IlI

PART IV

SIGNATURES

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

VICAL INCORPORATED BALANCE SHEETS

VICAL INCORPORATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

VICAL INCORPORATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

VICAL INCORPORATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Deember 31, 2001

EXHIBIT 10.26

CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THISDOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, IS FILED WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO RULE4B-2 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS
AMENDED.

AMENDMENT # 4
TO THE RESEARCH, OPTION AND LICENSE AGREEMENT
DATED DECEMBER 7, 2001

This Amendment, dated this 7th day of December1230by and between (1) VICAL INCORPORATED, a Dre¢aie Corporation
("VICAL"), having a place of business located a¥93 owne Centre Drive, Suite 100, San Diego, Calitp91212, USA,

(2) AVENTIS PASTEUR (formerly PASTEUR MERIEUX Serwnd Vaccins), a French SOCIETE ANONYME ("AVP"), hiag a registere
head office located at 58 avenue Leclerc, 6900hlfoance and (3) AVENTIS PASTEUR LIMITED (formei@Gonnaught Laboratorie



Limited), a company organized and existing underltiws of the Province of Ontario, Canada (AVP-GCa)and having its principal place of
business at Connaught Campus, 1755 Steeles Averst Wronto, Ontario, Canada M2R 3T4.

WHEREAS, VICAL and AvP entered into a Research,i@p& License Agreement (the AGREEMENT) as of Segiter 29, 1994, as
amended by Amendment #1 dated as of Septembe®28, hy Amendment # 2 dated January 26, 1996 amthisndment # 3 dated as of
April 15, 1996 (the AMENDMENT #3 ), under which Au® granted Options with respect to certain Fieldg during applicable Option
Periods to obtain exclusive licenses under ceRaiient Rights and certain associated technologieea by or licensed to VICAL ; and

WHEREAS, AvP desires to modify the Field in whithmay exercize Options, and VICAL is willing to p&it such modifications upon the
terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree to amend theeékgeat as follows

1. The definition of Field as set forth in Sectibb. of the Agreement is hereby amended by deleti@ll microorganisms listed in such
Section 1.5 as amended by Amendment # 3, Sectiandlthe addition of

[***]

2. The definition of Option Period as set fortiSection 1.11. of the Agreement as amended by Ament#h3, Section 2, is hereby replaced
with the following :

1.11. "OPTION PERIOD" SHALL MEAN, WITH RESPECT TG*f] THE PERIOD COMMENCING ON THE DATE HEREOF AND
CONTINUING FOR A[**] PERIOD UNTIL [***] UNLESS TERMINATED EARLIER PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF
ARTICLE 12 BELOW.

[***] Confidential material redacted and separatélgd with the Commissior



3. Section 4.2.1. of the Agreement is hereby regglagith the following :

4.2.1. GRANT OF THE OPTIONS. VICAL HEREBY GRANTS TAVP AN OPTION WITH RESPECT TO [***] DURING THE
APPLICABLE OPTION PERIOD, TO OBTAIN THE EXCLUSIVENVORLDWIDE, ROYALTY-BEARING LICENSE FOR SUCH FIELD
AS SET FORTH IN SECTION 4.3 BELOW. AVP MAY EXERCISEHE OPTION FOR SUCH FIELD AT ANY TIME ON OR BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION OF THE OPTION PERIOD. AS SOON AS PRAICABLE AFTER EXECUTION OF THIS AMENDMENT # 4, AVP
SHALL PAY TO VICAL A NONREFUNDABLE, NONCREDITABLE LUMPSUM PAYMENT OF [***]. SUCH PAYMENT IS IN
CONSIDERATION FOR PAST RESEARCH CONDUCTED BY VICARESULTING IN DIRECT INJECTION TECHNOLOGY OR
CYTOFECTIN TECHNOLOGY AS

IT MAY APPLY TO [**¥].

4. Section 4.2.2 of the Agreement as amended byrdment # 3 is herby deleted in its entirety.
5. Section 4.2.3. of the Agreement is hereby regglagith the following :

4.2.3. EXERCISE OF THE OPTION. AVP MAY EXERCIZE THEPTION WITH RESPECT TO
[***] (a) BY PROVIDING WRITTEN NOTICE OF EXERCISE D VICAL ON OR BEFORE THE EXPIRATION OF THE APPLICAHE
OPTION PERIOD, AND (b) BY PAYING TO VICAL, PRIOR TOHE EXPIRATION OF THE APPLICABLE OPTION PERIOD, NON-
REFUNDABLE, NON-CREDITABLE OPTION EXERCISE FEE INHE

AMOUNT OF [**4].

6. AvP hereby declares that all obligations (in@glgdoayment obligations) relating to [***] underebAgreement shall be assumed by AvP-
Canada, an Affiliate of AvP, and that all righttateng to [***] under the Agreement shall benefit AvP-Canada. AvRzanada hereby appe
as an additional party to the Agreement, a trugy apvhich is delivered to AvP-Canada along withaiginal counterpart of this
Amendment # 4.

7. AvP hereby declares that it abandons, or hecehfirms previous abandonment of, the developmedtc@mmercialization of Products in
the following Fields : HERPES VIRUS VARICELLAE (hees zoster) ; BORRELIA BURGDORFERI (Lyme disease) ;
CYTOMEGALOVIRUS (CMV); HELICOBACTER PYLORI ; PLASM®IUM FALCIPARUM

(Malaria) and Respiratory Syncitial Virus (RSV) aBdction 5.3.1. of the Agreement applies to suamdbnment.

8. AvP hereby declares that its letter to VICALathNovember 6, 2001 is deemed null and void ambdtirther effect.

9. VICAL hereby irrevocably waives any claim agaiasd forever discharges AvP from any alleged bredaontract under the Agreement
in relation to any alleged action or omission, irtthg but not limited to any payment default, whigbuld have occured prior to the date of
this Amendment # 4. In particular, VICAL

[***] Confidential material redacted and separatélgd with the Commissior



hereby withdraws its claim for alleged default ayment by AvP of a milestone payment under Se@&i8r2 of the Agreement as amende:
Amendment # 3 ; VICAL hereby declares that itseleto AvP dated December 15, 2000 is deemed ndlvaid and of no further effect.
VICAL shall promptly issue to AvP a credit note the amount invoiced by VICAL to AvP under invoiSeDEG. PMCO005 dated September

7, 2000.

10.Any provision of the Agreement not modified bjstAmendment shall remain unchanged. Capitalizedd in this Amendment shall have
the meaning set forth in the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hasl Amendment executed by their authorized repreteesaas set forth below.

VICAL INCORPORATED AVENTIS PASTEUR S.A.
By: /s/ VIJAY SAMANT B y: /sl MICHEL GRECO
Vijay Samant Michel Greco
President and C.E.O. President & COO/DIRECTEUR

GENERAL DELEGUE

Date : Da te :
AVENTIS PASTEUR LIMITED

By: /s MARK LIEVONEN

Mark Lievonen
President

By: /s/ PIERRE MEULIEN

Pierre Meulien
Vice-President, R&D

Date :



EXHIBIT 10.27
LEASE
KILROY REALTY
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT
KILROY REALTY, L.P.,
a Delaware limited partnership,
as Landlord,
and

VICAL INCORPORATED,
a Delaware corporation,

as Tenant.
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PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT
LEASE

This Lease (the "LEASE"), dated as of the datdas#t in SECTION 1 of the Summary of Basic Leas®imation (the "SUMMARY"),
below, is made by and between KILROY REALTY, L.& Delaware limited partnership ("LANDLORD"), and®AL INCORPORATED, a
Delaware corporation ("TENANT").

SUMMARY OF BASIC LEASE INFORMATION

TERMS OF LEASE DE SCRIPTION

1. Date: January 30, 2002

2. Premises

2.1 Building: That certai n building located at 10390 Pacific
Center Cour tin the "Project" in Sorrento Mesa,
which Build ing contains 68,400 rentable
square feet of space.

2.2 Premises: All of the Building, as more particularly
identified in EXHIBIT A to this Lease, and 273
parking spa ces as more particularly set forth in
Summary SEC TION 9 below and ARTICLE 28 of
this Lease.

2.3 Project: The Buildin g is part of a single building
project kno wn as the "PACIFIC CORPORATE
CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT", as further set forth
in SECTION 1.1.2 of this Lease, the legal
description of which is set forth in EXHIBIT A-1
to this Lea se; provided, however, such legal
description is subject to adjustment in
conjunction with the anticipated lot-line
adjustment more particularly described in
SECTION 1.1 .2 of this Lease.

3. Lease Term

(ARTICLE 2).

3.1 Length of Term: Fifteen (15 ) years and three (3) months.

3.2 Lease Commencement Date:  June 1, 200 2, subject to extension due to

"Lease Comm encement Date Delays," as that
term is set forth SECTION 5 of the Tenant Work



Letter attached to this Lease as EXHIBIT B.
3.3 Lease Expiration Date: The last day of
(183rd) calendar
Commencement Dat
Date is schedule
to the extent th
June 1, 2002).

the one hundred eighty-third
month after the Lease

e (which Lease Expiration

d to occur on August 31, 2017

e Lease Commencement Date is

3.4 Option Term(s): Three (3)five (5

more particularl

)-year options to renew, as
y set forth in SECTION 2.2 of this

September 2015 to

Lease.
4. Base Rent (ARTICLE 3):
Monthly
Monthly Rental Rat
Period of Annual Installment per Renta
Lease Term Base Rent of Base Rent Square Foo
June 2002 to
August 2002* n/a n/a $0.00
September 2002 to
August 2003 $2,298,240.00 $191,520.00 $2.800
September 2003 to
August 2004** $2,367,192.00 $197,266.00 $2.884
September 2004 to
August 2005 $2,438,208.00 $203,184.00 $2.971
September 2005 to
August 2006 $2,511,348.00 $209,279.00 $3.060
September 2006 to
August 2007 $2,586,684.00 $215,557.00 $3.151
September 2007 to
August 2008 $2,664,288.00 $222,024.00 $3.246
September 2008 to
August 2009 $2,744,220.00 $228,685.00 $3.343
September 2009 to
August 2010 $2,826,540.00 $235,545.00 $3.444
September 2010 to
August 2011 $2,911,344.00 $242,612.00 $3.547
September 2011 to
August 2012 $2,998,680.00 $249,890.00 $3.653
September 2012 to
August 2013** $3,058,656.00 $254,888.00 $3.726
September 2013 to
August 2014 $3,119,832.00 $259,986.00 $3.801
September 2014 to
August 2015 $3,182,220.00 $265,185.00 $3.877



August 2016 $3,245,868.00 $270,489.00 $3.955
September 2016 to
August 2017 $3,310,788.00 $275,899.00 $4.034

To the extent Tenant elects to increase the anafthe Tenant Improvement Allowance pursuant to SEXN 2.2.2 of the Tenant Work
Letter, such "TIA Increase," as that term is dedime SECTION 2.2.2 of the Tenant Work Letter, shlamortized over the then-remaining
initial Lease Term commencing on the date on witiehapplicable portion of the TIA Increase is disga to Tenant by Landlord (excluding
any holdbacks relating to the "Final Retention,thest term is set forth in Section 2.2.3.2 of tlend@nt Work Letter), using an amortization
rate of twelve and one-half percent (12 1/2%) perumn, the monthly payment of which shall be payabke same place and in the same
manner as Base Rent for each month of the inigalse Term occurring after such applicable disbues¢hate as "Additional Rent," as that
term is set forth in SECTION 4.1 of the Lease. Adauagly, by way of example only, for each dollaridf Increase utilized by Tenant prior
to the Rent Commencement Date, each year's BasgpRgable by Tenant, as set forth in SECTION hefSummary, shall be increased by
an amount equal to $0.01233 per rentable squatefdbe Premises per month commencing on the Rentmencement Date. Any such
Additional Rent shall not be subject to increaserduthe Term of the Lease.

* The date upon which Base Rent commences (thet"®emmencement Date") shall be, pursuant to thres@f Section 3.2 of this Lease,
the date occurring three (3) months following tlete Commencement Date (following any adjustmerttset Lease Commencement Dat
the Rent Commencement Date due to any Lease Conement Date Delays, as more particularly set forth i

SECTION 5 of the Tenant Work Letter).

** Annual Base Rent (and Monthly Installment of BaRent/Monthly Rental Rate per Rentable Square) et calculated (i) using three
percent (3.0%) increases for each of Lease Yeaf} and (ii) using two percent (2.0%) increasesfrh of Lease Years 11-15; provided,
however, that in each instance, the resulting Megritistallment of Base Rent was rounded up or dasnapplicable, to the nearest dollar,
and the Annual Base Rent is, therefore, an amayudldo twelve (12) times such rounded Monthly dfistent of Base Rent amount.

5. Intentionally Omitted.

6. Tenant's Share One hundred percent (100%) of the Project,
(ARTICLE 4): subject to the adjustments set forth in
SECTION 4.3 of this Lease.
7. Permitted Use Tenant may only use the Premises for office,
research and development, biotechnology labs,
(ARTICLE 5): drug manufacturing, warehousing, and any

other legally permitted uses pursuant to the
applicable zoning and the Pacific Corporate
Center P.1.D.



8. Security Deposit $191,520.00. In addition to the Security

(ARTICLE 21): Deposit, Tenant shall have additional securit y
obligations, in the form more particularly se t
forth in SECTION 21.2, and subject to reducti ons
pursuant to the TCC's of SECTION 21.2.

9. Parking Spaces Two hundred seventy-three (273) parking

(ARTICLE 28): spaces within the Project in the location(s)
identified on Exhibit J, all of which shall b e
designated as "reserved for Vical", all as mo re

particularly described in ARTICLE 28 of this
Lease. As more particularly set forth in
ARTICLE 28, such parking spaces shall be
provided at no additional charge to Tenant
throughout the initial Lease Term and any
Option Terms.

10. Address of Tenant

(SECTION 29.18): See SECTION 29.18 of the Lease.
11. Address of Landlord

(SECTION 29.18): See SECTION 29.18 of the Lease.
12. Broker(s) CB Richard Ellis

(SECTION 29.24): 4365 Executive Drive, Suite 900

San Diego, California 92121
Attention: Mr.Rick Sparks

CB Richard Ellis

4365 Executive Drive, Suite 900
San Diego, California 92121
Attention: Mr.Rob Merkin

13. Tenant Improvement Allowance $6,840,000.00 (which amount was calculated
(SECTION 2 of EXHIBIT B): based upon $100.00 per Rentable Square Foot
for each of the 68,400 Rentable Square Feet o f

space in the Building).



ARTICLE 1
PREMISES, BUILDING, PROJECT, AND COMMON AREAS
1.1 PREMISES, BUILDING, PROJECT AND COMMON AREAS.

1.1.1 THE PREMISES. Landlord hereby leases to Teaad Tenant hereby leases from Landlord the pesisst forth in SECTION 2.2 of
the Summary (the "PREMISES"). The outline of theldng constituting a portion of the Premises isfeeth in EXHIBIT A attached hereto.
The parties hereto agree that the lease of thei®esris upon and subject to the terms, covenants@mditions (the "TCCs") herein set forth,
and Landlord and Tenant each covenant as a mapariabf the consideration for this Lease to kemgh @erform each and all of such TCCs
it to be kept and performed and that this Leaseade upon the condition of such performance. Tinesehereto hereby acknowledge thai
purpose of EXHIBIT A is to show the approximatedtion of the Building in the "Project," as thatnteis defined in SECTION 1.1.2, below,
only, and such Exhibit is not meant to constituteagreement, representation or warranty as todhstaiction of the Building, the precise
area thereof or the specific location of the "ComnAoeas," as that term is defined in

SECTION 1.1.3, below, or the elements thereof dhefaccessways to the Premises or the "Buildiag that term is defined in SECTION
1.1.2, below. Except as specifically set forthhiis_ease and in the Tenant Work Letter attacheetb@s EXHIBIT B (the "TENANT
WORK LETTER"), Landlord shall not be obligated twpide or pay for any improvement work or servioglated to the improvement of the
Premises. Tenant also acknowledges that neithatlbahnor any agent of Landlord has made any reptasion or warranty regarding the
condition of the Premises, the Building or the Bebjor with respect to the suitability of any oé ttoregoing for the conduct of Tenant's
business, except as specifically set forth in ltleiase and the Tenant Work Letter.

1.1.2 THE BUILDING AND THE PROJECT. The Premisesisists of the entire building set forth in SECTIQN of the Summary (the
"BUILDING"), as well as the parking spaces moretigatarly identified in SECTION 9 of the SummarydARTICLE 28 of this Lease. The
Building is part of a single-building project knows the "Pacific Corporate Center Lot 25/27 Prd|édte term "PROJECT," as used in this
Lease, shall mean (i) the Building and the Prdjaminmon Areas, and (i) the land (which is improwéth landscaping, parking facilities and
other improvements) upon which the Building andRineject Common Areas are located (which land mroonly referred to as Lots 25 and
27). The legal description for such land (as ofdhte of this Lease) is attached as EXHIBIT A-this Lease; provided, however, Landlord
and Tenant hereby acknowledge that such initialldgscription includes, in addition to the landlerlying the Project, the land underlying
the remainder of the "Pacific Corporate Centerthas term is set forth in SECTION 1.1.3, belowgyided further, however, Landlord and
Tenant hereby acknowledge that a lot-line adjustrigeanticipated, which will result in a modificati to such legal description, with the
resulting description materially conforming to epiction of the land identified on EXHIBIT A-2 atthed to this Lease (at which time the
term "Premises" shall be modified so as to refeh#oland constituting the applicable, modifiedgfplot-line adjustment) parcel); provided
further, however, that Tenant agrees (at no additioost or expense to Tenant) to reasonably catpeith Landlord to effectuate such lot-
line adjustment; provided further, however, Landlshall use commercially reasonable efforts tod@¥)clude such lot-line adjustment on or
before December 31, 2002, and (B) in connectiorethigh, cause
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the related cross-easement and access agreeméetsdmpleted and recorded, the form of which dfmBubject to Tenant's reasonable
approval.

1.1.3 COMMON AREAS. Tenant shall have the non-esieie right to use, in common with other tenantthim "Pacific Corporate Center,"
and subject to the rules and regulations refelwed ARTICLE 5 of this Lease, those portions of Breject (the "PROJECT COMMON
AREAS") which are external to the Building and whigre provided, from time to time, for use in conminy Landlord, Tenant and any other
tenants of the property adjacent to the Projectivareas are owned or controlled by Landlord andiwaireas are generally referred to
globally as the "PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER" (sucloject Common Areas, together with such other postiof the Pacific Corporate
Center (the "PCC COMMON AREAS") designated by Land] in its reasonable discretion, including certmieas designated for the
exclusive use of certain such tenants, or to beeshiay Landlord and certain tenants, are collebtixeferred to herein as the "COMMON
AREAS"; provided, however, Landlord and Tenant bgracknowledge that (i) the term "Pacific Corpor@tnter," generally refers to that
certain three-building project containing the Birilgland the "FO Buildings" as that term is settfort SECTION 1.3, below and as identified
on EXHIBIT A attached hereto, and (ii) in no evsehgtll the term "Pacific Corporate Center" relataricarea greater than that for which the
legal description is attached as EXHIBIT A-1). Tdreas designated as Common Areas as of the dtitis diease are more particularly
identified on EXHIBIT A-3 to this Lease. The manmemhich the Common Areas are maintained and apérshall be at the reasonable
discretion of Landlord (provided Tenant's use aupancy of the Premises is not adversely materiapacted thereby) and the use thereof
shall be subject to the "Rules and Regulationstastit on EXHIBIT D, attached hereto, provided thahdlord shall at all times maintain and
operate the Common Areas in a first-class mannasistent with the "Comparable Buildings," as swainmtis defined in SECTION 2.2.2 of
this Lease. Subject to SECTION 1.1.4 below, Lardileserves the right to close temporarily, makerations or additions to, or change the
location of elements of that portion of the Projeoimmon Areas constituting parking areas alloctagte remaining portion of the Pacific
Corporate Center and/or the cross-easement andssaceas; provided, however, that such right sipgly to the remainder of the Project
Common Areas to the extent mandated by applicablergmental entities.

1.1.4 ALTERATIONS AND ADDITIONS. Landlord shall nahange the nature of the Project or the Projeati@on Areas to something
other than a first-class office/lab/manufacturingiding project, establish any rules or regulatiariéch materially or adversely affect
Tenant's use of the Premises, the Project or thie®Common Areas for the Permitted Use, as s#t fo

SECTION 7 of the Summary, or Tenant's ingress tegoess from the Project, Building, the Premisethemparking areas servicing the same;
provided, however, Landlord shall provide Tenarthveidvance written notice of any change to the Rated Regulations. In connection with
the foregoing, Tenant hereby acknowledges that loadds considering and may during the Lease Témrhandlord's sole discretion,
construct other improvements and PCC Common Arétdinithe Pacific Corporate Center. Except whenahdre Tenant's right of acces:
specifically excluded as the result of (i) an eneay, (ii) a requirement by law, or (iii) a specifirovision set forth in this Lease, Tenant <
have the right of ingress and egress to the Prairise Building and the Pacific Corporate Centekipg areas twenty-four (24) hours per
day, seven (7) days per week, commencing on theeugsain
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which this Lease is fully executed and deliveretieen the parties, and continuing until the dai® ltkase terminates.

1.2 STIPULATION OF RENTABLE SQUARE FEET. For purmssof this Lease, Landlord and Tenant hereby stipihat the Building shi
be deemed to contain 68,400 "RENTABLE SQUARE FEEiHich Rentable Square Footage shall not be sutmesty verification or
remeasurement.

1.3 RIGHT OF FIRST OFFER. To the extent that thadlard (or its "Affiliates" which definition of Laalord Affiliates shall be consistent
with the definition of "Affiliates" as it relate® fTenant pursuant to SECTION 14.8 of this Leasa}ioaes to own either of the two adjoining
buildings in the Pacific Corporate Center curreteglysed by Nanogen and CN Biosciences (NanogeBngiosciences, along with their
successors-in-interest, to be referred to hereth@8SUPERIOR RIGHT HOLDERS") and generally rederto within the Pacific Corporate
Center as "10398 Pacific Center Court" and "103&¢iffe Center Court" respectively (the "FO BUILDINEG), Landlord hereby grants to the
Tenant originally named in this Lease (the "ORIGINAENANT"), its Affiliates and any assignee of tiginal Tenant's interest in this
Lease pursuant to the TCCs of Atrticle 14 of thiate=(each, a "PERMITTED ASSIGNEE"), an ongoingtrigffirst offer contained herein
with respect to each of the entire FO Buildinge (tRIRST OFFER SPACE"). Notwithstanding the foregpisuch ongoing first offer right of
Tenant shall be subordinate to all currently-ergstiights which are set forth in leases of spadh thie Superior Right Holders, including any
renewal, extension or expansion rights set fortbuich leases, regardless of whether such renextahston or expansion rights are executed
strictly in accordance with their terms, or purduana lease amendment or a new lease. Such posgeghts of the Superior Right Holders
are set forth in EXHIBIT A-4 attached to this Lea¥enant's right of first offer shall be on the TE&2t forth in this SECTION 1.3. Tenant
hereby acknowledges that the rights containedisn\SECTION 1.3 shall terminate to the extent a sghent norAffiliate owner (specifically
including, but not limited to, a lender who takeenership, whether by foreclosure, a deed-in-liefooéclosure, or otherwise) takes
ownership of the Building or either of the FO Birilgs.

1.3.1 PROCEDURE FOR OFFER. Landlord shall notifndm (the "FIRST OFFER NOTICE") from time to timé&en the First Offer Space
or any portion thereof becomes available for l¢adhird parties, provided that no Superior Riglold€r wishes to lease such space pursuant
to a currently-existing right set forth in EXHIBIA-4. Pursuant to such First Offer Notice, Landlshdll offer to lease to Tenant the then
available First Offer Space. The First Offer Notit®ll describe the space so offered to Tenanshalli set forth the "First Offer Rent," as
that term is defined in SECTION 1.3.3 below, anel tther economic terms upon which Landlord is ngjlto lease such space to Tenant.

1.3.2 PROCEDURE FOR ACCEPTANCE. If Tenant wishesxercise Tenant's right of first offer with resptcall of the space described in
the First Offer Notice, then within twenty (20) dafpllowing Tenant's receipt of such First Offertide, Tenant shall deliver written notice to
Landlord

("TENANT'S ELECTION NOTICE"), pursuant to which Tent shall elect either to (i) lease the entiretkirffer Space at the First Offer R¢
and upon the other TCCs contained in Landlord'st E)ffer Notice, (ii) lease the entire First Offgpace, but specifying that Tenant objects to
Landlord's determination of the First Offer Rentwihich case the First Offer Rent shall be deteeahim accordance with SECTIONS 1.3.3,
2.2.2 AND 2.2.4 of this Lease, or (iii) not



lease such First Offer Space, in which event Landdéball be free to lease the space describeckifritist Offer Notice to anyone to whom
Landlord desires on any terms Landlord desiresndutie six (6) month period following the date @fnidlord's receipt of Tenant's Election
Notice (the "FIRST OFFER WAIVER PERIOD"). If Tenashbes not notify Landlord of its election of anytb& options in clauses (i) or (
hereinabove, Tenant shall be deemed to have eldwtazption in clause (ii). If Landlord does notexnte a lease with a third party for any
portion of the First Offer Space during the Fir§ts®@Waiver Period (or if a third party lease issented by Landlord within such First Offer
Waiver Period, then when, and if, such First O8pace again becomes available for lease followirgekpiration or earlier termination of
such third party lease), Tenant shall again havgha of first offer for such space pursuant to pievisions of this Section 1.3, which
provisions shall again become applicable in theiirety.

1.3.3 FIRST OFFER SPACE RENT. The Rent payable diyaht for the First Offer Space (the "FIRST OFFEENR") shall be equal to the
"Market Rent," as that term is set forth in SECTIQIL.2 of this Lease, for such First Offer Spacanc@irrently with Tenant's delivery of
Tenant's Election Notice exercising such rightist foffer, and pursuant to the terms of

SECTION 1.3.2(Il), Tenant may object in writingltandlord's determination of the Market Rent setifam Landlord's First Offer Notice, in
which case the Market Rent shall be determinedyaumtsto the TCCs of Section 2.2.4.

1.3.4 CONSTRUCTION IN FIRST OFFER SPACE. Tenantlghlie the First Offer Space in its "as is" comit and the construction of
improvements in the First Offer Space shall compith the TCCs of ARTICLE 8 of this Lease; providémwever, if in determining the
Market Rent for such First Offer Space, Tenanntitled to a tenant improvement or comparable adloge for the improvement of the First
Offer Space (a "FO TI ALLOWANCE"), Tenant shall rm entitled to any such FO TI Allowance, but LamdIshall reduce the rental rate
component of the First Offer Rent to be an effextiental rate which takes into consideration tretant will not receive any such FO Tl
Allowance.

1.3.5 AMENDMENT TO LEASE. If Tenant timely exercs@&enant's right to lease the First Offer Spacgeaforth herein, Landlord and
Tenant shall within twenty (20) business days thftee execute an amendment to this Lease, menmniglTenant's lease for the applicable
First Offer Space upon the TCCs as set forth in 88CTION 1.3. Tenant shall commence payment of ®eithe First Offer Space, and the
term of the First Offer Space shall commence uperdate of delivery of the First Offer Space to dmr(the "FIRST OFFER
COMMENCEMENT DATE") and terminate on the date seth in the First Offer Notice. If in determininget Market Rent for such First
Offer Space, Tenant is entitled to rental abaternentessions or build-out periods being grantedritmin connection with Comparable
Deals, while Tenant shall not be entitled to anghsabatement concessions or build-out periodspplicable adjustment shall be made to the
First Offer Rent taking into consideration that @etiwill not receive any such abatement concessiobsiild-out periods.

1.3.6 TERMINATION OF RIGHT OF FIRST OFFER. The riglcontained in this SECTION 1.3 shall be perstm&he Original Tenant, and
may only be exercised by the Original Tenant, itliates and any Permitted Assignee (and not awgioassignee, sublessee or other
transferee of the Original Tenant's interest is ttease). The right of first offer granted herdialsterminate as to particular First Offer Space
upon (i) a subsequent non-Affiliate owner
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(specifically including, but not limited to, a lemdwho takes ownership, whether by foreclosureseiein-lieu of foreclosure, or otherwise)
taking ownership of the Building or either of th® Buildings, or (ii) the failure by Tenant to exise its right of first offer with respect to
such First Offer Space as offered by Landlord. fieshall not have the right to lease First Offea&p as provided in this SECTION 1.3, if,
as of the date of the attempted exercise of amy dafifirst offer by Tenant, or as of the scheduliede of delivery of such First Offer Space to
Tenant, Tenant is in default under this Lease (bdyany applicable notice and cure periods) or Tehas previously been in economic
default under this Lease (beyond any applicableeand cure periods) more than twice during tleipus nine (9) month period.

ARTICLE 2
INITIAL LEASE TERM; OPTION TERM(S)

2.1 INITIAL LEASE TERM. The TCC's of this Lease #Hze effective as of the date of this Lease adaét in SECTION 1 of the Summary
(the "EFFECTIVE DATE"). The term of this Lease (th&ASE TERM") shall be as set forth in

SECTION 3.1 of the Summary, shall commence on tte get forth in SECTION 3.2 of the Summary (thEASE COMMENCEMENT
DATE"), and shall terminate on the date set fontlSECTION 3.3 of the Summary (the "LEASE EXPIRATI@MTE") unless this Lease is
sooner terminated as hereinafter provided. Forgaap of this Lease, the term "LEASE YEAR" shall meach consecutive twelve (12)
month period during the Lease Term; provided, hawvgethat the first Lease Year shall commence orLdase Commencement Date and end
on the last day of the eleventh month thereaftdrtha second and each succeeding Lease Year shathience on the first day of the next
calendar month; and further provided that thellasise Year shall end on the Lease Expiration D¥tany time during the Lease Term,
Landlord may deliver to Tenant a notice in the fasnset forth in EXHIBIT C, attached hereto, asmficmation only of the information set
forth therein, which Tenant shall, if accurate, @xe and return to Landlord within ten (10) dayseafeipt thereof.

2.2 OPTION TERM.

2.2.1 OPTION RIGHT. Landlord hereby grants the &g Tenant, its Affiliates and any Permitted Aseg three (3) options to extend the
Lease Term for the entire initial Premises (andh&extent identified in the "Exercise Notice" gdirety of each of the FO Buildings to the
extent Tenant had previously exercised its rightref offer with respect thereto (the total of udentified space shall be, collectively, the
"OPTION PREMISES"), each by a period of five (5py®(each, an "OPTION TERM"); provided, howeveattto the extent Tenant has, at
the time of exercise of an Option Term, a remairdpgon to elect an additional Option Term theregff enant may elect that the such two
(2) Option Terms (the present and the subsequergxercised at the same time for an effective @pfierm of ten (10) years; provided
further, however, that to the extent Tenant sotgl@cconcurrently exercise two (2) such Optionmigrthen all references in this SECTION
2.2 to five (5) years, shall instead be deemeéfier to ten (10) years. Such option shall be egalde only by Notice delivered by Tenant to
Landlord as provided below, provided that, as efdate of delivery of such Notice, Tenant is ndDefault under this Lease (with all
applicable cure periods having expired). Upon ttoper exercise of such option to extend, and pexvithat, as of the end of the then
applicable Lease Term, Tenant is not in Defaulteuridis Lease (with all applicable cure
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periods having expired), the Lease Term, as itiappb the entire then-existing Option Premiseall &fe extended for a period of five (5)
years. The rights contained in this SECTION 2.4Isirdy be exercised by the Original Tenant, itdildtes and any Permitted Assignee (¢
not any other assignee, sublesee or other traeséétbe Original Tenant's interest in this Lease).

2.2.2 OPTION RENT. The Rent payable by Tenant dutfire Option Term (the "OPTION RENT") shall be edoaninetyfive percent (95%

of the Market Rent as set forth below. For purpaddhis Lease, the term "MARKET RENT" shall meant (including additional rent and
considering any "base year" or "expense stop” epplé thereto), including all escalations, at witiefw tenants (as opposed to renewing
tenants), as of the commencement of the applideie are, pursuant to transactions completed witigreighteen (18) months prior to the
date of the applicable Exercise Notice (or Firsdie©Notice, if applicable), leasing non-subleasm-encumbered, non-synthetic, non-equity,
non-renewal space (unless such space was leasaehptto a definition of "fair market" comparabdettte definition of Market Rent)
comparable in size, location and quality to theniises for a "Comparable Term," as that term isngefiin this SECTION 2.2.2 (the
"COMPARABLE DEALS"), which comparable space is ltarhin the "Comparable Buildings," as that terrdaéfined in this SECTION 2.2.
giving appropriate consideration to the annualakerstes per rentable square foot (adjusting tise bant component of such rate to reflect a
net value after accounting for whether or not tytéixpenses are directly paid by the tenant sudfeaant's direct utility payments provided
for in SECTION 6.1 of this Lease), the standardhefisurement by which the rentable square footageasured, the ratio of rentable square
feet to usable square feet, and taking into conaib® only, and granting only, the following coss®ns (provided that the rent payable in
Comparable Deals in which the terms of such Conipp@iaeals are determined by use of a discountedrfaiket rate formula shall be
equitably increased in order that such Comparakl@will not reflect a discounted rate) (colleetiy the "RENT CONCESSIONS"): (a)
rental abatement concessions or build-out peribdsy, being granted such tenants in connectiagh siich comparable spaces; (b) tenant
improvements or allowances provided or to be preditbr such comparable space, taking into acctentvalue of the existing improvements
in the Option Premises, such value to be based tiygoage, quality and layout of the improvements the extent to which the same could be
utilized by general office users as contrasted with specific Tenant, (c) Proposition 13 protectiand (d) all other monetary concessions, if
any, being granted such tenants in connection suithh comparable space; provided, however, thatitisti@nding anything to the contrary
herein, no consideration shall be given to the tlaat Landlord is or is not required to pay a esthte brokerage commission in connection
with the applicable term or the fact that the Corape Deals do or do not involve the payment of estate brokerage commissions. The
term "COMPARABLE TERM" shall refer to the length thfe lease term, without consideration of optianextend such term, for the spact
guestion. In addition, the determination of the kémRent shall include a determination as to whetred if so to what extent, Tenant must
provide Landlord with financial security, such aeter of credit or guaranty, for Tenant's renligations during any Option Term. Such
determination shall be made by reviewing the exééfinancial security then generally being impoge€omparable Transactions upon
tenants of comparable financial condition and drkiditory to the then existing financial conditiand credit history of Tenant (with
appropriate adjustments to account for differenicdébe then-existing financial condition of Tenamid such other tenants) If in determining
the Market Rent, Tenant is entitled to a tenantrowement or comparable allowance for the improvetméthe
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Option Premises (the "OPTION TERM TI ALLOWANCE")ahdlord may, at Landlord's sole option, elect ang portion of the following:
(A) to grant some or all of the Option Term TI Alflance to Tenant in the form as described above gisean improvement allowance), and/or
(B) to reduce the rental rate component of the MaRent to be an effective rental rate which takssconsideration (including the
application of the appropriate interest rate to smgh unfunded Option Term Tl Allowance) that Tenaifi not receive the total dollar value
of such excess Option Term TI Allowance (in whiase the Option Term Tl Allowance evidenced in tfiective rental rate shall not be
granted to Tenant). The term "COMPARABLE BUILDINGStall mean the Building and other first-classaafiab/manufacturing buildings
which are comparable to the Building in terms of #igased upon the date of completion of constrnaianajor renovation as to the building
containing the portion of the Premises in questiqoglity of construction, level of services andeauities, size and appearance, and are
located in the Sorrento Mesa and University Townt€eareas (the ("COMPARABLE AREA"); provided, howee, that to the extent the
Option Premises includes either or both of the Rdihgs, the Comparable Building shall also inauwlich FO Buildings and buildings
comparable thereto.

2.2.3 EXERCISE OF OPTION. The option containechis SECTION 2.2 shall be exercised by Tenant, #latonly in the manner set forth
in this

SECTION 2.2.3. Tenant shall deliver notice (the ERCISE NOTICE") to Landlord not more than fifteerb] months nor less than nine (9)
months prior to the expiration of the then Lease estating that Tenant is exercising its optiomigh notice shall include, if available and if
elected, Tenant's election to concurrently exerwigeOption Terms for a combined Option Term of (@) years). Concurrently with such
Exercise Notice, Tenant shall deliver to Landloeh@nt's calculation of the Market Rent (the "TENASIOPTION RENT
CALCULATION"). Landlord shall deliver notice (the ANDLORD RESPONSE NOTICE") to Tenant on or befdne tlate which is thirty
(30) days after Landlord's receipt of the Exertis¢ice and Tenant's Option Rent Calculation (thaANIDLORD RESPONSE DATE"),
stating that (A) Landlord is accepting Tenant'si@pRent Calculation as the Market Rent, or (Bgctjpg Tenant's Option Rent Calculation
and setting forth Landlord's calculation of the kigrRent (the "LANDLORD'S OPTION RENT CALCULATION!"Within fifteen (15)
business days of its receipt of the Landlord Respdotice, Tenant may, at its option, accept thekbtaRent contained in the Landlord's
Option Rent Calculation. If Tenant does not affitively accept or Tenant rejects the Market Rent#ieel in the Landlord's Option Rent
Calculation, the parties shall follow the proceduaned the Market Rent shall be determined as st fio SECTION 2.2.4.

2.2.4 DETERMINATION OF MARKET RENT. In the event fiant objects or is deemed to have objected to thkdd Rent, Landlord and
Tenant shall attempt to agree upon the Market Bging reasonable good-faith efforts. If Landlordl &®nant fail to reach agreement within
sixty (60) days following Tenant's objection or el objection to the Landlord's Option Rent Calgota(the "OUTSIDE AGREEMENT
DATE"), then the issue of Option Rent shall be siitad to arbitration pursuant to the TCCs of thiSCIION 2.2.4, but subject to the
conditions, when appropriate, of SECTIONS 2.2.2 ARIDR.3; provided, however, Landlord and Tenant e&gh amend, respectively,
Landlord's Option Rent Calculation and Tenant's@pRent Calculation, prior to such submittal tbitration; provided further, however, tl
with regard to the determination of Option Rentyof@as opposed to First Offer Rent), Tenant maytetecescind its Exercise Notice by
delivery written notice thereof to Landlord on @ftrre the later to occur of (i) the Outside Agreatigate, or (ii) the date which is two (2)
business
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days following Landlord's submittal to Tenant affinal (post-amended, if applicable) Landlord'¢i@pRent Calculation.

2.2.4.1 Landlord and Tenant shall each appointashigrator who shall by profession be a real edtad&er who shall have been active over
the five (5) year period ending on the date of sajghointment in the leasing of first-class offiab/manufacturing properties in the
Comparable Area. The determination of the arbitsashall be limited solely to the issue of whethandlord's Option Rent Calculation or
Tenant's Option Rent Calculation, is the closesthéoactual Market Rent as determined by the atoits, taking into account the requireme
of SECTION 2.2.2 of this Lease. Each such arbitraball be appointed within fifteen (15) days aftex applicable Outside Agreement Date.
Landlord and Tenant may consult with their seleetdadtrators prior to appointment and may selecamnitrator who is favorable to their
respective positions. The arbitrators so selecyelddndlord and Tenant shall be deemed ("ADVOCATEBARRATORS").

2.2.4.2 The two Advocate Arbitrators so appointeallde specifically required pursuant to an engag@ letter within ten (10) days of the
date of the appointment of the last appointed Adi®@\rbitrator to agree upon and appoint a thilteator ("NEUTRAL ARBITRATOR")

who shall be qualified under the same criteridaeh hereinabove for qualification of the two Adate Arbitrators except that neither the
Landlord or Tenant or either party's Advocate Awdiidr may, directly or indirectly, consult with tiNeutral Arbitrator prior to, or subsequent
to, his or her appearance. The Neutral Arbitratadise retained via an engagement letter jointgppred by Landlord's counsel and Tenant's
counsel.

2.2.4.3 The three arbitrators shall within thirB@) days of the appointment of the Neutral Arbaraeach a decision as to Market Rent and
determine whether the Landlord's Option Rent Catouh or Tenant's Option Rent Calculation as sufeahipursuant to SECTION 2.2.4 of
this Lease is closest to Market Rent as determiyetie arbitrators and simultaneously publish amgu("AWARD") indicating whether
Landlord's Option Rent Calculation or Tenant's @pfRent Calculation is closest to the Market Rendetermined by the arbitrators.
Following notification of the Award, the Landlorddption Rent Calculation or Tenant's Option Rerlt@ation, whichever is selected by the
arbitrators as being closest to Market Rent sheadbime the then applicable Market Rent.

2.2.4.4 The Award issued by the majority of theéharbitrators shall be binding upon Landlord aadant.

2.2.4.5 If either Landlord or Tenant fail to appcam Advocate Arbitrator within fifteen (15) dayiea the applicable Outside Agreement
Date, either party may petition the presiding jud§éhe Superior Court of San Diego County to appsuch Advocate Arbitrator subject to
the criteria in SECTION 2.2.4.1 of this Lease,fdré or she refuses to act, either party may petiiny judge having jurisdiction over the
parties to appoint such Advocate Arbitrator.

2.2.4.6 If the two Advocate Arbitrators fail to agrupon and appoint the Neutral Arbitrator, thélnegiparty may petition the presiding judge
of the Superior Court of San Diego County to apptiia Neutral Arbitrator, subject to criteria in GHON 2.2.4.1 of this
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Lease, or if he or she refuses to act, either pagy petition any judge having jurisdiction ovee {barties to appoint such arbitrator.
2.2.4.7 The cost of arbitration shall be paid bydlard and Tenant equally.
ARTICLE 3
BASE RENT; ABATED BASE RENT

3.1 BASE RENT. Tenant shall pay, without prior getor demand, to Landlord or Landlord's agentantianagement office of the Project,
or, at Landlord's option, at such other place asdlard may from time to time designate in writity, a check for currency which, at the time
of payment, is legal tender for private or publabts in the United States of America, base renA8B RENT") as set forth in SECTION 4
the Summary, payable in equal monthly installmestset forth in SECTION 4 of the Summary in advamter before the first day of each
and every calendar month during the Lease Ternmowttany setoff or deduction whatsoever. The Basd Br the first full month of the
Lease Term which occurs after the expiration of faeg rent period shall be paid at the time of Te'saexecution of this Lease. If any Rent
payment date (including the Lease Commencemen) Bxdle on a day of the month other than the fifgy of such month or if any payment
of Rent is for a period which is shorter than oranth, the Rent for any fractional month shall aeoon a daily basis for the period from the
date such payment is due to the end of such calemadath or to the end of the Lease Term at a ratelpy which is equal to 1/365 of the
applicable annual Rent. All other payments or adjests required to be made under the TCCs of thésé that require proration on a time
basis shall be prorated on the same basis.

3.2 ABATED BASE RENT. Provided that the Originalrigat is not then in Default (after expiration ofyapplicable notice and cure
periods), then for the first three (3) months, eabjo extension due to any Lease Commencement¥ddy's, immediately following the
Lease Commencement Date (the "INITIAL ABATEMENT PEE®"), Tenant shall have no obligation to pay aras8 Rent (or "Additional
Rent," as that term is set forth in SECTION 4.1hi§ Lease) otherwise attributable to such Inkibatement Period. Such Initial Abatement
Period has been factored into the schedule of Bas¢ set forth in SECTION 4 of the Summary.

3.3 ABATEMENT OF RENT. In the event that Tenanpievented from using, and does not use, the Prsrisany portion thereof, as a
result of (i) any repair, maintenance or alterapenformed by Landlord, or which Landlord failedpgerform, after the Lease Commencement
Date and required by this Lease, which substaptiaierferes with Tenant's use of or ingress tegress from the Building, Project (includi
the Project Common Areas), or Premises (includiregRroject parking areas to the extent reasonaplagement spaces are not provided); or
(i) any failure by Landlord to provide servicetilities or ingress to and egress from the BuildiRgoject (including the Project Common
Areas), or Premises as required pursuant to thesTa€this Lease; or (iii) the presence of Hazarddaserials not brought on the Premises by
"Tenant Parties," as that term is set forth in SEIN 29.35 of this Lease to the extent such pressnbstantially interferes with Tenant's use
of or ingress to or egress from the Building, Pebjencluding the Project Common Areas), or Premigecluding the Project
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parking areas to the extent reasonable replacespects are not provided) (any such set of circurostaas set forth in items (i) through (iii),
above, to be known as an "ABATEMENT EVENT"), theanint shall give Landlord Notice of such Abatentevent, and if such Abatement
Event continues for five (5) consecutive businesgsdafter Landlord's receipt of any such Notice (f8LIGIBILITY PERIOD"), then, as
Tenant's sole remedy vis-a-vis such Abatement EteatBase Rent and Tenant's Share of Direct Exgsestsall be abated or reduced, as the
case may be, after expiration of the Eligibilityried for such time that Tenant continues to berswgnted from using, and does not use, the
Premises, or a portion thereof, in the proporttmat the rentable area of the portion of the Presrtisat Tenant is prevented from using, and
does not use ("UNUSABLE AREA"), bears to the totaitable area of the Premises. Notwithstandinddregoing, in the event that Tenar
prevented (from an objective, general pharmacdugcant perspective) from conducting, and doesontluct, its business in more than f
percent (50%) of the lab/manufacturing portiongpposed to office/warehouse portions) of the Presiier a period of time in excess of the
Eligibility Period, and the remaining lab/manufa@tg portion of the Premises is not sufficient low Tenant to effectively conduct its
business therein, and if Tenant does not condsibiisiness from such remaining portion, then fehdime after expiration of the Eligibility
Period during which Tenant is so prevented (adaim an objective, general pharmaceutical tenargpgeetive) from effectively conducting
its business therein, the Base Rent and Tenardi® $ifi Direct Expenses for the entire lab/manufaeguportion of the Premises shall be
abated. Landlord and Tenant hereby acknowledgeithatldition to the abatement rights set fortkhis

SECTION 3.3, Tenant's abatement rights followingeaent of damage and destruction or condemnatiproisded pursuant to the TCCs of
ARTICLES 11 AND 13 of this Lease.

ARTICLE 4
ADDITIONAL RENT

4.1 GENERAL TERMS. In addition to paying the BasenRspecified in ARTICLE 3 of this Lease, Tenardlspay "Tenant's Share" of the
annual "Direct Expenses," as those terms are defm8ECTIONS 4.2.6 AND 4.2.2 of this Lease, resipety. Such payments by Tenant,
together with any and all other amounts payabl&dayant to Landlord pursuant to the TCCs of thisskeare hereinafter collectively referred
to as the "ADDITIONAL RENT", and the Base Rent ahd Additional Rent are herein collectively referte as "RENT." All amounts due
under this ARTICLE 4 as Additional Rent shall bggiale for the same periods and in the same masrtheaBase Rent. Without limitation
on other obligations of Tenant which survive thpieation of the Lease Term, the obligations of Trérna pay the Additional Rent provided
for in this ARTICLE 4 shall survive the expiratiof the Lease Term.

4.2 DEFINITIONS OF KEY TERMS RELATING TO ADDITIONALRENT. As used in this ARTICLE 4, the following tes shall have the
meanings hereinafter set forth:
4.2.1 Intentionally Omitted.

4.2.2 "DIRECT EXPENSES" shall mean "O perating Expenses" and "Tax
Expenses";
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4.2.3 "EXPENSE YEAR" shall mean each calendar year in which any

portion of the Lease Term falls, through and inolgdhe calendar year in which the Lease Term egpiprovided that Landlord, upon notice
to Tenant, may change the Expense Year from tintie® to any other twelve (12) consecutive monthiqok and, in the event of any such
change, Tenant's Share of Direct Expenses shaljbigably adjusted for any Expense Year involvedrig such change.

4.2.4 "OPERATING EXPENSES" shall mean, except asmwtise provided in this SECTION 4.2.4 or otherwist¢his Lease, all expenses,
costs and amounts of every kind and nature whictulord pays or accrues during any Expense Yearusecaf or in connection with the
ownership, management, maintenance, security,rgpplacement, restoration or operation of thgdetpor any portion thereof, subject to
the adjustments set forth in

SECTION 4.3, below. Without limiting the generaldfthe foregoing, Operating Expenses shall speadlfi include any and all of the
following: (i) the cost of supplying all utilitieshe cost of operating, repairing, maintaining, agrbvating the utility, telephone, mechanical,
sanitary, storm drainage, and elevator systemstrendost of maintenance and service contractennection therewith; (ii) the cost of
licenses, certificates, permits and inspectionsthadost of contesting any governmental enactmehish may affect Operating Expenses,
and the costs incurred in connection with a govermiadly mandated transportation system managemmegtgm or similar program; (iii) the
cost of all insurance carried by Landlord in conizecwith the Project (subject to Tenant's reas@approval of any earthquake insurance
carried by Landlord with respect to the Buildingpyided, however, it shall be deemed unreasonabl&énant to withhold such consent to
the extent (A) such earthquake insurance is maddatapplicable governmental entities, or (B) lamds of Comparable Buildings are
requiring such earthquake insurance policies bataiaied and Landlord's earthquake insurance p@icgmmercially reasonably vis-a-vis
such third party policies); (iv) the cost of landping, relamping, and all supplies, tools, equipnag materials used in the operation, repair
and maintenance of the Project, or any portionetbier

(v) costs incurred in connection with the parkimgas servicing the Project;

(vi) fees and other costs, including managemers feet to exceed two percent (2.0%) of Base Rentjsulting fees, legal fees and
accounting fees, of all contractors and consultamt®nnection with the management, operation, teaamce and repair of the Project; (vii)
payments under any equipment rental agreemenii$;waiges, salaries and other compensation andfitgrniacluding taxes levied thereon,
all persons (other than persons generally congiderbe higher in rank than the position of Projeaeihager) engaged in the operation,
maintenance and security of the Project; (ix) castser any instrument pertaining to the sharingosts by the Project; (x) operation, repair,
maintenance and replacement of all systems angeguit and components thereof of the Building; {tx@ cost of janitorial, alarm, security
and other services, replacement of wall and flawecings, ceiling tiles and fixtures in common &gaaintenance and replacement of curbs
and walkways, repair to roofs and re-roofing; (&iortization (including interest on the unamodizest) of the cost of acquiring or the
rental expense of personal property used in thater@nce, operation and repair of the Projectngmpartion thereof, to the extent of cost
savings reasonably anticipated by Landlord atithe bf such expenditure to be incurred in connectieerewith; (xiii) the cost of capital
repairs, replacements or other improvements indurreonnection with the Project to the extentshme (A) are intended to effect econor
in the operation or maintenance of the Projecgryr portion thereof, to the extent of cost savirggsonably anticipated by Landlord at the
time of such expenditure to be incurred in conmectherewith, or (B) that are required under any
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governmental law or regulation enacted after theseeCommencement Date; provided, however, thatapiyal expenditure shall be
amortized with interest over its useful life as dlmd shall reasonably determine pursuant to seeabestate management and accounting
principles; (xiv) costs, fees, charges or assestnieposed by, or resulting from any mandate imgaseLandlord by, any federal, state or
local government for fire and police protectiomstn removal, community services, or other servidgsh do not constitute "Tax Expenses"
as that term is defined in SECTION 4.2.5, belowd an

(xv) payments under any easement, license, opgratireement, declaration, restrictive covenanfisirument pertaining to the sharing of
costs by the Building.

Notwithstanding anything in this SECTION 4.2.4 e tcontrary, for purposes of this Lease, Operdiixgenses shall not, however, inclt
the following:

(A) marketing costs, costs of leasing commissiatterneys' fees and other costs and expensesaéaciarconnection with negotiations or
disputes with present or prospective tenants arathcupants of the Project;

(B) costs incurred by Landlord in the repairs, ta@dditions, alterations or replacements madaaunrred to rectify or correct defects in
design, materials or workmanship in connection whth "Base and Shell" (as that term is set fortth@éxTenant Work Letter) portions of the
Project;

(C) costs (including permit, license and inspectiosts) incurred in renovating or otherwise impngyidecorating or redecorating rentable
space for other tenants or vacant rentable space;

(D) cost of utilities or services sold to Tenanbtiners for which Landlord is entitled to and adijueeceives reimbursement (other than
through any operating cost reimbursement proviglentical or substantially similar to the provissoset forth in this Lease;

(E) except as otherwise specifically provided iis BECTION 4.2.4(XIIl), costs incurred by landldat capital repairs, improvements,
equipment and alterations to the Project whichcaresidered capital improvements and replacememtsrugenerally accepted accounting
principles, consistently applied,;

(F) costs of services or other benefits which #teeenot offered to Tenant or for which Tenanth&rged directly, but which are provided to
other tenants of the Project without a separategeha

(G) costs incurred due to the violation by Landlordany other tenant of the TCCs of any lease a€spn the Pacific Corporate Center;

(H) costs of general overhead and general admatiistr expenses, not including management fees aifitiiy office expenses which are
included in operating expenses by landlords of Canaiple Buildings;
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() costs of any compensation and employee bengdits$ to clerks, attendants or other persons ionangercial concession operated by
Landlord, including the Pacific Corporate Centpasking areas.

(J) marketing costs, legal fees, space plannars tnd advertising and promotional expenses aatage fees incurred in connection with
the original development, subsequent improvemerdriginal or future leasing of the Project;

(K) costs of electrical power for which Tenant ditg contracts with and pays a local public sengoepany;
(L) any bad debt loss, rent loss, or reserves &drdebts or rent loss;

(M) costs associated with the operation of theress of the partnership or entity which constittitesLandlord, as the same are distingui:
from the costs of operation of the Project (whibhlkspecifically include, but not be limited taaunting costs associated with the operation
of the Project, costs of partnership accountinglagdl matters, costs of defending any lawsuit aity mortgagee (except as the actions of
the Tenant may be in issue), costs of selling, atithg, financing, mortgaging or hypothecating afiyhe Landlord's interest in the Project,
and costs incurred in connection with any dispbegsveen Landlord and its employees, between Laddind Project management, or
between Landlord and other tenants or occupantisl.andlord's general corporate overhead and gearthddministrative expenses);

(N) the wages and benefits of any employee who doedevote substantially all of his or her emphbyiene to the Project unless such wages
and benefits are prorated to reflect time spergmerating and managing the Project vis-a-vis tipenson matters unrelated to operating and
managing the Project; provided, that in no eveatl$Dperating Expenses for purposes of this Leaslede wages and/or benefits attributable
to personnel above the level of Project managé@roject engineer;

(O) amounts paid as ground rental for the real @rtypunderlying the Project by the Landlord;

(P) costs for sculpture, paintings, fountains treotobjects of art, other than those incurred @irary maintenance and repair;
(Q) any costs expressly excluded from OperatingeBgps elsewhere in this Lease;

(R) costs arising from Landlord's charitable oritedl contributions;

(S) any gifts provided to any entity whatsoevecjuding, but not limited to, Tenant, other tenaetsployees, vendors, contractors,
prospective tenants and agents;

(T) any costs covered by any warranty, rebate,antae or service contract which are actually ctdlédy Landlord (which shall not prohibit
Landlord from passing
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through the costs of any such service contraghiémvise includable in Operating Expenses);

(V) interest, late charges and tax penalties irclias a result of Landlord's gross negligencejlibabr unwillingness to make payments or
file returns when due;

(V) all items and services for which Tenant or aflyer tenant in the Pacific Corporate Center reirsési Landlord or which Landlord
provides selectively to one or more tenants (oth&n Tenant) without reimbursement;

(W) any costs included as a Tax Expense pursué®E@TION 4.2.5 below;

(X) any expense resulting from the gross negligaideandlord, its agents, contractors or employeesto the extent landlord is entitled to
reimbursement for such costs, to remedy damagedasor resulting from the gross negligence of aiimer tenant(s) in the Center,
including their agents, contractors and employees;

(Y) reserves for anticipated future expenses;

(2) costs or repairs or other work occasioned k&, iasualty or other risk covered by insurancentaaied (or obligated to be maintained
pursuant to ARTICLE 10 of this Lease) by Landlord;

(AA) costs, fines, or fees incurred by Landlord do¢andlord's violations of any federal, statdamal law, statute or ordinance, or any rule,
regulation, judgment or decree of any governmemtal or authority;

(BB) any costs representing an amount paid to sopeifirm, corporation or other entity related @ndlord which is in excess of the amount
which would have been paid in the absence of selelionship;

(CC) rentals for items (except when needed in cotime with normal repairs and maintenance of pemnasystems) which if purchased,
rather than rented, would constitute a capital iwemch is specifically excluded in this Lease (extihg, however, equipment not affixed to
the Building which is used in providing janitorial similar services);

(DD) costs incurred by Landlord for the repair ahtage to the Building, to the extent that Landisnceimbursed by insurance proceeds, and
costs of all capital repairs (except to the exsdiowed pursuant to
SECTION 4.2.4(XIIl) above), regardless of whethaclsrepairs are covered by insurance;

(EE) depreciation, amortization and interest paysieaxcept as provided herein and except on migetimls, supplies and vendor-type
equipment purchased by Landlord to enable Landsiipply services Landlord might otherwise cortfacwith a third party where such
depreciation, amortization and interest paymentsldvotherwise have been included in the chargstch third party's services, all as
determined in accordance with generally acceptedwating principles, consistently
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applied, and when depreciation or amortizatioreisrptted or required, the item shall be amortizedrats reasonably anticipated useful life;

(FF) overhead and profit increment paid to Landlordo subsidiaries or affiliates of Landlord faragls and/or services in or to the Building
to the extent the same exceeds the costs of suats@md/or services rendered by unaffiliated thadies on a competitive basis;

(GG) interest, principal, points and fees on debtamortization on any mortgage or mortgages orathgr debt instrument encumbering the
Building or the Project (except as permitted in SEQN 4.2.4(ii) above);

(HH) rentals and other related expenses incurréebising HVAC systems, elevators or other equiproedinarily considered to be capital
items, except for (1) expenses in connection widkimg minor repairs on or keeping Building Systémeperation while minor repairs are
being made, and (2) costs of equipment not affteetie Building which is used in provided janitdra similar services;

(I) advertising and promotional expenditures, andts of signs in or on the Building identifyingetbwner of the Building or other tenants'
signs;

(JJ) electric power costs for which Tenant directiptracts with the local public service compangfowhich Tenant is separately metered or
submetered and pays Landlord directly;

(KK) services and utilities provided, taxes atttddele to, and costs incurred in connection withdperation of the retail and restaurant
operations in the Building, if any, except to thxéeat the square footage of such operations atedad in the rentable square feet of the
Building and do not exceed the services, utilitd ax costs which would have been incurred hadetadl and/or restaurant space been used
for general office purposes;

(LL) costs incurred in connection with upgrading Building to comply with disability, life, fire @hsafety codes, ordinances, statutes, or
other laws in effect prior to the Lease Commencearbate, including, without limitation, the ADA, ihading penalties or damages incurred
due to such non-compliance;

(MM) costs incurred to comply with applicable lawgh respect to "Hazardous Material," as that tesmefined in SECTION 29.33 of this
Lease, which was in existence in the Building ottmnProject prior to the Lease Commencement Ratkwas of such a nature that a fed
state or municipal governmental or quasi-governadeaithority, if it had then had knowledge of thegence of such Hazardous Material, in
the state, and under the conditions that it thestedk in the Building or on the Project, would halven required the removal, remediation or
other action with respect to such Hazardous Mdtexral the costs incurred with respect to Hazardédaterial, which Hazardous Material is
brought into the Building or onto the Project aftee date hereof by Landlord or any other tenahefProject or by anyone other than Tel
or Tenant Parties and is of such a nature, atithat that a federal, state or municipal
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governmental or quagjevernmental authority, if it had then had knowlkedd the presence of such Hazardous Material d@rsthte, and und
the conditions that it then existed in the Buildorgon the Project, would have then required tineoreal, remediation or other action with
respect to such Hazardous Material;

(NN) costs arising from latent defects in the baise shell of the Building or improvements instalbgdLandlord;

(OO0) costs (including in connection therewith @tbeneys' fees and costs of settlement judgmerigpagments in lieu thereof) arising from
claims, disputes or potential disputes in connectitth potential or actual claims litigation or @rhtions pertaining to Landlord and/or the
Building and/or the Project;

(PP) intentionally omitted,;

(QQ) any expenses incurred by Landlord for usengf@ortions of the Building to accommodate eventsduding, but not limited to shows,
promotions, kiosks, displays, filming, photographsivate events or parties, ceremonies, and aduagtbeyond the normal expenses
otherwise attributable to providing Building sems; such as lighting and HVAC to such public peiof the Building in normal Building
operations during standard Building hours of openat

(RR) any entertainment, dining or travel expensesfy purpose;

(SS) any flowers, qifts, balloons, etc., providedhy entity whatsoever, to include, but not lidite, Tenant, other tenants, employees,
vendors, contractors, prospective tenants and sigent

(TT) any "validated" parking for any entity;

(UU) any "finders fees," brokerage commissions,gtacement costs or job advertising cost, othen thith respect to a receptionist or
secretary in the Building office, once per year;

(VV) the cost of any janitorial services provideg ltandlord,;

(WW) the cost of any "tenant relations" partiesmé or promotions not consented to by Tenant'sfGimancial Officer; and
(XX) "in-house" legal and/or accounting fees.

4.2.5 TAXES.

4.2.5.1 "TAX EXPENSES" shall mean all federal, statunty, or local governmental or municipal taXess, charges or other imposition:
every kind and nature, whether general, specidinary or extraordinary, (including, without limitan, real estate taxes, general and special
assessments, transit taxes, leasehold taxes aritased upon the receipt of rent, including gressipts or sales taxes applicable to the
receipt of rent, unless
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required to be paid by Tenant, personal propertgsamposed upon the fixtures, machinery, equipnaggaratus, systems and equipment,
appurtenances, furniture and other personal prppeed in connection with the Project, or any paorthereof), which shall be paid or accr
during any Expense Year (without regard to anyedifht fiscal year used by such governmental or apeli authority) because of or in
connection with the ownership, leasing and openaticthe Project, or any portion thereof.

4.2.5.2 Tax Expenses shall include, without linidtat

(i) any tax on the rent, right to rent or otherdme from the Project, or any portion thereof, oagainst the business of leasing the Project, or
any portion thereof; (ii) subject to SECTION 4.6tbis Lease, and any assessment, tax, fee, leolyazge in addition to, or in substitution,
partially or totally, of any assessment, tax, feey or charge previously included within the défon of real property tax, it being
acknowledged by Tenant and Landlord that Propasit®d was adopted by the voters of the State of&ala in the June 1978 election
("PROPOSITION 13") and that assessments, taxes, li@des and charges may be imposed by governivageacies for such services as
protection, street, sidewalk and road maintenamdase removal and for other governmental serviseserly provided without charge to
property owners or occupants, and, in further rattam of the decrease in the level and qualitgafernmental services and amenities as a
result of Proposition 13, Tax Expenses shall atstude any governmental or private assessmented?ioject's contribution towards a
governmental or private cost-sharing agreemernth@®ipurpose of augmenting or improving the qualftgervices and amenities normally
provided by governmental agencies; (iii) Any assess, tax, fee, levy, or charge allocable to or sneed by the area of the Premises or the
Rent payable hereunder, including, without limdatiany business or gross income tax or exciswiixrespect to the receipt of such rent, or
upon or with respect to the possession, leasingradipg, management, maintenance, alteration, mas® or occupancy by Tenant of the
Premises, or any portion thereof; and (iv) Any asseent, tax, fee, levy or charge, upon this traimaor any document to which Tenant is a
party, creating or transferring an interest or state in the Premises.

4.2.5.3 Any costs and expenses (including, wittioutation, reasonable attorneys' fees) incurredttempting to protest, reduce or minimize
Tax Expenses shall be included in Tax Expensdseafictkpense Year such expenses are paid. Excegt fasth in SECTION 4.2.5.4, below,
refunds of Tax Expenses shall be credited agaimstEikpenses and refunded to Tenant regardlessef vdteived, based on the Expense
Year to which the refund is applicable, providedttim no event shall the amount to be refundedeteaht for any such Expense Year exceed
the total amount paid by Tenant as Additional Remder this ARTICLE 4 for such Expense Year. If Epenses for any period during the
Lease Term or any extension thereof are increasedpmyment thereof for any reason, including hwitt limitation, error or reassessment by
applicable governmental or municipal authoritiesnant shall pay Landlord upon demand Tenant's SHamey such increased Tax Expenses
included by Landlord as Building Tax Expenses pansto the TCCs of this Lease. Notwithstanding limgf to the contrary contained in this
SECTION 4.2.8 (except as set forth in SECTION 42.8bove), there shall be excluded from Tax Expel8 all excess profits taxes,
franchise taxes, gift taxes, capital stock taxaseiitance and succession taxes, estate taxesafete state income taxes, and other taxes to
the extent applicable to Landlord's general orimedme (as opposed to rents, receipts or incomiéuattible to operations at the Project), (ii)
any items included as Operating Expenses, (iii)isemys paid by Tenant under SECTION 4.5 of thisdegand (iv) costs arising
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from any voluntary special assessment on the Bigldr the Site by any transit district authorityamy other governmental entity having the
authority to impose such assessment.

4.2.5.4 Tenant may, at its sole cost and expend&@on prior written notice to Landlord, contest #timount or validity of any of the Tax
Expenses with respect to the Building and the Rtdjg appropriate proceedings; provided, howeVet Tenant shall promptly pay such Tax
Expenses unless such proceeding shall operatevemtror stay the collection of the Tax Expensesostested. Landlord shall join in any
such proceedings to the extent required by appédalw; provided, however, that Tenant shall indéynbandlord against any liability, cost
or expense in connection therewith (including, withlimitation, actual attorneys' fees and costs).

4.2.6 "TENANT'S SHARE" shall mean the percentagdah in SECTION 6 of the Summary.

4.3 ALLOCATION OF CERTAIN PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTEROSTS. The parties acknowledge that the BuildirgjRiroject is a pa
of the Pacific Corporate Center, a multi-buildingjpct, and that those certain costs and expensased in connection with the Pacific
Corporate Center more particularly identified onHERIT K attached to this Lease (collectively, tHeACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER
COMMON AREA COSTS") shall be equitably allocatedvbeen Tenant as the sole tenant of the BuildingRuaject and the tenants of the
other buildings in the Pacific Corporate Centemase particularly set forth in this

SECTION 4.3. Accordingly, as set forth in SECTIOR 4bove, (i) to the extent the Pacific Corporagat€r Common Area Costs (and the
Operating Expenses relating thereto) are determanedally for the entire Pacific Corporate Centenavhole, the pro-rata split between the
Project and the remaining portions of the Pacificgorate Center (accounting for all adjustmentetagon the cross easement and access
areas as well as those parking spaces within thjedmwhich are allocated to the other buildingshef Pacific Corporate Center) is 39.60%
allocation to the Project and 60.40% allocatioth®remaining portions of the Pacific Corporate t€grand (ii) to the extent that the Pacific
Corporate Center Common Area Costs are determimewdladly for the Project, the pro-rata split of swdsts between the Project and the
remaining portions of the Pacific Corporate Cefiteraccount for the cross easement, access anohgaea portion of the Project allocated
to the remaining portion of the Pacific Corporatn@r) is 90.95% allocated to the Project and 9.@886ated to the remaining portion of the
Pacific Corporate Center. Only the categories sfsand expenses expressly identified on Exhilsib&ll constitute Pacific Corporate Center
Common Area Costs. Pursuant to the foregoing,ietig the completion of the lot-line adjustment itfed in

SECTION 1.1.2 of this Lease, to the extent Tenaetctly pays the Taxes relating to such resultaeggarcel underlying the Project, Tenant
shall receive a credit against its pro-rata shatbeoPacific Corporate Center Common Area Costmimamount equal to 9.05% of the portion
of such Taxes relating to the land underlying (agosed to the improvements upon) the Project. Véigard to the pro-rata percentages set
forth in this SECTION 4.3, as the same were deteechbased upon the anticipated lot-line adjustrardtthe related cross easement, access
and parking area portion of the Project allocatethé remaining portion of the Pacific Corporatetée, to the extent that there are
modifications to the same in conjunction with tkeardation of the lot-line adjustment and the ulyileg cross easement and access
agreements, such percentages shall be appropraatdlgorrespondingly adjusted.
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4.4 CALCULATION AND PAYMENT OF ADDITIONAL RENT. Terant shall pay to Landlord, in the manner set fortSECTION 4.4.1,
below, and as Additional Rent, Tenant's Share cé@iExpenses for each Expense Year.

4.4.1 STATEMENT OF ACTUAL DIRECT EXPENSES AND PAYMM BY TENANT. Landlord shall use commercially reasble effort:
(but in no event later than the date which is omedned fifty (150) days after the applicable Exgelear) to give to Tenant following the €

of each Expense Year, a statement (the "STATEMEMHIxh shall state in general major categoriediinect Expenses incurred or accrued
for such preceding Expense Year, and which shdit@te the amount of the Tenant's Share of DirgpeRses. Upon receipt of the Statement
for each Expense Year commencing or ending duliad ease Term, Tenant shall pay, with its nexgiirsent of Base Rent due, the full
amount of Tenant's Share of Direct Expenses fdn &ixpense Year, less the amounts, if any, paichdwiuch Expense Year as "Estimated
Direct Expenses," as that term is defined in SEQTHX.2 of this Lease. In the event the Statemama fevised Statement following an at
pursuant to SECTION 4.7 below) shows that the arhpaid by Tenant under SECTION 4.4.2, below, exedebkenant's Share of Direct
Expenses for the Expense Year in question (the "®RRAYMENT AMOUNT"), then Landlord shall credit thev®rpayment Amount against
the next due installments of Base Rent and Addifi&®ent; provided, however, that (i) with respectite final Expense Year of the Lease
Term, or (ii) upon Tenant's written request, Landlshall pay to Tenant the Overpayment Amount, onefore Landlord's next regularly
scheduled check-cutting date following the datecilis five (5) business days after the later taioof (A) Tenant's receipt of such
Statement, and (B) Landlord's receipt of such amittequest. The failure of Landlord to timely figimithe Statement for any Expense Year
shall not prejudice Landlord or Tenant from enfoggits rights under this ARTICLE 4. Even though tease Term has expired and Tenant
has vacated the Premises, when the final deterimmist made of Tenant's Share of Direct ExpensethbExpense Year in which this Lease
terminates, if an Excess is present, Tenant shighijn thirty (30) days after receipt of the Statam pay to Landlord such amount, and if
Tenant paid more as Estimated Direct Expensesttigactual Tenant's Share of Direct Expenses, batidhall, within thirty (30) days,
deliver a check payable to Tenant in the amouth@verpayment. The provisions of this SECTION#shall survive the expiration or
earlier termination of the Lease Term. Notwithsiagdhe immediately preceding sentence, Tenant ebaibe responsible for Tenant's Share
of any Direct Expenses attributable to any Expefesar which are first billed to Tenant more than #{&p calendar years after the earlier of
the expiration of the applicable Expense Year erltbase Expiration Date, provided that in any eWamtant shall be responsible for Tenant's
Share of Direct Expenses levied by any governmenttority or by any public utility companies atydime following the Lease Expiration
Date which are attributable to any Expense Yeaded that Landlord delivers Tenant a bill (a "SUEMENTAL STATEMENT") for

such amounts within two (2) years following Landlsrreceipt of the bill therefor).

4.4.2 STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED DIRECT EXPENSES. Indiiion, Landlord shall give Tenant a yearly expeestmate statement (the
"ESTIMATE STATEMENT") which shall set forth in gera major categories Landlord's reasonable estiiftlaee"'ESTIMATE") of what the
total amount of Direct Expenses for the then-curEetpense Year shall be and the estimated Ter@iméee of Direct Expenses (the
"ESTIMATED DIRECT EXPENSES"). Landlord shall usentmercially reasonable efforts to deliver such EaterStatement to Tenant on
before May
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1 following the end of the Expense Year to whichlskstimate Statement relates. The failure of Lamidio timely furnish the Estimate
Statement for any Expense Year shall not precladallord from enforcing its rights to collect anydiiibnal Rent under this ARTICLE 4,
nor shall Landlord be prohibited from revising dfstimate Statement or Estimated Direct Expensestthifere delivered to the extent
necessary. Thereafter, Tenant shall pay, withitiytli80) days after receipt of the Estimate Stateine fraction of the Estimated Direct
Expenses for the then-current Expense Year (redogethy amounts paid pursuant to the last sentefites SECTION 4.4.2). Such fraction
shall have as its numerator the number of monthshiiiave elapsed in such current Expense Yeaudiray the month of such payment, and
twelve (12) as its denominator. Until a new Estien&tatement is furnished (which Landlord shall hitseeright to deliver to Tenant at any
time), Tenant shall pay monthly, with the monthlgd® Rent installments, an amount equal to one{twglf12) of the total Estimated Direct
Expenses set forth in the previous Estimate Statededivered by Landlord to Tenant. Throughoutltkase Term Landlord shall maintain
books and records with respect to Direct Expenses¢ordance with generally accepted real estamuating and management practices,
consistently applied.

4.5 TAXES AND OTHER CHARGES FOR WHICH TENANT IS DECTLY RESPONSIBLE.

4.5.1 Tenant shall be liable for and shall pay eftelinquency, taxes levied against Tenant's eggr, furniture, fixtures and any other
personal property located in or about the Premimesjided, however, that following the Itite adjustment set forth in SECTION 1.1.2 of
Lease (i.e., once the Project constitutes a septaatparcel), Tenant shall be liable for and sthiadictly pay before delinquency, all such
Taxes and Tax Expenses attributable to the Prgecept to the extent expressly set forth to thereoy in this Lease). If any such taxes on
Tenant's equipment, furniture, fixtures and anyeothersonal property are levied against Landlordamdlord's property or if the assessed
value of Landlord's property is increased by thadusion therein of a value placed upon such equiyipferniture, fixtures or any other
personal property and if Landlord pays any propagyessed taxes based upon such increased assesgndnLandlord shall have the right
to do upon fifteen (15) days prior written noticeTtenant, Tenant shall upon five (5) business dayise to Tenant repay to Landlord the
taxes so levied against Landlord or the proportibsuch taxes resulting from such increase in #sessment, as the case may be.

4.5.2 Intentionally Omitted.

4.5.3 Notwithstanding any contrary provision herdianant shall pay prior to delinquency any (i)trax or sales tax, service tax, transfer tax
or value added tax, or any other applicable tatherrent or services herein or otherwise respettiisg_ease, (ii) taxes assessed upon or with
respect to the possession, leasing, operation, geamant, maintenance, alteration, repair, use asgarecy by Tenant of the Premises or any
portion of the Project, including the Project patkiareas; or (iii) taxes assessed upon this tréiosaar any document to which Tenant is a
party creating or transferring an interest or gatesn the Premises.

4.6 TENANT'S PAYMENT OF CERTAIN TAX EXPENSES. Notthistanding anything to the contrary contained is kase, in the event
that, at any time during the Lease Term, any safnancing, or change in ownership of the BuildorgProject is consummated (specifically
excluding, however, a change in ownership to adenesulting from a foreclosure or a deed-in-
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lieu of foreclosure), and as a result thereof, tanithe extent that in connection therewith, theldng or Project is reassessed (the
"REASSESSMENT") for real estate tax purposes byathygropriate governmental authority pursuant ta¢hnes of Proposition 13, then the
TCCs of this SECTION 4.6 shall apply to such Resssent of the Building or Project.

4.6.1 THE TAX INCREASE. For purposes of this ARTIEH, the term "TAX INCREASE" shall mean that pontiof the Tax Expenses, as
calculated immediately following the Reassessmehich is attributable solely to the ReassessmentoAdingly, the term Tax Increase shall
not include any portion of the Tax Expenses, asutaled immediately following the Reassessmentclvhi

(i) is attributable to the initial assessment & Walue of the Project, the base and shall of thi&lBig or the tenant improvements located in
the Building; (i) is attributable to assessmentsall were pending immediately prior to the Reassess which assessments were conducted
during, and included in, such Reassessment, orhwdssessments were otherwise rendered unneceskawnjrig the Reassessment; or (iii) is
attributable to the annual inflationary increaseeal estate taxes, but not in excess of two p&@edo) per annum.

4.6.2 PROTECTION. During the initial Lease Termn@at shall not be obligated to pay any portiorhef Tax Increase relating to any
Reassessment of the Building or Project which azatter the first (1st) such Reassessment (i.eh protection applies to the second (2nd)
and each following Reassessment during the inigalse Term). During the entire Option Term (whethe, two or all three such Option
Terms is exercised pursuant to

Section 2.2 of this Lease), Tenant shall not begatdd to pay any portion of the Tax Increase irgatio any Reassessment of the Building or
Project which occurs after the first (1st) such$deasment (i.e., such protection applies to thenske(2nd) and each following Reassessment
occurring during the entire Option Term).

4.6.3 LANDLORD'S RIGHT TO PURCHASE THE PROPOSITIAN PROTECTION AMOUNT ATTRIBUTABLE TO A PARTICULAR
REASSESSMENT. The amount of Tax Expenses which feisanot obligated to pay or will not be obligatedoay during the Lease Term
connection with a particular Reassessment purgaahe TCCs of this SECTION 4.6, shall be sometineésrred to hereafter as a
"PROPOSITION 13 PROTECTION AMOUNT." If the occuremof a Reassessment is reasonably foreseeablanoljdrd and the
Proposition 13 Protection Amount attributable tols®eassessment can be reasonably quantifiedimiagsdt for each Lease Year
commencing with the Lease Year in which the Reassest will occur, the TCCs of this SECTION 4.6.3lslapply to each such
Reassessment. Upon Notice to Tenant, Landlord khaé the right to purchase the Proposition 13€@tmin Amount relating to the
applicable Reassessment (the "APPLICABLE REASSESSMI;, at any time during the Lease Term, by payimg enant an amount equal
to the "Proposition 13 Purchase Price," as that ferdefined in this SECTION 4.6.3, provided that tight of any successor of Landlord to
exercise its right of repurchase hereunder shalapply to any Reassessment which results fronetleat pursuant to which such success:
Landlord became the Landlord under this Lease.s&sl therein, "PROPOSITION 13 PURCHASE PRICE" shaamthe present value of t
Proposition 13 Protection Amount remaining during Lease Term, as of the date of payment of thpdBition 13 Purchase Price by
Landlord. Such present value shall be calculadeoly(using the portion of the Proposition 13 PrtiitetAmount attributable to each
remaining Lease Year (as though the portion of $treiposition 13 Protection Amount benefited Terarhe end of each Lease Year), as the

-25-



amounts to be discounted, and (ii) by using distoates for each amount to be discounted equal)tthg average rates of yield for United
States Treasury Obligations with maturity dateslase as reasonably possible to the end of eactel¥aar during which the portions of the
Proposition 13 Protection Amount would have berdfitenant, which rates shall be those in effecf &sindlord's exercise of its right to
purchase, as set forth in this

SECTION 4.6.3, plus (B) two percent (2%) per annuipon such payment of the Proposition 13 Purchase ,Rhe provisions of SECTION
4.6.2 of this Lease shall not apply to any Taxdase attributable to the Applicable Reassessmite Eandlord is estimating the
Proposition 13 Purchase Price because a Reassedsmarot yet occurred, then when such Reassessants, if Landlord has
underestimated the Proposition 13 Purchase Phiea,upon Notice by Landlord to Tenant, Landlordigtramptly pay to Tenant the amount
of such underestimation, and if Landlord overestgaahe Proposition 13 Purchase Price, then updicéNby Landlord to Tenant, Rent next
due shall be increased by the amount of such otaiagson.

4.7 LANDLORD'S BOOKS AND RECORDS. Within two (2) es after receipt of a Statement by Tenant, if Tiedesputes the amount of
Additional Rent set forth in the Statement, an eyeé of Tenant or an independent certified puldzoantant (which accountant is not
working on a contingency fee basis), designatedpaidl for by Tenant, may, after reasonable Noticeandlord and at reasonable times,
inspect Landlord's records with respect to theestaent at Landlord's offices, provided that Tenamidt then in Default under this Lease and
Tenant has paid all amounts required to be pai@utig applicable Estimate Statement and Stateragiiie case may be. In connection with
such inspection, Tenant and Tenant's agents mrest agadvance to follow Landlord's reasonablesraled procedures regarding inspections
of Landlord's records, and shall execute a comraliyagieasonable confidentiality agreement regardingh inspection. Tenant's failure to
dispute the amount of Additional Rent set fortlany Statement within two (2) years of Tenant'sipad such Statement shall be deemed to
be Tenant's approval of such Statement and Tethemgafter, waives the right or ability to disptlie amounts set forth in such Statement. If
after such inspection, Tenant still disputes suddifional Rent, a determination as to the propeo@amshall be made, at Tenant's expens
an independent certified public accountant (the C&LINTANT") selected by Landlord and subject to Titsareasonable approval; provic
that if such determination by the Accountant pra¥ed Direct Expenses were overstated by morefikiarpercent (5%), then the cost of the
Accountant and the cost of such determination steapaid for by Landlord. Tenant hereby acknowlsdpat Tenant's sole right to inspect
Landlord's books and records and to contest thauatrad Direct Expenses payable by Tenant shallsbgeaforth in this

SECTION 4.7, and Tenant hereby waives any andiladiraights pursuant to Applicable Law to inspaattsbooks and records and/or to
contest the amount of Direct Expenses payable warite

ARTICLE 5
USE OF PREMISES

5.1 PERMITTED USE. Tenant shall use the Premiskdysfor the Permitted Use set forth in SECTIONfth®e Summary and Tenant shall
not use or permit the Premises or the Project tasieel for any other purpose or purposes whatsedgttesut the prior written consent of
Landlord, which may be withheld in Landlord's sdiscretion.
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5.2 PROHIBITED USES. The uses prohibited underlte@se shall include, without limitation, use of fAremises or a portion thereof for (i)
offices of any agency or bureau of the United Stateany state or political subdivision therea; ¢ffices or agencies of any foreign
governmental or political subdivision thereof; il schools or other training facilities whicheanot ancillary to corporate, executive or
professional office use. Tenant shall not allowupancy density of use of the Premises which istgréhan the density permitted under
applicable laws. Tenant further covenants and adtest Tenant shall not use, or suffer or permjtagrson or persons to use, the Premises o
any part thereof for any use or purpose contrathieqrovisions of the Rules and Regulations sh o EXHIBIT D, attached hereto, or in
violation of the laws of the United States of Angetithe State of California, or the ordinancesulagpns or requirements of the local
municipal or county governing body or other lawduithorities having jurisdiction over the Projecigluding, without limitation, any such
laws, ordinances, regulations or requirementsinglab hazardous materials or substances, as thuoss are defined by applicable laws now
or hereafter in effect; provided, however, Landlshéll not enforce, change or modify the RulesRadulations in a discriminatory manner
and Landlord agrees that the Rules and Regulasioal$ not be unreasonably modified or enforced imasmner which will unreasonably
interfere with the normal and customary conductefiant's business. Tenant shall not do or permiharg to be done in or about the
Premises which will in any material way interferghathe rights of other tenants or occupants ofRheific Corporate Center, or injure or
annoy them or use or allow the Premises to be imsexhy unlawful purpose, nor shall Tenant caus@ntain or permit any nuisance in, on or
about the Premises. Tenant shall comply with albrded covenants, conditions, and restrictions aphereafter affecting the Project.

5.3 CC&Rs. Tenant shall comply with all recordedeamants, conditions, and restrictions currentlgetfhg the Project of which Landlord
provided copies to Tenant, namely the followinytlfat certain "Declaration of Covenant's Condigsi@md Restrictions For Units 2, 3, 4 and 6
of Pacific Corporate Center dated October 24, 1886 "EXISTING CC&Rs"), (ii) that certain "Planndadustrial Development for Pacific
Corporate Center" last dated August 1988 (the "Rl&xid (iii) evidence of the existing assessmeatregy the Project. Additionally, Tenant
acknowledges that the Project may be subject tdanye covenants, conditions, and restrictions (f8C&RS") which Landlord, in
Landlord's reasonable discretion, deems reasomauiyssary, and Tenant agrees that this Leasebshsilibject and subordinate to such
CC&Rs ; provided, however, such future CC&R's domaterially adversely affect Tenant's use or oacgp of the Premises nor any of its
rights hereunder, including, without limitationettPurchase Option" set forth in ARTICLE 30, nortemally increase Tenant's cost. Landl
shall have the right to require Tenant to execateacknowledge, within fifteen (15) business ddya request by Landlord, a "Recognitior
Covenants, Conditions, and Restriction," in a feubstantially similar to that attached hereto a$iBB{T F, agreeing to and acknowledging
the CC&Rs, provided such CC&Rs do not materiallyaadely affect Tenant's use or occupancy of thenBBes nor any of its rights
hereunder, including, without limitation, the Puask Option.
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ARTICLE 6
SERVICES AND UTILITIES

6.1 STANDARD TENANT SERVICES. Landlord shall maiimand operate the Building in a first-class margwrsistent with the
Comparable Buildings, and keep the Building Streecfa first-class condition and repair consisteithwhe Comparable Buildings. In
addition, Landlord shall provide, as part of thal@ing Structure, (i) adequate electrical wiringstabpanel facilities for the Building for
Tenant's connection with a minimum capacity of 8,80nps at 277/480 Volts (three (3)-phase, foun#}), and (ii) city water and sewer
stubbed to the Premises.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant shall paydiwtilities (including without limitation, eledtity, gas, sewer and water) attributable

its use of the entire Premises and shall also geois own janitorial and security services for Bwelding. Such utility use shall include
electricity and gas used for lighting, incidentaéwand "HVAC," as that term is defined below. Aitk utility, janitorial and security payme
shall be excluded from Operating Expenses and bkaglaid directly by Tenant prior to the date onclvlihe same are due to the utility
provider, janitorial company and/or security comyaas applicable. Tenant shall, at Tenant's coijést to reimbursement from the Tenant
Improvement Allowance pursuant to SECTION 2.2.1thef Tenant Work Letter), separately meter the Psesi

Landlord shall not be required to provide any seggiother than with regard to its maintenance apdir obligation relating to the Building
Structure, the Project Common Areas, the PCC Comawmeas and for Pacific Corporate Center (subjetibhéoTCCs of SECTION 4.3 abov

6.2 TENANT MAINTAINED BUILDING SYSTEMS; HVAC. Tenahshall, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, (iptaiai the Building's
mechanical, electrical, life safety, plumbing, f8prinkler systems (except to the extent Landletdins repair and maintenance responsibility
for the portion of such fire-sprinkler system conéal in the Building Structure), (ii) subject tanitations imposed by all governmental rules,
regulations and guidelines applicable thereto, taair(itself or through a service provider) heatamgl air conditioning to the Premises
("HVAC") (items identified in (i) and (ii) collectiely, the "BUILDING SYSTEMS"), and (iii) maintairhe remaining portions of the Premises
which are not part of the "Building Structure,"that term is set forth in ARTICLE 7 of this Leasethe extent such Building Structure is to
be maintained and repaired by Landlord. Such regrarmaintenance costs and expenses for the ailiéings of the Pacific Corporate
Center shall be the responsibility of Landlordlue tenants thereof and shall not be included ie@iExpenses payable by Tenant.

6.3 TENANT MAINTAINED SECURITY. Tenant hereby ackwtedges that Landlord shall have no obligationrmvjile guard service or
other security measures for the benefit of the Fyesnthe Building or the Project. Any such segurieasures for the benefit of the Premises,
the Building or the Project shall be provided byaet, at Tenant's sole cost and expense. Tenagtiyhassumes all responsibility for the
protection of Tenant and its agents, employeedractors, invitees and guests, and the propertetiefrom acts of third parties, including
keeping doors locked and other means of entryeddtiemises closed.
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6.4 TENANT MAINTENANCE STANDARDS. All Tenant mainiaed Building Systems, including HVAC, shall be mtained in accordan
with manufacturer specifications by Tenant in a owrcially reasonable condition. In addition, upeguest from Landlord, Tenant shall
provide to Landlord copies of any service contraetd records of Tenant's maintenance of such Bigjl8ystems.

6.5 INTERRUPTION OF USE. Except as otherwise predlith this Lease, Tenant agrees that Landlord slealbe liable for damages, by
abatement of Rent or otherwise, for failure to fsinor delay in furnishing any service (includirdephone and telecommunication services),
or for any diminution in the quality or quantityetteof, when such failure or delay or diminutiomégasioned, in whole or in part, by
breakage, repairs, replacements, or improvementany strike, lockout or other labor trouble, bgliility to secure electricity, gas, water, or
other fuel at the Building or Project after readulaaffort to do so, by any riot or other dangeroosdition, emergency, accident or casualty
whatsoever, by act or default of Tenant or othetigs or by any other cause beyond Landlord'soressie control; and such failures or de
or diminution shall never be deemed to constituteadction or disturbance of Tenant's use and 3s$s@ of the Premises or relieve Tenant
(except with regard to damage to Tenant's pergmoglerty and the amount of any physical injury, dily to the extent caused by the
negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord) fragmaying Rent or performing any of its obligationslanthis Lease, except as otherwise
provided in this Lease. Furthermore, Landlord shatlbe liable under any circumstances for a Iéssrdnjury to, property or for injury to, ¢
interference with, Tenant's business, includingheuat limitation, loss of profits, however occugirthrough or in connection with or
incidental to a failure to furnish any of the sees or utilities as set forth in this ARTICLE 6.rddord may comply with voluntary controls or
guidelines promulgated by any governmental enétsiting to the use or conservation of energy, waj@s, light or electricity or the reduction
of automobile or other emissions without creating Bability of Landlord to Tenant under this Leapeovided that (i) the Premises are not
thereby rendered untenantable, and (ii) the saras dot materially adversely interfere with TenaRgsmitted Use of the Premises.

ARTICLE 7
REPAIRS

7.1 IN GENERAL. Landlord shall maintain in firstads condition and operating order and keep in gepdir and condition the structural
portions of the Building, including the foundatidtgor/ceiling slabs, roof, roof membrane (to theéemt not penetrated by Tenant), curtain
wall, exterior glass and mullions, columns, beashgfts (including elevator shafts), stairs, parkangas, landscaping, exterior Project signage
and stairwells (collectively, "BUILDING STRUCTURE$3nNd the base fire-sprinkler systems which werecoostructed by Tenant Parties,
and the Common Areas; provided, however, thateaettient (i) such fire-sprinkler system as consédidy Landlord is altered by Tenant,
and/or (ii) the roof membrane is penetrated by fierieenant shall thereafter be responsible thei@fiowhich time any warranties relating to
such systems shall be transferred to Tenant); geaviurther, however, that until such time as Teébacomes responsible for the base fire-
sprinkler systems pursuant to the foregoing claakbeeferences to Building Structure shall be deéno include such base fire-sprinkler
system. Notwithstanding anything in this Leaséhtdontrary, Tenant shall be required to repair the
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Building Structure to the extent caused due to Mésase of the Premises for other than normalcastbmary implementation of the
Permitted Use, unless and to the extent such daimag&ered by insurance carried or required todvéed by Landlord pursuant to
ARTICLE 10 and to which the waiver of subrogatisrapplicable (such obligation to the extent appliedo Tenant as qualified and
conditioned will hereinafter be defined as the 'BSCEPTION"). Tenant shall, at Tenant's own expepsesuant to the TCCs of this Lease,
including, without limitation ARTICLE 8 hereof, kpghe Premises, including all Tenant Improvemeerations," as that term is defined
in SECTION 8.1 of this Lease, fixtures and the floofloors of the Building on which the Premises bbcated, in good order, repair and
condition at all times during the Lease Term (ludtsobligation shall not extend to the Buildingusture except pursuant to the BS
Exception). In addition, except as provided as phttandlord's repair obligations set forth abovelsewhere in this Lease, Tenant shall, at
Tenant's own expense (but under the supervisiorsabject to the prior approval of Landlord to tixéeat the Building Structure is affected),
and within any reasonable period of time specifigd.andlord, pursuant to the TCCs of this Leaseluiting without limitation Article 8
hereof, promptly and adequately repair all damagbé Premises and replace or repair all damageKleb, or worn fixtures and
appurtenances (but such obligation shall not extertde Building Structure except pursuant to tiseBxkception), except for damage caused
by ordinary wear and tear; provided however, that,andlord's option, but only if Tenant fails t@ke such repairs, Landlord may, after
written notice to Tenant and Tenant's failure twaie (or failure to commence to repair and theegadiligently prosecute the same to
completion) within ten

(10) days thereafter, but need not, make suchnepad replacements (ordinary wear and tear exdg@ad Tenant shall pay Landlord the
cost thereof. Landlord may, but shall not be resflito, enter the Premises during normal businessshwhen accompanied by a
representative of Tenant and upon an additiona}feight (48) hours prior written notice to makekuepairs, alterations, improvements or
additions to the Premises or to the Project onoequipment located in the Project as Landlordl slearequired or permitted to perform
pursuant to the TCCs of this Lease or as Landlaag be required to do by governmental or quasi-gowental authority or court order or
decree. Except as specifically set forth in SECTIDR of this Lease, below, Tenant hereby waivesaaryall rights under and benefits of
subsection 1 of Section 1932 and Sections 19411844 of the California Civil Code or under any daniaw, statute, or ordinance now or
hereafter in effect.

7.2 TENANT'S RIGHT TO MAKE REPAIRS. Notwithstandirige provisions of

SECTION 7.1, above, if Tenant provides notice todlard of an event or circumstance which requihesaction of Landlord with respect to
repair and/or maintenance as set forth in SECTIQNabove and Landlord fails to provide such actidthin (30) days after receipt of such
notice, then Tenant may proceed to take the redjaicon upon delivery of an additional ten (10¥ibess days notice to Landlord specifying
that Tenant is taking such required action, arstidh action was required under the TCCs of this&eéa be taken by Landlord, then Tenant
shall be entitled to prompt reimbursement by Larditaf Tenant's reasonable costs and expensesingtslch action; provided, however,
notwithstanding such thirty (30) day period, Landlshall use commercially reasonable efforts taeeite such repairs to ensure completion
as soon as reasonably practicable. In the everanidakes such action, Tenant shall use only thostractors used by Landlord in the
Building for similar work unless such contractore anwilling or unable to perform such work, in whievent Tenant may utilize the services
of any other qualified contractor which normallydaregularly performs similar work in the ComparaBlgldings. Further, if Landlord does
not deliver a detailed written objection to
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Tenant, within thirty (30) days after receipt ofiamoice by Tenant of its costs of taking actioniethTenant claims should have been take
Landlord, and if such invoice from Tenant setsif@treasonably particularized breakdown of itsxastl expenses in connection with taking
such action on behalf of Landlord, then Tenantldi@kntitled to deduct from Rent payable by Tenatter this Lease, the amount set forth
in such invoice. If, however, Landlord deliversTtenant within thirty (30) days after receipt of B@tis invoice, a written objection to the
payment of such invoice, setting forth with readdeaarticularity Landlord's reasons for its cldimat such action did not have to be taken by
Landlord pursuant to the TCCs of this Lease ortihatcharges are excessive (in which case Landhatl pay the amount it contends would
not have been excessive), then Tenant shall nentieed to such deduction from Rent, but as Tésauie remedy, Tenant may proceed to
institute legal proceedings against Landlord téemblthe amount set forth in the subject invoia®yvjpled that under no circumstances shall
Tenant be allowed to terminate this Lease based asuch default by Landlord; provided further, lewer, the notice and cure periods
otherwise required pursuant to SECTION 19.6 of tieiase shall be deemed to have been satisfiedagropletion of the procedure specified
in this SECTION 7.2. If Tenant receives a non-apgida final judgment against Landlord in connectigith such legal proceedings, Tenant
may deduct the amount of the judgment, not to ektlee amount of the unpaid portion of the relevanbice, from the Base Rent next due
and owing under this Lease; provided, however, fiemay not deduct the amount of the judgment agaiose than fifty percent (50%) of
Base Rent next due and owing (until such time atitire amount of such judgment is deducted)dceitent following a foreclosure or a
deed-in-lieu of foreclosure.

ARTICLE 8
ADDITIONS AND ALTERATIONS

8.1 LANDLORD'S CONSENT TO ALTERATIONS. After the owmpletion of construction of Tenant's initial Tenémprovements in the
Premises pursuant to the TCCs of the Tenant Wottet_@vhich construction may extend over a three

(3)-year period), Tenant may not make any improv@s)alterations, additions or changes to the Ryesndr any mechanical, plumbing or
HVAC facilities or systems pertaining to the Preasisvhich affect the Building Structure or extedppearance of the Building (collectively,
the "Alterations") without first procuring the priwritten consent of Landlord to such Alteratiomsiich consent shall be requested by Tenant
not less than ten (10) days prior to the commenaoéthereof, and which consent shall not be unreasigrwithheld by Landlord, provided it
shall be deemed reasonable for Landlord to withiteldonsent to any Alteration which materiallyasversely affects the Building Structure
or exterior appearance of the Building; providegwhver, that regardless of whether Landlord's aaniserequired pursuant to this Section
8.1, Tenant shall give Landlord notice of any Adt#ns to the extent the anticipated cost of suitbration exceeds $100,000.00. The
construction of the initial Tenant Improvementdhe Premises shall be governed by the TCCs of émaiit Work Letter and not the TCCs of
this ARTICLE 8.

8.2 MANNER OF CONSTRUCTION. Tenant shall utilizelpsompetent contractors, subcontractors, matema¢shanics and materialmen
reasonably approved by Landlord, for the constouctif any Alterations. Upon Landlord's request ¢sslLandlord waived, at the time of
Landlord's approval of any Alterations pursuanthte provisions of SECTION 8.5, below, its right
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to make such request), Tenant shall, at Tenantisnse, remove such Alterations upon the expiraticany early termination of the Lease
Term; provided, however, that in no event shallargrbe required to remove any Alterations whichremenal and customary improvements
vis-a-vis the general implementation of the Pemittse. If such Alterations will involve the useanfdisturb hazardous materials or
substances existing in the Premises, Tenant shalply with Landlord's rules and regulations conaegnand all applicable laws pertaining
to, hazardous materials or substances with respetitch Alterations. Tenant shall construct sudierations and perform such repairs in a
good and workmanlike manner, in conformance with amd all applicable federal, state, county or roipail laws, rules and regulations and
pursuant to a valid building permit, issued by @igy of San Diego, all in conformance with Landlsrdeasonable construction rules and
regulations; provided, however, that prior to comgiag to construct any Alteration, Tenant shall hveigh Landlord to discuss Landlord's
design parameters and code compliance issues &xtaet the nature and/or scope of such Alteratieasonably warrant such meeting. In
event Tenant performs any Alterations in the Premighich require or give rise to governmentallyuiegg changes to the Building Structure,
then Landlord shall, at Tenant's expense, make clughges to the Building Structure. Tenant shdlluse (and upon notice from Landlord
shall cease using) contractors, services, workiaboy, materials or equipment that, in Landlordasonable judgment, would disturb labor
harmony with the workforce or trades engaged ifiquering other work, labor or services in or abdwe Building or the Common Areas. In
addition to Tenant's obligations under ARTICLE Qhif Lease, upon completion of any Alterationsahtaffect the Building Structures,
Tenant agrees to cause a Notice of Completion tedmded in the office of the Recorder of the Gpwi San Diego in accordance with
Section 3093 of the Civil Code of the State of foafiia or any successor statute, and Tenant sbilled to the Project construction manager
a reproducible copy of the "as built" drawings g tlterations, to the extent applicable, as welhth permits, approvals and other documents
issued by any governmental agency in connectioh thig Alterations.

8.3 PAYMENT FOR IMPROVEMENTS. If payment is madestitly to contractors, Tenant shall comply withagblicable laws relating to
final lien releases and waivers in connection Wigmant's payment for work to contractors. Whetherat Tenant orders any work directly
from Landlord, Tenant shall reimburse Landlordlfandlord's reasonable out-of-pocket costs and esgeereasonably incurred in connection
with Landlord's review of any Alterations.

8.4 CONSTRUCTION INSURANCE. In addition to the régunents of ARTICLE 10 of this Lease, in the eveérat Tenant makes any
Alterations, prior to the commencement of such raliens, Tenant shall provide Landlord with evideticat Tenant carries "Builder's All
Risk" insurance in an amount reasonably relateétigosalue of such Alterations, it being understand agreed that all of such Alterations
shall be insured by Tenant pursuant to ARTICLE fLthis Lease immediately upon completion thereofadidition, to the extent (i) Tenant's
financial condition does not satisfied the "Reqdifdresholds”, as that term is set forth in SECTIZIN2.2.2, AND (ii) the cost of such
Alterations exceeds $500,000.00, Landlord may reglénant to obtain a lien and completion bondnyr@ther commercially reasonable
alternate form of security in connection with Terfmoonstruction and completion of any such Alierzs.

8.5 LANDLORD'S PROPERTY. All Alterations, improvemts, fixtures, equipment and/or appurtenances (aktzen Tenant's trade fixtures
and equipment) which may be installed or placegriabout the Premises, from time to time, shakubg become the property of Landlord
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upon the expiration of this Lease; provided, howethat due to the foregoing, Tenant hereby agepsovide Landlord with copies of "as-
built"* plans relating to the Building Systems te #xtent the same have been materially modifierasult of such Alterations. In addition to
its trade fixtures and equipment, Tenant may adseave any Alterations, improvements, fixtures andguipment which Tenant can
substantiate to Landlord have not been paid fdn aity Tenant Improvement Allowance funds providedénant by Landlord, provided
Tenant repairs any damage to the Premises andiByiddused by such removal and returns the affqmtetibn of the Premises to a building
standard tenant improved condition as determinedamgliord. Furthermore, Landlord may, by writtertio® to Tenant prior to the end of the
Lease Term, or given following any earlier termioatof this Lease, require Tenant, at Tenant's es@eto

(i) remove any Alterations or improvements in thierRises; provided, however, in no event shall Tebarrequired to remove any Alteratit
which are normal and customary improvements wisdhe general implementation of the Permitted, @sel/or (i) remove any initial Tene
Improvements in the lab/manufacturing portion @& Bremises identified in advance as removal itaisyant to

SECTION 2.2.2.3 of the Tenant Work Letter by LamdI¢collectively, the "EXTRAORDINARY ALTERATIONS")and to repair any
damage to the Premises and Building caused byrsmcbval (reasonable wear and tear excepted); pedyitowever, if, in connection with
its request for Landlord's approval for any suckr&ordinary Alterations, (1) Tenant requests Lardifodecision with regard to the removal
of such Extraordinary Alterations, and (2) Landltndreafter agrees in writing to waive the remaeguirement when approving such
Extraordinary Alterations, then Tenant shall noréguired to so remove such Alterations; providethier, however, that if Tenant requests
such a determination from Landlord and Landlordtsrapproval of any Extraordinary Alterations|dab address the removal requirement
with regard to such Extraordinary Alterations, Lkmd shall be deemed to have agreed to waive theval requirement with regard to such
Extraordinary Alterations. If Tenant fails to coraf@ such removal and/or to repair any damage caasttke removal of any Extraordinary
Alterations or improvements in the Premises an@épair any damage to the Premises and Buildingethlog such removal (reasonable wear
and tear excepted), and such failure continueiier(5) business days after written notice fronmtiord, then (A) Landlord may do so and
may charge the actual cost thereof to Tenant, Bhtb(the extent reasonable time required to cotagach removal/restoration exceeds the
date which is thirty (30) days following the exftica or earlier termination of this Lease, Tendrdlsbe deemed to be holding over in the
Premises and Rent shall continue to accrue in dacce with the TCCs of ARTICLE 16, below. Tenantehy protects, defends, indemnifies
and holds Landlord harmless from any liability, ttabligation, expense or claim of lien in any manrelating to the installation, placement,
removal or financing of any such Alterations, impEments, fixtures and/or equipment in, on or atletPremises, which obligations of
Tenant shall survive the expiration or earlier tieation of this Lease for one (1) year followingchiexpiration or earlier termination. At all
times during the Term of this Lease, Tenant staktitled to remove, and Landlord shall have ner@st in, Tenant's trade fixtures and
equipment.

ARTICLE 9
COVENANT AGAINST LIENS

Tenant shall keep the Project and Premises free &y liens or encumbrances arising out of the vperformed, materials furnished or
obligations incurred by or on behalf of Tenant,
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and shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold Lardiharmless from and against any claims, liabgitjudgments or costs (including, with
limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and cosising out of same or in connection therewith. Trershall give Landlord notice at least ten
(10) business days prior to the commencement ofanly work on the Premises (or such additional ismenay be necessary under applic
laws) to afford Landlord the opportunity of postiagd recording appropriate notices of non-respditgibT enant shall remove any such lien
or encumbrance by bond or otherwise within fivel{83iness days after notice by Landlord, and ifareémshall fail to do so, Landlord may
pay the amount necessary to remove such lien ameim@ance, without being responsible for investigathe validity thereof. The amount so
paid shall be deemed Additional Rent under thisseqaayable upon demand, without limitation as keotemedies available to Landlord
under this Lease. Nothing contained in this Le&sd suthorize Tenant to do any act which shaljettl_andlord's title to the Building or
Premises to any liens or encumbrances whether ethiyg operation of law or express or implied caettrAny claim to a lien or encumbrar
upon the Building or Premises arising in connectigth any such work or respecting the Premises kwvhias performed by or at the request
of Tenant shall be null and void, or at Landlomjion shall attach only against Tenant's interetite Premises and shall in all respects be
subordinate to Landlord's title to the Project,|8imig and Premises.

ARTICLE 10
INSURANCE

10.1 INDEMNIFICATION AND WAIVER. Tenant hereby asses all risk of damage to property or injury toguers in, upon or about the
Premises from any cause whatsoever and agreesathdliord, its partners, subpartners and their speofficers, agents, servants,
employees, and independent contractors (collegtiVeANDLORD PARTIES") shall not be liable for, arade hereby released from any
responsibility for, any damage either to persoproperty or resulting from the loss of use theradfich damage is sustained by Tenant or by
other persons claiming through Tenant. Tenant shdéimnify, defend, protect, and hold harmlessl.tiwedlord Parties from any and all loss,
cost, damage, expense and liability (including withlimitation court costs and reasonable attornfegs) incurred in connection with or
arising from any cause in, on or about the Prema®g acts, omissions or negligence of Tenant angfperson claiming by, through or un
Tenant, or of the contractors, agents, servantpl@mes, invitees, guests or licensees of Tenaahypisuch person, in, on or about the Project
or any breach of the TCCs of this Lease, eitherpd, during, or after the expiration of the Ledsem, provided that the TCCs of the
foregoing indemnity shall not apply to the negligerr willful misconduct of Landlord. Should Landidoe named as a defendant in any suit
brought against Tenant in connection with or aggnt of Tenant's occupancy of the Premises, Testalt pay to Landlord its costs and
expenses incurred in such suit, including with@uithtion, its actual professional fees such agaipprs', accountants' and attorneys' fees.
Further, Tenant's agreement to indemnify Landlangpant to this SECTION 10.1 is not intended aradl stot relieve any insurance carrie

its obligations under policies required to be @by Tenant pursuant to the provisions of thisseeto the extent such policies cover the
matters subject to Tenant's indemnification obiayet; nor shall they supersede any inconsistergeggent of the parties set forth in any other
provision of this Lease. The provisions of this

SECTION 10.1 shall survive the expiration or soaeemination of this Lease with respect to anyrokaor liability
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arising in connection with any event occurring ptmsuch expiration or termination. Notwithstarglamything to the contrary contained in
this Lease, nothing in this Lease shall imposedaiigations on Tenant or Landlord to be respongibléable for, and each hereby releases
the other from all liability for, consequential dages other than those consequential damages (iyéutcby Landlord in connection with a
holdover of the Premises by Tenant after the eipimaor earlier termination of this Lease or (iicurred by Landlord in connection with any
repair, physical construction or improvement woekfprmed by or on behalf of Tenant in the Projbat, Tenant shall not be responsible for
any direct or consequential damages resulting frandlord's or contractor's acts in connection wlhilh completion by Landlord of the Ten:
Improvements in the Premises pursuant to the TaNamk Letter.

10.2 LANDLORD'S FIRE, CASUALTY AND LIABILITY INSURANCE. Landlord shall carry commercial general lisgpiinsurance with
respect to the Building, the Project and the renhaimof the Pacific Corporate Center (to the exteatsame continues to be owned by
Landlord or its Affiliates) during the Lease Terwvering the insured against claims of bodily injand personal injury, for limits of liability
not initially less than $3,000,000 each occurreamoa $3,000,000 annual aggregate for each of badgilyy and personal injury, and shall
further insure the Building (including the Builditg8jructure), and the Project during the Lease Tagainst loss or damage due to fire and
other casualties covered within the classificatibfire and extended coverage, vandalism coveragenzlicious mischief, sprinkler leakage,
water damage and special extended coverage. Suehage shall be in such amounts, from such compaaie on such other TCCs, as
Landlord may from time to time reasonably determprevided, however, that to the extent consistétit the practices of landlords of
Comparable Buildings, such coverage shall be (i}He full replacement value of the Building and froject in compliance with all then-
existing Applicable Law, and (ii) with companiesdamave policies meeting the criteria set forth étt®n 10.4(iii) of this Lease. Additionall
at the option of Landlord, such insurance coveragg include the risks of earthquakes and/or flomchage and additional hazards, a rental
loss endorsement and one or more loss payee entamtein favor of the holders of any mortgagesemds of trust encumbering the interest
of Landlord in the Building or the ground or ungeémb lessors of the Building, or any portion thdrgwovided, however, any such earthqu
insurance shall be subject to Tenant's reasongbi®wal of any earthquake insurance carried by laaddvith respect to the Building;
provided further, however, it shall be deemed uswaable for Tenant to withhold such consent tcetttent (A) such earthquake insurance is
mandated by applicable governmental entities, dtgBdlords of Comparable Buildings are requiringtsearthquake insurance policies be
maintained and Landlord's earthquake insuranceyicommercially reasonably vis-a-vis such thuedty policies. Notwithstanding the
foregoing provisions of this SECTION 10.2, the cage and amounts of insurance carried by Landlombnnection with the Building shall,
at a minimum, be comparable to the coverage andiats@f insurance which are carried by reasonahlgent landlords of Comparable
Buildings, and Worker's Compensation and Employédbility coverage as required by applicable |&wnant shall, at Tenant's expense,
comply with all insurance company requirementsgiging to the use of the Premises for other thamaband customary implementation of
the Permitted Use. If Tenant's conduct or use @fFttemises causes any increase in the premiuradbrissurance policies then Tenant shall
reimburse Landlord for any such increase to therddaused by Tenant's use of the Premises for thtéve normal and customary
implementation of the Permitted Use. Tenant, atah€éa expense, shall comply with all rules, ordergulations or requirements of
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the American Insurance Association (formerly theidteal Board of Fire Underwriters) and with any sanbody.

10.3 TENANT'S INSURANCE. Tenant shall, to the extawailable at commercially reasonable rates, raairthe following coverages in the
following amounts.

10.3.1 Commercial General Liability Insurance cavgthe insured against claims of bodily injuryrgmnal injury and property damage
(including loss of use thereof) arising out of Tet'®operations, and contractual liabilities (cavgthe performance by Tenant of its
indemnity agreements) including a Broad Form ensloent covering the insuring provisions of this leeasd the performance by Tenant of
the indemnity agreements set forth in

SECTION 10.1 of this Lease, for limits of liabilityot less than:

Bodily Injury and $3,000,000 each occurrence

Property Damage Liability $3,000,000 annual aggregate

Personal Injury Liability $3,000,000 each occurrence
$3,000,000 annual aggregate
0% Insured 's participation

10.3.2 Physical Damage Insurance covering (i) féit@furniture, business and trade fixtures, afaquipment, free-standing cabinet work,
movable partitions, merchandise and all other itefBenant's property on the Premises installeddry or at the expense of Tenant, (ii) the
"Tenant Improvements," as that term is defined®CEION 2.1 of the Tenant Work Letter, and any othgsrovements which exist in the
Premises as of the Lease Commencement Date (exgltlth Base and Shell) (the "ORIGINAL Improvemehtahd (iii) all other Alterations
to the Premises. Such insurance shall be writteandtall risks" of physical loss or damage basis ffie full replacement cost value (subjer
reasonable deductible amounts) new without dedudtiodepreciation of the covered items and in am®that meet any cimsurance claus
of the policies of insurance and shall include cage for damage or other loss caused by fire aragikril including, but not limited to,
vandalism and malicious mischief, theft, water dgenaf any type, including sprinkler leakage, buigtbr stoppage of pipes, and explosion,
and providing business interruption coverage fpedod of one year.

10.3.3 Worker's Compensation and Employer's Lighdi other similar insurance pursuant to all aggdhie state and local statutes and
regulations.

10.4 FORM OF POLICIES. The minimum limits of poéisi of insurance required of Tenant under this Leha# in no event limit the

liability of Tenant under this Lease. Such insumshall (i) name Landlord, and any other partylthedlord so specifies that has a material
financial interest in the Project, as an additianalred, including Landlord's managing agentnif;a

(i) specifically cover the liability assumed byfant under this Lease, including, but not limitedTenant's obligations under SECTION 1
of this Lease; (iii) be issued by an insurance canyphaving a rating of not less than A-:VIIl in Bednsurance Guide or which is otherwise
acceptable to Landlord and licensed to do busiimege State of California; (iv) be primary insucanas to all claims thereunder and provide
that any insurance carried by Landlord
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is excess and is non-contributing with any insuearggjuirement of Tenant; and

(v) provide that said insurance shall not be cattel coverage changed unless ten (10) days'writien notice shall have been given to
Landlord and any mortgagee of Landlord, the idgntftwhom has been provided to Tenant in writingnant shall deliver said policy or
policies or certificates thereof to Landlord orbefore the Lease Commencement Date and at legtst (80) days before the expiration dates
thereof. In the event Tenant shall fail to procsumeh insurance, or to deliver such policies orifigaite, Landlord may, at its option, after
written notice to Tenant and Tenant's failure ttadbsuch insurance within ten (10) days thereaftercure such policies for the account of
Tenant, and the cost thereof shall be paid to laaddbithin thirty (30) days after delivery to Tenani bills therefor.

10.5 SUBROGATION. Landlord and Tenant intend tiadirt respective property loss risks shall be bdmynesasonable insurance carriers to
the extent above provided, and Landlord and Tehargby agree to look solely to, and seek recovely foom, their respective insurance
carriers in the event of a property loss to themixthat such coverage is agreed to be providezlhder. The parties each hereby waive all
rights and claims against each other for such &ss®l waive all rights of subrogation of theipmive insurers. The parties agree that their
respective insurance policies are now, or shalehdprsed such that the waiver of subrogation siwalaffect the right of the insured to
recover thereunder, so long as no material additipremium is charged therefor.

10.6 ADDITIONAL INSURANCE OBLIGATIONS. Tenant shatlarry and maintain during the entire Lease Tetrieaant's sole cost and
expense, increased amounts of the insurance redoitee carried by Tenant pursuant to this ARTIQIEand such other reasonable types of
insurance coverage and in such reasonable amawesig the Premises and Tenant's operations thexeimay be reasonably requested by
Landlord, but in no event in excess of the amoantstypes of insurance then being required by taddlof other Comparable Buildings.

ARTICLE 11
DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION

11.1 REPAIR OF DAMAGE TO PREMISES BY LANDLORD. Temashall promptly notify Landlord of any damage do affecting, the
Premises resulting from fire or any other casuditthe Premises, the Project or any Common Areagirsg or providing access to the
Premises shall be damaged by fire or other casuadtydlord shall promptly and diligently, subjectreasonable delays for insurance
adjustment or other matters beyond Landlord's restsle control, and subject to all other TCCs of hRTICLE 11, restore the Base and
Shell (but excluding the Tenant Improvements careséd by Tenant pursuant to the Tenant Work Lested) such Common Areas. Such
restoration shall be to substantially the same itimmdof the Base and Shell (but excluding the Tenmprovements constructed by Tenant
pursuant to the Tenant Work Letter) and the Com#aas prior to the casualty, except for modificatisequired by zoning and building
codes and other laws, provided that access torfraiBes and any common restrooms serving the Resraied Tenant's use of shall not be
materially impaired. Upon the occurrence of any dgento the Premises, upon notice (the "TENANT REPNDTICE") to Landlord from
Tenant, Tenant shall assign to Landlord (or to @eyy designated by Landlord) all insurance prosgeyable to Tenant under Tenant's
insurance
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required under SECTION 10.3.2 of this Lease, anablard shall repair any injury or damage to the ardrimprovements and the Original
Improvements installed in the Premises and shalfmesuch Tenant Improvements and Original Improsets to their original condition;
provided that if the cost of such repair by Landlexceeds the greater of (a) the amount of inserpmuceeds received by Landlord from
Tenant's insurance carrier, as assigned by Teoant,

(b) the amount of insurance required to be maiethimereunder (whether by Landlord or Tenant), s of such repairs shall be paid by
Tenant to Landlord prior to Landlord's commencenaémepair of the damage. Following delivery of enint Repair Notice, prior to the
commencement of construction, Tenant shall subitinhdlord, for Landlord's review and approval,p@é#ns, specifications and working
drawings relating thereto, and Landlord shall gef@ith Tenant's reasonable approval) the contradmperform such improvement work.
Landlord shall not be liable for any inconvenienc@annoyance to Tenant or its visitors, or injuryfenant's business resulting in any way
from such damage or the repair thereof; provideslewver, that if such fire or other casualty shaltdhdamaged the Premises or Common
Areas necessary to Tenant's occupancy, Landlottadlmav Tenant a proportionate abatement of Rernthe extent the Premises and/or
Common Areas are unavailable for Tenant's use aogpancy regardless of whether Landlord is reimgmifeom the proceeds of rental
interruption insurance purchased or required tpurehased by Landlord as part of Operating Expemkeg the time and to the extent the
Premises are unfit for occupancy for the purposemiited under this Lease, and not occupied by fiieasa result thereof.

11.2 OPTIONS TO REPAIR AND/OR TERMINATE.

11.2.1 LANDLORD'S OPTION TO REPAIR. Notwithstandittge TCCs of

SECTION 11.1 of this Lease, Landlord may electtoaebuild and/or restore the Premises, Buildind/anProject, and instead terminate this
Lease (or the applicable portion thereof), by it Tenant in writing of such termination withiarfy-five (45) days after the date of
discovery of the damage, such notice to includermination date giving Tenant sixty (60) days toata the Premises, but Landlord may so
elect only if the Building or Project shall be daged by fire or other casualty or cause, if one oravof the following conditions is present:

in Landlord's reasonable judgment, repairs caneaanably be completed within fifteen (15) monthsrahe date of discovery of the dam
(when such repairs are made without the paymeov@ftime or other premiums); (i) the damage toBléding (but excluding the Tenant
Improvements constructed by Tenant pursuant td@ @mant Work Letter) is not fully covered by Landl@rinsurance policies (provided
Landlord shall be deemed to have carried (exceipt regard to any applicable deductibles) one huhgercent (100%) replacement cost
fire/casualty insurance); or (iii) the damage osaluring the last twelve (12) months of the LeasenT

11.2.2 TENANT'S OPTIONS TO TERMINATE. If Landlordisitial estimate of the rebuilding/reconstructiperiod is longer than fifteen (1
months, yet Landlord does not elect to terminaiteltkase pursuant to Landlord's termination riglefhant shall have the right to terminate
this Lease in writing within twenty (20) businessyd following its receipt of such initial estimatéLandlord does not elect to terminate this
Lease pursuant to Landlord's termination rightrasided above, and Tenant does not elect, if apgple; to terminate this Lease pursuant to
the foregoing sentence, and if the repairs to beenty Landlord are not actually completed withia kbnger of (X) fifteen (15) months of the
date of discovery of the
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damage, or (Y) such longer period to the extendland's initial estimate of the rebuilding/reconstiion period was longer than fifteen (15)
months, Tenant shall have the right to terminaiteltase during the first five (5) business daysaith calendar month following the end of
such period until such time as the repairs to bdentgy Landlord are complete, by notice to Landlpheé "DAMAGE TERMINATION
NOTICE"), effective as of a date set forth in thaniage Termination Notice (the "DAMAGE TERMINATIONATE"), which Damage
Termination Date shall not be less than five (5ibess days following Landlord's receipt of the g Termination Notice.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Tenant deliver®amage Termination Notice to Landlord, then Landiishall have the right to suspend
occurrence of the Damage Termination Date for adenf thirty (30) days after the Damage Terminatidate set forth in the Damage
Termination Notice by delivering to Tenant, witlive (5) business days of Landlord's receipt of Bizenage Termination Notice, a certific
of Landlord's contractor responsible for the repaithe damage certifying that it is such contrdstgood faith judgment that the repairs to be
made by Landlord shall be substantially completétinthirty (30) days after the Damage Terminatidate. If such repairs shall be
substantially completed prior to the expiratiorsath thirtyday period, then the Damage Termination Noticel &feabf no force or effect, b
if such repairs shall not be substantially completéthin such thirty-day period, then this Leasalktermination upon the expiration of such
thirty-day period.

11.3 WAIVER OF STATUTORY PROVISIONS. The provisiookthis Lease, including this ARTICLE 11, constéwan express agreement
between Landlord and Tenant with respect to anyadimthmage to, or destruction of, all or any mdithe Premises, the Building or the
Project, and any statute or regulation of the Sihtealifornia, including, without limitation, Seohs 1932(2) and 1933(4) of the California
Civil Code, with respect to any rights or obligasoconcerning damage or destruction in the absafree express agreement between the
parties, and any other statute or regulation, noheoeafter in effect, shall have no applicatiothis Lease or any damage or destruction t
or any part of the Premises, the Building or thejéut.

ARTICLE 12
NONWAIVER

No provision of this Lease shall be deemed waivedither party hereto unless expressly waived iitivgr signed thereby. The waiver

either party hereto of any breach of any term, namé or condition herein contained shall not bevtekto be a waiver of any subsequent
breach of same or any other term, covenant or tiondierein contained. The subsequent acceptanRemfhereunder by Landlord shall not
be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding breadrebgnt of any term, covenant or condition of ttéase, other than the failure of Tenant
to pay the particular Rent so accepted, regardiesandlord's knowledge of such preceding breadghatime of acceptance of such Rent. No
acceptance of a lesser amount than the Rent h&tipidated shall be deemed a waiver of Landloigtst to receive the full amount due, nor
shall any endorsement or statement on any chep&yonent or any letter accompanying such check ympat be deemed an accord and
satisfaction, and Landlord may accept such chegagment without prejudice to Landlord's right écover the full amount due. No receipt
of monies by Landlord from Tenant after the terrtiomaof this Lease shall in any way alter the léngt the Lease Term or of Tenant's right
of possession hereunder, or after the giving ofraotice shall reinstate, continue or extend theseégerm or affect any notice
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given Tenant prior to the receipt of such moniebeing agreed that after the service of noticdhhercommencement of a suit, or after final
judgment for possession of the Premises, Landlay raceive and collect any Rent due, and the payofesaid Rent shall not waive
affect said notice, suit or judgment.

ARTICLE 13
CONDEMNATION

13.1 CONDEMNATION. If the whole or any part of tReemises, Building or Project shall be taken by g@oaf eminent domain or
condemned by any competent authority for any puiliguasi-public use or purpose, or if any adjapeaperty or street shall be so taken or
condemned, or reconfigured or vacated by such &thio such manner as to require the use, recoastn or remodeling of any part of the
Premises, Building or Project, and if as a rehdtéof Tenant cannot conduct its business opegatisubstantially the same manner such
business operations were conducted prior to suéhgavhile still retaining substantially the samaterial rights and benefits it bargained to
receive under this Lease, or if Landlord shall ggeadeed or other instrument in lieu of such takbiggeminent domain or condemnation as a
result thereof, Landlord and Tenant shall each tlageption to terminate this Lease on ninety

(90) days Notice to the other party effective athefdate possession is required to be surrendetbe authority. Subject to SECTION 13.2
below, Tenant shall not because of such takingreasg claim against Landlord or the authority &ory compensation because of such taking
and Landlord shall be entitled to the entire aw@rgayment in connection therewith, except thatafgrshall have the right to file any
separate claim available to Tenant for any takinfemant's personal property and fixtures belongingenant and removable by Tenant u
expiration of the Lease Term pursuant to the TCiQhkis Lease, and for moving expenses, so longials slaims do not diminish the award
available to Landlord, its ground lessor with retfie the Building or Project or its mortgagee, andh claim is payable separately to Tenant.
All Rent shall be apportioned as of the date ohdgeemination. If any part of the Premises shaltdleen, and this Lease shall not be so
terminated, the Rent shall be proportionately abalenant hereby waives any and all rights it migherwise have pursuant to Section
1265.130 of The California Code of Civil Procedudetwithstanding anything to the contrary containethis ARTICLE 13, in the event of
temporary taking of all or any portion of the Preas for a period of ninety (90) days or less, tiésiLease shall not terminate but the Base
Rent and the Additional Rent shall be abated ferghriod of such taking in proportion to the rahiat the amount of rentable square feet of
the Premises taken bears to the total rentableasdeet of the Premises. Subject to SECTION 13l@vind_andlord shall be entitled to rece
the entire award made in connection with any seafporary taking.

13.2 TENANT'S RIGHT TO AWARD. Notwithstanding anyily to the contrary set forth in SECTION 13.1 aholenant shall have the ric
to claim and recover and Landlord hereby assigi®tmnt from the award, (i) the fair market valtid enant Improvements and Alterations
to the extent paid for solely by Tenant, (ii) fifhgrcent (50%) of any sum attributable to a dimowbf the present value (at the date of such
taking) of the fair market rental value of portiafs¢he Premises not condemned for the remaindtreoferm and any extensions, (iii) fifty
percent (50%) of any sum attributable to an exoédise present value (at the date of taking) offttiemarket rental value of the condemned
portion of the Premises for the
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remainder of the term and any extensions over tbeemt value at the date of taking of the actuakBRent for the remainder of the Lease
Term and any Option Term, (iv) any sum awardeddonaht for damages to or loss of Tenant's busiaesis(v) such compensation as may be
separately awarded or recoverable by Tenant oruatod any and all costs or losses related to reéngoVenant's merchandise, furniture,
fixtures, leasehold improvements, and equipmeatrew location.

ARTICLE 14
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

14.1 TRANSFERS. Tenant shall not, without the pwioitten consent (except as otherwise providedB€EION 14.8 below) of Landlord,
which consent will not be unreasonably withheldhditioned or delayed, assign, mortgage, pledgeptgzate, encumber, or permit any lien
to attach to, or otherwise transfer, this Leasenyrinterest hereunder, permit any assignmentthar dransfer of this Lease or any interest
hereunder by operation of law, sublet the Premisesy part thereof, or enter into any license@raession agreements or otherwise permit
the occupancy or use of the Premises or any paredii by any persons other than Tenant and its@mpé and contractors (all of the
foregoing are hereinafter sometimes referred tectively as "TRANSFERS" and any person to whom aransfer is made or sought to be
made is hereinafter sometimes referred to as a NBAEREE"). If Tenant desires Landlord's consemairty Transfer, Tenant shall notify
Landlord in writing, which notice (the "TRANSFER N@GCE") shall include (i) the proposed effective elaf the Transfer, which shall not be
less than thirty (30) days nor more than one huhdighty (180) days after the date of deliveryhef Transfer Notice,

(i) a description of the portion of the Premisese transferred (the "SUBJECT SPACE"), (iii) dltlee terms of the proposed Transfer and
the consideration therefor, including calculatidrth@ "Transfer Premium®”, as that term is define SECTION 14.3 below, in connection w
such Transfer, the name and address of the profaaedferee, and a copy of all existing executati@mproposed documentation pertaining
to the proposed Transfer, including all existin@i@tive documents to be executed to evidence statsfer or the agreements incidental or
related to such Transfer, provided that Landlomidiave the right to require Tenant to utilize Haowd's standard consent documents in
connection with the documentation of Landlord'sseort to such Transfer, (iv) to the extent reasgnabdtessary for Landlord to make its
consent determination, current financial statemehtle proposed Transferee certified by an offipartner or owner thereof, business credit
and personal references and history of the prop®samtsferee and any other information required agdlord which will enable Landlord to
determine the financial responsibility, character reputation of the proposed Transferee, nafisadah Transferee's business and proposed
use of the Subject Space and (v) an executed edtogqtificate from Tenant in the form attachedetteras EXHIBIT E. Any Transfer made
without Landlord's prior written consent shallLandlord's option, be null, void and of no effeantd shall, at Landlord's option (to the extent
not cured within the applicable notice and cureqayr constitute a default by Tenant under thisdeedVhether or not Landlord consents to
any proposed Transfer, Tenant shall, within th{&§) days after written request by Landlord, reinsieuLandlord for all reasonable and actual
out-of-pocket third-party costs and expenses ity Landlord in connection with its review of @posed Transfer; provided that such
costs and expenses shall not exceed One Thousdrdodh00 Dollars ($1,000.00) for a Transfer in ¢ndinary course of business.
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14.2 LANDLORD'S CONSENT. Landlord shall not unreaably withhold its consent to any proposed Trangféhe Subject Space to the
Transferee on the terms specified in the Transfgicl. Without limitation as to other reasonableurds for withholding consent, the parties
hereby agree that it shall be reasonable undet.ézise and under any applicable law for Landlorditbhold consent to any proposed
Transfer where one or more of the following apply:

14.2.1 The Transferee is of a character or requurtair engaged in a business which is not consistightthe quality of the Building or the
Project;

14.2.2 The Transferee intends to use the SubjexteSipr purposes which are not permitted underltbése;
14.2.3 The Transferee is either a governmental@geninstrumentality thereof;
14.2.4 Intentionally Omitted:;

14.2.5 Transferee's financial worth and/or finahsiability is insufficient to meet the proposendancial obligations on the date consent is
requested;

14.2.6 The proposed Transfer would cause a viglaifanother lease for space in the Project, ofdvgive an occupant of the Project a right
to cancel its lease; or

14.2.7 The terms of the proposed Transfer willvaltbe Transferee (other than a an Affiliate or Atted Transferee; i.e., any other assignee,
sublessee or other transferee of the Original Té&narterest in this Lease) to exercise a righeokewal, right of expansion, right of first offer,
or other similar right held by Tenant (or will alche Transferee to occupy space leased by Tenastignt to any such right).

If Landlord consents to any Transfer pursuant €Tl Cs of this

SECTION 14.2, Tenant may within six (6) months mftendlord's consent, but not later than the exjpinaof said six-month period, enter
into such Transfer of the Premises or portion thigngpon substantially the same TCCs as are skt iiothe Transfer Notice furnished by
Tenant to Landlord pursuant to SECTION 14.1 of tléase, provided that if there are any materiahgka in the TCCs from those specified
in the Transfer Notice such that Landlord wouldi@tly have been entitled to refuse its consersiuich Transfer under this SECTION 14.2,
Tenant shall again submit the Transfer to Landfordts approval and other action under this ARTEC14 (including Landlord's right of
recapture, if any, under SECTION 14.4 of this Lg@aNetwithstanding anything to the contrary in thiesase, if Tenant or any proposed
Transferee claims that Landlord has unreasonaliyheid or delayed its consent under SECTION 14 @tlerwise has breached or acted
unreasonably under this ARTICLE 14, they shall hdneeremedies available to them at law or equitythe event Tenant requests Landlord's
consent to a proposed Transfer, Tenant shall indgntefend and hold harmless Landlord from any aldiability, losses, claims, damages,
costs, expenses, causes of action and proceediwgsing any third party or parties (including watlt limitation Tenant's proposed subter
or assignee) who claim they were damaged by Laddlevrongful withholding or conditioning of Landtbs consent, unless a court of
competent jurisdiction determines that Landlordeasionably withheld, delayed or
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conditioned its consent or was otherwise wrongilits withholding, delaying or conditioning of itensent.

14.3 TRANSFER PREMIUM. If Landlord consents to afsfer, as a condition thereto which the partigstheagree is reasonable, Tenant
shall pay to Landlord forty percent (40%) of anyaisfer Premium," as that term is defined in tlECEION 14.3, received by Tenant from
such Transferee. "TRANSFER PREMIUM" shall mearreatit, additional rent or other consideration pagdiyl such Transferee in connec
with the Transfer in excess of the Rent and Addaidrent payable by Tenant under this Lease duhiegerm of the Transfer on a per
rentable square foot basis if less than all ofRhemises is transferred, after deducting all expeirecurred by Tenant for (i) any changes,
alterations and improvements to the Premises inection with the Transfer, (ii) any free base nqamuivided to the Transferee, (iii) any
brokerage commissions in connection with the Tremsind (iv) any marketing costs and legal feed,(@hany other costs or concessions
incurred or granted in connection with the Transféransfer Premium" shall also include, but notibeted to, key money, bonus money or
other cash consideration paid by Transferee to ftanaconnection with such Transfer, and any payrireexcess of fair market value for
goods or services transferred or rendered by Tdoafansferee to the extent the same is a sulgeetiy Tenant to avoid its obligations un
this Lease. In the calculations of the Rent (aslétes to the Transfer Premium calculated undstfS3ECTION 14.3), and the Transferee's
Rent and Quoted Rent under SECTION 14.2 of thiséetihe Rent paid during each annual period fo6titgect Space, and the Transferee's
Rent and the Quoted Rent, shall be computed affasting such rent to the actual effective rerthéqaid, taking into consideration any and
all leasehold concessions granted in connectiaewith, including, but not limited to, any rent dieand tenant improvement allowance. For
purposes of calculating any such effective rensath concessions shall be amortized on a striighbasis over the relevant term.

14.4 INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.

14.5 EFFECT OF TRANSFER. If Landlord consents Txansfer, (i) the TCCs of this Lease shall in noyWwa deemed to have been waived
or modified, (ii) such consent shall not be deem@usent to any further Transfer by either Tenara dransferee, (iii) Tenant shall deliver to
Landlord, promptly after execution, an original exted copy of all documentation pertaining to tharBfer, and (iv) no Transfer relating to
this Lease or agreement entered into with respeceto, whether with or without Landlord's consehgll relieve Tenant from any liability
under this Lease, including, without limitation,dannection with the Subject Space. Landlord oaitthorized representatives shall have the
right at all reasonable times and upon reasonafie fotice to audit the books, records and pap€&fienant relating to any Transfer, and
shall have the right to make copies thereof. Ifthensfer Premium respecting any Transfer shalbbed understated, Tenant shall, within
thirty (30) days after demand, pay the deficierany if understated by more than five percent (5Péhant shall pay Landlord's costs of such
audit.

14.6 INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.

14.7 OCCURRENCE OF DEFAULT. Any Transfer hereursteall be subordinate and subject to the provisadrikis Lease, and if this Lee
shall be terminated during the term of any
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Transfer, Landlord shall have the right to: (i)etreuch Transfer as cancelled and repossess tliecE8pace by any lawful means, or (i)
require that such Transferee attorn to and recedréndlord as its landlord under any such Tran#f@renant shall be in default under this
Lease (beyond any applicable notice and cure pg¥idéndlord is hereby authorized to direct anyngfaree to make all payments under ¢
connection with the Transfer directly to Landloveh{ch Landlord shall apply towards Tenant's obiigat under this Lease) until such def:

is cured. Such Transferee shall rely on any reptatien by Landlord that Tenant is in default herer, without any need for confirmation
thereof by Tenant. Upon any assignment, the assighall assume in writing all obligations and cars of Tenant thereafter to be
performed or observed under this Lease. No collaatr acceptance of rent by Landlord from any Tiere® shall be deemed a waiver of any
provision of this ARTICLE 14 or the approval of afgansferee or a release of Tenant from any olidigainder this Lease, whether
theretofore or thereafter accruing. In no eventl dtendlord’'s enforcement of any provision of thisase against any Transferee be deemed a
waiver of Landlord's right to enforce any term loistLease against Tenant or any other person.

14.8 NON-TRANSFERS. Notwithstanding anything to tioatrary contained in this ARTICLE 14, an assigniva¥ subletting of all or a
portion of the Premises to any entity which accgial or a part of Tenant, or which is acquiredvimole or in part by Tenant, or which is
controlled directly or indirectly by Tenant, or whientity controls, directly or indirectly, Tenasrtwhich acquires all or substantially all of
the stock or assets of Tenant (in each such cas&RFILIATE"), or any entity which owns or is owdéy an Affiliate, shall not be deeme
Transfer under this ARTICLE 14, provided that atstethirty (30) days prior to such assignment dlesase (i) Tenant provides Landlord with
reasonable evidence that any such entity maintaimet worth, calculated in accordance with gengeadbepted accounting principals,
consistently applied ("NET WORTH"), sufficient toeet the financial obligation hereunder; (ii) Tenaatifies Landlord of any such
assignment or sublease; and

(iii) such assignment or sublease is not a sulijerhly Tenant to avoid its obligations under thiade= In the event an assignment or sublease
to an Affiliate is made pursuant to the TCCs o$tBECTION 14.8, Tenant shall be relieved of itsgattlons under this Lease to the extent
same become the TCCs of such Affiliate pursuasuth assignment or sublease. In no event shalifarng of stock to third parties by
means of a public or private offering constitut&eansfer.”" "CONTROL," as used in this SECTION 14Ball mean the possession, directly
or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause thiection of the management and policies of a pemaentity, whether by ownership of voti
securities, by contract or otherwise.

ARTICLE 15

SURRENDER OF PREMISES; OWNERSHIP AND
REMOVAL OF TRADE FIXTURES

15.1 SURRENDER OF PREMISES. No act or thing donédydlord or any agent or employee of Landlord migithe Lease Term shall be
deemed to constitute an acceptance by Landlordsafrander of the Premises unless such inteneisifsally acknowledged in writing by
Landlord. The delivery of keys to the Premisesandlord or any agent or employee of Landlord shatllconstitute a surrender of the
Premises or effect a termination of this Lease,thdreor not the keys are thereafter retained bydlaad, and notwithstanding such delivery
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Tenant shall be entitled to the return of such layany reasonable time upon request until thiséehall have been properly terminated. The
voluntary or other surrender of this Lease by Ténahether accepted by Landlord or not, or a muterhination hereof, shall not work a
merger, and at the option of Landlord shall opesatan assignment to Landlord of all subleasealtesancies affecting the Premises or
terminate any or all such sublessees or subtermancie

15.2 REMOVAL OF TENANT PROPERTY BY TENANT. Upon ttexpiration of the Lease Term, or upon any eatéenination of this
Lease, Tenant shall, subject to the provision#isfARTICLE 15, quit and surrender possession efRremises to Landlord in as good order
and condition as when Tenant took possession atiteesafter improved by Landlord and/or Tenantsoeable wear and tear, casualty
damage and repairs which are specifically madedsgonsibility of Landlord hereunder excepted. Upoch expiration or termination,
Tenant shall, without expense to Landlord, remaveanise to be removed from the Premises all dabdsubbish, and such items of
furniture, equipment, business and trade fixtuire®-standing cabinet work, movable partitions atier articles of personal property owned
by Tenant or installed or placed by Tenant atitsease in the Premises (excluding, however, thaifienant Improvements), and Tenant
shall repair at its own expense all damage to teeniRes and Building resulting from such removal.

ARTICLE 16
HOLDING OVER

If Tenant holds over after the expiration of theake Term or earlier termination thereof, with oth@ut the express or implied consent of
Landlord, such tenancy shall be from month¥tonth only, and shall not, except as set forthwetmnstitute a renewal hereof or an exten
for any further term, and in such case Rent sheapdyable at a monthly rate equal to the product of

(i) the Rent applicable during the last rental permf the Lease Term under this Lease, and (ii)lamared twentyfive percent (125%) for th
first two months of any such holdover and one heddifty percent (150%) thereafter. Such month-toath tenancy shall be subject to every
other applicable TCCs contained herein. Notwithditagn the foregoing, Tenant shall have the one-fiigigt, upon notice (the "HOLDOVER
NOTICE") to Landlord not less than nine (9) monghi®r to the expiration of the then Lease Termgxtend the Lease Term for a total per

of up to six (6) months (the "PERMITTED HOLDOVER REI"), in which case the Rent payable by Tenantughmut such Permitted
Holdover Term (as opposed to only the first tworf®nths pursuant to the first sentence of this ARH 16) shall equal the product of (a)
the Rent applicable during the last rental peribthe Lease Term under this Lease, and (b) oneredrtaventy-five percent (125%). For
purposes of this ARTICLE 16, a holding over shatlluide Tenant's remaining in the Premises moretthiety (30) days after the expiration
earlier termination of the Lease Term, as expressiyired pursuant to the TCCs of SECTION 8.5, abtw remove any Extraordinary
Alterations located within the Premises and to irepay damage to the Premises and Building caugesdibh removal (reasonable wear and
tear excepted). Except with respect to the Perchiteldover Term, nothing contained in this ARTICILE shall be construed as consent by
Landlord to any holding over by Tenant, and Landllexpressly reserves the right to require Tenaatiteender possession of the Premises to
Landlord as provided in this Lease upon the exjpinadr other termination of this Lease. The prawisi of this ARTICLE 16 shall not be
deemed to limit or constitute a waiver of any othights or remedies
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of Landlord provided herein or at law. Except dseotwvise specifically provided for in this ARTICLE Wwith regard to a Permitted Holdover
Term, if Tenant fails to surrender the Premisesnupe termination or expiration of this Lease (o expiration of the Permitted Holdover
Term, if any), in addition to any other liabilitiés Landlord accruing therefrom, Tenant shall pegtdefend, indemnify and hold Landlord
harmless from all loss, costs (including reasonatierneys' fees) and liability resulting from sdahure, including, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, any claims made by sungceeding tenant founded upon such failure teesder and any lost profits to Landlord
resulting therefrom.

ARTICLE 17
ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES

Within fifteen (15) business days following a regui@ writing by Landlord, Tenant shall executekramwledge and deliver to Landlord an
estoppel certificate, which, as submitted by Lardilshall be substantially in the form of EXHIBIT, &tached hereto (or such other
substantially similar form as may be required by prospective mortgagee or purchaser of the Praje@ny portion thereof), indicating
therein any exceptions thereto that may existattttime, and shall also contain any other infororatieasonably requested by Landlord or
Landlord's mortgagee or prospective mortgagee. Aith certificate may be relied upon by any prospechortgagee or purchaser of all or
any portion of the Project. At any time during ttemse Term, but in no event on more than two (2asions during any twelve (12)
consecutive month period, Landlord may require Tiet@ provide Landlord with a current financialtstaent and financial statements of the
two (2) years prior to the current financial stagetyear. Such statements shall be prepared indsmoee with generally accepted accounting
principles and, if such is the normal practice eh@nt, shall be audited by an independent certfidadic accountant. Such statements sha
subject to the confidentiality requirements settfan

SECTION 29.28 of this Lease. Landlord hereby agtegsovide to Tenant an estoppel certificate sigioy Landlord containing the same
types of information and within the same periodsoE as are set forth above, except for such dmag are reasonably necessary to reflect
that the estoppel certificate is being grantedsigded by Landlord to Tenant or Tenant's lendesigage or sublessee, rather than from
Tenant to Landlord or to Landlord's lender or pttpurchaser.

ARTICLE 18
SUBORDINATION

Subject to Tenant's receipt of an appropriate nistuibance agreement(s) as set forth below, thiséeshall be subject and subordinate to all
present and future ground or underlying leaseb@Building or Project and to the lien of any madg, trust deed or other encumbrances

or hereafter in force against the Building or Pcor any part thereof, if any, and to all renewaldensions, modifications, consolidations
and replacements thereof, and to all advances oradereafter to be made upon the security of sumtigages or trust deeds, unless the
holders of such mortgages, trust deeds or othameb@nces, or the lessors under such ground leas®lerlying leases, require in writing
that this Lease be superior thereto. As of the dbthis Lease, Landlord covenants that no deedust or ground or underlying lease
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encumbers the Building or Project. Landlord's d&ijvto Tenant of commercially reasonable non-distoce agreement(s) (the
"NONDISTURBANCE AGREEMENT") in favor of Tenant fromny ground lessor, mortgage holders or lien hesldéiandlord who later
come into existence at any time prior to the exjireof the Lease Term shall be in consideratigraofl a condition precedent to, Tenant's
agreement to be bound by the TCCs of this ARTICBEWith regard to such Nondisturbance Agreememnmamngés only cost in connection
therewith shall be its internal review costs (intthg any legal fees incurred in connection therewithether internally or externally sourced).
Such commercially reasonable Nondisturbance Agragsrshall include the obligation of any such susoeground lessor, mortgage holder
or lien holder to (i) recognize Tenant's right®ffset certain amounts against Base Rent due hdeeuo the extent expressly permitted
pursuant to the TCCs of this Lease,

(i) recognize Landlord's obligations to comply wthe TCCs of this Lease,

(iii) recognize Tenant's rights to otherwise reeatertain credits against Rent as set forth inlthase, and (iv) recognize Tenant's option to
purchase the Premises pursuant to the TCCs of ARH®D. Subject to Tenant's receipt of such a Ndodisnce Agreement, Tenant
covenants and agrees in the event any proceediads@ught for the foreclosure of any such mortgagéeed in lieu thereof (or if any
ground lease is terminated), to attorn, without degluctions or set-offs whatsoever, to the lienbiotd purchaser or any successors thereto
upon any such foreclosure sale or deed in lietetifdor to the ground lessor), if so requestedatea by such purchaser or lienholder or
ground lessor, and to recognize such purchasérdrdlder or ground lessor as the lessor undetase, provided such lienholder or
purchaser or ground lessor shall agree to accept#ase and not disturb Tenant's occupancy, spdsrTenant timely pays the rent and
observes and performs the TCCs of this Lease tibberved and performed by Tenant. Landlord's istdrerein may be assigned as security
at any time to any lienholder. Tenant shall, witfifteen

(15) business days of request by Landlord, exesuth further instruments or assurances as Landiagdreasonably deem necessary to
evidence or confirm the subordination or supenjooitthis Lease to any such mortgages, trust degdsand leases or underlying leases in
accordance with the TCCs of this ARTICLE 18. SubjecTenant's receipt of the Nondisturbance Agredrdescribed herein, Tenant waives
the provisions of any current or future statutés ar law which may give or purport to give Tenany right or election to terminate or
otherwise adversely affect this Lease and the atiigs of the Tenant hereunder in the event offargclosure proceeding or sale.

ARTICLE 19
DEFAULTS; REMEDIES
19.1 EVENTS OF DEFAULT. The occurrence of any @ tbllowing shall constitute a default of this Ledsy Tenant:

19.1.1 Any failure by Tenant to pay any Rent or ather charge required to be paid under this Leasany part thereof, within five (5)
business days after Tenant's receipt from Landibxgritten notice that the same was not paid wheey dr

19.1.2 Any failure by Tenant to observe or perfamy other provision, covenant or condition of thésse to be observed or performed by
Tenant where such failure continues for thirty (88ys after written notice thereof from Landlordlenant; provided that if the
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nature of such default is such that the same caeasbnably be cured within a thirty (30) day peribenant shall not be deemed to be in
default if it diligently commences such cure witlsinch period and thereafter diligently proceed®tify and cure such default; or

19.1.3 To the extent permitted by law, a genersigasnent by Tenant or any guarantor of this Leaséhie benefit of creditors, or the taking
of any corporate action in furtherance of bankrymticdissolution whether or not there exists argcpeding under an insolvency or
bankruptcy law, or the filing by or against Tenantiny guarantor of any proceeding under an insaly®r bankruptcy law, unless in the ¢
of a proceeding filed against Tenant or any guarathie same is dismissed within sixty (60) daygherappointment of a trustee or receive
take possession of all or substantially all ofdlssets of Tenant or any guarantor, unless posadsgiestored to Tenant or such guarantor
within thirty (30) days, or any execution or otlpgdicially authorized seizure of all or substanyialll of Tenant's assets located upon the
Premises or of Tenant's interest in this Leasaasnduch seizure is discharged within thirty (30)sg or

19.1.4 Intentionally omitted; or

19.1.5 The failure by Tenant to observe or perfagoording to the provisions of ARTICLES 5, 14, 1R @8 of this Lease where such failure
continues for more than ten (10) business days iaftice from Landlord.

The notice periods provided herein are in lieuanil not in addition to, any notice periods provitégdaw.

19.2 REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT. Upon the occurrenceany event of default by Tenant, Landlord shall hawveddition to any other
remedies available to Landlord at law or in equgty of which remedies shall be distinct, sepaeatd cumulative), the option to pursue any
one or more of the following remedies, each andfalthich shall be cumulative and nonexclusive haitt any notice or demand whatsoever.

19.2.1 Terminate this Lease, in which event Teshaatl imnmediately surrender the Premises to Laxlland if Tenant fails to do so,

Landlord may, without prejudice to any other remadhch it may have for possession or arrearagesrit) enter upon and take possession of
the Premises and expel or remove Tenant and aery p#ison who may be occupying the Premises opariythereof, without being liable

for prosecution or any claim or damages therefiod; laandlord may recover from Tenant the following:

(a) The worth at the time of any unpaid rent whicls been earned at the time of such terminatias; pl

(b) The worth at the time of award of the amountityjch the unpaid rent which would have been eaafest termination until the time of
award exceeds the amount of such rental loss #raarit proves could have been reasonably avoides!; pl

(c) The worth at the time of award of the amountbych the unpaid rent for the balance of the Leesen after the time of award exceeds
the amount of such rental loss that Tenant provekldhave been reasonably avoided; plus
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(d) Any other amount necessary to compensate Lehfido all the detriment proximately caused by Trfsafailure to perform its obligations
under this Lease or which in the ordinary coursthimigs would be likely to result therefrom; and

(e) At Landlord's election, such other amountsddition to or in lieu of the foregoing as may bemitted from time to time by applicable
law.

The term "RENT" as used in this SECTION 19.2 shaldeemed to be and to mean all sums of everyenegquired to be paid by Tenant
pursuant to the TCCs of this Lease, whether to laaddr to others. As used in Paragraphs 19.2ah(@) (ii), above, the "worth at the time of
award" shall be computed by allowing interest atrdite set forth in ARTICLE 25 of this Lease, buhb case greater than the maximum
amount of such interest permitted by law. As useddragraph 19.2.1(iii) above, the "worth at theetiof award" shall be computed by
discounting such amount at the discount rate of-#deral Reserve Bank of San Francisco at thedfragvard plus one percent (1%).

19.2.2 Landlord shall have the remedy describe@ialifornia Civil Code Section 1951.4 (lessor mawtiaue lease in effect after lessee's
breach and abandonment and recover rent as it leescduoe, if lessee has the right to sublet or assignject only to reasonable limitations).
Accordingly, if Landlord does not elect to termiaahis Lease on account of any default by Tenaamdlord may, from time to time, without
terminating this Lease, enforce all of its rightsl aemedies under this Lease, including the riglietover all rent as it becomes due.

19.2.3 Landlord shall at all times have the riginid remedies (which shall be cumulative with eabtleroand cumulative and in addition to
those rights and remedies available under SECTIONS.1 AND 19.2.2, above, or any law or other psmn of this Lease), without prior
demand or notice except as required by applicatvle o seek any declaratory, injunctive or otharitdple relief, and specifically enforce tl
Lease, or restrain or enjoin a violation or breathny provision hereof.

19.3 SUBLEASES OF TENANT. Whether or not Landlolelcts to terminate this Lease on account of angudeby Tenant, as set forth in
this ARTICLE 19, Landlord shall have the right &arhinate any and all subleases, licenses, concsssimther consensual arrangements for
possession entered into by Tenant and affectin@tbmises or may, in Landlord's sole discretioncead to Tenant's interest in such
subleases, licenses, concessions or arrangemetite évent of Landlord's election to succeed twafés interest in any such subleases,
licenses, concessions or arrangements, Tenant abaf the date of notice by Landlord of suchtéec have no further right to or interest in
the rent or other consideration receivable thereund

19.4 FORM OF PAYMENT AFTER DEFAULT. Following theeourrence of three (3) financial events of defaylfTenant in any twelve

(12) consecutive month period, Landlord shall hitneeright to require that any or all subsequentam®paid by Tenant to Landlord
hereunder, whether to cure the default in quegtiastherwise, be paid in the form of cash, monalegrcashier's or certified check drawn on
an institution acceptable to Landlord, or by ottrerans approved by Landlord, notwithstanding angrgiactice of accepting payments in
any different form.
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19.5 EFFORTS TO RELET. No re-entry or repossessgpairs, maintenance, changes, alterations antady reletting, appointment of a
receiver to protect Landlord's interests hereunateany other action or omission by Landlord sbhallconstrued as an election by Landlord to
terminate this Lease or Tenant's right to possessioto accept a surrender of the Premises, radf stime operate to release Tenant in whole
or in part from any of Tenant's obligations hereemdnless express written notice of such intensaent by Landlord to Tenant. Tenant
hereby irrevocably waives any right otherwise aa# under any law to redeem or reinstate thise.eas

19.6 LANDLORD DEFAULT. Notwithstanding anything the contrary set forth in this Lease, Landlord khalin default in the performan
of any obligation required to be performed by Lamdlpursuant to this Lease if Landlord fails tofpen such obligation within thirty (30)
days after the receipt of notice from Tenant sy@uif in detail Landlord's failure to perform; praed, however, if the nature of Landlord's
obligation is such that more than thirty (30) days required for its performance, then LandlordIsta be in default under this Lease if it
shall commence such performance within such tki8®) day period and thereafter diligently purslesdame to completion. Upon any such
default by Landlord under this Lease, Tenant magept as otherwise specifically provided in thige to the contrary, exercise any of its
rights provided at law or in equity. Any award fraxtourt or arbitrator in favor of Tenant requirimayment by Landlord which is not paid
Landlord within the time period directed by sucheasy may be offset by Tenant from Rent next duepay@dble under this Lease; provided,
however, Tenant may not deduct the amount of theréagainst more than fifty percent (50%) of BasatRiext due and owing (until such
time as the entire amount of such judgment is dedi¢o the extent following a foreclosure or adigelieu of foreclosure.

ARTICLE 20
COVENANT OF QUIET ENJOYMENT

Landlord covenants that Tenant shall, during thaskeeTerm, peaceably and quietly have, hold and/éh@Premises subject to the TCCs,
provisions and agreements hereof without interfegesy any persons lawfully claiming by or througdndlord. The foregoing covenant is in
lieu of any other covenant express or implied.

ARTICLE 21
SECURITY DEPOSIT; LETTER OF CREDIT

21.1 SECURITY DEPOSIT. Concurrent with Tenant'scesion of this Lease, Tenant shall deposit withdlard a security deposit (the
"SECURITY DEPOSIT") in the amount set forth in SHON 8 of the Summary, as security for the faittfgalformance by Tenant of all of
its obligations under this Lease. If Tenant defawlith respect to any provisions of this Leaseluiding, but not limited to, the provisions
relating to the payment of Rent, the removal oferty and the repair of resultant damage, Landioagt, without notice to Tenant, but shall
not be required to apply all or any part of theBitg Deposit for the payment of any Rent or anyeotsum in default and Tenant shall, upon
demand therefor, restore the Security Deposistoriginal amount. Any unapplied portion of the @ity Deposit shall be returned to Tenant,
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or, at Landlord's option, to the last assigneeafdnt's interest hereunder, within sixty (60) dajlewing the expiration of the Lease Term.
Tenant shall not be entitled to any interest on3beurity Deposit. Tenant hereby waives the prowisiof Section 1950.7 of the California
Civil Code, or any successor statute.

21.2 LETTER OF CREDIT.

21.2.1 DELIVERY OF LETTER OF CREDIT. Unless the ddions of

SECTION 21.2.2.2 below are then being satisfiechahe shall deliver to Landlord, concurrently wikletmutual execution of this Lease, an
unconditional, clean, irrevocable letter of crdtlie "L-C") in an amount as set forth in SECTION22, below (the "LE AMOUNT"), which
L-C shall be issued by a money-center bank (a bdrikh accepts deposits, maintains accounts, hasah $an Diego office which will
negotiate a letter of credit, and whose deposésreaured by the FDIC) reasonably acceptable talload, and which L-C shall be in the form
of EXHIBIT H, attached hereto. Tenant shall payeaibenses, points and/or fees incurred by Tenasttaining the L-C. Landlord
acknowledges that the conditions of SECTION 212a?e, as of the date of this Lease, initially besatisfied and, accordingly, Tenant is not
initially obligated to deliver the L-C concurrenthyith the mutual execution of this Lease.

21.2.2 L-C AMOUNT.

21.2.2.1 CALCULATION OF L-C AMOUNT. For purposes tiifis Lease, the "L-C Amount" shall be, at any alidimes during the Lease
Term, an amount equal to twelve (12) months ofttie@-current Monthly Installment of Base Rent.

21.2.2.2 CONDITIONAL INCREASE/REDUCTION OF L-C AMONIT. Landlord and Tenant hereby acknowledge andeeatina the L-C
Amount is subject to increase and reduction througkhe Lease Term at the end of each financiattgquas set forth in this SECTION
21.2.2.2. The starting L-C Amount shall be detemsdipursuant to the calculation set forth in SECTIZIN2.2.1, above, as of the close of the
financial quarter ended December 31, 2001; providediever, Tenant shall not be required to iniialkliver such L-C to the extent (A)
Tenant has cash and cash equivalents (collectV@KSH") in excess, in the aggregate, of Sixty Mifl Dollars ($60,000,000.00), and (B)
Tenant has Market Capitalization in excess of Onad#ed Fifty Million Dollars ($150,000,000.00) (suthresholds to be, collectively, the
"REQUIRED THRESHOLDS"). "MARKET CAPITALIZATION" meas the product of (1) the number of outstandingeshaf Tenant on tt
last day of the applicable financial quarter (itbe most recently completed quarter), and (2ptrexage closing share price during the last
thirty (30) calendar days of the applicable finahcjuarter. Thereafter, (i) to the extent that Ter@ntinues to maintain the Required
Thresholds for four (4) consecutive financial qaest the then-determined L-C Amount shall be reddmgefifty percent (50%), (ii) to the
extent that Tenant continues to maintain the Regulthresholds for eight (8) consecutive financianters, the then-determined L-C Amount
shall be reduced to $0.00, and (iii) to the exthat Tenant is no longer maintaining the Requirbte$holds, the L-C Amount shall be
recalculated pursuant to

SECTION 21.2.2.1 based on the Market Capitalizagiod Cash as of the completion of such quartettamd-C shall immediately be
reissued in the "Required L-C Amount". In the eutatt such recalculated L-C Amount (at any givemetduring the Lease Term, the
"REQUIRED L-C AMOUNT"), is less than the then-cunté_-C Amount, Tenant shall have the right
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to cause the L-C Amount to be reduced to the ReduirC Amount, and Landlord shall timely executd deliver such commercially
reasonable documents to the issuer(s) of the L-#&eapresented to Landlord by such issuer(s) amtbgsbe reasonably necessary to
effectuate the change to the Require@ &mount. Likewise, following the completion of éefinancial quarter throughout the Lease Tern
the event that the Required L-C Amount is gredtantthe then-current L-C Amount, Tenant shall uineceipt of written notice from
Landlord (the "REESTABLISHMENT NOTICE"), cause theC Amount to be increased to equal the Requiregi Amount.

21.2.2.3 FAILURE TO REINSTATE; LIQUIDATED DAMAGESN THE EVENT THAT TENANT FAILS, WITHIN THIRTY (30)DAYS
FOLLOWING TENANT'S RECEIPT OF A REESTABLISHMENT NAQTE WITH REGARD TO THIS LEASE, THEN TENANT'S
MONTHLY INSTALLMENT OF BASE RENT SHALL BE INCREASEDBY ONE HUNDRED TEN (110%) OF ITS THEN EXISTING
LEVEL DURING THE PERIOD COMMENCING ON THE DATE WHIA IS THIRTY

(30) DAYS AFTER SUCH REESTABLISHMENT NOTICE AND ENNG ON THE EARLIER TO OCCUR OF (I) THE DATE SUCH C-
IS REESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF THIS

SECTION 21.2, OR (ll) THE DATE WHICH IS NINETY (9@AYS AFTER THE DATE OF SUCH REESTABLISHMENT NOTICHN
THE EVENT THAT TENANT FAILS, DURING SUCH THREE (3YJONTH PERIOD FOLLOWING THE DATE OF THE
REESTABLISHMENT NOTICE, TO CAUSE THE L-C TO BE REESBLISHED, THEN TENANT'S MONTHLY INSTALLMENT OF
BASE RENT SHALL BE INCREASED BY ONE HUNDRED TWENTWVE PERCENT (125%) OF ITS THEN EXISTING LEVEL
DURING THE PERIOD COMMENCING ON THE DATE WHICH ISINETY (90) DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF SUCH
REESTABLISHMENT NOTICE AND ENDING ON THE DATE SUCH-C IS RE-ISSUED/REESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO THE
TERMS OF THIS SECTION 21.2. THE PARTIES AGREE THATWOULD BE IMPRACTICABLE AND EXTREMELY DIFFICULT
TO ASCERTAIN THE ACTUAL DAMAGES SUFFERED BY LANDLOR AS A RESULT OF TENANT'S FAILURE TO TIMELY
REESTABLISH THE L-C FOLLOWING THE REESTABLISHMENT @TICE AS REQUIRED IN THIS

SECTION 21.2, AND THAT UNDER THE CIRCUMSTANCES EXTEING AS OF THE DATE OF THIS LEASE, THE LIQUIDATED
DAMAGES PROVIDED FOR IN THIS SECTION 21.2.3 REPRB$EA REASONABLE ESTIMATE OF THE DAMAGES WHICH
LANDLORD WILL INCUR AS A RESULT OF SUCH FAILURE, PRVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT THIS PROVISION SHALL NOT
WAIVE OR AFFECT LANDLORD'S RIGHTS AND TENANT'S INDEINITY OBLIGATIONS UNDER OTHER SECTIONS OF THIS
LEASE (EXCEPT THAT THE PARTIES SPECIFICALLY AGREEHAT THE FOREGOING PROVISION WAS AGREED TO IN LIEU
OF MAKING FAILURE TO RE-ESTABLISH THE L-C A DEFAULTUNDER THE LEASE). THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT
THE PAYMENT OF SUCH LIQUIDATED DAMAGES IS NOT INTERED AS A FORFEITURE OR PENALTY WITHIN THE
MEANING OF CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTION 3275 OR &9, BUT IS INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE LIQUIDATED DAMAGE
TO LANDLORD PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTON 1671. THE PARTIES HAVE SET FORTH THEIR INITIALS
BELOW TO INDICATE THEIR AGREEMENT WITH THE LIQUIDATED DAMAGES PROVISION CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION
21.2.3.
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21.2.3 APPLICATION OF LETTER OF CREDIT. The L-C #hze held by Landlord as security for the faithfdrformance by Tenant of all
the TCC's of this Lease to be kept and performed@dnant during the Lease Term. The L-C shall nahbetgaged, assigned or encumbered
in any manner whatsoever by Tenant without therpviitten consent of Landlord. If Tenant defaultsharespect to any provisions of this
Lease, including, but not limited to, the provisiaelating to the payment of Rent, or if Tenanisfeo renew the L-C at least thirty (30) days
before its expiration, Landlord may, but shall hetrequired to, draw upon all or any portion of th€ for payment of any Rent or any other
sum in default, or for the payment of any amouat ttandlord may reasonably spend or may becomeaiklil to spend by reason of Tenant's
default, or to compensate Landlord for any othes lor damage that Landlord may suffer by reasdrenfint's default. The use, applicatior
retention of the L-C, or any portion thereof, byndéord shall not prevent Landlord from exercisimy ather right or remedy provided by this
Lease or by law, it being intended that Landlorallshot first be required to proceed against th€ bnd shall not operate as a limitation on
any recovery to which Landlord may otherwise bétledt Any amount of the L-C which is drawn uponlbgndlord, but is not used or
applied by Landlord, shall be held by Landlord deémed a security deposit (the "L-C SECURITY DEPOESIIf any portion of the L-C is
drawn upon, Tenant shall, within ten (10) daysraftetten demand therefor, either (i) deposit cad Landlord (which cash shall be applied
by Landlord to the L-C Security Deposit) in an ambsufficient to cause the sum of thedL.Security Deposit and the amount of the remal
L-C to be equivalent to the amount of the L-C thequired under this Lease or (ii) reinstate the to€e amount then required under this
Lease, and if any portion of the L-C Security Depissused or applied, Tenant shall, within ten)(d@ys after written demand therefor,
deposit cash with Landlord (which cash shall bdiagpy Landlord to the L-C Security Deposit) inamount sufficient to restore the L-C
Security Deposit to the amount then required utiisrLease, and Tenant's failure to do so shadl Befault under this Lease; provided,
however, that upon Tenant's satisfaction of itseatic obligations and restoration of the L-C Sdgubieposit pursuant to this sentence, any
unused portion of the drawn upon funds shall berneid to Tenant. Tenant acknowledges that Landiasdthe right to transfer or mortgage
its interest in the Real Property and the Centdriarhis Lease and Tenant agrees that in the efenty such transfer or mortgage, Landlord
shall have the right to transfer or assign the S&curity Deposit and/or the L-C to the transfenemortgagee, and in the event of such
transfer, Tenant shall look solely to such trarefesr mortgagee for the return of the L-C Secwigposit and/or the L-C. Landlord shall pay
all costs associated with the transfer or re-issear the L-C due to Landlord's transfer or assigmimTenant shall, within five (5) days of
request by Landlord, execute such further instrumenassurances as Landlord may reasonably deesssay to evidence or confirm
Landlord's transfer or assignment of the L-C SegWeposit and/or the L-C to such transferee ortgagee. If Tenant is not then in default
under this Lease, the L-C Security Deposit andierlt-C, or any balance thereof, shall be returoebenant within thirty (30) days following
the expiration of the Lease Term.
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ARTICLE 22
TELECOMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT

At any time during the Lease Term, subject to tl&C§ of this ARTICLE 22 and ARTICLE 8 of this Lea3enant may install, at Tenant's
sole cost and expense, but without the paymentyRent or a license or similar fee or charge, anmore satellite dishes and/or microwave
dishes or other communications, HVAC or other emuéipt servicing the business conducted by Tenant Wwithin the Premises (all such
equipment, including non-telecommunication equiptmgrfor the sake of convenience, defined colletii as the
"TELECOMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT") upon the roof of hBuilding. The physical appearance and the sizkeoTelecommunicatior
Equipment shall be subject to Landlord's reasonaygoval, the location of any such installationthef Telecommunications Equipment shall
be designated by Tenant subject to Landlord's redde approval and Landlord may require Tenamstail screening around such
Telecommunications Equipment, at Tenant's soleausdtexpense, as reasonably designated by Landlenént shall maintain such
Telecommunications Equipment, at Tenant's soleaostexpense. In the event Tenant elects to erdtsisight to install the
Telecommunication Equipment, then Tenant shall gaedlord prior notice thereof. Tenant shall reimdauto Landlord the Actual Costs as
defined in SECTION 6.2 reasonably incurred by Landlin approving such Telecommunications Equipmerttyided, however, such
reimbursement shall not exceed Five Hundred and®@oDollars ($500.00) per approval. Tenant shaficee such Telecommunications
Equipment upon the expiration or earlier terminaidd this Lease and shall return the affected portif the rooftop and the Building to the
condition the rooftop and the Building would haweeh in had no such Telecommunications Equipment Inestalled (reasonable wear and
tear accepted). Such Telecommunications Equipniedlse installed pursuant to plans and specificetiapproved by Landlord, which
approval will not be unreasonably withheld, coratigd, or delayed. Such Telecommunications Equipisteadt, in all instances, comply with
applicable governmental laws, codes, rules andlaggas. Tenant's rooftop rights with regard to Tedecommunications Equipment shall be
exclusive and complete; provided, however, suchusie and complete use of the rooftop shall beqmal to the Original Tenant, its
Affiliates and/or any Permitted Transferee.

ARTICLE 23
SIGNS

23.1 INTERNAL TO PREMISES. Tenant, at its sole cstl expense, may install identification signaggndrere in the Premises including
the elevator lobby and corridors of the Premises.

23.2 INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.

23.3 PROHIBITED SIGNAGE AND OTHER ITEMS. Any signsotices, logos, pictures, names or advertisenvehiish require Landlord's
approval pursuant to this Lease which are installedithat have not been separately approved byldahohay be removed upon notice by
Landlord at the sole expense of Tenant. Tenantmoajnstall any signs on the exterior or roof of #roject or the Project Common Areas.
Any signs (subject to the TCCs of SECTION 23.4 of
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this Lease), window coverings, or blinds (everhd same are located behind the Landlord-approvadom coverings for the Building), or
other items visible from the exterior of the Pregsi®r Building, shall be subject to the prior appta@f Landlord, which shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed drall 10t be denied merely because it affects tipeamance of the Building; provided,
however, Landlord may require that a uniform exteaippearance of the Building be maintained.

23.4 TENANT'S SIGNAGE. Tenant shall be entitledrtstall the following signage in connection withrigait's lease of the Premises
(collectively, the "TENANT'S SIGNAGE"):

(i) One (1) building sign identifying Tenant's naared logo located at the top of the Building; and

(i) Exclusive signage on (x) a monument to be tedaon the Project at the main entrance pointedPtioject, and (y) to the extent any
requisite permits/approvals from applicable govegntal entities is secured by Tenant, a monumeb¢ tocated adjacent to the entrance of
the Building, both locations as set forth on thee*Rpproved Form of Tenant's Signage" attachedtbe® EXHIBIT L (the "PROJECT
MONUMENT SIGNS") or other location(s) mutually aneasonably agreed to between the parties; proviamegever, Landlord shall not
install any other signage on the Project excepitlthadlord may, subject to Tenant's reasonableapand at Landlord's sole cost and
expense, place a standard "owned and managedats@glocation on the Project reasonably approve@ldnant. In no event shall such
Landlord identification sign be larger or more pinant than any of Tenant's Signage. Landlord mag,aubject to Tenant's reasonable
approval and at Landlord's sole cost and expenstli a small sign indicating its ownership anchagement of the Building in the interior
the Building lobby in a location and of a size m@ably approved by Tenant.

23.4.1 SPECIFICATIONS AND PERMITS. Tenant's Signabell set forth Tenant's name and logo (or thésokffiliates, Permitted
Assignee or applicable subtenant, as the case pjastdetermined by Tenant in its sole discrefiooyided, however, in no event shall
Tenant's Signage include an "Objectionable Nangethat term is defined in SECTION 23.4.2, of thesake; provided further, however, in no
event shall any single sign contain the names/Iégosiore than three (3) separate entities. Thptgea, materials, color, design, lettering,
lighting, size, illumination, specifications andaex location of Tenant's Signage (collectively, t86GN SPECIFICATIONS") shall be subije
to the prior written approval of Landlord, whichpepval shall not be unreasonably withheld, condiéib or delayed, and shall be consistent
and compatible with the quality and nature of theific Corporate Center. Landlord hereby pre-apesahe depiction of Tenant's Project
Signage (and the Sign Specifications containedetheset forth in EXHIBIT L attached to this Leag@r purposes of this SECTION 23.4.1,
the reference to "name" shall mean name and/or logaddition, Tenant's Signage shall be subje@iioant's receipt of all required
governmental permits and approvals and shall bgesuto all Applicable Law and to any covenant:jditions and restrictions affecting the
Project. Landlord
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shall use commercially reasonable efforts to agsisant in obtaining all necessary governmentahjisrand approvals for Tenant's Signage.
Tenant hereby acknowledges that, notwithstandinglloxd's approval of Tenant's Signage, Landlordrhade no representation or warranty
to Tenant with respect to the probability of obtiagnall necessary governmental approvals and pefimitTenant's Signage. In the event
Tenant does not receive the necessary governnapyeabvals and permits for Tenant's Signage, Tenantl Landlord's rights and obligatic
under the remaining TCCs of this Lease shall bdfectzd.

23.4.2 OBJECTIONABLE NAME. To the extent Originatiant, its Affiliates and/or Permitted Assigneeidssto change the name and/or
logo set forth on Tenant's Signage, such name alatjo shall not have a name which relates to aityamhich is of a character or reputatic
or is associated with a political faction or oraiin, which is inconsistent with the quality o&tRroject, or which would otherwise
reasonably offend a landlord of the Comparableddngjs (an "OBJECTIONABLE NAME"). The parties herehgree that the name "Vical
Incorporated,” or any reasonable derivation the(@afuding "Vical Incorporated - the Naked DNA Cpamy"), shall not be deemed an
Objectionable Name.

23.4.3 TERMINATION OF RIGHT TO TENANT'S SIGNAGE. Ehrights contained in this SECTION 23.4 shall bespeal to the Original
Tenant, and may only be exercised by the Origirglaht, its Affiliates, any Permitted Assignee any sublessee approved pursuant to the
TCCs of ARTICLE 14 (and not any other assigneelesgee or other transferee of the Original Ten@mtesest in this Lease).

23.4.4 COST AND MAINTENANCE. The costs of the adts@ns comprising Tenant's Signage and the irdiail, design, construction, and
any and all other costs associated with Tenargisa§e, including, without limitation, utility chaeg and hook-up fees, permits, and
maintenance and repairs, shall be the sole redglitysdf Tenant; provided, however, the actualtsasf such initial installation, design and
construction shall be subject to reimbursement fieenTenant Improvement Allowance pursuant to

SECTION 2.2.1 of the Tenant Work Letter. Should dmtts Signage require repairs and/or maintenascdgtermined in Landlord's
reasonable judgment, Landlord shall have the tigiprovide Notice thereof to Tenant and Tenantlstzalse such repairs and/or maintenance
to be performed within thirty (30) days after rextedf such Notice from Landlord, at Tenant's sast@nd expense; provided, however, if
such repairs and/or maintenance are reasonablygtexpe require longer than thirty (30) days tdf@en, Tenant shall commence such
repairs and/or maintenance within such thirty @&y period and shall diligently prosecute such iresgand maintenance to completion.
Should Tenant fail to perform such repairs and/aimenance within the periods described in the idiately preceding sentence, Landlord
shall, upon the delivery of an additional ten (fhQ¥iness days' prior written notice, have the rightause such work to be performed and to
charge Tenant as Additional Rent for the Actualt@bsuch work. Upon the expiration or earlier teration of this Lease, Tenant shall, at
Tenant's sole cost and expense, cause Tenantag8itimbe removed and shall cause the areas ilwhah Tenant's Sighage was located to
be restored to the condition existing immediatelgipto the placement of such Tenant's Signagep#xoe ordinary wear and tear. If Tenant
fails to timely remove such Tenant's Signage gestore the areas in which such Tenant's Signagdogated, as provided in the immedia
preceding sentence, then Landlord may perform suehk, and all Actual Costs incurred by Landlordstmperforming shall be reimbursed by
Tenant to Landlord within thirty (30) days afterribat's
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receipt of an invoice therefor. The TCCs of thisCIEON 23.4.4 shall survive the expiration or eartermination of this Lease.
ARTICLE 24
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

Tenant shall not do anything or suffer anythindpéodone in or about the Premises or the Projeathwiill in any way conflict with any law,
statute, ordinance, decrees, codes, common lagmjadts, orders, rulings, awards or other governah@ntquasi-governmental rule,
regulation or requirement now in force or which n@yeafter be enacted or promulgated including"&myironmental Laws," as that term is
set forth in SECTION 29.33 of this Lease (colleely "APPLICABLE LAWS"). At its sole cost and expg Tenant shall promptly comply
with all such Applicable Laws which relate to (igant's use of the Premises for non-general afiieg (ii) the Alterations or Tenant
Improvements in the Premises, or (iii) the Base @helll, but, as to the Base and Shell, only tcetttent such obligations are triggered by
Tenant's Alterations, the Tenant Improvements,seraf the Premises for other than normal and custpimplementation of the Permitted
Use. Should any standard or regulation now or lignebe imposed on Landlord or Tenant by a statgerfal or local governmental body
charged with the establishment, regulation andreefoent of occupational, health or safety standmdemployers, employees, landlords or
tenants, then Tenant agrees, at its sole costgehse, to comply promptly with such standardsegulations to the extent such standards or
regulations relate to Tenant's particular mannersefof the Premises for other than general offimposes, the Tenant Improvements located
in the Premises, or any Alterations thereof; predithat Landlord shall comply with any standardeegulations which relate to the Base and
Shell (but excluding the Tenant Improvements carcstéd by Tenant pursuant to the Tenant Work Letteress such compliance obligations
are triggered by the Tenant Improvements or therAtions in the Premises, in which event such campé obligations shall be at Tenant's
sole cost and expense; provided further, and nlestéahding the foregoing, that Tenant shall notdagiired to make any repair to,
modification of, or addition to the Base and Siiellt excluding the Tenant Improvements construbied@enant pursuant to the Tenant Work
Letter) except and to the extent required becafiemant's use of the Premises for other than nloammé customary implementation of the
Permitted Use. The judgment of any court of compgtgisdiction or the admission by either partydtie in any judicial action, regardless of
whether this other party is a party thereto, thahsparty has violated any of said governmentalsmess, shall be conclusive of that fact as
between Landlord and Tenant. Landlord shall comtia all Applicable Laws relating to the ProjecttaBase and Shell, provided that
compliance with such Applicable Laws is not thepssibility of Tenant under this Lease, and prodiflather that Landlord's failure to
comply therewith would prohibit Tenant from obtaigior maintaining a certificate of occupancy fag #remises, or would unreasonably and
materially affect the safety of Tenant's Partiesreate a significant health hazard for Tenanttid®aor otherwise materially interfere with or
materially affect Tenant's Permitted Use and engynof the Premises. Landlord shall be permitteid¢tude in Operating Expenses any
costs or expenses incurred by Landlord under tRFIELE 24 to the extent consistent with, and arnzedito the extent required by, the
TCCs of SECTION 4.2.4 of this Lease.
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ARTICLE 25
LATE CHARGES

If any installment of Rent or any other sum duerfréenant shall not be received by Landlord or Lardls designee within five (5) business
days following written notice that said amount was$ paid when due, then Tenant shall pay to Laddédiate charge equal to three percent
(3%) of the overdue amount. The late charge sleatldemed Additional Rent and the right to requishall be in addition to all of Landlord's
other rights and remedies hereunder or at law hall 3ot be construed as liquidated damages amitinlg Landlord's remedies in any
manner. In addition to the late charge described@bany Rent or other amounts owing hereundertwduie not paid within five

(5) business days following written notice thattsamount was not paid when due shall bear intémast the date when due until paid at an
annual interest rate equal to the Prime Rate ésdstinder the column "Money Rates" in THE WALL B JOURNAL) plus two percent
(2%); provided, however, in no event shall suchuahinterest rate exceed the highest annual inteass permitted by applicable law.

ARTICLE 26
LANDLORD'S RIGHT TO CURE DEFAULT; PAYMENTS BY TENAN T

26.1 LANDLORD'S CURE. All covenants and agreeméatise kept or performed by Tenant under this Lsasdl be performed by Tenant
Tenant's sole cost and expense and without anytiedwf Rent, except to the extent, if any, otheeiexpressly provided herein. If Tenant
shall fail to perform any obligation under this seaand such failure shall continue in excess®tithe allowed under SECTION 19.1.2,
above, Landlord may, but shall not be obligatedrtake any such payment or perform any such acteoafit's part without waiving its rights
based upon any default of Tenant and without redgaBenant from any obligations hereunder.

26.2 TENANT'S REIMBURSEMENT. Except as may be sfiegily provided to the contrary in this Lease, @atshall pay to Landlord,
within thirty (30) days following delivery by Lanaiid to Tenant of receipts therefor: (i) sums eqoaxpenditures reasonably made and
obligations incurred by Landlord in connection witle remedying by Landlord of Tenant's defaultspant to the provisions of SECTION
26.1; and (i) sums equal to all losses, costbjliiies, damages and expenses referred to in AREICO of this Lease. Tenant's obligations
under this SECTION 26.2 shall survive the expimaito sooner termination of the Lease Term.

ARTICLE 27
ENTRY BY LANDLORD

Landlord reserves the right during normal busirrers's, when accompanied by a representative ofritemal upon no less than forty-eight
(48) hours prior notice to Tenant (except in theecaf an "Emergency,” as that term is defined hbedow), and in compliance with Tenant's
reasonable security measures and any applicablerb28 and regulations, to enter the Premiseg togpect them; (ii) show the Premises to
prospective purchasers, mortgagees or, duringatenine (9) months of the Lease Term, tenant® oarrent or
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prospective mortgagees, ground or underlying Iessoinsurers; (iii) post notices of nonrespongiibr (iv) improve or repair the Premises
or the Building, or for structural alterations, a@s or improvements to the Building Structure. \Witistanding anything to the contrary
contained in this ARTICLE 27, Landlord may enteg fremises at any time to (A) perform services&sgly required of Landlord pursuant
to the TCCs of this Lease; (B) take possessiortaaay breach of this Lease in the manner providadin; and

(C) during normal business hours, when accompanyesirepresentative of Tenant and upon forty-eig8} hours prior notice, perform any
covenants of Tenant which Tenant fails to perfdrandlord may make any such entries without theeabaht of Rent (except as otherwise
expressly set forth in this Lease to the contrangd may take such reasonable steps as requireddmalish the stated purposes. Tenant
hereby waives any claims for damages or for anyriieg or inconvenience to or interference with Teisesbusiness, lost profits, any loss of
occupancy or quiet enjoyment of the Premises, agdther loss occasioned thereby, except with tgpedamage to Tenant's personal
property or the amount of any physical injury, baty to the extent caused by the gross negligeneelidul misconduct of Landlord. For
each of the above purposes, Landlord shall ainaéid have a key with which to unlock all the doarthe Premises, excluding Tenant's va
safes and special security areas designated imae@y Tenant (the "SECURITY AREAS"). Notwithstamglianything set forth in this
ARTICLE 27 to the contrary, Landlord shall haveaszess or inspection rights as to the Security #\reecept in the event of an Emergency
where such entry is reasonably required. In an Beray, Landlord shall have the right to use anynmeehat Landlord may deem proper to
open the doors in and to the Premises, providedIbash has reasonably attempted, but to no avadbtain Tenant's immediate cooperation
in connection therewith. Any entry into the Premibg Landlord in the manner hereinbefore descrited not be deemed to be a forcible or
unlawful entry into, or a detainer of, the Premjs#san actual or constructive eviction of Tenaotrif any portion of the Premises. No
provision of this Lease shall be construed as abilig Landlord to perform any repairs, alterationslecorations except as otherwise
expressly agreed to be performed by Landlord heF@npurposes of this Lease, and "EMERGENCY" sfmahn a situation which entails
imminent material danger or damage to persons prdperty.

ARTICLE 28
TENANT PARKING

Tenant and the Tenant's parties (including Tenaigitors) shall be entitled to utilize, withoutaiige, commencing on the date this Lease if
fully executed and delivered between Landlord aadant, the amount of parking spaces set forth @8N 9 of the Summary, on a
monthly basis throughout the Lease Term, whichipgrkpaces shall be located in the Project parinregs. Each parking space shall be for a
single, non-tandem space. Included in such allotrofparking spaces provided in the Summary steathie number of handicapped parking
spaces required by Applicable Law. The locatiof@fant's parking spaces shall be as set forth ddlBIX J, attached hereto. Tenant may
cause all of such parking spaces to be markedrireddor Vical" or otherwise denoted to be reserfardts use; provided, however, in
connection therewith, Tenant shall additionallyrésponsible for posting any governmentally requiretices. In addition, Tenant may
establish a sticker or other identification syst@noyvided, however, the enforcement of Tenant'kipgrareas only for such stickered or
otherwise identified Tenant visitors/guests shaltéasonably conducted by Landlord; provided
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further, however, that to the extent Landlord failseasonably enforce such system, Tenant mag\fiig written notice thereof to Landlol
itself take reasonable actions to enforce suclesystenant shall cooperate with Landlord to attetmpequire that Tenant Parties comply
with the Rules and Regulations which are prescribad time to time by Landlord for the orderly opgon and use of the parking areas
where the parking spaces are located Tenant's catapein seeing that Tenant's employees and vssitso comply with such rules and
regulations and Tenant not being in default unblisrltease. Landlord specifically reserves the righthange the size, configuration, design,
layout and all other aspects of that portion of®ineject Common Areas relating to parking areasiapiovements allocated to the other
buildings within the Pacific Corporate Center, drehant acknowledges and agrees that Landlord nayyatime upon thirty (30) days' prior
written notice to Tenant, without incurring anyhliity to Tenant and without any abatement of Remder this Lease, from time to time,
temporarily close-off or restrict access to thej@bparking areas only for purposes of permittindacilitating any such construction,
alteration or improvements, not to exceed, withberiant's reasonable approval, three (3) busingssfdaany single occasion or seven

(7) business days in any calendar year; providedgker, that to the extent it is practicable forlswork to be conducted (and completed) on
weekends and/or national holidays, Landlord sla&k tcommercially reasonable steps to do so. Latiaiay delegate its responsibilities
hereunder to a parking operator in which case packing operator shall have all the rights of cohattributed hereby to the Landlord. The
parking spaces provided to Tenant pursuant toARiSICLE 28 are provided to Tenant solely for uselt®nant's own personnel, visitors and
Tenant's occupants and such spaces may not bétrads assigned, subleased or otherwise aliertatdenant, except on a pro-rata basis in
connection with an assignment or subletting ofRhemises permitted or approved in accordance W&lTCCs of ARTICLE 14.

ARTICLE 29
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

29.1 TERMS; CAPTIONS. The words "Landlord" and "&@at!' as used herein shall include the plural a$ agsthe singular. The necessary
grammatical changes required to make the providiensof apply either to corporations or partnershipindividuals, men or women, as the
case may require, shall in all cases be assumtbagh in each case fully expressed. The captibAstizles and Sections are for
convenience only and shall not be deemed to lepitstrue, affect or alter the meaning of such Aesi@and Sections.

29.2 BINDING EFFECT. Subject to all other provissoof this Lease, each of the TCCs and provisionkisfLease shall extend to and shall,
as the case may require, bind or inure to the litem&fonly of Landlord and of Tenant, but alsalodir respective heirs, personal
representatives, successors or assigns, provited#use shall not permit any assignment by Teoantrary to the provisions of ARTICLE
14 of this Lease.

29.3 NO AIR RIGHTS. Except for Tenant's rights nefijag Telecommunications Equipment set forth in ARIE 22, no rights to any view
or to light or air over any property, whether bejong to Landlord or any other person, are granteéBenant by this Lease. If at any time any
windows of the Premises are temporarily darkenatietight or view therefrom is obstructed by reasbany repairs, improvements,
maintenance or cleaning in or about the
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Project, the same shall be without liability to Héord and without any reduction or diminution ofriBat's obligations under this Lease.

29.4 REASONABLENESS AND GOOD FAITH. Except for deteénations expressly described as being in thedlabe discretion” of the
applicable party, neither Landlord nor Tenant shateasonably withhold or delay any consent, amdror other determination provided for
hereunder, and determinations subject to absolsteation shall not be unreasonably delayed. Iretrent that either Landlord or Tenant
disagrees with any determination made by the dibezunder

(other than a determination in the absolute digmmaif the determining party) and reasonably retpui® reasons for such determination, the
determining party shall furnish its reasons in iwgtand in reasonable detail within ten

(10) business days following such request.

29.5 TRANSFER OF LANDLORD'S INTEREST. Tenant acktedges that Landlord has the right to transfeoafiny portion of its interest
in the Project or Building and in this Lease sogl@s such transfer is not a subterfuge to avoidlload's obligations under this Lease, and
Tenant agrees that in the event of any such traregfid if the transferee assumes the applicabigailiins Landlord shall automatically be
released from all liability (to the extent suchightions are assumed by the transferee) undekéaise not accrued as of the date of the
transfer and Tenant agrees to look solely to stafsferee for the performance of Landlord's obiigest hereunder for events occurring after
the date of transfer upon agreement by such traeste fully assume and be liable for all obligati@f this Lease to be performed by
Landlord which first accrue or arise after the daftehe conveyance (and including the return of &egurity Deposit), and Tenant shall attorn
to such transferee. Tenant further acknowledged iradlord may assign its interest in this Leasa toortgage lender as additional security.
Such transfer shall not release Landlord from ligyations hereunder and that Tenant shall contindeok to Landlord for the performance
of its obligations hereunder. Landlord acknowledtped to the extent any Landlord obligation or li@punder this Lease is accrued prior to
the date of such transfer which is not specificalgumed by the transferee, the same shall remaihligation/liability of Landlord.

29.6 RECORDING. A "Memorandum of Lease," substdigtia the form attached hereto as EXHIBIT M, sHadl executed and
acknowledged by Landlord and Tenant concurrentti thie execution of this Lease and either Land@wrdienant may, at such party's sole
cost and expense, record such Memorandum of Lease.

29.7 LANDLORD'S TITLE. Landlord's title is and alysshall be paramount to the title of Tenant. Nujtierein contained shall empower
Tenant to do any act which can, shall or may enauriie title of Landlord.

29.8 RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES. Nothing containedtliis Lease shall be deemed or construed by theepdmtreto or by any third party
to create the relationship of principal and agpattnership, joint venturer or any association leetwlLandlord and Tenant.

29.9 APPLICATION OF PAYMENTS. Landlord shall havestright to apply payments received from Tenansipamt to this Lease,
regardless of Tenant's designation of such paymensstisfy any obligations of Tenant hereundestch order and amounts as Landlord, in
its sole discretion, may elect.
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29.10 TIME OF ESSENCE. Time is of the essence vatipect to the performance of every provision of tiease in which time of
performance is a factor.

29.11 PARTIAL INVALIDITY. If any term, provision ocondition contained in this Lease shall, to aneet be invalid or unenforceable,
remainder of this Lease, or the application of secin, provision or condition to persons or circtemses other than those with respect to
which it is invalid or unenforceable, shall notdféected thereby, and each and every other terovjgion and condition of this Lease shall be
valid and enforceable to the fullest extent possgarmitted by law.

29.12 NO WARRANTY. In executing and delivering thisase, Tenant has not relied on any represensafeept as specifically set forth

in this Lease), including, but not limited to, ampresentation as to the amount of any item commgri&dditional Rent or the amount of the
Additional Rent in the aggregate or that Landlarfuirnishing the same services to other tenantd|,ain the same level or on the same basis,
or any warranty or any statement of Landlord whgchot set forth herein or in one or more of thhikits attached hereto.

29.13 LANDLORD EXCULPATION. The liability of Landla or the Landlord Parties to Tenant for any ddfaylLandlord under this Lease
or arising in connection herewith or with Landlaerdperation, management, leasing, repair, renavaditeration or any other matter relating
to the Project or the Premises shall be limitedlgand exclusively to an amount which is equah®net interest of Landlord (following
payment of any outstanding liens and/or mortgagesther attributable to sales or insurance proceedtherwise) in the Project (including
any insurance proceeds which Landlord receivesihBieLandlord, nor any of the Landlord Partieslishave any personal liability therefor,
and Tenant hereby expressly waives and releasbgpgusonal liability on behalf of itself and allrpens claiming by, through or under
Tenant. The limitations of liability contained inis SECTION 29.13 shall inure to the benefit of dlamd's and the Landlord Parties' present
and future partners, beneficiaries, officers, dvex; trustees, shareholders, agents and emplogegsheir respective partners, heirs,
successors and assigns. Under no circumstancésisigresent or future partner of Landlord (if déord is a partnership), or trustee or
beneficiary (if Landlord or any partner of Landldsda trust), have any liability for the performanaf Landlord's obligations under this Lee
Notwithstanding any contrary provision herein, heitLandlord nor the Landlord Parties shall beléamder any circumstances for injury
damage to, or interference with, Tenant's busineskiding but not limited to, loss of profits, ksf rents or other revenues, loss of business
opportunity, loss of goodwill or loss of use, irckaase, however occurring.

29.14 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. It is understood and acklemlged that there are no oral agreements betwegpatties hereto affecting this
Lease and this Lease constitutes the partieseaagireement with respect to the leasing of the Bemnand supersedes and cancels any and a
previous negotiations, arrangements, brochureseagents and understandings, if any, between thiepaereto or displayed by Landlord to
Tenant with respect to the subject matter thersud, none thereof shall be used to interpret ortoemshis Lease. None of the TCCs or
provisions of this Lease can be modified, deletedduled to except in writing signed by the partieseto.
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29.15 RIGHT TO LEASE. Landlord reserves the absolight to effect such other tenancies in the Ra€ibrporate Center as Landlord in
exercise of its sole business judgment shall determo best promote the interests of the Pacifipp@ate Center. Tenant does not rely on the
fact, nor does Landlord represent, that any spetfiant or type or number of tenants shall, dutliegLease Term, occupy any space in the
Pacific Corporate Center.

29.16 FORCE MAJEURE. Any prevention, delay or seggpdue to (i) strikes, lockouts, labor disputets af God (including inclement
weather), inability to obtain services, labor, aterials (which objectively preclude Tenant frontadhing from any reasonable source of
union labor or substitute materials at a reasonede necessary for completing the Tenant Improves)e(ii) governmental actions (which
do not specifically relate to the constructionlw Tenant Improvements and which objectively prelconstruction of tenant improvements
in the Pacific Corporate Center by any personfjiipracts of war or terrorism, civil commotionstd or other casualty, and other causes
beyond the reasonable control of the party obldjadeperform, except with respect to the obligationposed with regard to Rent and other
charges to be paid by Tenant pursuant to this Leadlectively, a "FORCE MAJEURE"), notwithstandiagything to the contrary contained
in this Lease, shall excuse the performance of pacty for a period equal to any such preventi@haylor stoppage and, therefore, if this
Lease specifies a time period for performance dfldigation of either party, that time period shadl extended by the period of any delay in
such party's performance caused by a Force Majptoeided, however, such extension shall not exaeedhundred twenty

(120) consecutive days.

29.17 INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.

29.18 NOTICES. All notices, demands, statementsigdations, approvals or other communications éctilvely, "NOTICES") given or
required to be given by either party to the othemelinder or by law shall be in writing, shall bg é&nt by United States certified or registe
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested\1¥), (B) transmitted by telecopy, if such telegois promptly followed by a Notice sent
by Mail, (C) delivered by a nationally recognizecemight courier, or (D) delivered personally. ANgtice shall be sent, transmitted, or
delivered, as the case may be, to Tenant at theppate address set forth in SECTION 10 of the Bwamy, or to such other place as Tenant
may from time to time designate in a Notice to Uand or to Landlord at the addresses set fortbusgbr to such other places as Landlord
may from time to time designate in a Notice to TenAny Notice will be deemed given (i) three (2)yd after the date it is posted if sent by
Mail, (i) the date the telecopy is transmitted) the date the overnight courier delivery is maole(iv) the date personal delivery is received
or attempted to be made. If Tenant is notifiedhef identity and address of Landlord's mortgageggaund or underlying lessor, Tenant shall
give to such mortgagee or ground or underlyingdessitten notice of any default by Landlord undlee TCCs of this Lease by registered or
certified mail, and such mortgagee or ground oreulythg lessor shall be given a reasonable oppiyttm cure such default prior to Tenant's
exercising any remedy available to Tenant. As efdate of this Lease, any Notices to Landlord rbastent, transmitted, or delivered, as the
case may be, to the following addresses:

LANDLORD:
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Kilroy Realty Corporation 2250 East Imperial Highw@uite 1200 El Segundo, California 90245 Attentioegal Department

with copies to:

Kilroy Realty Corporation 3811 Valley Centre Driviite 300 San Diego, California 92130 Attention: Roger Simsiman

and

Allen, Matkins, Leck, Gamble & Mallory 1901 Avenoéthe Stars, Suite 1800 Los Angeles, Californi@@0Attention: Anton N. Natsis,
Esq.

TENANT:
Prior to the Lease Commencement Date:

Vical Incorporated
9373 Towne Centre Drive
San Diego, California 92121
Attention: Chief Financial Officer
(if via U.S. Mail)

or

Vical Incorporated
4510 Executive Drive, Suite 215
San Diego, California 92121
Attention: Chief Financial Officer
(if via Federal Express or messenger)

with a copy to:

Vical Incorporated
9373 Towne Centre Drive
San Diego, California 92121
Attention: General Counsel

(if via U.S. Mail)

or
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Vical Incorporated 4510 Executive Drive, Suite ZB&n Diego, California 92121 Attention: General Csrin

(if via Federal Express or messenger)

and at such time after the Lease
Commencement Date that Tenant notifies
Landlord of such change:

Vical Incorporated
at the Premises to the attention
of Chief Financial Officer

with a copy to:

Vical Incorporated
at the Premises to the attention
of General Counsel

29.19 JOINT AND SEVERAL. If there is more than ofenant, the obligations imposed upon Tenant uridsiLease shall be joint and
several.

29.20 AUTHORITY. Each individual executing this Iseaon behalf of Tenant hereby represents and wartfset Tenant is a duly formed ¢
existing entity qualified to do business in Califiar and that Tenant has full right and authoritgxecute and deliver this Lease and that each
person signing on behalf of Tenant is authorizeda®o. In such event, Tenant shall, within ten

(10) days after execution of this Lease, delivdraadlord satisfactory evidence of such authoritgl,af a corporation, upon demand by
Landlord, also deliver to Landlord satisfactorydmnce of (i) good standing in Tenant's state afriporation and (ii) qualification to do
business in California.

29.21 ATTORNEYS' FEES. In the event that eitherdlard or Tenant should bring suit for the posseassibthe Premises, for the recover
any sum due under this Lease, or because of tlaelod any provision of this Lease or for any ottedief against the other, then all costs
expenses, including reasonable attorneys' feestreat by the prevailing party therein shall be gaidhe other party, which obligation on the
part of the other party shall be deemed to haveuadcon the date of the commencement of such aatidrshall be enforceable whether o1
the action is prosecuted to judgment.

29.22 GOVERNING LAW. This Lease shall be constraed enforced in accordance with the laws of th&eSihCalifornia. Except as
otherwise provided herein, all disputes arisinggbader, and all legal actions and proceedingseelidiereto, shall be solely and exclusively
initiated and maintained in the court with the aympiate jurisdiction located in the City of San Bag County of San Diego, State of
California. IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING

ARISING HEREFROM, LANDLORD AND TENANT HEREBY CONSENTO (I) THE JURISDICTION OF ANY COMPETENT COUR
WITHIN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
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AND (Il) SERVICE OF PROCESS BY ANY MEANS AUTHORIZEBY CALIFORNIA LAW. IN THE EVENT LANDLORD
COMMENCES ANY SUMMARY PROCEEDINGS OR ACTION FOR NOMYMENT OF BASE RENT OR ADDITIONAL RENT,
TENANT SHALL NOT INTERPOSE ANY COUNTERCLAIM OF ANWATURE OR DESCRIPTION (UNLESS SUCH
COUNTERCLAIM SHALL BE MANDATORY) IN ANY SUCH PROCEBING OR ACTION, BUT SHALL BE RELEGATED TO AN
INDEPENDENT ACTION AT LAW.

29.23 SUBMISSION OF LEASE. Submission of this instent for examination or signature by Tenant dagsanstitute a reservation of,
option for or option to lease, and it is not effeetas a lease or otherwise until execution antvelsi by both Landlord and Tenant.

29.24 BROKERS. Landlord and Tenant hereby war@egth other that they have had no dealings wighreal estate broker or agent in
connection with the negotiation of this Lease, @ticg only CB Richard Ellis (as specified in

SECTION 12 of the Summary, the "BROKER"), and tihaty know of no other real estate broker or agdrd i8 entitled to a commission in
connection with this Lease. Each party agreesderimify and defend the other party against and ti@dther party harmless from any and
all claims, demands, losses, liabilities, lawsyitdgments, costs and expenses (including withmitdtion reasonable attorneys' fees) with
respect to any leasing commission or equivalentpearsation alleged to be owing on account of anjirdgsawith any real estate broker or
agent, other than the Broker, occurring by, throughunder the indemnifying party. Landlord and detneach acknowledge that the Broker is
representing both Landlord and Tenant with regaurthis Lease.

29.25 INDEPENDENT COVENANTS. This Lease shall bastoued as though the covenants herein betweendrdrethd Tenant are
independent and not dependent and Tenant herebgsskpwaives the benefit of any statute to thdreoy and agrees that if Landlord fails
perform its obligations set forth herein, Tenaralshot be entitled to make any repairs or perfamy acts hereunder at Landlord's expense or
to any setoff of the Rent or other amounts owinghrder against Landlord.

29.26 PROJECT OR BUILDING NAME AND SIGNAGE. Landtbshall have the right at any time to change thmenaf the Pacific
Corporate Center and to install, affix and maintaiy and all signs on the exterior and on the imt&f any other building in Pacific
Corporate Center other than the Building as Lamtioay, in Landlord's sole discretion, desire. Landlishall not have the right to change the
name of the Project or to install or affix any sigm the exterior or on the interior of the Builgliexcept as otherwise expressly set forth in
ARTICLE 23 of this Lease. Tenant shall not usertame of the Project or Building or use picturesllostrations of the Project or Building in
advertising or other publicity or for any purpogkey than as the address of the business to beictby Tenant in the Premises, without
the prior written consent of Landlord. Notwithstarglthe foregoing, Tenant may use a picture oBhiéding showing its name thereon in its
advertising and promotional materials.

29.27 COUNTERPARTS. This Lease may be executedunterparts with the same effect as if both pah&reto had executed the same
document. Both counterparts shall be construedhegand shall constitute a single lease.
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29.28 CONFIDENTIALITY. Landlord and Tenant each digy acknowledge that the contents of this Leaseaagdelated documents are
confidential information. Each of the parties sltkalép such confidential information strictly coridial and shall not disclose such
confidential information to any person or entithet than Landlord's or Tenant's partners, admatists, consultants, financial, legal, and
space planning consultants, a prospective or cupiachaser, mortgagee, or ground or underlyingoesf the Building or the Project, a
prospective Transferee, and except as requiredgpjidable Law or in connection with a dispute digktion hereunder or as required by
subpoena. Tenant shall have the right to reviewagopiove (with no less than seventy-two (72) halwaace notice) any press releases of
Landlord which reference Tenant by name (or ma&érence in such a manner to preclude any entitgrahan Tenant).

29.29 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT. Tenant shall fulsgomply with all present or future mandatory pragsarequired by

applicable law (provided Landlord provides Tenaithwgufficient prior notice of such program's regunents) which are intended to manage
parking, transportation or traffic in and around Building, and in connection therewith, Tenantlstake responsible action for the
transportation planning and management of all eygae located at the Premises by working directth Wwandlord, any governmental
transportation management organization or any dthasportation-related committees or entities.

29.30 EMERGENCY GENERATOR. Subject to Landlord'smwal, which shall not be unreasonably withheldelayed, and subject to the
TCCs of this

SECTION 29.30 and ARTICLE 8 of this Lease, Tenaaynmstall, for Tenant's own use and at Tenants cust and expense, but without
payment of any Rent or a license or similar feet@rge, an emergency generator, cooling towersagteenclosures and related enclosures
and equipment (all such equipment defined colletyias the "EMERGENCY GENERATOR") in, on or adjacenthe Building (such
location to be reasonably determined in conjuncivith Landlord and Landlord's reasonable requiresjeifhe location, physical appearance
and the size of the Emergency Generator shall biesiuto Landlord's reasonable approval, and Laddiway require Tenant to install
screening around such Emergency Generator, at Teisale cost and expense, as reasonably desigmateahdlord; provided, however,
Landlord hereby pre-approves the embankment arghdanstallation of such Emergency Generatodeastified on EXHIBIT A-3; provided
further, however, that to the extent such Emergédegerator is located on Project parking areasptineber of spaces so used shall
commensurately reduce Landlord's obligation to jpl®a particular number of spaces as otherwistaétin ARTICLE 28 of this Lease.
Tenant shall maintain such Emergency Generatdreaant's sole cost and expense. In the event Tefei$ to exercise its right to install the
Emergency Generator, then Tenant shall give Laddiorless than forty-five (45) days prior writteatioce thereof. Tenant shall reimburse to
Landlord the actual costs reasonably incurred bydlard in approving such Emergency Generator. Teslaall remove such Emergency
Generator upon the expiration or earlier termimatbthis Lease and shall repair any damage t@®thieling caused by such removal and
return the affected portion of the Premises toilimg standard tenant improved condition as deteech by Landlord. Such Emergency
Generator shall be installed pursuant to plansspedifications approved by Landlord, which appraviilnot be unreasonably withheld.
Such Emergency Generator shall, in all instanaaspty with applicable governmental laws, codesgsudnd regulations.
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29.31 NO VIOLATION. Landlord and Tenant hereby veatrand represent that neither its execution ofpeoformance under this Lease s
cause either party to be in violation of any agreetninstrument, contract, law, rule or regulatigrwhich it is bound, and each party shall
protect, defend, indemnify and hold the other hasmlagainst any claims, demands, losses, damedpigtjés, costs and expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees aosts, arising from Tenant's breach of this wayrantd representation.

29.32 COMMUNICATIONS AND COMPUTER LINES. Tenant maystall, maintain, replace, remove or use any comoations or
computer wires and cables (collectively, the "LINE& the Project in or serving the Premises, mteglithat (i) Tenant shall use an
experienced and qualified contractor and comply it of the other provisions of ARTICLES 7 AND 8tbis Lease, (ii) any new or existing
Lines servicing the Premises shall comply withaglplicable governmental laws and regulations, @)dénant shall pay all costs in
connection therewith. Landlord reserves the righiequire that Tenant remove any Lines located weoving the Premises which are inste
in violation of these provisions, or which are aydime in violation of any laws or represent agiaous or potentially dangerous condition.
Landlord acknowledges that Tenant may, without@mrge therefore, exclusively use any existing adirrdnning from the street directly to
the Building.

29.33 HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES.

29.33.1 DEFINITIONS. For purposes of this Lease,ftiilowing definitions shall apply: "HAZARDOUS MAHRIAL(S)" shall mean any
substance or material that is described as a tm@zardous substance, waste, material, pollutantaminant or infectious waste, or any
matter that in certain specified quantities woutdfjurious to the public health or welfare, or d®of similar import, in any of the
"Environmental Laws," as that term is defined belowhis SECTION 29.33.1, or any other words whéch intended to define, list or class
substances by reason of deleterious propertiesasiinitability, corrosivity, reactivity, carcinegicity, toxicity or reproductive toxicity and
includes, without limitation, asbestos, petroleumnel(iding crude oil or any fraction thereof, natugas, natural gas liquids, liquefied natural
gas, or synthetic gas usable for fuel, or any méthereof), petroleum products, polychlorinategghlenyls, urea formaldehyde, radon gas,
radioactive matter, medical waste, and chemicalsiwmay cause cancer or reproductive toxicity. "ERGNMENTAL LAWS" shall mean
all federal, state, local and quasi-governmentaslévhether under common law, statute or otherwimlinances, decrees, codes, rulings,
awards, rules, regulations and guidance documentson hereafter be enacted or promulgated as ardeénaia time to time, in any way
relating to or regulating Hazardous Materials.

29.33.2 COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS. Landlar covenants that during the Lease Term, Landloatl sbomply with all
Environmental Laws in accordance with, and as regudy, the TCCs of ARTICLE 24 of this Lease.

29.33.3 INDEMNIFICATIONS. Landlord agrees to indefgndefend, protect and hold harmless the Tenanti€s from any and all Claims
arising from any Hazardous Materials to the exptated in, on, under or about the Project by Lambéy a Landlord Party. Tenant agrees to
indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless thedlard Parties from any and all
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Claims arising from any Hazardous Materials togkt=nt placed in, on, under or about the Premis#fsedProject by Tenant or Tenant
Parties.

29.34 DEVELOPMENT OF THE PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER.

29.34.1 SUBDIVISION. Following the lot-line adjusémt identified in SECTION 1.1.2 of this Lease, Lkmd reserves the right to further
subdivide all or a portion of the Pacific Corpor@enter (other than the Project).

29.34.2 THE OTHER IMPROVEMENTS. If portions of tRacific Corporate Center or property adjacent éoRhcific Corporate Center
(collectively, the "OTHER IMPROVEMENTS") are ownég an entity other than Landlord, Landlord, aiftion, may enter into an
agreement with the owner or owners of any or athefOther Improvements to provide (i) for reci@bgghts of access and/or use of the
Project and the Other Improvements, (ii) for thenomon management, operation, maintenance, improvieaneiior repair of all or any porti
of the Project and the Other Improvements, angf(iithe use or improvement of the Other Improvetsand/or the Project in connection
with the improvement, construction, and/or excarabf the Other Improvements and/or the Projedbjedit to ARTICLE 30 of this Lease,
nothing contained herein shall be deemed or coadtra limit or otherwise affect Landlord's rightdonvey all or any portion of the Project
any other of Landlord's rights described in thisite, provided such conveyance by Landlord doeadhersely impact Tenant's use or
occupancy of the Premises or the Project.

29.35 INDEMNIFICATION BY LANDLORD. Landlord shall efend, indemnify and hold Tenant and its partreubpartners and their
respective officers, agents, servants, employeesiralependent contractors (collectively, the "TENNRPARTIES") harmless from and
against any and all costs (including reasonabtersys' fees and costs) and claims of liabilitydbloss from personal injury to the extent
such claims result from the use of the Project agdlord and Landlord's Parties, provided that tiowipions of this SECTION 29.35 shall 1
apply to any claim to the extent arising from ocannection with any negligent or intentional cocidof Tenant or a Tenant Party.

29.36 NO DISCRIMINATION. Tenant covenants by andifself, its heirs, executors, administrators asdigns, and all persons claiming
under or through Tenant, and this Lease is madeecepted upon and subject to the following cooddi that there shall be no
discrimination against or segregation of any peiwogroup of persons, on account of race, col@edy sex, religion, marital status, ancestry
or national origin in the leasing, subleasing, $farring, use, or enjoyment of the Premises, nall §lenant itself, or any person claiming
under or through Tenant, establish or permit sueltire or practices of discrimination or segrematvith reference to the selection, locati
number, use or occupancy, of tenants, lesseegssgals, subtenants or vendees in the Premises.
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ARTICLE 30
OPTION TO PURCHASE PREMISES

30.1 PURCHASE OPTION. Subject to the TCCs of SEQNI&D.5 below, the Original Tenant, its Affiliateschany Permitted Assignee sh
have a one-time right to purchase the PremisestH®CHASE OPTION"), upon the terms and conditieasforth in this ARTICLE 30.

30.2 PROCEDURE FOR EXERCISE. If Tenant wishes ®reise Tenant's Purchase Option, Tenant shallatatiotice (the "EXERCISE
NOTICE") to Landlord of Tenant's irrevocable eleatito exercise the Purchase Option no sooner tiefirst day of the ninth (9th) Lea
Year and not later than the last day of the nifth)(Lease Year (the "OPTION EXERCISE PERIOD")omder for the Exercise Notice to be
effective hereunder, concurrently with the delivefyhe "Purchase Contract” to "Escrow Holder"t{asse terms are set forth below) as more
particularly set forth below, Tenant shall deliter'Escrow Holder" a cashier's check or wire transff immediately available funds in an
amount equal to $250,000.00 (the "INITIAL NON-REFDNBLE DEPOSIT"), which amount shall be held by EserHolder, released to
Landlord, and otherwise applied against the "PwetRrice," all in accordance with the TCCs of thecRase Contract. Within fifteen (15)
business days following the date of Landlord's ipgasf the Exercise Notice in accordance with tarts of this SECTION 30.2, (i) Landlord
and Tenant shall mutually and reasonably agree apascrow holder to be utilized in connection wiith sale of the Premises to Tenant (the
"ESCROW HOLDER"), and (ii) Landlord and Tenant $kexlecute and deliver to Escrow Holder a purchasksale contract in the form
attached hereto as EXHIBIT | (the "PURCHASE CONTRRAYL The date upon which the Escrow Holder hasiveckboth parties executed
counterparts of the Purchase Contract and thaliNtbn-Refundable Deposit from Tenant shall be kmas the "OPENING OF ESCROW".
On or before the date which is ninety (90) daykfeing the date of Landlord's receipt of the ExsedNotice, Tenant shall deliver to
Landlord, as more particularly set forth in thedhase Contract, a cashier's check or wire tram$fienmediately available funds in an amo
equal to $100,000.00 (the "ADDITIONAL NON-REFUNDABLDEPOSIT"), which amount shall be applied agatinstPurchase Price. The
Initial Non-Refundable Deposit (including any irgst earned during the time the same was held byp®&ddolder prior to its release to
Landlord) and the Additional Non-Refundable Depshitll be, collectively, the "NON-REFUNDABLE DEPQOSI The Purchase Contract
shall not be subject to negotiation or modificatiercept as specifically set forth herein and extefill in blanks and/or to comply with
applicable laws; provided, however, that to theeeksuitable cross-easement and access agreemvihtprp-rata cost splitting provisions)
have not been recorded against the Property amétha@nder of the Pacific Corporate Center in cociion with the lot-line adjustment
pursuant to the TCCs of SECTION 1.1.2 of this Leaseh Purchase Contract shall be modified sudtthieasame shall become conditions
precedent to the Close of Escrow. Notwithstandimgtang to the contrary contained herein, Tenanstnelect to exercise its Purchase
Option, if at all, with respect to all of the Presa$, and Tenant may not elect to purchase onlytepadhereof.

30.3 PURCHASE PRICE. The purchase price of the éttgshall be determined pursuant to the provisedSECTIONS 2.2 AND 2.3 of tt
Purchase Contract.
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30.4 CLOSING DATE. The "CLOSING DATE" shall occun the date which is one hundred eighty (180) daifsviing the date of
Landlord's receipt of the Exercise Notice in acemk with the terms of SECTION 30.2, above, pravittat upon notice to Tenant and
Escrow Holder at least ninety (90) days prior ® ¢higinally scheduled Closing Date, Landlord shale the one-time right to extend the
Closing Date to a date occurring on or before #is¢ day of the tenth (10th) Lease Year (the "OUTEBSTLOSING DATE"). If the Closing
Date, as determined pursuant to this ARTICLE 3@pisa business day, the Closing Date shall béitdtebusiness day following the date the
Closing Date would have occurred had the same oadtim accordance with the terms hereof. Upon @lese of Escrow," as that term is
defined in the Purchase Contract, this Lease slnédimatically terminate and be of no further fooceffect, except with respect to the
provisions hereof which survive the expiration arlier termination of this Lease, including, withhdmitation, the payment by Tenant of all
amounts due Landlord under this Lease throughreldding the Close of Escrow.

30.5 TERMINATION OF PURCHASE OPTION. The rights taimed in this ARTICLE 30 shall be personal to @rginal Tenant, and may
only be exercised by the Original Tenant, its Adfiés and any Permitted Assignee (and not any effsgnee, sublessee or other transfer
the Original Tenant's interest in this Lease). Pliechase Option granted herein shall terminate tipofailure by Tenant to satisfy EITHER
of the following: (i) timely deliver the Exercisedtice and the Initial Non-Refundable Deposit, drt{mely deliver the Additional Non-
Refundable Deposit. Tenant shall not have the tiglpurchase the Property, as provided in this AR'H 30, if, as of either of (A) the date
the attempted exercise of the Purchase Option barfteor (B) the Closing Date, Tenant is in defaunler this Lease (beyond any applicable
notice and cure periods).

30.6 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES - NON-REFUNDABLE DEPOSITH, FOLLOWING TENANT'S DELIVERY OF TENANT'S EXERCISE
NOTICE TO LANDLORD, THE SALE OF THE PREMISES TO TEBNIT IS NOT CONSUMMATED DUE TO A "LANDLORD
DEFAULT" AS THAT TERM IS SET FORTH IN THE PURCHASEONTRACT, OR DUE TO TENANT'S EXERCISE OF AN EXPRESS
TERMINATION RIGHT CONTAINED IN SUCH PURCHASE CONTR&T, THE NON-REFUNDABLE DEPOSIT SHALL BE
REFUNDED AND DELIVERED TO TENANT WITHIN THREE (3) BSINESS FOLLOWING RECEIPT BY LANDLORD AND
ESCROW HOLDER OF TENANT'S WRITTEN DEMAND THEREFORNOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY
CONTAINED IN THIS ARTICLE 30, THIS LEASE OR THE PUBHASE CONTRACT, IF, FOLLOWING TENANT'S DELIVERY OF
TENANT'S EXERCISE NOTICE TO LANDLORD AND THE EXPIRANON OF THE "CONTINGENCY PERIOD," AS THAT TERM IS
SET FORTH IN SECTION 4.1 OF THE PURCHASE CONTRAJHE SALE OF THE PREMISES TO TENANT IS NOT
CONSUMMATED FOR ANY REASON OTHER THAN LANDLORD'S DEAULT UNDER THE PURCHASE CONTRACT OR
TENANT'S EXERCISE OF AN EXPRESS TERMINATION RIGHTGNTAINED IN SUCH PURCHASE CONTRACT, LANDLORD
SHALL BE ENTITLED TO RETAIN THE NONREFUNDABLE DEPOSIT AS LANDLORD'S LIQUIDATED DAMAGESTHE PARTIES
AGREE THAT IT WOULD BE IMPRACTICABLE AND EXTREMELYDIFFICULT TO ASCERTAIN THE ACTUAL DAMAGES
SUFFERED BY LANDLORD AS A RESULT OF TENANT'S FAILURTO COMPLETE THE PURCHASE OF THE PREMISES
PURSUANT TO THIS ARTICLE 30 AND THE PURCHASE
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CONTRACT, AND THAT UNDER THE CIRCUMSTANCES EXISTIN@S OF THE DATE OF THIS LEASE, THE LIQUIDATED
DAMAGES PROVIDED FOR IN THIS SECTION REPRESENT A REONABLE ESTIMATE OF THE DAMAGES WHICH
LANDLORD WILL INCUR AS A RESULT OF SUCH FAILURE; PRVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT THIS PROVISION SHALL NOT
LIMIT LANDLORD'S RIGHTS TO RECEIVE REIMBURSEMENT F& ATTORNEYS' FEES. THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT
THE PAYMENT OF SUCH LIQUIDATED DAMAGES IS NOT INTERED AS A FORFEITURE OR PENALTY WITHIN THE
MEANING OF CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTION 3275 OR &3, BUT IS INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE LIQUIDATED DAMAGE
TO SELLER PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTIOS8I1671, 1676, AND 1677. THE PARTIES HAVE SET FORTH
THEIR INITIALS BELOW TO INDICATE THEIR AGREEMENT WTH THE LIQUIDATED DAMAGES PROVISION CONTAINED IN
THIS SECTION 30.6.

/s/ SS JCH /sl MJD VBS

LANDLORD'S INITIALS TENANT'S INITIALS

30.7 NO BROKERS OR COMMISSIONS. Each party represemthe other that there are no brokers whicloered any real estate
brokerage commission or finder's fee in conneatigth the Purchase Option. Landlord and Tenant egche to indemnify and hold the other
harmless from and against all liability, claimspdands, damages, or costs of any kind arising froooonected with any broker's or finder's
fee or commission or charge claimed to be due frosnperson arising from the indemnifying party'adact with respect to the contemplated
purchase and sale.

[continued on following page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have catbidlease to be executed the day and date bissteawritten.
"LANDLORD™":

KILROY REALTY, L.P.,
a Delaware limited partnership

By: Kilroy Realty Corporation,
a Maryland corporation,
General Partner

By: /s/ STEVE SCOTT

Its: SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT

By: /s/ JEFFREY C. HAWKINS

Its: EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
"TENANT":

VICAL INCORPORATED,
a Delaware corporation

By: /sl MARTHA J. DEMSKI

Its: VICE PRESIDENT/CFO

By: /S/ VIJAY B. SAMANT

Its: PRESIDENT AND CEO
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EXHIBIT A
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT
[GRAPHIC DEPICTING OUTLINE OF BUILDING &
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER]
EXHIBIT A
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EXHIBIT A-1
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT

INITIAL LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT
(INCLUSIVE OF REMAINDER OF PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER

PARCELS 2 AND 3 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 15121, IN THE OF SAN DIEGO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECOBER OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY, JANUARY 29, 1988 AS FILEON
88-243556 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS.

EXHIBIT A-1
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EXHIBIT A-2
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT
[GRAPHIC DEPICTING LOT-LINE ADJUSTMENT]
EXHIBIT A-2
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EXHIBIT A-3
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT
[GRAPHIC DEPICTING CURRENT COMMON AREAS

(INCLUDING DESIGNATION OF EMBANKMENT AVAILABLE
TO TENANT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF EMERGENCY GENERATOR)]

EXHIBIT A-3
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EXHIBIT A-4
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT

SUPERIOR RIGHTS HOLDERS'
EXISTING POSSESSORY RIGHTS

Nanogen (as to the FO Building located at 10398fiedeenter Court)

- Existing lease term for entire building expiresMarch 31, 2010.

- Nanogen may exercise, on or before June 30, 2008ption to extend the existing lease term wditch 31, 2015.
CN Biosciences (as to the FO Building located &9#0Pacific Center Court):

- Existing lease term for entire building expiresAugust 15, 2008.

- CN Biosciences may exercise, on or before Feri/ay 2008 and February 15, 2013, respectively,(@ymptions to extend the existing
lease term until August 15, 2013 and August 1582@dspectively.

EXHIBIT A-4
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EXHIBIT B
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT
TENANT WORK LETTER

This Tenant Work Letter shall set forth the termd aonditions relating to the construction of teeant improvements in the Premises. This
Tenant Work Letter is essentially organized chrogmally and addresses the issues of the consiruofithe Premises, in sequence, as such
issues will arise during the actual constructiomhef Premises. All references in this Tenant Wagkér to Articles or Sections of "this Lease"
shall mean the relevant portion of ARTICLES 1 THRGH 30 of the Lease to which this Tenant Work Leeattached as EXHIBIT B and
of which this Tenant Work Letter forms a part, atidceferences in this Tenant Work Letter to Setdiof "this Tenant Work Letter" shall
mean the relevant portion of SECTIONS 1 THROUGH this Tenant Work Letter.

SECTION 1
LANDLORD'S INITIAL CONSTRUCTION IN THE PREMISES

1.1 BASE AND SHELL. In accordance with the TCCdlué Lease, Landlord shall, upon the executionaeltvery of the Lease, deliver to
Tenant the base and shell of the Premises (calidgtithe "BASE AND SHELL"), which has been consted by Landlord at Landlord's sole
cost and expense and without deduction (exceptihgaertain elevator charges identified in SECTIQN&.1, below) from the Tenant
Improvement Allowance, and which materially corsist all the items and matters set forth in the-BSILT BASE AND SHELL
IMPROVEMENTS" referenced on SCHEDULE 1 attachethie EXHIBIT B, a copy of which has been providedlenant. Landlord may
not materially modify the As-Built Base and Shetidrovements without Tenant's approval; provided tl&dlord may in all events make
changes to the As-Built Base and Shell Improvemagsired by applicable laws and codes and tosttenerequired to correct defects. Any
delays encountered by Tenant in the "Substantiadetion of the Tenant Improvements," as that tergefined in SECTION 5.3 below, as
a result of material changes in the As-Built Base Shell Improvements shall be considered a "LaddBaused Delay" as described in
SECTION 5.1 below; and any increased costs incusye@ienant as a result of any such changes shalhioeby Landlord and shall not be
paid or deducted from the Tenant Improvement Allo@ea The Base and Shell shall be in good condémhworking order and shall comply
with the Existing CC&Rs, the PID, applicable buildicodes and other governmental laws, ordinanagsesyulations which were enacted
prior to the Lease Commencement Date and applitalsiew construction for unoccupied space to therdxequired to obtain a certificate
occupancy (collectively, the "CODE") and Tenantlklexcept as otherwise set forth in this Leas@adhis Tenant Work Letter, accept the
Premises and Base and Shell from Landlord in thein existing, "as-is" condition as of the Commenert Date of this Lease, subject to the
terms of this Tenant Work Letter. Tenant shall hiéneeright, within thirty (30) days following theelase Commencement Date, to notify
Landlord of any material defects in the Base arellSim which event Landlord shall promptly repsirch items to Tenant's reasonable
satisfaction.

EXHIBIT B
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SECTION 2
TENANT IMPROVEMENTS

2.1 TENANT IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANCE. Tenant shall baétled to a one-time tenant improvement allowa¢ibe "TENANT
IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANCE") in the amount of $100.00 peentable square foot of the Premises for thesao@sating to the initial desic
and construction of Tenant's improvements whichparenanently affixed to the Premises (the "TENANMPROVEMENTS"); provided,
however, the Tenant Improvement Allowance shat aislude an additional $5,000.00 relating to Teisaconstruction of the trash enclosure
which Landlord has elected not to construct as qgfatte Base and Shell. Except as otherwise exjgrpssvided herein, in no event shall
Landlord be obligated to make disbursements putgoahis Tenant Work Letter in a total amount whexceeds the Tenant Improvement
Allowance, as the same may be increased by the Ifildhease” pursuant to SECTION 2.2.2.1 of this Teiwdork Letter. All Tenant
Improvements for which the Tenant Improvement Abmwe has been made available (except for Tenead's fixtures and equipment, wh
shall remain Tenant's property) shall be deemediload's property under the TCCs of the Lease. Landdhcknowledges that the Tenant
Improvement Allowance, together with the TIA Incseashall be available to Tenant, pursuant to tB€dof the Lease and this Tenant Work
Letter, during all phases of its initial Tenant immpement work in the Premises which may take upitee (3) years to complete, and to the
extent any portion of such Tenant Improvement Aioge

(including any TIA Increase elected pursuant to $EIN 2.2.2 hereinbelow) remains following completiof all such Tenant Improvemen
the same shall be available to Tenant during tise dight (8) years of the initial Lease Term fog tonstruction of Alterations pursuant to the
TCCs of ARTICLE 8 of the Lease.

2.2 DISBURSEMENT OF THE TENANT IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANE.

2.2.1 TENANT IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANCE ITEMS. Except astherwise set forth in this Tenant Work Lettee frenant Improvement
Allowance shall be disbursed by Landlord (each bich disbursements shall be made pursuant to Laatdldisbursement process) for costs
related to the design, permitting, construction tasting of the Tenant Improvements and for thim¥ahg items and costs (collectively, the
"TENANT IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANCE ITEMS"), and exceptsaotherwise specifically and expressly providedificthis Tenant Work
Letter, Landlord shall not deduct any other expsrigem the Tenant Improvement Allowance: (i) payinafithe fees of the "Architect” and
the "Engineers," as those terms are defined in 3808T.1 of this Tenant Work Letter, and paymenttaf actual cost of documents and
materials supplied by Landlord and/or Landlord'sstdtants in connection with the preparation amiere of the "Construction Drawings,"
that term is defined in SECTION 3.1 of this Tendrdrk Letter; (ii) the cost of any changes in thes8and Shell when such changes are
required by the Construction Drawings (except eéRktent that any such changes are necessaryraztamaterial defect or a code violation
with respect to the Base and Shell, in which casedlord shall pay such costs);

(iii) the cost of any changes to the Constructioaviings or Tenant Improvements required by all iggple Code; (iv) the "Landlord
Supervision Fee", as that term is defined in SEQTKX2.4 of this Tenant Work Letter; (v) the cosfl@nant's work stations, signage, sect
and cabling systems, in an amount not to exceed8Ifer rentable square feet of the Premisestheifost of any meters and switch gear for
Tenant's utility

EXHIBIT B
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service, (vii) the cost of the installation of davator in the Premises (which the parties ackndg#ehas already been installed in the Prer
by Landlord and which the parties agree entitlesdl@rd to a reimbursement of such cost in an ameguoal to $58,641.00), (viii) the costs
associated with any commercially reasonable testhtijor inspection of the Base and Shell in conioeatith the construction of the Tenant
Improvements, and (viii) sales and use taxes.

2.2.2 INCREASE TENANT IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANCE.

2.2.2.1 TIA INCREASE. Tenant may, upon written netto Landlord given on or before the completiothef Tenant Improvements, below,
elect to cause the Tenant Improvement Allowandeetorcreased by an amount (the "TIA INCREASE")fegh in such notice; provided,
however, that the amount of such TIA Increase gijdile an amount equal to the product of (A) aarerumber of United States Dollars (as
opposed to fractions of United States Dollars) @)dhe rentable square feet in the Premises, ignd (10 event exceed $20.00 per rentable
square foot of the Premises. In the event Tenagtsto increase the amount of the Tenant ImpromeAlowance pursuant to the foregoing
sentence, the TIA Increase shall be amortized theethen-remaining initial Lease Term commencinghendate on which the applicable
portion of the TIA Increase is disbursed to Tertant.andlord using an amortization rate of twelvel ane-half percent (12 1/2%) per annum,
the monthly payment of which shall be payable bgard to Landlord in the same place and in the saarener as Base Rent for each month
of the initial Lease Term occurring after the apglile disbursement date as Additional Rent. Acoggli by way of example only, for each
dollar of TIA Increase utilized by Tenant priorttte Rent Commencement Date, each year's Base Rgatlp by Tenant during the initial
Lease Term, as set forth in SECTION 4 of the Surgprsdrall be increased by an amount equal to $0®p28 rentable square foot of the
Premises per month commencing on the Rent Commentdbate.

2.2.2.2 STANDARD TENANT IMPROVEMENT PACKAGE. Landid has established specifications (the "BUILDINGASIDARD

TENANT IMPROVEMENTS") for the Building standard cgmnents to be used in the construction of the Telmaprovements in the
Premises, which Building Standard Tenant Improveamare set forth on SCHEDULE 2 attached hereto.quadity of Tenant Improvements
shall be equal to or of greater quality than thaliggiof the Building Standard Tenant Improvemehndlord acknowledges that Tenant is
not required to use any of the specific Buildingr8tard Tenant Improvements set forth on SchedaledZhat Schedule 2 has been provided
only as a means of indicating the minimum qualitd guantity of the items listed thereon that wéltequired in the construction of the
Tenant Improvements.

2.2.2.3 REMOVAL BY TENANT OF EXTRAORDINARY TENANTMPROVEMENTS. Landlord may require that Tenant remany
initial Tenant Improvements in the lab portion loé Premises identified by Landlord concurrentlyhwiandlord's review and approval of the
Approved Construction Drawings as "Extraordinaryefdtions,” as that term is defined in SECTION & the Lease, and to repair any
damage to the Premises and Building caused byrsemcbval (reasonable wear and tear excepted); pedyltowever, if Landlord, in its
approval of any Extraordinary Alterations, failsaddress the removal requirement with regard tb §ixtraordinary Alterations, Landlord
shall be deemed to have agreed to waive the remegailrement with regard to such Extraordinary #tens.

EXHIBIT B
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2.2.3 DISBURSEMENT OF TENANT IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANCHBuring the construction of the Tenant Improvemgehéndlord
shall make monthly disbursements of the Tenant dwgment Allowance (and any TIA Increase elected &yant) for Tenant Improvement
Allowance Items for the benefit of Tenant and shathorize the release of monies for the benefitesfant as follows.

2.2.3.1 MONTHLY DISBURSEMENTS. Once each month ateg designated by Landlord (a "SUBMITTAL DATE")rihg the period

from the date hereof through the construction effenant Improvements, Tenant shall deliver to Landd (i) a request for payment of the
"Contractor," as that term is defined in SECTION df this Tenant Work Letter (or reimbursement &mdnt if Tenant has already paid the
Contractor or other person or entity entitled tgrpant and provides the evidence of such paymemicas particularly identified below),
approved by Tenant, in a form to be provided bydlard, showing the schedule, by trade, of percentdgompletion of the Tenant
Improvements in the Premises, detailing the porbibthe work completed; (ii) original invoices (@sk the Federal Drug Administration or
other governmental agency requires any such ofigimaice, in which case a true copy of such ineashall be allowed) from all of "Tenant's
Agents," as that term is defined in SECTION 4.%.this Tenant Work Letter, for labor rendered aratenials delivered to the Premises for
the applicable payment period,; (iii) executed ctindal mechanic's lien releases from all of TesaAtgents which shall substantially comply
with the appropriate provisions of California Ci@bde

Section 3262(d), or unconditional releases if appade; provided, however, that with respect tesfard expenses of the Architect, Engine
or construction or project managers or other sintitmsultants, and/or any other pre-constructiems for which the payment scheme set
forth in items (i) through (iii), above of this Temt Work Letter, is not applicable (collectivelligt"NON-CONSTRUCTION ALLOWANCE
ITEMS"), Tenant shall only be required to deliverfandlord on or before the applicable SubmittaleDeeasonable evidence of incurring the
cost for the applicable Non-Construction Allowartigsns (unless Landlord has received a preliminatyca in connection with such costs in
which event conditional lien releases must be sttbthin connection with such costs); and (iv) alley information reasonably requested in
good faith by Landlord. Tenant's request for paynséall be deemed Tenant's acceptance and apmrioe work furnished and/or the
materials supplied as set forth in Tenant's paymeiest vis-a-vis Landlord. On or before the dateurring forty-five (45) days after the
Submittal Date, and assuming Landlord receivesfatie information described in items (i) through),(above, Landlord shall deliver a che
to Tenant made jointly payable to Contractor andah¢ or if Tenant elects, to the Contractor, subre@tor, Architect, Engineer or consultant
designated by Tenant and/or a separate check @nTémthe extent Tenant has provided evidencenady satisfactory to Landlord that
Tenant has paid such Contractor (or other suppfiservices or goods) accompanied, when appropibgtanconditional lien releases, or any
other provider of good and services designateddnaiit to Landlord, and Tenant, in payment of teedeof: (A) the amounts so requeste
Tenant, as set forth in this SECTION 2.2.3.1, abtegs a ten percent (10%) retention (the aggregyataint of such retentions to be know:
the "FINAL RETENTION"), provided, however, that sach retention shall be duplicative of the retanfi@nant would otherwise withhold
(but will not withhold) pursuant to its agreementhasuch Contractor and no such deduction shadigmicable to Non-Construction
Allowance Items or other Tenant Improvement Allowartems in connection with the payment of supplfer materials delivered to the
Premises, and (B) the balance of any remainindablaiportion of the Tenant Improvement Allowannet(including the Final
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Retention). In the event that Landlord or Tenaenhidies any material non-compliance with the Apgo Construction Drawings, or
substandard work, Landlord or Tenant as appropsiadl be provided a detailed statement identifigagh material non-compliance or
substandard work by the party claiming the same ifafie work is clearly substandard or if the nmalenon-compliance creates a "Design
Problem," as that term is defined in

SECTION 3.2 of this Tenant Work Letter, Tenant balise such work to be corrected so that such wark longer substandard and/or that
no Design Problem exists. Landlord's payment ohsumounts shall not be deemed Landlord's approvateeptance of the work furnished
or materials supplied as set forth in Tenant's gaymequest. If Tenant receives a check payaldayone other than solely to Tenant for a
monthly disbursement pursuant to this

SECTION 2.2.3.1 or the Final Retention, Tenant medyrn such check to Landlord and receive a cheaftenpayable only to Tenant, if
Tenant provides the releases and evidence reqaiir@eke to receive a check payable solely to Tenant.

2.2.3.2 FINAL RETENTION. Subject to the provisiooisthis Tenant Work Letter, a check for the Finat&htion payable jointly to Tenant
and Contractor shall be delivered by Landlord toarg following the completion of each phase of tusion of the Premises, provided that
(i) Tenant delivers to Landlord properly executeechmanics lien releases in compliance with bothf@alia Civil Code Section 3262(d)(2)
and either Section 3262(d)(3) or

Section 3262(d)(4), (ii) Landlord has reasonabliedained that no substandard work exists which el affects the mechanical, electric
plumbing, heating, ventilating and air conditionitiée-safety or other systems of the Building, thetain wall of the Building, the structure
or exterior appearance of the Building, and (iifchitect delivers to Landlord a certificate, incarh reasonably acceptable to Landlord,
certifying that the construction of the applicaplease of the Tenant Improvements in the Premisebéwen substantially completed.

2.2.4 FAILURE TO DISBURSE TENANT IMPROVEMENT ALLOWACE. If Landlord fails to timely fulfill its obligaon to fund any
portion of the Tenant Improvement Allowance, themadnt shall provide written notice ("PAYMENT NOTIQEhereof to Landlord and to
any mortgage or trust deed holder of the Buildifgp®e identity and address have been previouslhigedvo Tenant. If Landlord still fails to
fulfill any such obligation within twenty (20) bus#ss days after Landlord's receipt of the Paymeiitsl from Tenant, and if Landlord fails
deliver notice to Tenant within such twenty (20simess day period explaining Landlord's reasonsltiadlord believes that the amounts
described in Tenant's Payment Notice are not ddepapable by Landlord ("REFUSAL NOTICE"), Tenanallbe entitled to offset the
amount so funded, together with interest at the ohten percent (10%) per annum, from the lastafaguch 20-business day period until the
date of offset, against Tenant's next obligatiangay Rent. However, if Tenant is in default un8EXCTION 19.1 of this Lease at the time
such offset would otherwise be applicable, Tenhatl :i0t be entitled to such offset until such détfés cured. If Landlord delivers a Refusal
Notice, and if Landlord and Tenant are not ablagmee on the amounts to be so paid by Landloahyif within ten (10) days after Tenatr
receipt of a Refusal Notice, then Tenant may subogh dispute to the American Arbitration Assooiatior resolution. If Tenant prevails in
any such arbitration, the arbitration award byahgtrator shall include interest at the rate of percent (10%) per annum calculated from the
date of funding by Tenant, if any, until the daté andlord's payment of such arbitration award. iy, if Tenant prevails in any such
arbitration, Tenant shall be entitled to apply such
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arbitration award as a credit against Tenant'gatibns to pay Rent, and the arbitration award $helude interest at the rate of ten percent
(10%) per annum calculated from the date of fundimd enant, if any, until the date of Tenant's aggion of such amounts as a credit
against Rent.

SECTION 3
CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

3.1 SELECTION OF ARCHITECT/CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGSefiant shall retain Pacific Cornerstone Architetttie (ARCHITECT")
to prepare the "Construction Drawings," as thahter defined in this SECTION 3.1. Tenant shall irethe engineering consultants design
by Landlord and reasonably approved by Tenant"@ENGINEERS") to prepare all plans and engineerimgking drawings relating to the
structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, HVAifgsafety, and sprinkler work of the Tenant Imypements. The plans and drawings to be
prepared by Architect and the Engineers hereurtdl ise known collectively as the "CONSTRUCTION kags." All Construction
Drawings shall comply with industry standards, ahdll be subject to Landlord's approval. Tenant/mdhitect shall verify in the field the
dimensions and conditions as shown on the relgyantions of the As-Built Base and Shell Improvensentthe extent such conditions can be
confirmed by visual inspection and measurementawitipenetrating walls ("VISUAL INSPECTION") and Tat and Architect shall be
solely responsible for the same, and Landlord stealk no responsibility in connection therewithgept for conditions which cannot be
determined by Visual Inspection. Any delays encered by Tenant in the Substantial Completion offteeant Improvements as a result of
discrepancies in the dimensions and conditions shmwthe relevant portions of the As-Built Base &hell Improvements which are not
subject to Visual Inspection shall be consideréadrmdlord Caused Delay as described in SECTIONKelbw, of this Tenant Work Letter.
Landlord's review of the Construction Drawings efsferth in this

SECTION 3, shall be for its sole purpose and statlimply Landlord's review of the same, or oblggaandlord to review the same, for
quality, design, Code compliance or other like eratt Accordingly, notwithstanding that any Condtiare Drawings are reviewed by
Landlord or its space planner, architect, enginertsconsultants, and notwithstanding any adviassistance which may be rendered to
Tenant by Landlord or Landlord's space plannehitect, engineers, and consultants, Landlord d$tale no liability whatsoever in
connection therewith, except to the extent thatdlaml has specifically requested a modificatiotht® Construction Drawings as a condition
to Landlord's approval of the Construction Drawiagsl shall not be responsible for any omissioreriars contained in the Construction
Drawings, and Tenant's waiver and indemnity seahfor this Lease shall specifically apply to thenGwuction Drawings. Landlord
acknowledges that Tenant intends to build the Temaprovements in various phases over an exteridedferiod that may be as long as
three (3) years and further acknowledges thatioeptaases of the construction shall be done oreaida-build" basis. Accordingly, despite
the use of the terms "Final Space Plan" and "AppddWorking Drawings" and "Final Costs", the partgsee that such terminology is being
used for convenience only and that there will hgasate space plans and separate working drawingsp@tentially separate budgets)
prepared for each phase of the construction. Adaghy the review and approval process set forfloweshall apply to each phase of the
construction of the Tenant Improvements. Furtheaneach time Landlord is granted the right to neyieonsent or approve any space pla
construction

EXHIBIT B

-6-



drawings (collectively, "CONSENT"), such Consenalshe granted unless a Design Problem, as suchitedefined below, exists.

3.2 FINAL SPACE PLAN. The Architect shall prepaa@d Tenant shall approve, the final space plaedch applicable phase of the
construction of the Tenant Improvements in the Bsem(collectively, the "FINAL SPACE PLAN"), whidfinal Space Plan shall include a
layout and designation of all offices, rooms anrtkeotpartitioning, their intended use, and equipnteiite contained therein, and Architect
shall promptly deliver the Final Space Plan to Lardifor Landlord's approval. Landlord shall advizgEnant within five (5) business days
after Landlord's receipt of the Final Space Plarttie Premises if the same is unsatisfactory arimgete in any respect (based upon a
commercially reasonable standard). Landlord skealfcrth with reasonable specificity in what redpde Final Space Plan is unsatisfactor
incomplete. It shall be deemed commercially reastnfor Landlord to disapprove a submitted Finah@&pPlan for only the following
reasons: (i) such Final Space Plan would have aeraé effect on the structural integrity of theIBimg; (ii) such Final Space Plan fails to
comply with applicable Code and or other applicajdgernmental regulations; (iii) such Final SpataB would have an adverse effect on
the systems and equipment of the Building; or giw}h Final Space Plan would have an adverse effettte exterior appearance of the
Building (individually or collectively, a "DESIGNROBLEM"). If Tenant is so advised, Tenant shallrpply direct the Architect to cause
the Final Space Plan to be revised to correct afigidncies or other matters Landlord may reasgnedgiuire, and immediately thereafter
Architect shall promptly re-submit the Final Sp&dan to Landlord for its approval. Such procedinalscontinue until the Final Space Plan
is approved by Landlord. Landlord's failure to abje the Final Space Plan within such five (5)ibess days shall constitute Landlord's
approval of the Final Space Plan.

3.3 COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS. Followirigandlord's approval of the applicable Final Spales PTenant, the
Architect and the Engineers shall complete (extefite extent certain construction is being congalain a "design-build" basis) the
Construction Drawings for the applicable phasehefTenant Improvements in a form which is suffitienallow contractors to bid on the
work and to obtain all applicable permits and skabimit the same to Landlord for Landlord's appkollae Construction Drawings may be
submitted in one or more stages at one or morestiprevided that Tenant shall ultimately supply dland with four (4) completed copies
signed by Tenant of such Construction Drawings.dlam shall, within five (5) business days aftentiord's receipt of all of the
Construction Drawings, either (i) approve the Cargton Drawings, (ii) approve the Construction Ditags subject to specified conditions
which must be stated in a reasonably clear and genmanner to be satisfied by Tenant prior to stibrg the Approved Construction
Drawings for permits as set forth in SECTION 3.dldw of this Tenant Work Letter, to the extent @@nstruction Drawings contain a Des
Problem, or

(iii) disapprove and return the Construction Draggrio Tenant with requested revisions to the extenConstruction Drawings contain a
Design Problem. If Landlord disapproves the Comsiton Drawings, Tenant may resubmit the ConstrucBoawings to Landlord at any tin
and Landlord shall approve or disapprove the redidnConstruction Drawings, based upon the catseét forth in this SECTION 3.3, witt
three (3) business days after Landlord receivel segubmitted Construction Drawings. Such procedhed] be repeated until the
Construction Drawings are approved. Landlord'sifaito timely respond to Tenant within any appllealesponse period referenced herein
shall be deemed Landlord's approval of the Constru®©rawings.
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3.4 APPROVED CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS. The Construntibrawings shall be approved by Landlord (the "APRIED
CONSTRUCTION Drawings") prior to the commencementanstruction of the applicable phase of the Téhaprovements by Tenant in
one or more stages. In the event that Tenant shlathit the Construction Drawings to Landlord in enttan one stage, Landlord shall be
entitled to approve a stage and to subsequentppisve of such stage, provided that a Design Pnolis found to exist which is evident o
following Landlord's review of subsequent drawingfter approval by Landlord of the Construction @rags, Tenant may submit the same
to the appropriate municipal authorities for alpgable building permits. Tenant hereby agreestieéher Landlord nor Landlord's
consultants shall be responsible for obtaininglauniding permit or certificate of occupancy for tReemises and that obtaining the same shall
be Tenant's responsibility; provided, however, ttetdlord shall cooperate with Tenant in execupegnit applications and performing ott
ministerial acts reasonably necessary to enablarfig¢n obtain any such permit or certificate ofugmancy; provided that if the reason for the
non-issuance of any building permit or certificafeccupancy (the "NON-ISSUANCE EVENT") relatesthe condition of the Base and
Shell not being in compliance with the Bsilt Base and Shell Improvements, then Landlomllsgtorrect, at Landlord's sole cost and expe
such portion of the Base and Shell to the extec¢ssary to be in compliance with the Bsilt Base and Shell Improvements to enable Te
to obtain any such building permits or certificafeoccupancy, and any delays encountered by Tendiné Substantial Completion of the
Tenant Improvements as a result thereof shall bsidered a Landlord Caused Delay as described @Tr8EN 5.1 below of this Tenant
Work Letter. No material changes, modificationgterations in the Approved Construction Drawingsyrbe made without the prior written
consent of Landlord, which consent may not be wsmeably withheld, conditioned or delayed excepghtextent necessary to eliminate a
Design Problem.

3.5 CHANGE ORDERS. In the event Tenant desiresdterally change the Approved Construction Drawjrigemnant shall deliver Notice
(the "DRAWING CHANGE NOTICE") of the same to Landip setting forth in detail the changes (the "TENREHANGE") Tenant desire
to make to the Approved Construction Drawings. llardishall, no later than three (3) business dégs eeceipt of a Drawing Change Not
related to a Tenant Change affecting the Builditrgc@ure, and no later than two (2) business d&gs geceipt of the Drawing Change Not
related to a Tenant Change which does not affecBthilding Structure, either

(i) approve the Tenant Change, or (ii) disapprdveTenant Change and deliver a Notice to Tenardifgp®y in reasonably sufficient detail
the reasons for Landlord's disapproval; providedyéver, that Landlord may only disapprove of thedr@ Change if the Tenant Change
contains a Design Problem. Any additional costscivlairise in connection with such Tenant Changd begbaid by Tenant; provided,
however, that to the extent the Tenant Improvemdotvance has not been depleted, such payment lskatiade out of the Tenant
Improvement Allowance, but in such event thereldbah corresponding adjustment made to the "Fosks" and the "Over-Allowance
Amount," as those terms are defined in

SECTION 4.2.1 below, in connection with the apgiima of the last sentence of said SECTION 4.2.1.

SECTION 4
CONSTRUCTION OF THE TENANT IMPROVEMENTS
4.1 CONTRACTOR; TENANT'S AGENTS.
EXHIBIT B
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4.1.1 CONTRACTOR. David Begent and Company ("CONTRAR") shall construct the Tenant Improvements.tzator shall
competitively bid all major trades to a minimumteb (2) qualified subcontractors, review the biddwandlord's and Tenant's
representatives (as identified in SECTIONS 6.2 ABIB of this Tenant Work Letter), and award the apgate subcontract to the lowest
acceptable bidder.

4.1.2 TENANT'S AGENTS. All subcontractors, laboraraterialmen, and suppliers used by Tenant, am@€tntractor, shall be known
collectively as "TENANT'S AGENTS."

4.2 CONSTRUCTION OF TENANT IMPROVEMENTS BY TENANTSGENTS.

4.2.1 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT,; COST BUDGET. Priorfienant's execution of the construction contractgerkral conditions with
Contractor (the "CONTRACT"), Tenant shall submi tBontract to Landlord for its approval, which apg@l shall not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed; provided, however, Landlordetiny acknowledges that a delay of more than ti8gbisiness days shall be deemed
unreasonable. Prior to the commencement of thetwmtion of the applicable phase of the Tenant bupments, and after Tenant has
accepted all bids for such phase of the Tenantdwgiments, Tenant shall provide Landlord with a itlelebreakdown, by trade, of the final
costs to be incurred or which have been incurredeaforth more particularly in SECTION 2.2.1, edan connection with the design and
construction of the Tenant Improvements to be peréal by or at the direction of Tenant or the Cattyg which costs form a basis for the
amount of the Contract (the "FINAL COSTS"). If tamount of the Final Costs is greater than the amafuthe Tenant Improvement
Allowance (after deducting from the Tenant ImproesmAllowance any amounts expended in connectidi tlie preparation of the
Construction Drawings, and the cost of all othendrd Improvement Allowance Items incurred priothte commencement of construction of
the Tenant Improvements) (the "OVER-ALLOWANCE AMOUN, then Tenant shall be solely responsible fahs@ver-Allowance
Amount.

4.2.2 TENANT'S AGENTS.

4.2.2.1 LANDLORD'S GENERAL CONDITIONS FOR TENANT/SGENTS AND TENANT IMPROVEMENT WORK. Tenant's and
Tenant's Agent's construction of the Tenant Impmuamts shall cause the Tenant Improvements to b&romted in material accordance with
the Approved Construction Drawings.

4.2.2.2 INDEMNITY. Tenant's indemnity of Landlord set forth in this Lease shall also apply witlpezs to any and all costs, losses,
damages, injuries and liabilities related in anywaany act or omission of Tenant or Tenant's Agjear anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them, or in connection with Tretteanon-payment of any amount arising out of teeaint Improvements and/or Tenant's
disapproval of all or any portion of any requestgayment (individually or collectively, "INDEMNIRATION CLAIM"). Notwithstanding
the foregoing, Tenant shall not be required to mndié Landlord pursuant to this SECTION 4.2.2.2He extent such Indemnification Claim
directly results from the gross negligence or wilthisconduct of Landlord or the Landlord Partise waivers of subrogation set forth in-
Lease pertaining to property damage shall be apiglicable to damage to property arising as a tre$any work performed pursuant to the
TCCs of this
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Tenant Work Letter and Tenant shall be excused ftsimdemnification obligation to the extent Laodl's damage is covered by insurance
required to be carried by Landlord as part of OfegaExpenses and as to which the waiver of sultragé applicable. Such indemnity by
Tenant, as set forth in this Lease, shall alsoyapfih respect to any and all costs, losses, damanjeiries and liabilities related in any way
Landlord's performance of any ministerial acts oeably necessary (i) to permit Tenant to comple¢eTtenant Improvements, and (ii) to
enable Tenant to obtain any building permit orifieate of occupancy for the Premises.

4.2.2.3 REQUIREMENTS OF TENANT'S AGENTS. The Contoa and each of Tenant's Agents shall guarant@eriant and for the bene
of Landlord that the portion of the Tenant Improwsts for which it is responsible shall be free frany defects in workmanship and
materials for a period of not less than one (1) yemm the date of completion thereof. The Conwaeind each of Tenant's Agents shall be
responsible for the replacement or repair, wittamditional charge, of all work done or furnishedatordance with its contract that shall
become defective within one (1) year after therladeccur of (i) completion of the work performid such contractor or subcontractors and
(i) the Lease Commencement Date. The correctissuoh work shall include, without additional chargk additional expenses and damages
incurred in connection with such removal or rephaeat of all or any part of the Tenant Improvemeatsi/or the Building and/or common
areas that may be damaged or disturbed therebgudhl warranties or guarantees as to materialodamanship of or with respect to the
Tenant Improvements shall be contained in the @ohtir subcontract and shall be written such thelh guarantees or warranties shall inure
to the benefit of both Landlord and Tenant, asrttespective interests may appear, and can betlgimtorced by either; provided that
Landlord shall only enforce such guaranty or wagranTenant fails to do so in a reasonable timiéofeing Notice thereof from Landlord.
Tenant covenants to give to Landlord any assignmeather assurances which may be necessary tt effeh right of direct enforcement.

4.2.2.4 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.

() GENERAL COVERAGES. All of Tenant's Agents shadlrry worker's compensation insurance coveringfatheir respective employees,
and shall also carry public liability insuranceglinding property damage, in form and with compamigegre required to be carried by Tenant
as set forth in this Lease and with the followingpimum limits of liability: (a) Bodily Injury and Roperty Damage Liability $1,000,000 eac
occurrence and $2,000,000 annual aggregate, (bpRarinjury Liability - $1,000,000 each occurrereel $2,000,000 annual aggregate, and
(c) Umbrella coverage of $3,000,000. Notwithstagdanything to the contrary set forth in this SECWI®.2.2.4, above, to the extent such
levels of insurance are not commercially reasonaisl@-vis a particular type of individual/entitprestituting one of Tenant's Agents, such
individual/entity may carry such lesser amountnsiuirance as is commercially reasonable (in lighheir trade and scope of the particular
Tenant Improvements they are constructing).

(i) SPECIAL COVERAGES. Tenant shall require Cowtra to carry "Builder's All Risk" insurance in amount not more than the amoun
the Contract covering the construction of the Témaprovements, and such other insurance as Lathdhaty reasonably require, it being
understood and agreed that the Tenant Improversaatsbe
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insured by Tenant pursuant to this Lease immediagebn completion thereof. Such insurance shalhlz@nounts and shall include such
extended coverage endorsements as may be reasoaabired by Landlord, and as generally requiredbbglords of buildings comparable
and in the vicinity of the Building.

(iii) GENERAL TERMS. Certificates for all insuran@arried pursuant to this SECTION 4.2.2.4 shaltielivered to Landlord before the
commencement of construction of the Tenant Impraammand before the Contractor's equipment is monsalthe site. All such policies of
insurance must contain a provision that the compeniting said policy will give Landlord thirty (30Jays prior written notice of any
cancellation or lapse of the effective date or @duction in the amounts of such insurance. Irethrent that the Tenant Improvements are
damaged by any cause during the course of thercetish thereof, Tenant shall immediately repag #ame at Tenant's sole cost and
expense. Tenant's Agents shall maintain all oféhegoing insurance coverage in force until theargimprovements are fully completed
accepted by Landlord, except for any Products amileted Operation Coverage insurance requiredamglord, which is to be maintained
for the term of the policy following completion tife work and acceptance by Landlord and Tenantpdlities carried under this SECTION
4.2.2.4 shall insure Landlord and Tenant, as ih&rests may appear, as well as Contractor andnitsnAgents. All insurance, except
Workers' Compensation, maintained by Tenant's Agysimall preclude subrogation claims by the insagainst anyone insured thereunder.
Such insurance shall provide that it is primanunasice as respects the owner and that any otheaimse maintained by owner is excess and
noncontributing with the insurance required hereund@he requirements for the foregoing insuranedl stot derogate from the provisions for
indemnification of Landlord by Tenant under SECTI@NR.2.2 of this Tenant Work Letter and Tenanghts with respect to the waiver of
subrogation.

4.2.3 GOVERNMENTAL COMPLIANCE. The Tenant Improvents shall comply in all respects with the followir{y the Code and other
state, federal, city or quasi-governmental lawslesy ordinances and regulations, as each may apptyding to the rulings of the controlling
public official, agent or other person; (ii) applide standards of the American Insurance Assoaigfamerly, the National Board of Fire
Underwriters) and the National Electrical Code; @nybuilding material manufacturer's specifiaats.

4.2.4 INSPECTION BY LANDLORD. Landlord shall hauveetright to inspect the Tenant Improvements atalsonable times, provided
however, that Landlord's failure to inspect the dmrimprovements shall in no event constitute averabf any of Landlord's rights hereunder
nor shall Landlord's inspection of the Tenant Iny@rents constitute Landlord's approval of the samthe event that Landlord should
discover a Design Problem during an inspectiondi@nd shall notify Tenant in writing within a reasable time after such inspection of such
disapproval and shall specify in reasonably sudfitidetail the items disapproved. Any defects efad®ns in, and/or disapprovals in
accordance herewith (because of the existencéeksan Problem) by Landlord of, the Tenant Improeats shall be rectified by Tenant at
Tenant's expense and at no additional expensendidral, provided however, that in the event Landlldetermines that a defect or deviation
exists or in the event Landlord reasonably disaygs®f any matter in connection with any portioritef Tenant Improvements because of a
Design Problem, Landlord may, following notice teriint and a reasonable period of time for Tenaoute, take such action as Landlord
deems necessary to correct the Design Problem, at
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Tenant's expense, and at no additional expensaridiard and without incurring any liability on Laodd's part, to correct any such Design
Problem, including, without limitation, causing tbessation of performance of the construction efftenant Improvements until such time as
the Design Problem is corrected to Landlord's nealSte satisfaction. In connection with the foreggifenant shall pay a construction
supervision fee (the "LANDLORD SUPERVISION FEE")ltandlord in an amount equal to one percent (1.68the Tenant Improvement
Allowance (including any TIA Increase) attributaltéeall costs in connection with the constructidrthe Tenant Improvements (i.e., the
"hard" costs), excluding the following: (i) arctdtare, engineering and consulting fees, (ii) thetsof FF&E purchased with such Tenant
Improvement Allowance, (iii) costs attributablethe requisite permits and related governmental feed (iv) utility hook-up charges.

4.2.5 MEETINGS. Commencing upon the execution &f tlease, Tenant shall hold regular meetings aaaanable time (but in no event to
be required more often than weekly), with the Aretti and the Contractor regarding the progresbepteparation of Construction Drawings
and the construction of the Tenant Improvementsghvimeetings shall be held at a location designbyetienant on the Project site, or as
otherwise mutually agreed by Landlord and Tenamd, lsandlord and/or its agents shall receive pratiae of, and shall have the right to
attend, all such meetings, and, upon Landlord'sest) certain of Tenant's Agents (to the exterdaeably necessary) shall attend such
meetings. In addition, minutes shall be takenlawdh meetings, a copy of which minutes shall fmenptly delivered to Landlord. One such
meeting each month shall include the review of @ubr's current request for payment.

4.3 NOTICE OF COMPLETION; COPY OF RECORD SET OF M3 Within ten (10) business days after completiboonstruction of th
Tenant Improvements, Tenant shall cause a Noti€oaipletion to be recorded in the office of the &der of the county in which the
Building is located in accordance with

Section 3093 of the Civil Code of the State of foafiia or any successor statute, and shall furaisbpy thereof to Landlord upon such
recordation. If Tenant fails to do so, Landlord nesgcute and file the same on behalf of Tenanteasit's agent for such purpose, at Ter
sole cost and expense. At the conclusion of cocistrny (i) Tenant shall cause the Architect and t€ator (A) to update the Approved
Construction Drawings as necessary to reflectralhges made to the Approved Construction Drawingsg the course of construction, (B)
to certify to the best of their knowledge that thecord-set" of as-built drawings are true and ectrrwhich certification shall survive the
expiration or termination of this Lease, and (Cyl#hiver to Landlord two (2) sets of copies of suebord set of drawings within ninety

(90) days following issuance of a certificate o€@gancy for the Premises, and

(i) Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a copy of afhrranties, guaranties, and operating manualsrdonation relating to the improvements,
equipment, and systems in the Premises.

SECTION 5
MISCELLANEOUS

5.1 LEASE COMMENCEMENT DATE DELAYS. The Lease Commeement Date shall occur as provided in SECTIONo2this Lease
and SECTION 3.2 of the Summary, provided that thade Commencement Date and the Rent Commencenterttiad be extended by the
number of days of delay of the Substantial Comfetif the Tenant Improvements in the Premises to
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the extent caused by a "Lease Commencement Dassy Dak that term is defined below. As used hetbimterm "LEASE
COMMENCEMENT DATE DELAY" shall mean only a "Forcedjeure" delay as described in SECTION 29.16 olL#wse or a "Landlord
Caused Delay," as that term is defined below is 8£CTION 5.1. As used in this Tenant Work LetteANDLORD CAUSED DELAY"

shall mean actual delays to the extent resultiomfthe acts or omissions of Landlord including, tatt limited to (i) failure of Landlord to
timely approve or disapprove any Construction Dreggior Change Orders; (ii) material and unreasenabérference by Landlord, its agel
employees or contractors with the Substantial Cetigai of the Tenant Improvements and which objetyipreclude or delay the
construction of tenant improvements in the Buildoygany person, which interference relates to acbgslenant, or Tenant's Agents to the
Building or any Building facilities (including loawnly docks and freight elevators) or service (inolgdemporary power and parking areas as
provided herein) during normal construction hoorsthe use thereof during normal construction hofiiis delays due to the acts or failures
act of Landlord, its agents, employees or contradtecluding without limitation any such acts oildees to act with respect to payment of the
Tenant Improvement Allowance;

(iv) delays due to events covered by SECTIONS3.11,,6.6 and 6.7 of this Tenant Work Letter, andd@ays due to Landlord's nal@livery
of the Base and Shell in a condition as of MarcBQD2, which allows Tenant to construct the Temaprovements without material delays
and/or any lack of reasonably sufficient acceseetbeo allow Tenant to construct the Tenant Imprognts on a timely basis.

5.2 DETERMINATION OF LEASE COMMENCEMENT DATE DELAYIf Tenant contends that a Lease Commencement&sy has
occurred, Tenant shall notify Landlord in writin§(9 the event which constitutes such Lease Conwesrent Date Delay and (ii) the date
upon which such Lease Commencement Date Delaytismated to end. If such actions, inaction or ginstance described in the notice set
forth in (i) above of this SECTION 5.2 of this TenndVork Letter (the "DELAY NOTICE") are not cureg bandlord within one (1) business
day of Landlord's receipt of the Delay Notice ahslich action, inaction or circumstance otherwisalifjes as a Lease Commencement Date
Delay, then a Lease Commencement Date Delay shalébmed to have occurred commencing as of theotiaendlord's receipt of the
Delay Notice and ending as of the date such daldg.e

5.3 DEFINITION OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION OF THE TEANT IMPROVEMENTS. "SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION OF THE
TENANT IMPROVEMENTS" shall mean completion of consition of the Tenant Improvements in the Premisesuant to the Approved
Construction Drawings, with the exception of anyghulist items.

SECTION 6
MISCELLANEOUS

6.1 TENANT'S ENTRY INTO THE PREMISES. TENANT SHALHAVE access to the Premises upon the executioelofaty of this
Lease for the purpose of designing and construttiagrenant Improvements and installing overstathdguipment or fixtures (including
Tenant's data and telephone equipment) in the BemmSuch entry shall be on all the TCCs of thesé except for the payment of Rent.
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6.2 TENANT'S REPRESENTATIVE. Tenant has designafedKevin R. Bracken, as its sole representativéai@spect to the matters set
forth in this Tenant Work Letter, who, until furtheotice to Landlord, shall have full authority amdponsibility to act on behalf of the Ten
as required in this Tenant Work Letter.

6.3 LANDLORD'S REPRESENTATIVE. Landlord has desiggtaMr. Jim Edwards as its sole representative reifipect to the matters set
forth in this Tenant Work Letter who, until furtheotice to Tenant, shall have full authority angip@nsibility to act on behalf of Landlord as
required in this Tenant Work Letter.

6.4 TIME OF THE ESSENCE IN THIS TENANT WORK LETTERless otherwise indicated, all references heea"number of days"
shall mean and refer to calendar days. In all ircsta where Tenant or Landlord is required to appavdeliver an item, if no written notice
of approval is given or the item is not delivereithin the stated time period, at Landlord's or Trelsasole option, as the case may be, at the
end of such period the item shall automaticallyleemed approved or delivered by the party whoseoappor delivery is required and the
next succeeding time period shall commence. Ifisemg requiring approval is timely disapproved byg frarty whose approval is required, the
procedure for preparation of the document and aggbtbereof shall be repeated until the documeapimoved by the party whose approv
required.

6.5 TENANT'S LEASE DEFAULT. Notwithstanding any T&€@ the contrary contained in this Lease, if aan¢wf default as described in
SECTION 19.1 of the Lease, or a material defaullbgant under this Tenant Work Letter beyond th@iegble notice and cure period set
forth in ARTICLE 19 of the Lease, has occurredrat ime on or before the Substantial Completiothef Tenant Improvements, then (i) in
addition to all other rights and remedies grantetdandlord pursuant to the Lease, Landlord shalehhe right to withhold payment of all or
any portion of the Tenant Improvement Allowance/antiandlord may cause Contractor to cease theteani®n of the Premises (in which
case, Tenant shall be responsible for any deléyersubstantial Completion of the Tenant Improvemseaused by such work stoppage), and
(i) all other obligations of Landlord under the T€ of this Tenant Work Letter shall be forgivenilusuich time as such default is cured
pursuant to the TCCs of the Lease (in which caseafit shall be responsible for any delay in thes@uttial Completion of the Tenant
Improvements caused by the inaction of Landlord)yjgled, however, that, notwithstanding any othewvsion of the Lease, if a default by
Tenant is cured, forgiven or waived, Landlord'spsunsled obligations shall be fully reinstated armlinged, effective immediately.

6.6 HAZARDOUS MATERIAL COSTS. Landlord agrees taabany increased costs in the design or constructithe Tenant

Improvements directly resulting from any HazardMagerials in the Project (provided such Hazardowgéavlals are not introduced by
Tenant) and shall reimburse to Tenant, in additioand separate and apart from the Tenant ImprowveAllwance, any additional costs
incurred by Tenant as a result of the presenceaghktious Materials in the Project (provided suchar#ous Materials are not introduced by
Tenant) prior to the date Tenant constructs theafelmprovements and any delays encountered byrit@m¢éhe Substantial Completion of
the Tenant Improvements as a result of the pressinmech Hazardous Materials shall be considereahalord Caused Delay, as such term is
described in SECTION 5.1 above in this Tenant Wagker.
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6.7 CODE. In the event that the Base and Shell doesomply with Code as required by the termsBESION 1.1 of this Tenant Work
Letter, and therefore Tenant incurs increased desigonstruction costs that it would not have ined but for such noncompliance with
Code, then such costs shall be reimbursed by LeshtthoTenant without deduction from the Tenant lay@ment Allowance within thirty (3!
days after receipt by Landlord from Tenant of aigioal invoice (unless such original invoice isu@gd by the Federal Drug Administration
or other governmental agency, in which case adopy of the invoice shall be allowed) documenting avidencing such increased costs and
any delays actually encountered by Tenant in tmepbetion of the Tenant Improvements as a direatlte$ such noncompliance shall be
considered a Landlord Caused Delay, as such tedafiised in SECTION 5.1 above of this Tenant Wodtter.

6.8 NO MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES. Landlord shall progicsubject to availability, and neither Tenant fienant's agents shall be
charged for, elevators and/or loading docks otHeruse of electricity to the extent utilized impection with the construction of the Tenant
Improvements. Subject to the TCCs of this TenantkNetter and the first sentence of this

SECTION 6.8, the foregoing items shall be madeaealsly available to the Contractor and the subeaitrs during the period of Tenant's
construction of the Tenant Improvements.
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SCHEDULE 1 TO EXHIBIT B
[LISTING OF "AS-BUILT" BASE AND SHELL IMPROVEMENTS]
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-1-



SCHEDULE 2 TO EXHIBIT B
[LISTING OF BUILDING STANDARD TENANT IMPROVEMENTS]
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EXHIBIT B

-1-



EXHIBIT C

PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT

NOTICE OF LEASE TERM DATES

To:
Re: Lease dated , 2002 between ,a ("Landlordit), a
,a ngtity concerning the office/lab/manufacturing dirty located a
, San Diego, Califo
Gentlemen:

In accordance with the Lease (the "Lease"), we wasidvise you and/or confirm as follows:

1. The Lease Term shall commence on or has comrmdence for a term of ending on

2. Rent commenced to accrue on in the amount of

3. If the Rent Commencement Date is other tharfitsieday of the month, the first billing will coain a pro rata adjustment. Each billing
thereafter, with the exception of the final billirghall be for the full amount of the monthly idkteent as provided for in the Lease.

4. Your rent checks should be made payable to at

5. The exact number of rentable square feet withérBuilding/Premises is 68,400 square feet.
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6. Tenant's Share based upon the exact numbentable square feet within the Premises is one fachgercent (100%).

"Landlord":

[}

By:
ts:

Agreed to and Accepted
as of ,200__.
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EXHIBIT D
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT
RULES AND REGULATIONS

Tenant shall faithfully observe and comply with folowing Rules and Regulations. Landlord shall he responsible to Tenant for the
nonperformance of any of said Rules and Regulatigrnsr otherwise with respect to the acts or onoissiof any other tenants or occupants of
the Project; provided, however, in no event shatidlord enforce such Rules and Regulations inaidighatory manner to the detriment of
Tenant. In the event of any conflict between théeRand Regulations and the other provisions sfltkase, the latter shall control.

1. Safes and other heavy objects shall, if readgraimsidered necessary by Landlord, stand on stgpbsuch thickness as is necessary to
properly distribute the weight. Landlord will no¢ besponsible for loss of or damage to any suah@aproperty in any case. Any damage to
any part of the Building, its contents, occupamtsisitors by moving or maintaining any such safether property shall be the sole
responsibility and expense of Tenant.

2. The requirements of Tenant will be attendedniy apon application at Landlord's management efic at such office location designated
by Landlord. Employees of Landlord shall not pariaany work or do anything outside their regularehitinless under special instructions
from Landlord.

3. No advertisement, notice or handbill shall bbileited, distributed, painted or affixed by Tenantany part of the Pacific Corporate Center
without the prior written consent of the Landlofeénant shall not disturb, solicit, peddle, or casvany occupant of the Pacific Corporate
Center and shall cooperate with Landlord and ienggof Landlord to prevent same.

4. Tenant shall not overload the floor of the Piami

5. Tenant shall not use or keep in or on the Presnihe Building, or the Project any kerosene, lgescexplosive material, corrosive mater
material capable of emitting toxic fumes, or otiflammable or combustible fluid chemical, subggtor material, except in compliance with
applicable law. Tenant shall maintain material safiata sheets for any Hazardous Material useeptr &n the Premises.

6. Tenant shall not use, keep or permit to be osé@pt, any foul or noxious gas or substance iorothe Premises to the extent the same is
noticeable in the Common Areas of the Pacific CoapoCenter or which affects other tenants of thefle Corporate Center. Tenant shall
not throw anything out of doors, windows or skyligh

7. No cooking shall be done or permitted on therfses (unless Tenant receives Landlord's priotevriapproval to install a cafeteria for its
employees in the Premises), nor shall the Premisesed for lodging. Notwithstanding the foregoidgderwriters' laboratory-approved
equipment and microwave ovens may be used in thmiBes for heating food and
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brewing coffee, tea, hot chocolate and similar beges for employees and visitors, provided thah sise is in accordance with all applicable
federal, state, county and city laws, codes, ordirg, rules and regulations.

8. Intentionally Omitted.

9. Tenant shall store all its trash and garbagkimthe interior of the Premises or in the appraferiexternal trash area(s) for the Building. No
material shall be placed in the trash boxes omtaotes if such material is of such nature thataly not be disposed of in the ordinary and
customary manner of removing and disposing of teaghgarbage in San Diego, California without viola of any law or ordinance
governing such disposal; provided, however, Tenzay maintain separate trash enclosures for thagdasf non-conforming disposal items
to the extent Tenant satisfies and complies withapplicable laws or other governmental regulatieiating to the storage and disposal
thereof. If the Premises is or becomes infestet wétmin as a result of the use or any misuse gleneof the Premises by Tenant, its agents,
servants, employees, contractors, visitors or $iees, Tenant shall forthwith, at Tenant's expesmese the Premises to be exterminated from
time to time to the satisfaction of Landlord andlskemploy such licensed exterminators as shasijggoved in writing in advance by
Landlord.

10. Tenant shall comply with all safety, fire priten and evacuation procedures and regulatioabkstted by any governmental agency.

11. Neither the interior nor exterior of any windoghall be coated or otherwise sunscreened witheytrior written consent of Landlord.
Tenant shall be responsible for any damage to thdaw film on the exterior windows of the Premisel shall promptly repair any such
damage at Tenant's sole cost and expense.

12. Tenant must comply with requests by the Lanttmncerning the informing of their employees efris of reasonable importance to the
Landlord vis-a-vis the operation of the Project &mel Pacific Corporate Center.

13. Tenant must comply with any applicable "NO-SM@A&" Ordinances. If Tenant is required under thairmnce to adopt a written
smoking policy, a copy of said policy shall be da in the office of the Building. Additionally, Teant must provide at least one area within
the Premises in which its employees, invitees asitbvs may smoke, to the extent such area is reduiy law.

14. Tenant hereby acknowledges that Landlord $laak no obligation to provide guard service or ofeeurity measures for the benefit of
the Premises, the Building or the Project. Tenanely assumes all responsibility for the protectibienant and its agents, employees,
contractors, invitees and guests, and the propleergof, from acts of third parties, including kigpdoors locked and other means of entry to
the Premises closed, whether or not Landlordsatption, elects to provide security protectiontfar Project or any portion thereof. Tenant
further assumes the risk that any safety and dgaievices, services and programs which Landlogdts] in its sole discretion, to provide
may not be effective, or may malfunction or be winwented by an unauthorized third party, and Teshall, in addition to its other
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insurance obligations under this Lease, obtainvts insurance coverage to the extent Tenant dgsiodsction against losses related to such
occurrences. Tenant shall cooperate in any reakosafety or security program developed by Landtordequired by law.

15. No auction, liquidation, fire sale, going-odtbusiness or bankruptcy sale shall be conductédarPremises without the prior written
consent of Landlord.

16. No tenant shall use or permit the use of amiggoof the Premises for living quarters, sleepapgrtments or lodging rooms.

Landlord reserves the right at any time to charrgescind any one or more of these Rules and Regua or to make such other and further
reasonable, non-discriminatory Rules and Regulatéenin Landlord's judgment may from time to tireenlecessary (relative to a building
occupied solely by one tenant) for the managensarfiéty, care and cleanliness of the Premises, iBgilthe Common Areas and the Project,
and for the preservation of good order thereirnyels as for the convenience of other occupantstandnts therein. Landlord may waive any
one or more of these Rules and Regulations fobémefit of any particular tenants, but no such waby Landlord shall be construed as a
waiver of such Rules and Regulations in favor of ather tenant, nor prevent Landlord from theraagtgforcing any such Rules or
Regulations against any or all tenants of the tpjrovided, however, in no event shall Landlonfbece such Rules and Regulations in a
discriminatory manner to the detriment of Tenamndnt shall be deemed to have read these Ruld2eandations and to have agreed to
abide by them as a condition of its occupancy efRhemises.
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EXHIBIT E
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT
FORM OF TENANT'S ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE

The undersigned as Tenant under that certain L{#asELease™”) made and entered into as of , 200__ by and between
as Landlord, and the undersign@ersent, for Premises consisting of the officefladwiufacturing building located
, San Diego, California certifies as follows

1. Attached hereto as EXHIBIT A is a true and ceirimmpy of the Lease and all amendments and matiifics thereto. The documents
contained in EXHIBIT A represent the entire agreehimtween the parties as to the Premises.

2. The undersigned currently occupies the Prentisssribed in the Lease, the Lease Term commenced on , and the Lease Term
expires on , and the undersigned haptiun to terminate or cancel the Lease or to paselhall or any part of the Premises, the
Building and/or the Project, except as expresdiyath in the Lease.

3. Base Rent became payable on
4. The Lease is in full force and effect and hasbe@n modified, supplemented or amended in anyaxagpt as provided in EXHIBIT A.

5. Tenant has not transferred, assigned, or sabieportion of the Premises nor entered into azgnse or concession agreements with re
thereto except as follows:

6. Intentionally Omitted.

7. All monthly installments of Base Rent, all Addital Rent and all monthly installments of estinda#elditional Rent have been paid when
due through . The current monthly imtit of Base Rent is $

8. To the undersigned's best knowledge, all camuiitiof the Lease to be performed by Landlord necgds the enforceability of the Lease
have been satisfied and Landlord is not in defilagliteunder. In addition, the undersigned has rnlateded any notice to Landlord regarding a
default by Landlord thereunder.

9. No rental (other than Estimated Direct Expenbkas)been paid more than thirty (30) days in advamgl no security has been deposited
with Landlord except as provided in the Lease.
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10. As of the date hereof, there are, to the unglezd's best knowledge, no existing defenses setsf or claims or any basis for a claim, that
the undersigned has against Landlord.

11. If Tenant is a corporation or partnership, eadividual executing this Estoppel Certificate lmehalf of Tenant hereby represents and
warrants that Tenant is a duly formed and existintity qualified to do business in California ahdttTenant has full right and authority to
execute and deliver this Estoppel Certificate dad €ach person signing on behalf of Tenant iscaizéid to do so.

12. There are no actions pending against the uigted under the bankruptcy or similar laws of thatedd States or any state.

13. Other than in compliance with all applicabledaand incidental to the ordinary course of theafgbe Premises, the undersigned has not
used or stored any hazardous substances in thédeem

14. To the undersigned's knowledge, all tenant avgment work to be performed by Landlord underitbase has been completed in
accordance with the Lease and has been acceptbéd bypdersigned and all reimbursements and alloegadae to the undersigned under the
Lease in connection with any tenant improvementkirave been paid in full.

The undersigned acknowledges that this EstoppeifiCate may be delivered to Landlord or to a pespve mortgagee or prospective
purchaser, and acknowledges that said prospectivigagee or prospective purchaser will be relyipgruthe statements contained herein in
making the loan or acquiring the property of whilth Premises are a part and that receipt by hisfaertificate is a condition of making such
loan or acquiring such property.

Executed at on the day of , 200
"Tenant":
a ’

By:
Its:
By:
Its:
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EXHIBIT F
KILROY REALTY

RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

ALLEN, MATKINS, LECK, GAMBLE
& MALLORY LLP

1999 Avenue of the Stars

18th Floor

Los Angeles, California 90067
Attention: Anton N. Natsis, Esq.

RECOGNITION OF COVENANTS,
CONDITIONS, AND RESTRICTIONS

This Recognition of Covenants, Conditions, and Regins (this "AGREEMENT") is entered into as bkt day of ,200__, by
and between ("Landlord"), and ("Tenant"), with reference to tHewang facts:
A. Landlord and Tenant entered into that certaiadeeAgreement dated , 200__ (the "Lease"$uBnt to the Lease, Landlord leased to

Tenant and Tenant leased from Landlord all of flece located in an office/lab/manufacturing buiddamd 273 parking spaces (collectively,
the "PREMISES") on certain real property depictadeXHIBIT "A" attached hereto and incorporated letey this reference (the
"PROPERTY").

B. The Premises are located on real property wisigart of an area owned by Landlord containingraximately () acres of real
property located in the City of , @atifa (the "PROJECT"), as more particularly desstin EXHIBIT "B" attached hereto
and incorporated herein by this reference.

C. Landlord, as declarant, has previously recordegroposes to record concurrently with the reatich of this Agreement, a Declaration of
Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions (the "DEBIAION"), dated , 200__, in connaawith the Project.

D. Tenant is agreeing to recognize and be bourttidyerms of the Declaration, and the parties betesire to set forth their agreements
concerning the same.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of (a) the forewpiecitals and the mutual agreements hereinadtdpgh, and (b) for other good a
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficieoicywhich are hereby acknowledged, the partiesthexgree as follows,
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1. TENANT'S RECOGNITION OF DECLARATION. Notwithstding that the Lease has been executed prior teetterdation of the
Declaration, Tenant agrees to recognize and bydbyrall of the terms and conditions of the Dediara

2. MISCELLANEOUS.

2.1 This Agreement shall be binding upon and inartae benefit of the parties hereto and theire@espe heirs, estates, personal
representatives, successors, and assigns.

2.2 This Agreement is made in, and shall be govkraeforced and construed under the laws of, thee $if California.

2.3 This Agreement constitutes the entire undedétgnand agreements of the parties with respeittesubject matter hereof, and shall
supersede and replace all prior understandingagrekments, whether verbal or in writing. The partionfirm and acknowledge that there
are no other promises, covenants, understandiggsements, representations, or warranties witheigp the subject matter of this
Agreement except as expressly set forth herein.

2.4 This Agreement is not to be modified, termidater amended in any respect, except pursuantytinatrument in writing duly executed
both of the parties hereto.

2.5 In the event that either party hereto shafidpeny legal action or other proceeding with respethe breach, interpretation, or
enforcement of this Agreement, or with respectrtp dispute relating to any transaction coveredhiy Agreement, the losing party in such
action or proceeding shall reimburse the prevaiiagy therein for all reasonable costs of litigatiincluding reasonable attorneys' fees, in
such amount as may be determined by the courher ¢&ribunal having jurisdiction, including mattens appeal.

2.6 All captions and heading herein are for coreece and ease of reference only, and shall nosée ar referred to in any way in
connection with the interpretation or enforcemdtths Agreement.

2.7 If any provision of this Agreement, as appliecny party or to any circumstance, shall be agfddby a court of competent jurisdictions
to be void or unenforceable for any reason, theessimall not affect any other provision of this Agmeent, the application of such provision
under circumstances different form those adjudgethé court, or the validity or enforceability dfit Agreement as a whole.

2.8 Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

2.9 The Parties agree to execute any further doestenand take any further actions, as may be reéd®@and appropriate in order to carry
the purpose and intent of this Agreement.
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2.10 As used herein, the masculine, feminine otaregender, and the singular and plural numbeed| sach be deemed to include the others
whenever and whatever the context so indicates.
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SIGNATURE PAGE OF RECOGNITION OF
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have dulyoeted this Agreement as of the day and yeardbieve written.

"Landlord":
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EXHIBIT G

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED
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EXHIBIT H

FORM OF LETTER OF CREDIT
(LETTERHEAD OF A MONEY CENTER BANK
ACCEPTABLE TO THE LANDLORD)

, 20C

Gentlemen:

We hereby establish our Irrevocable Letter of Gradd authorize you to draw on us at sight forabeount of ,a
, the aggregate ambunt o
$ )-

Funds under this Letter of Credit are availabléhtobeneficiary hereof as follows:

Any or all of the sums hereunder may be drawn datamy time and from time to time from and after ttate hereof by a representative of
("Beneficiary'@mdiccompanied by this Letter of Credit and a emitatement signed by
representative of Beneficiary, certifying that subneys are due and owing to Beneficiary.

This Letter of Credit is transferable in its ertyreAny costs/fee incurred in connection with angls transfer shall be paid by Beneficiary;
provided, however, in no event shall such cost&fered $750.00 with regard to any single tran§fieould a transfer be desired, such
transfer will be subject to the return to us ofthdvice, together with written instructions.

The amount of each draft must be endorsed on tleese hereof by the negotiating bank. We herebgeatirat this Letter of Credit shall be
duly honored upon presentation and delivery ofcéérification specified above.

This Letter of Credit shall expire on

Notwithstanding the above expiration date of thestér of Credit, the term of this Letter of Cresfiiall be automatically renewed f
successive, additional one (1) year periods unédeast thirty (30) days prior to any such ddtexpiration, the undersigned shall give
written notice to Beneficiary, by certified mai&turn receipt requested and at the address sktdbave or at such other address as may be
given to the undersigned by Beneficiary, that thegter of Credit will not be renewed.

This Letter of Credit is governed by the Uniformsthms and Practice for Documentary Credits (19989Rm), International Chamber of
Commerce Publication 500.
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Very truly yours,

(Name of Issuing Bank)
By:
EXHIBITH
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EXHIBIT |
PURCHASE CONTRACT
AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE

This Agreement of Purchase and Sale ("TAGREEMEN3Hhade and entered into by and between VICAL INCORRTED, a Delaware
corporation ("BUYER") and KILROY REALTY, L.P., a Deware limited partnership ("SELLER").

ARTICLE 1
GENERAL

1.1 THE PURCHASE PROPERTY. Seller is the ownerestain real property located in the County of Séego, State of California, more
particularly described on EXHIBIT A attached heratal made a part hereof (the "PROPERTY"), whiclp€rty is commonly referred to as
Lots 25/27 of the Pacific Corporate Center, andcWwhtroperty includes all improvements thereon, iipatly including the 273 parking
spaces set forth in ARTICLE 28 of the Lease, amdettitire "Premises” as that term is defined inLihase, and all of Seller's right, title and
interest in all privileges, entitlements, subsuefaights, easements, personal property, warramgieganties, air rights, water rights and
appurtenances pertaining to such real propertyirmptbvements.

1.2 GRANT OF OPTION. Pursuant to ARTICLE 30 of thattain Lease dated as of January 30, 2002 (tegetith any amendments there
the "LEASE"), Seller granted to Buyer an optiomptaochase the Property. The terms of the Leasenaogporated herein by reference.

1.3 PURPOSE. The purpose of this Agreement isdwige for the purchase and sale of the Propertghererms and conditions herein
provided, pursuant to Buyer's exercise of its aptmpurchase granted by Seller under the Lease.

1.4 CAPITALIZED TERMS. All capitalized terms usedrein, if not otherwise defined herein, shall htheemeaning given them under the
Lease.

ARTICLE 2
PURCHASE AND SALE

2.1 PURCHASE AND SALE. Seller agrees to sell thegerty to Buyer, and Buyer agrees to purchase ithgefty from Seller, on the terms
and conditions specified in this Agreement.

2.2 PURCHASE PRICE. The "Purchase Price" for ttap®rty shall be an amount equal to one hundregeerent (110%) of the "Fair
Market Value" of the Property; provided, howevéattif neither Kilroy Realty, L.P., a Delaware ltexdl partnership nor an Affiliate thereof
holds fee title to the Property on the date Buydivdrs the Exercise Notice, then the "PURCHASE®RIfor the Property shall be equal to
the "Fair Market Value" of the Property. For purpe®f this Agreement, the term "FAIR MARKET VALUENhall mean the value at which a
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third-party purchaser would purchase the Propestyfahe date on which Buyer's Exercise Notice dedvered to Seller, taking into
consideration the value of the Lease (using tHeviahg assumptions: (i) stabilized 100% occupanicthe Property, (ii) no defaults, (jii)
continuation of Lease Term through the expiratibthe final Option Term; and (iv) then-standard hHR€oncessions" being provided to
tenants in the "Comparable Buildings," as both teame defined in SECTION 2.2.2 of the Lease), dbagethe size, location, and quality of
the Property and the size, location, appearan@aad quality all of the improvements constructesté¢on and therein. During the twenty (
business day period immediately following the d#t&eller's receipt of the Exercise Notice, Sedled Buyer shall attempt to agree upon the
Fair Market Value using reasonable good-faith égfor

2.3 DETERMINATION OF MARKET RENT. In the event Setland Buyer fail to reach agreement within twdaty) business days
following Seller's receipt of the Exercise Notiteg"OUTSIDE AGREEMENT DATE"), then the issue ofiFslarket Value shall be
submitted to third party appraisers pursuant taeh@s and conditions of this SECTION 2.3, but sabto the conditions, when appropriate,
of SECTION 2.2.

2.3.1 Seller and Buyer shall each appoint one Mgdraiser who shall have been active over the t8hy@dar period ending on the date of
such appointment in the appraisal of first-clageeflab/manufacturing properties located in ther&ato Mesa and University Town Center
areas of San Diego County, California. The deteatim of the appraisers shall be limited solelyh® correct determination of Fair Market
Value, taking into account the requirements of SEIN 2.2 of this Agreement. Each such appraiser $lsaappointed within ten (10)
business days after the applicable Outside Agreebate. Seller and Buyer may consult with theiestdd appraisers prior to appointment
and may select an appraiser who is favorable to tbgpective positions. The appraisers so seldnyeseller and Buyer shall be deemed
"ADVOCATE ARBITRATORS".

2.3.2 During the thirty (30) day period followiniget date upon which the last of the Advocate Artbiawas selected, each Advocate
Arbitrator shall complete its appraisal with regtwmdhe Fair Market Value and shall meet with thieeo Advocate Arbitrator to discuss the
same. During the ten (10) business day period inmhedg following such meeting, the Advocate Arbitnes shall attempt to agree upon the
Fair Market Value using reasonable good-faith é$fdbased upon their respective appraisals. Textent the Advocate Arbitrators reach
agreement as to the Fair Market Value during senh t

(10) business day period, they shall (within suetetperiod) publish a ruling ("AWARD") indicatingp¢ Fair Market Value as jointly
determined by such Advocate Arbitrators. Followmaification of the Award, the Fair Market Valuejamtly determined by such Advocate
Arbitrator shall become the then applicable FairkéaValue (for purposes of calculating the apflieaPurchase Price). To the extent the
Advocate Arbitrators fail to reach agreement witthia applicable period as to the Fair Market Vathe,process for determining the Fair
Market Value shall continue as follows.

2.3.3 In the event the Advocate Arbitrators faitéach agreement within ten (10) business daysviitlg their post-appraisal meeting (the
"ADVOCATE'S OUTSIDE DATE"), then the issue of Failarket Value shall be submitted to the "Neutral i&etor" for a final
determination. The two Advocate Arbitrators shplifsuant to a specific requirement of their engaggertetters) within five (5) business d:
of the Advocate's Outside Date agree upon and
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appoint a third appraiser ("NEUTRAL ARBITRATOR") wtshall be qualified under the same criteria sehfbereinabove for qualification
of the two Advocate Arbitrators except that neittier Seller or Buyer or either party's Advocateitkabor may, directly or indirectly, consult
with the Neutral Arbitrator prior to, or subsequémthis or her appointment and such Neutral Aaldir shall not have had any business
dealings with either Seller or Buyer, or an Affiahereof, during the immediately preceding twpy@ar period, and shall not be in then-
active consideration for any such business dealiNgsvithstanding anything to the contrary setliabove, upon the completion of such
appraisal process, in no event shall such detetiomaf Fair Market Value be challenged or dispub@ded upon (i) information regarding
Neutral Arbitrator subsequently discovered, ungssh information consisted of a party's actual Kedge of a the-existing relationship wit
such Neutral Arbitrator (as of the commencemerthefFair Market Value determination process) arah garty intentionally withheld such
information from the other party, or (ii) the NeaitArbitrator's subsequent activities and relatiops (even if the Neutral Arbitrator does, at
some later time, enter into a business dealing aittter Seller or Buyer, or an Affiliate therecfhe Neutral Arbitrator shall be retained vie
engagement letter jointly prepared by Seller's seland Buyer's counsel.

2.3.4 The Neutral Arbitrator shall within thirty@Bdays of the appointment conduct its appraisgthefProperty to determine the applicable
Fair Market Value and simultaneously publish amgl{also, an "AWARD") indicating the Fair Market Ma as determined by such Neutral
Arbitrator. Following notification of the Award, ¢hFair Market Value as determined by such Neutrhltfator shall become the then
applicable Fair Market Value (for purposes of chdting the applicable Purchase Price).

2.3.5 The Award issued jointly by the Advocate Awdtiors (or, if applicable, the Award issued by Meutral Arbitrator) shall be binding
upon Seller and Buyer.

2.3.6 If either Seller or Buyer fail to appoint Advocate Arbitrator within ten (10) business dafterathe applicable Outside Agreement D
either party may petition the presiding judge & Superior Court of San Diego County to appoinhsiidvocate Arbitrator subject to the
criteria in

SECTION 2.3.1 of this Agreement, or if he or shieises to act, either party may petition any judgeitng jurisdiction over the parties to
appoint such Advocate Arbitrator.

2.3.7 If the two Advocate Arbitrators fail (i) tgeee upon the Fair Market Value on or before theokdte Outside Date, and (ii) thereafter to
agree upon and appoint the Neutral Arbitrator, tei#mer party may petition the presiding judgehsf Superior Court of San Diego County to
appoint the Neutral Arbitrator, subject to critenaSECTION 2.3.1 of this Agreement, or if he oegkfuses to act, either party may petition
any judge having jurisdiction over the parties pp@int such arbitrator.

2.3.8 The cost of arbitration shall be paid by &edind Buyer equally.

2.4 DEPOSITS. In accordance with the terms of SEENIBO.2 of the Lease, $250,000.00 of the Purchase Rhe "INITIAL NON-
REFUNDABLE DEPOSIT") shall be delivered by BuyerEscrow Holder concurrently with the Buyer's detivef its execution counterpart
of this Agreement to Escrow Holder, which InitiabiNRefundable Deposit shall be held in Escrow (in
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an interest-bearing account) during the "Contingédperiod," as that term is defined in SECTION 4f.1this Agreement. Upon the expiration
of the Contingency Period, provided that the Ihilan-Refundable Deposit has not been returnedutgeBpursuant to the Terms of
SECTION 4.1 of this Agreement, Escrow Holder sdaliver to Seller the Initial Non-Refundable Depo8in additional deposit of
$100,000.00 toward the Purchase Price (the "ADDNADQ NON-REFUNDABLE DEPOSIT") shall be delivered iBuyer to Seller by
cashier's check or wire transfer of immediatelyilatée funds on or before the date which is ninety

(90) days following the date of Seller's receipthaf Exercise Notice. The Initial Non-Refundablegobsit (inclusive of all interest accrued
thereon during the Contingency Period) and the #aitl Non-Refundable Deposit are collectively rede to herein as the "DEPOSIT." If
Escrow closes, the Deposit shall be applied tdPtimehase Price. If Escrow does not close, the Degluall be applied as provided in this
Agreement. The remaining amount of the PurchaseRtfie Purchase Price less the Deposit) shalélieeded by Buyer to Escrow Holder
or prior to the Closing Date (as hereinafter dafine

ARTICLE 3
ESCROW

3.1 OPENING. The purchase and sale of the Progbail be consummated by means of the escrow whigh Ise opened with Escrow
Holder (the "ESCROW?") pursuant to the terms ofltkase.

3.2 INSTRUCTIONS. Prior to the Closing Date, eaahty shall execute and deliver to Escrow Holder adgitional written instructions and
shall provide Escrow Holder with such other infotima, documents and funds as Escrow Holder mayoredsy require to enable it to close
the transaction contemplated herein on the CloBiaig. The additional escrow instructions shall twesistent with the terms of this
Agreement and in the event of any inconsistencyéen the additional instructions and this Agreemtat terms of this Agreement shall
prevail.

3.3 CLOSE OF ESCROW. Subiject to the terms of theskend this

SECTION 3.3, Escrow shall close on the date wisobnie hundred eighty (180) days following the diageExercise Notice was received by
Seller (the "CLOSING DATE"); provided, however, Belmay extend such Closing Date by deliveringpobefore the date which is ninety
(90) days prior to the originally scheduled Closibate, written notice to Buyer and Escrow Holdee(fESCROW EXTENSION NOTICE")
that Seller is so extending the Closing Date, witishrow Extension Notice shall set forth such edéehClosing Date; provided further,
however, in no event shall the Closing Date asxseneled be later than the last day of the tentthjliGease Year (the "OUTSIDE CLOSING
DATE"). Escrow shall be considered closed (the "GEXOF ESCROW") when the grant deed to the Propergcorded.

3.4 COSTS. Seller shall pay all documentary trartsfees and the premium for the C.L.T.A. OwnertieTinsurance Policy; provided,
however, that Buyer shall pay any premium appliedablA.L.T.A. extended coverage to the extent #raesis requested by Buyer. Buyer and
Seller shall each pay one-half (1/2) of the esdemv Buyer shall pay the costs of recording thenGbseed. Each party shall bear its own
attorneys' fees. All other costs and expenses shall
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be allocated between the parties in accordancethétlcustomary practice of San Diego County, Califn
3.5 PRORATIONS.

3.5.1 As of the Close of Escrow, all real and peas@roperty taxes based on the most recent profaextbills available, rents, issues and
profits from the Property, utilities, and such ath@tters as the parties shall instruct Escrow efofthall be equitably prorated, and the
Escrow Holder shall provide Seller and Buyer witsummary of such prorations.

3.5.2 All bonds or special assessments again®Rritygerty due before the Close of Escrow shall ke ipaSeller and all bonds or special
assessments due after the Close of Escrow, whiate t® events occurring prior to the Close of Bacrshall be prorated as of the Close of
Escrow.

3.5.3 Rentals and operating expense pass-throbglide prorated as of the Close of Escrow. Alsiég deposits in whatever form, held by
Seller under the lease shall be transferred to Buyen Close of Escrow

ARTICLE 4
CONDITIONS TO CLOSE OF ESCROW

4.1 CONTINGENCIES. In the event that any contingeset forth in this

SECTION 4.1 has not been either satisfied or waprgat to the expiration of the Contingency Perithds Agreement shall be terminated, the
Deposit shall be returned to Buyer, the Escrowlghateupon be canceled, and neither party sha#t hay further obligation to the other
under this Agreement. The "CONTINGENCY PERIOD" asdiherein means the period commencing on the 'l@geh Escrow" (as such
term is defined in the Lease) and continuing uthtity

(30) days thereafter.

41.1TITLE.

(a) Immediately following the Opening of EscrowcEsv Holder shall cause to be issued a CLTA prelary title report with a full legal
description of the Property, legible copies ofdmltuments referred to therein and a map plottisgdbation of all recorded easements
(collectively the "PTR"). In connection with the RTimmediately following the Opening of Escrow, Buyhall have the right (but not the
obligation) to obtain, at Buyer's cost, an ALTAy of the Property (the "SURVEY") sufficient fdre issuance of an ALTA policy of title
insurance.

(b) Buyer shall have the right to notify Seller astrow Holder, in writing, of Buyer's disapproadlany title exception, the PTR, or the le
description of the Property shown therein, whiclty@umay do in its sole and absolute discretio®dlier and Escrow Holder shall not have
timely received any such notice of disapproval oheafore the expiration of the Contingency Peribé, PTR, the condition of title and the
legal description of the Property shall be deenmataved.
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(c) Buyer shall have the right during the ContingeReriod to disapprove any matters on the Sumvlich Buyer may do in Buyer's sole and
absolute discretion. In addition, Buyer shall hawél the later of (a) the date of the end of thentihgency Period, or (b) five (5) business
days after receipt thereof, to disapprove any nattars described in any ALTA supplement to the FSERed based on the Survey (but only
to the extent Buyer's receipt thereof occurredrduthe Contingency Period), or any other supplerteetite PTR issued for any reason
whatsoever, which Buyer may do in Buyer's sole amblute discretion.

(d) All encumbrances, liens, covenants and otllergikceptions appearing on the PTR or any ALTApsaiment to the PTR and not
disapproved are hereinafter referred to as the WHERED EXCEPTIONS." Any deeds of trust and all pagment fees or expenses owed to
the beneficiaries thereof, or other monetary encamtes other than real property taxes and assetsnwmtryet delinquent, shall be paid in
full by Seller prior to or concurrently with the @3le of Escrow.

4.1.2 DOCUMENTS AND RECORDS. True and complete espif the following shall be delivered to Buyer nfibe Opening of Escrow.
Buyer shall have the right to disapprove (which &umay do in its sole and absolute discretion)afrthe following within the Contingency
Period:

(a) to the extent in Seller's possession or readigilable to Seller without unreasonable costjepf all of the following:
(1) surveys;
(2) as-built plans, grading plans, and the plapsci#ications and design documents related tortirdvements;

(3) drawings, specifications, engineering and dechiral studies and similar documents, maps, t@pdgcal maps, soils reports, water
reports and construction testing documents;

(4) warranties and guarantees;

(5) draft and final studies, reports, surveys asgkasments relating to the environmental conddfdhe Property or any property within the
vicinity of the Property, including, without limiti@n, any soils, toxics and hazardous waste (inolydwvithout limitation, asbestos) reports;

(6) correspondence, applications, permits and ateimunications to or from any governmental or ggasernmental agency in connection
with any Hazardous Substances (as defined belotheoenvironmental condition of the Property or angperty within the vicinity of the
Property;

(7) notifications required by applicable law togr@vided to any party as a result of the conditibthe Property, if applicable (including,
without limitation, (i) the asbestos notificatioequired pursuant to California Health & Safety C&aetion 25915,
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et seq., and (ii) the notification required purduanCalifornia Health & Safety Code Section 255 @t seq. ("PROPOSITION 65"); and

(8) building, occupancy and use permits and appsaad any other governmental licenses, permiggpprovals for the Property or the
equipment used in connection with the Property;

(b) a list and complete copies of all contractseagients or other documents affecting the Propiertiuding, without limitation, service
contracts, maintenance contracts, management ctsteanployment contracts;

(c) a schedule setting forth an inventory of pead@moperty, if any, to be delivered to Buyer a tlose of Escrow;

(d) expense reports for the Property for the previtree

(3) year period covering all items of operatiortted Property which relate to the Common Areasuiticlg, without limitation, taxes, comm:
area maintenance fees and utilities, and the samdeature of all income from the Property fortsperiods, together with all appropriate
back-up information reasonably requested by Buwpdria Seller's possession or readily availablegibeBwithout unreasonable cost, and a
schedule of all Improvements made and capital d¢ostsred;

(e) such other documents or information regardmgRroperty in Seller's possession or readily akilglto Seller without unreasonable cost,
as Buyer reasonably requests.

Buyer's failure to provide Seller and Escrow Holaéh written notice of disapproval of any of trerégoing within the Contingency Period,
which Buyer may do in its sole and absolute disgneshall constitute Buyer's approval thereof.

Seller shall promptly provide to Buyer any supplemaddition or new information received or diso@geby Seller relating to any of the
items delivered in this SECTION 4.1.2. Buyer stalve until the later of (i) the expiration of ther@ingency Period, or (ii) ten (10) calendar
days from receipt of such supplement, additionew imformation (but only to the extent the same Midwave been subject to Buyer's review
during the Contingency Period pursuant to this SEXXI4.1), to approve or disapprove any said supplamaddition or new information,
which Buyer may do in its sole and absolute disgnetFailure to disapprove shall constitute apptova

If Escrow fails to close, Buyer agrees to prompdurn to Seller the documents and other matedigisered by Seller to Buyer without
representation or warranty. Notwithstanding anyepfirovision in this Agreement, Buyer shall haveobtigation to return documents
provided to Buyer by Seller so long as any dispetmrding termination of this Agreement is pendiegiveen Buyer and Seller to which such
documents are, or may be, germane. Within oneydinbss day after the Close of Escrow, Seller ghallide Buyer with all original
documents in Seller's possession described above.
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4.1.3 BOOKS AND RECORDS. During the Contingencyi®&rBuyer shall be entitled, at any reasonable ttmd with reasonable prior
notice, to inspect all books and records relatinthe Property in the possession of Seller. Sehail reasonably cooperate with Buyer in
enabling Buyer to accomplish such inspections arthji Buyer to make such copies at the Proper§u®r may request and at Buyer's sole
cost.

4.1.4 CURE AND WAIVER RIGHTS. Provided Seller, t& option, within three (3) business days of retcefBuyer's disapproval of any of
the matters Buyer has the right to disapprove @ntsto the terms of this Agreement as specificadlyforth in SECTIONS 4.1.1, 4.1.2 and
4.1.3 hereinabove, advises Buyer that Seller irt¢nature said disapproved matter(s), Seller $faalé until the Close of Escrow to cure such
matter(s) in a manner satisfactory to Buyer, in &tg/sole and absolute discretion, and, if timeked, Escrow shall close as set forth herein.
Seller's failure to deliver such notice of intemtcure to Buyer within said three (3) business ddngdl constitute Seller's refusal to cure any
such disapproved matter(s). Upon expiration of faiele (3) business day period, Buyer shall hakeeth

(3) business days in which to advise Seller andd#stiolder in writing that Buyer is willing to waévthe previously disapproved matter(s).
Delivery of such notice of waiver shall continue thscrow. Failure to deliver such notice of waisieall terminate the Escrow. Upon such
termination, the Initial Non-Refundable Depositc{irding any interest earned thereon during the i@gahcy Period) shall be returned to
Buyer. All costs of Escrow and all title and Escroancellation charges shall be shared equally peBand Seller.

4.2 BUYER'S CONDITIONS. The following provisions tifis SECTION 4.2 are conditions precedent to Bsyabligations hereunder.

4.2.1 TITLE. Fee simple title to the Property shmdlconveyed to Buyer by Seller by a Grant Deebijestito any Permitted Exceptions. On
the Close of Escrow, Seller shall cause Escrow éfdinl issue to Buyer, at Buyer's option, eitheld& or an ALTA Owner's Policy of Title
Insurance showing fee title vested in Buyer suljety to the Permitted Exceptions ("TITLE POLICYThe Title Policy shall be issued with
liability in the amount of the Purchase Price.

4.2.2 DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS. At least one (1) busiis day prior to the Closing Date, Seller shailvdelto Escrow a fully executed
and acknowledged original of the Grant Deed, thee&ad Assignment, the Non-Foreign Affidavit, antadher documents referenced in
SECTION 7.12 below.

4.2.3 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS. e shall have duly performed each and every agesg to be
performed by Seller hereunder and Seller's reptatens, warranties and covenants set forth inAlgieement shall be true and correct as of
the Closing Date. Seller agrees to deliver to Bayeertificate, executed by Seller and effectivefate Closing Date, re-certifying to Buyer
that the representations, warranties and covesabfsrth in this Agreement are true and correaifdbe Closing Date. Seller hereby
represents and warrants to Buyer, except to thenertherwise expressly set forth in the documdelisered to Buyer by Seller pursuant to
SECTION 4.1.2 of this Agreement, the following neast
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(a) Seller has the legal power, right and authddtgnter into this Agreement and the instrumeefisrenced herein and therein and to
consummate the transaction contemplated herebyhaneby.

(b) All requisite action has been taken by Selecannection with entering into this Agreement #ralinstruments referenced herein and
therein and the consummation of the transactiongeoaaplated hereby.

(c) Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreent and the documents referenced herein andrtheoe the consummation of the
transaction contemplated herein, nor the compliavitethe terms of this Agreement and the documesferenced herein conflict with or
result in a material breach of any terms, cond#ionprovisions of, or constitute a default un@ery note or other evidence of an indebted
or any contract, deed of trust, loan, partnersgie@ment or other agreement to which Seller isty pa

(d) There is no pending or contemplated actiort, adbitration, claim or proceeding, at law or guéy, affecting all or any portion of the
Property or Seller's interest in the Property awvhich Seller is or will be a party by reason ofi&& ownership of the Property.

(e) CONTRACTS. The copies of the contracts, if aisfjvered to Buyer pursuant to SECTION 4.1.2(krebéare true, complete and correct
copies of all such contracts and there are no athetracts relating to the Property. All such caats shall be terminated prior to the Close of
Escrow to the extent Landlord is so instructed byds. Except to the extent otherwise instructe®byer, as of the Close of Escrow, there
will be no contracts or agreements affecting, bigdir relating to the Property. Notwithstanding thimg to the contrary, Seller agrees to use
commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate withard to extending such contracts to (or causiagéhvice provider to enter into similar
contracts with) Buyer to the extent Buyer so infsr8eller.

(f) USE PERMITS AND OTHER APPROVALS. To the extérgld by Landlord as owner (as opposed to being inelBenant, as exclusive
occupant), all licenses, approvals, permits antificates from governmental and quasi-governmeag@ncies or private parties necessary for
the use and operation of the Property as are diyneossessed by Seller. To the extent the Propesybeen used by Seller (as opposed to
Tenant's exclusive use of the Building), the saamleen used in accordance with (1) all such apfgplcenses, permits and certificates, (2)
all governmental regulations, and (3) all covenarasditions, restrictions, easements and agreenoérainy kind or nature affecting the
Property.

(g) EXPENSE REPORTS. To Seller's actual knowletlge copies of the expense reports for the Progetiyered by Seller to Buyer are
true, complete and correct copies of the origittseof, and accurately show all income and expeokthe Property in all respects, for the
periods indicated, in accordance with sound acéogmirinciples.

(h) HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES. Seller has no actual kfemlge that any Hazardous Substances are presem ar,under the Property or
any nearby real property which could reasonablgXmected to migrate to the Property. Seller haaatoal knowledge of any
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present Release (as hereinafter defined) or timedtRelease of any Hazardous Substances in, amder the Property. Seller has no actual
knowledge that Hazardous Substances were evempiiesen or under the Property. Seller has noadtnowledge that underground storage
tanks of any kind are located in, on or under tfape€rty, nor were any underground storage tank&quely located in, on or under the
Property. To Seller's actual knowledge, the Prgpeats not been designated as "hazardous wasterfyrope”border zone property" pursuant
to California Health and Safety Code ss. 2522@&@qt, 510 proceedings for a determination as to vérdtie Property should be so designated
are pending or threatened, and no portion of topétty is located within two thousand (2,000) fefed significant disposal of "hazardous
waste" within the meaning of California Health éafety Code Section 25221, which could cause thpdPty to be classified as "border
zone property."” To Seller's actual knowledge, @ine] demand, action or proceeding of any kind edgto any past or present Release or
threatened Release or any past or present violafiany Environmental Laws at the Property has bmade or commenced, or is pending, or
is being threatened or contemplated by any peiBoigeller's actual knowledge, no notice of any grdieective, complaint or other
communication, written or oral, has been madesrad by any governmental or quasi-governmental@geor has Seller received a written
notice from any other third party alleging the atence of any activity on the Property in violatiohany applicable Environmental Laws or
demanding payment or contribution for environmedtahage or injury to the Property.

As used in this Agreement, the following definitsoshall apply:

"ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS" shall mean all federal, stagad local laws, ordinances, rules and regulatians or hereafter in force, as
amended from time to time, in any way relating teegulating human health or safety, or industniiene or environmental conditions, or
protection of the environment, or pollution or camination of the air, soil, surface water or growater, and includes, without limitation, the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatidhiability Act of 1980, 42 U.S.C. Section. 96@1 seq. ("CERCLA"), the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S€ti@. 6901, et seq., the Clean Water Act, 33Cl.Section. 1251, et seq., the
Hazardous Substance Account Act, California Heatithi Safety Code Section. 25300, et seq., the HazaM/aste Control Law, California
Health and Safety Code Section. 25100, et seqM#dical Waste Management Act, California Healtd &afety Code Section. 25015, et
seq., and the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Com§m] California Water Code Section. 13000, et $elpfZARDOUS SUBSTANCE(S)"
shall mean any substance or material that is destids a toxic or hazardous substance, waste erialair a pollutant or contaminant or
infectious waste, or words of similar import, inyaof the Environmental Laws, and includes asbegtespleum or petroleum products
(including crude oil or any fraction thereof, natligas, natural gas liquids, liquefied natural gasynthetic gas usable for fuel, or any
mixture thereof), polychlorinated biphenyls, ureenfaldehyde, radon gas, radioactive matter, meuiaate, and chemicals which may cause
cancer or reproductive toxicity. "RELEASE" shall ameany spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emiti@mptying, discharging, injecting,
escaping, leaching, dumping or disposing into tidrenment, including continuing migration, of Hadaus Substances into or through soil,
air, surface water or groundwater.

(i) COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. To Seller's actual knowdge, no notices of violation of or exemptions frgovernmental regulations
relating to the Property or Seller have been issagserved upon, received by or entered agairir@ad no such violations or exemptions
exist.
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()) LAND USE REGULATIONS. To Seller's actual knowlige, Seller has not received any written noticargf condemnation,
environmental, planning, zoning or other land eggutation adversely affecting the Property or aast fhereof and no such regulations are
contemplated. The Property possesses all goveratreamd quasi-governmental entitlements necessampéocontinued operation and use of
the Property. To Seller's actual knowledge, the@my is in compliance with all federal, state dochl zoning and general plan designations.
To Seller's actual knowledge, the Property is acaled in a redevelopment or other area proposespérial land use designations including,
without limitation, historical or other overlay zesmand moratoria or interim control ordinances @ellier has no basis to believe that the
Property may be included in a redevelopment orratpecial land use area. To Seller's actual knayee8eller has not received any written
notice of any special assessment action or proegedfecting the Property and no such action oceeding is contemplated.

(k) TAXES. Other than the amounts disclosed byt#ixebills delivered to Buyer by Seller, no othealrproperty taxes, assessments, or other
governmental charges or exactions ("TAXES") havenbar will be assessed against the Property focthent tax year except for real
property taxes to be assessed due to the charmyenefship of the Property. Seller has no actualedge, and Seller has received no notice
of any Taxes or other charges which will resultviravork, activities or improvements done to the Rriypby Seller. Seller has no knowledge
and Seller has received no notice of any intendddipimprovements which will result in any Taxesiy levied against, or in the creation of
any lien upon, the Property or any portion thereof.

(I) DEFECT NOTICES. To Seller's actual knowledgell& has not received any notice from any insueasampany of any defects or
inadequacies in the Property which remain pendimgneesolved, except as may be indicated in the#temrimaterials supplied Buyer by Seller
pursuant to this Agreement.

(m) OTHER CONTRACTS. To Seller's actual knowledgeller has not entered into any other contractifersale of the Property.

(n) AIR RIGHTS. To Seller's actual knowledge, neitlseller, nor any previous owner of the Propérag sold, transferred, conveyed, or
entered into any agreement regarding "air righiex¢tess floor area ratio," "transferable densights,” or other development or density rights
or restrictions relating to the Property.

(o) TRUE COPIES. To Seller's actual knowledgedattuments to be submitted to Buyer for Buyer's eygdrpursuant to this Agreement will
be true, correct and complete copies thereof #iseoflate of submission thereof and as of the Gib&scrow, and all supplements or
additions will be true, correct and complete copiesseof as of the date submitted and as of theeCdb Escrow. Seller has no actual
knowledge of any error, misrepresentation or intiascy with any of the documents or supplemertalichents delivered by Seller pursuant
to this Agreement.

(p) INSOLVENCY. This Agreement is the product of@ams-length transaction and the Purchase Pricegepts the fair value of the
Property. To Seller's actual knowledge, Sellerd@daken any action relating to the Property whiduld invalidate this
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transaction or the transfer of the Property to Bugeller is currently solvent, and shall not bedered insolvent by virtue of the sale of the
Property to Buyer, and, in Seller's actual knowkedsgller has not otherwise taken any action whialy subject Seller to applicable
bankruptcy or similar laws affecting the rightscoéditors generally.

(q) PERSONAL PROPERTY; INTANGIBLE RIGHTS AND WARRANES. To Seller's actual knowledge, Seller hasnmadle any previot
assignments, sales or conveyances of any persmyaity covered by this Agreement and there arenmoombrances covering any such
personal property which will survive the Close aicEbw. Seller has good title to all of such perspnaperty free from any liens and
encumbrances that will survive the Close of Escramd no affiliate of Seller has any interest in ahguch personal property. Seller has not
made any previous assignment, transfer or dispositf all or any part of its interest in the intéslg property or any warranties relating to the
Property, Seller has not encumbered the intangitwiperty and the warranties, and Seller is not awéany encumbrances covering the
intangible property and the warranties that wilvéee the Close of Escrow.

(r) ADVERSE MATTERS. To Seller's actual knowled&eller is not aware of any material adverse factaformation concerning the
Property which would be relevant to Buyer with msto Buyer's determination to acquire the Prgpert

For purposes of this Agreement, all referencesStdlér's actual knowledge," shall mean to the ad&tnawledge of the then-current property
manager employed by Seller who is responsiblelfemtanagement and oversight of the Project andi®&arporate Center, the identity of
whom shall be disclosed by Seller to Buyer in canjion with Seller's deliver of documents pursuarbection 4.1.2 of this Agreement;
provided, however, that to the extent such thristing property manager does not have reasomrahlal knowledge with regard to the Pro
(based upon having held such position for less tivan

(2) years), Seller shall provide a suitable repiaeet or replacements for the purpose of "Selletisah knowledge", the identity of whom st
be subject to Buyer's reasonable approval.

4.2.4 COVENANTS OF SELLER PRIOR TO CLOSING. Duritigg period from the Opening of Escrow until theieanf (a) Close of
Escrow or (b) the termination of this Agreement]e3eshall, in addition to the covenants set faksewhere in this Agreement:

(a) Not permit or suffer to exist any encumbraratgrge or lien to be placed or claimed upon the@énty (i) unless such encumbrance, ch
or lien has been approved in writing by Buyer, (iilfess such encumbrance, charge or lien resulerglty from a mandatory action or
assessment by an applicable governmental entitypjagsed to resulting from a direct action of Sgller (iii) unless such monetary
encumbrance, charge or lien will be removed byeBe@ltior to the Close of Escrow;

(b) Not enter into any service, management or atbatract relating to the Property which will simeithe Close of Escrow, unless otherwise
approved by Buyer;

(c) Promptly notify Buyer in writing if, to Seller'actual knowledge, any of the representationsaarcanties set forth in this Agreement are
no longer true and correct;
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(d) Not sell, convey, assign, transfer, encumbentberwise dispose of the Property; and

(e) Not take any other action which may reasonlblgxpected to have an adverse effect upon theRyagr upon Buyer if Buyer acquires
the Property.

4.3 SELLER'S CONDITIONS. The following provisionsthis SECTION 4.3 shall be conditions precederétier's obligations hereunder.

4.3.1 DELIVERY OF FUNDS AND DOCUMENTS. Buyer shathve delivered to Escrow Holder the balance oPthechase Price as
provided in SECTIONS 2.2 and 2.4 above and deltvéoeEscrow Holder any other document requiredetaélivered by Buyer hereunder.

4.3.2 REPRESENTATION, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS. Begshall have duly performed each and every agrettode
performed by Buyer hereunder.

ARTICLE 5
ACTIONS BY ESCROW HOLDER

5.1 DISBURSEMENTS AND OTHER ACTIONS BY ESCROW HOLBEON the Closing Date, Escrow Holder shall prognptidertake al
of the following in the manner herein below indexht

5.1.1 RECORDING. Cause the Grant Deed (with docuamgrtransfer tax information to be affixed aftecording) to be recorded in the
Official Records of San Diego County, Californisdasbtain conformed copies thereof for distributiorBuyer.

5.1.2 FUNDS. Disburse all funds deposited with BacHolder by Buyer in the payment of the PurchaseeRas follows.

(a) to the extent that Seller is a foreign persarspant to Section 1445 of the Internal RevenueeQifd 986, as amended, and is not
otherwise exempt from such section's withholdirguieements, withhold the cash equivalent of tercgetr (10%) of the Purchase Price
(unless some lesser amount is authorized by tleenalt Revenue Service);

(b) to the extent that Seller is a nGadifornia resident pursuant to Revenue and Tamafiode Sections 18805 and 26131, and is not othe
exempted from such sections' withholding requiretsiamithhold the cash equivalent of three and dmetpercent (3-1/3%) of the Purchase
Price (unless some lesser amount is authorizetibfFitanchise Tax Board);

(c) Deduct all items chargeable to the accounteieEpursuant to SECTION 3.4.
(d) Disburse the remaining balance of the PurcRame to Seller on the Close of Escrow.
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(e) Disburse the remaining balance, if any, of B&iremaining in the Escrow to Buyer promptly upoa @lose of Escrow.

5.1.3 TITLE POLICY. Cause the Title P olicy to be issued and
delivered to Buyer.

5.1.4 DISBURSEMENT OF DOCUMENTS TO BU YER. Disburse the FIRPTA

Certificate and a conformed copy of the recordeanGDeed and all other documents set forth in SEXQITT.12 below to Buyer.
ARTICLE 6
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

6.1 DEFAULT BY SELLER. If Seller breaches this Agmeent or defaults in the performance of its oblayet hereunder, Buyer may, at its
option, (a) terminate this Agreement and all obitdigations hereunder, in which event any sumd paiSeller and/or deposited into Escrow
(including, without limitation, the Deposit and aimgerest accrued on the Initial Non-Refundable @#pduring the Contingency Period))
shall be returned to Buyer, or (b) elect to proogét the purchase notwithstanding such breacteaudt, in which event all of Buyer's
remedies for such breach shall be preserved, imgudithout limitation, the right of specific permance.

6.2 DEFAULT OF BUYER.

6.2.1 IN GENERAL. Seller's right to terminate thgcEow, to receive liquidated damages as set fatbwh and to continue the Lease in full
force and effect shall be Seller's sole recourseramedy for the unexcused failure or refusal of@uo purchase the Property, and Seller
waives any right to bring an action for specifiefpemance against Buyer with respect to the Prgpert

6.2.2 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES - DEPOSIT. FOLLOWING THEXPIRATION OF THE CONTINGENCY PERIOD, IF THE SALE OF
THE PREMISES TO BUYER IS NOT CONSUMMATED DUE TO AEBLER DEFAULT OR TENANT'S EXERCISE OF AN EXPRESS
TERMINATION RIGHT SET FORTH HEREIN, THE DEPOSIT SHA BE REFUNDED AND DELIVERED TO BUYER WITHIN
THREE

(3) BUSINESS FOLLOWING RECEIPT BY SELLER AND ESCROMOLDER OF BUYER'S WRITTEN DEMAND THEREFORE.
NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY CONTAINEDIN THIS AGREEMENT, IF, FOLLOWING THE EXPIRATIOM
OF THE CONTINGENCY PERIOD, THE SALE OF THE PROPERT® BUYER IS NOT CONSUMMATED FOR ANY REASON
OTHER THAN SELLER'S DEFAULT UNDER THE AGREEMENT ORENANT'S EXERCISE OF AN EXPRESS TERMINATION
RIGHT SET FORTH HEREIN, SELLER SHALL BE ENTITLED TARETAIN THE DEPOSIT AS SELLER'S LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.
THE PARTIES AGREE THAT IT WOULD BE IMPRACTICABLE A EXTREMELY DIFFICULT TO ASCERTAIN THE ACTUAL
DAMAGES SUFFERED BY SELLER AS A RESULT OF BUYER'A\REURE TO COMPLETE THE PURCHASE OF THE PROPERTY
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT, AND THAT UNDER THE CIROMSTANCES
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EXISTING AS OF THE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT, THE LIQDATED DAMAGES PROVIDED FOR IN THIS SECTION
REPRESENT A REASONABLE ESTIMATE OF THE DAMAGES WHKCSELLER WILL INCUR AS A RESULT OF SUCH FAILURE;
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT THIS PROVISION SHALL NOT MIT SELLER'S RIGHTS TO RECEIVE REIMBURSEMENT FOR
ATTORNEYS' FEES. THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEAWMENT OF SUCH LIQUIDATED DAMAGES IS NOT
INTENDED AS A FORFEITURE OR PENALTY WITHIN THE MEANG OF CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTION 3275 OR 3369,
BUT IS INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE LIQUIDATED DAMAGES TGSELLER PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE
SECTIONS 1671, 1676, AND 1677. THE PARTIES HAVE SEORTH THEIR INITIALS BELOW TO INDICATE THEIR AGREMENT
WITH THE LIQUIDATED DAMAGES PROVISION CONTAINED INTHIS SECTION.

SELLER'S INITIALS BUYER'S INITIALS
ARTICLE 7
MISCELLANEOUS

7.1 NOTICE. Any notices, requests, demands or atbermunications required or permitted to be givedar this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly gijmn receipt thereof. Notice may be given by pgavaessenger, by telecopy
transmission, by nationally recognized overnighirégr, by first class mail, registered or certifipdstage prepaid, and return receipt
requested. Notice shall be addressed as follows:

Seller: Buyer:

Kilroy Realty Corporation Vical Incorp orated

2250 East Imperial Highway 10390 Pacifi ¢ Centre

Suite 1200 San Diego, C alifornia 92121
El Segundo, California 90245 Attention: C hief Financial Officer
Attention: Legal Department

And And

Kilroy Realty Corporation Vical Incorp orated

3811 Valley Centre Drive, Suite 300 10390 Pacifi ¢ Centre Court
San Diego, California 92130 San Diego, C alifornia 92121
Attention: Mr. Steve Scott Attention: G eneral Counsel
And

Allen Matkins Leck Gamble & Mallory
1901 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 1800
Los Angeles, California 90067
Attention: Anton N. Natsis, Esq.
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Either party may change such address for notificapiurposes by sending written notice thereof ¢éodtther party pursuant to this Section.

7.2 BROKERS. Each party represents to the othétieae are no brokers which are owed any reateebtakerage commission or finder's
fee in connection with this transaction. Seller 8uyer each agree to indemnify and hold the otlaemiess from and against all liability,
claims, demands, damages, or costs of any kinth@ritom or connected with any broker's or findégs or commission or charge claimed to
be due from any person arising from the indemngyparty's conduct with respect to this transaction.

7.3 PROPERTY "AS IS".

7.3.1 NO SIDE AGREEMENTS OR REPRESENTATIONS. Noguwer acting on behalf of Seller is authorized to epand by execution
hereof, Buyer acknowledges that no person has naageaepresentation, agreement, statement, warrgudyantee or promise regarding the
Property or the transaction contemplated hereth@zoning, construction, physical condition oresthtatus of the Property except as may be
expressly set forth in this Agreement. No represté, warranty, agreement, statement, guarantpeoatise, if any, made by any person
acting on behalf of Seller which is not containedhis Agreement will be valid or binding on Seller

7.3.2 AS IS CONDITION. BUYER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREETHAT, EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN SECTION
4.2.3 ABOVE, SELLER HAS NOT MADE, DOES NOT MAKE ANBPECIFICALLY NEGATES AND DISCLAIMS ANY
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, PROMISES, COVENANTSGREEMENTS OR GUARANTIES OF ANY KIND OR
CHARACTER WHATSOEVER, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIEDRAL OR WRITTEN, PAST, PRESENT OR FUTURE, OF, AS
TO, CONCERNING OR WITH RESPECT TO () VALUE; (I)HE INCOME TO BE DERIVED FROM THE PROPERTY; (Ill) TH
SUITABILITY OF THE PROPERTY FOR ANY AND ALL ACTIVITIES AND USES WHICH BUYER MAY CONDUCT THEREON,
INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE POSSIBILITIES FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY; (IV) THE
HABITABILITY, MERCHANTABILITY, MARKETABILITY, PROFI TABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF
THE PROPERTY; (V) THE MANNER, QUALITY, STATE OF RERR OR LACK OF REPAIR OF THE PROPERTY; (VI) THE
NATURE, QUALITY OR CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY, INCLDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE WATER, SOIL AND
GEOLOGY; (VII) THE COMPLIANCE OF OR BY THE PROPERT®R ITS OPERATION WITH ANY LAWS, RULES, ORDINANCES
OR REGULATIONS OF ANY APPLICABLE GOVERNMENTAL AUTH®RITY OR BODY;

(V) THE MANNER OR QUALITY OF THE CONSTRUCTION ORMATERIALS, IF ANY, INCORPORATED INTO THE PROPERTY;
(1IX) COMPLIANCE WITH ANY ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION,POLLUTION OR LAND USE LAWS, RULES, REGULATION,
ORDERS OR REQUIREMENTS, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATON, TITLE IIl OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT
OF 1990, CALIFORNIA HEALTH &
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SAFETY CODE, THE VISUAL ARTISTS RIGHTS ACT, THE FEERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT, THE FEDERAL
RESOURCE CONSERVATION AND RECOVERY ACT, THE U.S. ENRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY REGULATIONS AT
40 C.F.R., PART 261, THE COMPREHENSIVE ENVIRONMENIARESPONSE, COMPENSATION AND LIABILITY ACT OF 1980,
AS AMENDED, THE RESOURCE CONSERVATION AND RECOVERACT OF 1976, THE CLEAN WATER ACT, THE SAFE
DRINKING WATER ACT, THE HAZARDOUS MATERIALS TRANSP®TATION ACT, THE TOXIC SUBSTANCE CONTROL ACT,
AND REGULATIONS PROMULGATED UNDER ANY OF THE FOREG®EG,; (X) THE PRESENCE OR ABSENCE OF HAZARDOUS
MATERIALS AT, ON, UNDER, OR ADJACENT TO THE PROPERT (XI) THE CONTENT, COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY OF
ANY DUE DILIGENCE MATERIALS OR PRELIMINARY REPORT EGARDING TITLE; (XII) THE CONFORMITY OF THE
IMPROVEMENTS TO ANY PLANS OR SPECIFICATIONS FOR THEROPERTY, INCLUDING ANY PLANS AND SPECIFICATION
THAT MAY HAVE BEEN OR MAY BE PROVIDED TO BUYER; (XIl) THE CONFORMITY OF THE PROPERTY TO PAST,
CURRENT OR FUTURE APPLICABLE ZONING OR BUILDING RBQREMENTS; (XIV) DEFICIENCY OF ANY UNDERSHORING;
(XV) DEFICIENCY OF ANY DRAINAGE; (XVI) THE FACT THAT ALL OR A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY MAY BE LOCATED
ON OR NEAR AN EARTHQUAKE FAULT LINE OR ON OR NEAR ALOOD PLAIN; (XVII) THE EXISTENCE OF VESTED LAND
USE, ZONING OR BUILDING ENTITLEMENTS AFFECTING THPROPERTY; OR (XVIII) WITH RESPECT TO ANY OTHER
MATTER. BUYER FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAHAVING BEEN IN POSSESSION OF THE PROPERTY FOR
OVER NINE (9) YEARS AND HAVING BEEN GIVEN THE OPPORJNITY TO INSPECT THE PROPERTY AND REVIEW
INFORMATION AND DOCUMENTATION AFFECTING THE PROPERY, BUYER IS RELYING SOLELY ON ITS OWN
INVESTIGATION OF THE PROPERTY AND REVIEW OF SUCH FORMATION AND DOCUMENTATION, AND NOT ON ANY
INFORMATION PROVIDED OR TO BE PROVIDED BY SELLER.BYER FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ANY
INFORMATION MADE AVAILABLE TO BUYER OR PROVIDED ORTO BE PROVIDED BY OR ON BEHALF OF SELLER WITH
RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY WAS OBTAINED FROM A VARIETOF SOURCES AND THAT SELLER HAS NOT MADE ANY
INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION OR VERIFICATION OF SUCHNFORMATION AND MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS TO
THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SUCH INFORMATION EEPT AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 4.2.3 ABOVE. EXCEPT .
PROVIDED IN

SECTION 4.2.3 ABOVE, BUYER AGREES TO FULLY AND IRREOCABLY RELEASE SELLER FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS
THAT BUYER MAY NOW HAVE OR HEREAFTER ACQUIRE AGAINS SELLER FOR ANY COSTS, LOSS, LIABILITY, DAMAGE,
EXPENSE, DEMAND, ACTION OR CAUSE OF ACTION ARISINGROM SUCH INFORMATION OR DOCUMENTATION. SELLER
IS NOT LIABLE OR BOUND IN ANY MANNER BY ANY ORAL ORWRITTEN STATEMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS OR
INFORMATION PERTAINING TO THE PROPERTY, OR THE OPBRION THEREOF, FURNISHED BY ANY REAL ESTATE
BROKER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE, SERVANT OR OTHER PERSONJBER FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT TO
THE MAXIMUM EXTENT

EXHIBIT |
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PERMITTED BY LAW, THE SALE OF THE PROPERTY AS PROMED FOR HEREIN IS MADE ON AN "AS I1S" CONDITION AND
BASIS WITH ALL FAULTS, AND THAT SELLER HAS NO OBLIGTIONS TO MAKE REPAIRS, REPLACEMENTS OR
IMPROVEMENTS EXCEPT AS MAY OTHERWISE BE EXPRESSLYATED HEREIN AND/OR IN THE LEASE. BUYER
REPRESENTS, WARRANTS, AND COVENANTS TO SELLER, WHHIAREPRESENTATION, WARRANTY, AND COVENANT
SHALL SURVIVE THE CLOSE OF ESCROW AND NOT BE MERGEWNITH THE GRANT DEED, THAT, EXCEPT FOR SELLER'S
EXPRESS REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES SPECIFIED TNIS AGREEMENT, BUYER IS RELYING SOLELY UPON
BUYER'S OWN INVESTIGATION OF THE PROPERTY.

BY INITIALING BELOW, THE BUYER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT () THIS

SECTION 7.3.2 HAS BEEN READ AND FULLY UNDERSTOOD|XTHE BUYER HAS HAD THE CHANCE TO ASK QUESTIONS E
ITS COUNSEL ABOUT ITS MEANING AND SIGNIFICANCE, AND

(1) THE BUYER HAS ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO THE TERBISET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 7.3.2.

BUYER'S INITIALS
7.4 CHANGE IN CONDITION OF PROPERTY.

Seller covenants and agrees to immediately advieBof any material change in the physical coaditf the Property, or of any material
damage or destruction to the Property, or uponipeoé any notice regarding the condemnation ofRine@perty or any portion thereof
("CHANGE IN CONDITION"), except to the extent Selleknowledge thereof resulted from informationvided to Seller by Buyer.

If Seller is obligated as Landlord under the teohthe Lease to repair such Change in Conditiod,ifithe cost to make such repair is
determined by a contractor retained by Buyer, gmaved by Seller, to be less than $100,000, SelteBuyer's election, shall either perform
such repairs to Buyer's satisfaction prior to thas€ of Escrow or reduce the Purchase Price bgrihmunt determined by such contractor as
necessary to perform such repairs. If Seller iggaldd as Landlord under the terms of the Leasepair such Change in Condition, and if
such Change in Condition is estimated by such aotdr to cost $100,000 or more to repair, then Behall have the right, exercisable by
giving notice of such decision to Seller withintdién (15) calendar days after receiving notice fBaiier of such Change in Condition or
discovering such Change in Condition, either tagijminate this Agreement and the Escrow, or (ept the Property in its then condition
without a reduction in the Purchase Price and alitproceeds of insurance payable to Seller byorea$ such damage or destruction to be
paid or assigned to Buyer.
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7.5 SUCCESSORS. The provisions of this Agreemeait ble binding upon and inure to the benefit of $hecessors and assigns of Seller
Buyer, subject to the limitation on assignment esped in SECTION 7.6 below.

7.6 ASSIGNMENT. Buyer may assign this Agreemerdang Affiliate of Buyer or any other assignee onsferee of Buyer's interest in the
Lease, in Buyer's sole and absolute discretion.

7.7 ATTORNEYS' FEES. If either party files any actior brings any proceeding against the othermayisut of this Agreement, or is made a
party to any action or proceeding brought by ther@s Holder, then as between Buyer and Sellerptheailing party shall be entitled to
recover as an element of its costs of suit, anchaa@tamages, its actual attorneys' fees incurtegl.'"PREVAILING PARTY" shall be the
party who was entitled to recover its costs of,suitether or not such suit proceeds to final judgimido sum for attorneys' fees shall be
counted in calculating the amount of the judgmeniplurposes of determining whether a party is lewtito its costs or attorneys' fees.

7.8 INTEGRATION. This Agreement and the Lease cioriae entire agreement of the parties and superaeg prior written or oral
agreements between them concerning the subjeatmeatttained herein. There are no representatgmeements, arrangements or
understandings, either oral or written, relatinghte subject matter hereof which are not fully egsed herein and in the Lease.

7.9 DEPENDENCY AND SURVIVAL OF PROVISIONS. The respive warranties, representations, covenantseaggats, obligations and
undertakings of each party hereunder shall be noetas dependent upon and given in consideratithose of the other party, and they s
survive the Close of Escrow and delivery of theriaeed and shall not merge into the Grant Deed.

7.10 TAX DEFERRED EXCHANGE. Seller may wish to eff¢ehe transaction described in this Agreemento a&dl or a portion of the
Property, as a tax deferred exchange pursuantémbd Revenue Code Section 1031, or any successimilar statute. Buyer agrees to
cooperate in such an exchange so long as Buyet i®quired to incur any costs or obligations &ettitle to any property in connection
therewith other than the Property. Seller shaleddf indemnify and hold Buyer harmless from andregany claims, costs or liabilities,
including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising fBaryier's participation in such an exchange. The detigm of any such exchange shall not be
a condition to or delay the Close of Escrow.

7.11 NO JOINT VENTURE. Nothing in this Agreememi¢luding the exhibits, or in the performance o§tAgreement, shall create or be
deemed to create a partnership or joint ventuedioglship between the parties to this Agreement.

7.12 TRANSFER DOCUMENTS. Seller agrees to deliteotigh the Escrow (i) a "General Assignment”, i fibrm attached hereto as
Exhibit "B"; (ii) a Non-Foreign Affidavit pursuarb Section 1445(b)(2) of the Internal Revenue Gaderm and substance reasonably
satisfactory to Buyer; (iii) a bill of sale convegi to Buyer all of Seller's personal property uisedonnection with the Property, in form and
substance reasonably satisfactory to Buyer; (iv)a
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1099 Designation Agreement; and (v) a WithholdinxgEption Certificate, Form 597W or in the event tin@ Seller is a non-California
resident, a certificate issued by the Californiarfehise Tax Board, pursuant to Revenue and Tax&toie Sections 18805 and 26131, stating
either the amount of withholding required from 8e#l proceeds or that Seller is exempt from sut¢hhelding requirement.

7.13 CROSS-EASEMENT AND ACCESS AGREEMENTS. To th&eat the cross-easement and access agreementbel@sc Sections
1.1.2 and 4.3 of the Lease (i) have not been rechr() do not provide for the owner of the Pressi$o receive a credit against its share a
Pacific Corporate Center Common Area Costs (asidéfin the Lease), or their equivalent, for 9.05%hne taxes paid for the land includec
the Premises, or (iii) do not provide for the own&the Premises to participate in any third paryperty management decisions relating to
the Property, then Seller shall cause the samedardo Buyer's reasonable satisfaction, priohto@lose of Escrow.

7.14 SEVERABILITY. Should any part of this Agreeméor any reason be declared invalid, such decistall not affect the validity of any
remaining portion, which remaining portion shalnan in force and effect as if this Agreement hadrbexecuted with the invalid portion
thereof eliminated, and it is hereby declared tferition of the parties that they would have exagtle remaining portion of this Agreement
without including any such part, parts, or portisvtich may, for any reason, be hereafter declaredlid.

7.15 TIME OF ESSENCE. Time is of the essence af Agreement and of the Escrow provided for herein.
[continued on following page]
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7.15 COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executdd/d (2) or more counterparts, each of which shalleemed an original but all
of which together shall constitute one and the sasteument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement of Purchase @alk is executed as of the date first set forttvabo

SELLER: BUYER:
KILROY REALTY, L.P., VICAL INCORPORATED,
a Delaware limited partnership a Delaware corporation
By: Kilroy Realty Corporation, By:
a Maryland corporation, e
General Partner Its:
By By
Its: Its
By:
Its:
EXHIBIT |
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EXHIBIT A TO EXHIBIT |
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

[TO BE ATTACHED FOLLOWING THE ANTICIPATED LOT-LINE ~ ADJUSTMENT
CREATING A SEPARATE PARCEL UNDER THE PROJECT/PREMIS ES]

EXHIBITATO
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EXHIBIT B TO EXHIBIT |
GENERAL ASSIGNMENT
GENERAL ASSIGNMENT

THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION (the "Assignment"ated as of , 20, is between KILROY REALL.P., a
Delaware limited partnership ("Assignor"), and VICANCORPORATED., a Delaware corporation ("Assighee

A. Assignor owns certain real property and certaiprovements thereon commonly known as [INSERT DEBTJION OF PROPERTY],
and more particularly described in Exhibit "A" att@d hereto (the "Property").

B. Assignor and Assignee entered into an Agreemi8ale and Purchase dated as of January __, ##®2Rurchase Agreement"), pursuant
to which Assignee agreed to purchase the Propemy Assignor and Assignor agreed to sell the PrggerAssignee, on the terms and
conditions contained therein.

C. Assignor desire to assign to Assignee its istereany, in all warranties, guaranties and igiate personal property with respect to the
Property, to the extent the same are assignabieAssignee desires to accept the assignment thenedlie terms and conditions below.

ACCORDINGLY, FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION,He receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby ackiealged, the
parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Assignor hereby assigns to Assignee all of Assig right, title, and interest, if any, in andhe following, from and after the date hereof,
to the extent the same are assignable:

(a) any warranties and guaranties ("Warranties@maranties") made by or received from any thirdypaith respect to the Property and/o
any improvements owned by Assignor on the Property,

(b) any and all intangible personal property owhg&eller which is appurtenant to the Property.

2. Assignee hereby accepts the foregoing assigniyefissignor and assumes all of the Assignor'ggakithns under the matters assigned
and after the date hereof.

3. Assignee agrees to indemnify Assignor and hasignor harmless from and against any and all slgliens, damages, demands, causes of
action, liabilities, lawsuits, judgments, lossessts and expenses (including but not limited torattys' fees and expenses) asserted against o
incurred by Assignor by reason of or arising ouaoy failure by Assignee on

EXHIBITBTO
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or after the date of this assignment to perforroligerve the obligations, covenants, terms and tondiassumed by Assignee hereunder.
Assignor agrees to indemnify Assignee and hold gxe=e harmless from and against any and all cldiems, damages, demands, causes of
action, liabilities, lawsuits, judgments, lossessts and expenses (including but not limited torattys' fees and expenses) asserted against o
incurred by Assignee by reason of or arising owtrof failure by Assignor, prior to the date of tAissignment, to perform or observe the
obligations, covenants, terms and conditions tarassl by Assignee hereunder.

4. In the event of any dispute between AssignorAsgignee arising out of the obligations of thetiparunder this Assignment or concerning
the meaning or interpretation of any provision eimg¢d herein, the losing party shall pay the ptewgparty's costs and expenses of such
dispute, including, without limitation, reasonahléorneys' fees and costs.

5. This Assignment shall be binding upon and irtaréhe benefit of the parties hereto and theireeipe successors and assigns.
6. This Assignment shall be governed and constiuadcordance with the laws of the State of Catii@r

7. This Assignment may be executed in any numbepohterparts, each of which shall be deemed a@mali but all of which taken together
shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Assignor and Assignee have executed this Agreetherday and year first above written.

ASSIGNOR: KILROY REALTY, L.P.,
a Delaware limited p artnership
By:
Name:
Title_: ----------------------------------
ASSIGNEE: VICAL, INCORPORATED,
a Delaware corporati on
By:
Name:
Title-: ----------------------------------
By:
Name:
TitIe_: ----------------------------------
EXHIBIT B TO
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EXHIBIT J
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT
[GRAPHIC DEPICTING PROJECT PARKING SPACES]
EXHIBIT J

-1-



EXHIBIT K
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT

[LISTING OF PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER COMMON AREA CO STS AND
GRAPHIC DEPICTING SITE PLAN]
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EXHIBIT L
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT

[GRAPHIC DEPICTING PRE-APPROVED FORM OF TENANT'S SI GNAGE
(APPROVED SIGN SPECIFICATIONS)]

EXHIBIT L

-1-



EXHIBIT M
PACIFIC CORPORATE CENTER LOT 25/27 PROJECT
SHORT FORM OF MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

Vical Incorporated

9373 Towne Centre Drive
San Diego, California 92121
Attention: General Counsel

SHORT FORM OF MEMORANDUM OF SUBLEASE

THIS SHORT FORM OF MEMORANDUM OF LEASE is enterada as of the 30th day of January, 2002, by andden KILROY
REALTY, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership ("LANDRD"), and VICAL INCORPORATED, a Delaware corpaaat ("TENANT"), who
agree as follows.

1. TERMS AND PREMISES. Landlord leases to Tenamd, Benant leases from Landlord, certain premises"®®REMISES") to be located
on a portion of the real property (the "PROJECEgdlly described on SCHEDULE 1 attached heretarewtporated herein by this
reference (including parking areas more particylaténtified in the Lease), for the term and in@dance with the provisions of that certain
Lease by and between Landlord and Tenant, datefitae date hereof (the "LEASE"). The provisionglaf Lease are hereby incorporated
herein.

2. CERTAIN EXPRESS LEASE TERMS. As more particutasét forth in the referenced sections of the Lg@isaant enjoys the following
rights pursuant to the terms and conditions ofLiase: (i) an initial Lease Term of fifteen (15ay® (Section 2.1); (ii) options to extend the
initial Lease Term for up to three (3) five (5)-y&ption Terms (Section 2.2); (iii) an ongoing Righ First Offer with regard to the adjacent
buildings located at 10398 Pacific Center Court 26894 Pacific Center Court (Section 1.3); and éiwne-time Option to Purchase Premises
during the ninth (9th) Lease Year (Article 30).

3. PROVISIONS BINDING ON PARTIES. The provisionstbE Lease to be performed by Landlord or Tenahgther affirmative or
negative in nature, are intended to and shall binlgenefit the respective parties hereto and Hesigns or successors, as applicable, at all
times.

@)



3. PURPOSE OF SHORT FORM OF MEMORANDUM OF LEASE isT8hort Form of Memorandum of Lease is preparéalystor
purposes of recordation, and in no way modifiespttowvisions of the Lease.

LANDLORD KILROY REALTY, L.P.,
a Delaware limited p artnership
By: /s/ STEVE SCOT T

Title:Senior Vice Pr esident
TENANT VICAL INCORPORATED,

a Delaware corporati on

By: /sl MARTHA J. DEMSKI

Name: Martha J. Dems ki

Title:Vice President ICFO



STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

)ss.
COUNTY OF San Diego )
On 1 February 02, before me, Vanessa Whitlow, a Notary Public in and for

said state, personally appeared Martha Demskippeliy known to me (or proved to me on the basisatisfactory evidence) to be the per
whose name is subscribed to the within instrumadtacknowledged to me that he/she executed the iseli®her authorized capacity, and
that by his/her signature on the instrument, tirage or the entity upon behalf of which the peraoted, executed the instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

/sl VANESSA WHITLOW

Notary Public in and for said State

(SEAL)

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
)ss.
COUNTY OF San Diego )

On February 4, 2002, before me, Sharon Howertdigtary Public in and for said state, personallyesppd Steve Scott, personally known to
me to be the person whose name is subscribed taithia instrument and acknowledged to me that}erated the same in his authorized
capacity, and that by his signature on the instntiitee person, or the entity upon behalf of witled person acted, executed the instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

/s/ SHARON HOWERTON

Notary Public in and for said State
(SEAL)

(iii)



VICAL INCORPORATED
9373 TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE EXHIBIT 10.28
SUITE 100
SAN DIEGO, CA 92121

February 5, 2002
Mr. Vijay B. Samant
RE: AMENDMENT TO NOVEMBER 28, 2000 LETTER REGARDING EMPLOYMENT TERMS
Dear Vijay:

This Amendment (the "AMENDMENT") to your Letter Aggment with Vical Incorporated (the "COMPANY") daitsovember 28, 2000 (t
"AGREEMENT") will amend the terms and conditionstloé Agreement to the extent provided herein. Exasspecifically amended by this
Amendment, the terms and conditions of the Agreearsieall remain in full force and effect.

Paragraph 6 of the Agreement is hereby deletetd ientirety and replaced with the following:

"6. RELOCATION. To assist you in moving to the Jaiego area, we are prepared to pay the reasonaflleustomary expenses of
relocating you and your family, not to exceed $60,(the aggregate amount of relocation expensestah you are entitled to
reimbursement hereunder shall be referred to haethe "Relocation Expense Amount"), and such da¢ilon Expense Amount shall be
subject to offset as provided in this Section ®telin addition, in the event your residence infstvania is prepared and maintained
(including customary insurance coverage) for saleasonable condition and listed for sale by Sepé 1, 2002, the Company will
reimburse you up to $100,000 of any loss you imeuits sale; PROVIDED THAT, in the event such al@ssanticipated, the Company or its
designees may, at the Company's sole discretionhpse that residence for an amount equal to #istog/ou (estimated to be approximately
$550,000). The Company will also loan to you an ammot to exceed $500,000 for the purpose of sicly a residence in the San Diego
area, such loan to be evidenced by a promissogy lredring interest at the lowest applicable fedatal necessary to avoid imputed interest
income under the Internal Revenue Code and setyradsecond deed of trust on the residence. Thevidbhbe due and payable upon the
earlier of (A) the sale of that residence, (B) @9sfollowing the termination of your employment émy reason or (C) January 1, 2007. Once
you and your family have relocated to the San Diaga, the Company will provide to you for a penad to exceed 24 months, a mont
housing cost-of-living differential payment of up$2,500 per month. Further, the Company will eifheey the costs, not to exceed $3,500 per
month, of temporary housing for you in San Diegoatithe Company's option, provide temporary hausinyou until the earlier of your
purchase of a San Diego residence or



December 31, 2002. You shall also receive theviolig: (i) a payment from the Company sufficienpimy the income, employment and any
other taxes you incur arising from the actual mntdmporary housing payments received by youfahe Company provides temporary
housing to you, the amount of income imputed to with respect thereto; and (ii) an additional paptfeom the Company sufficient to pay
the income, employment and any other taxes arfsorg the payments made by the Company pursuant to

Section 6(i) above and this Section 6(ii) so that ghall be fully reimbursed for any income, empheynt and any other taxes you incur
associated with the payments to reimburse youdoln sncome, employment and other taxes on such atsi¢the aggregate amount paid to
you under Sections 6(i) and 6(ii) herein shall &femred to herein as the "Gr-up Amount"). The Gross-up Amount shall be offggiast

and, thus, subtracted from the Relocation Expemseukt but, in no event, shall the Relocation Expefusiount be less than zero. The
Company will also reimburse you for the reasonablgs of one trip per month in connection with yoommuting to San Diego from your
home in Pennsylvania, until the earlier of yourghase of a San Diego residence or December 31, BE3@2pt as specifically provided
herein, you will be responsible for any personaéa(income, employment or otherwise) arising fiaomg of the payments described herein,
except that the Company will reimburse you for paes taxes arising from the payment of any Relocaixpense Amount (to the extent not
offset by the Gross-up Amount).

This Amendment shall be governed by and constnu@géordance with the laws of the State of Califgrwithout regard to conflicts of law
principles.

Please sign and date this Amendment and retuomitet at your earliest convenience.
Sincerely,
VICAL INCORPORATED

By: /s/ MARTHA J. DEMSKI

Martha J. Demski
Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

ACCEPTED AND AGREED:
/sl VIJAY B. SAMANT
" Vijay B. Samant
MARCH 8, 2002
Date



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

As independent public accountants, we hereby cangehe incorporation of our report included iistRorm 10-K, into Vical Incorporated's
previously filed Registration Statements Files B®.60826, No. 33-60824, No. 33-81602, No. 33-81608,33-87972, No. 333-30181, No.
333-60293, No. 333-80681 and No. 333-66254.

/sl ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

San Diego, California
March 25, 2002



EXHIBIT 99.1

Vical Incorporated
9373 Towne Centre Drive, Suite 100
San Diego, CA 92121-3088

March 25, 2002

Securities and Exchange Commission
450 Fifth Street, NW
Washington, DC 20549

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to Temporary Note 3T to Article 3 of Ragioh S-X, | am writing you to inform you that AtthAndersen LLP (Andersen) has
represented to us in writing that their audit aamd for the year ended December 31, 2001 wasdubjénheir quality control system for their
U.S. accounting and auditing practice to providesomable assurance that the engagement was cath@tuctampliance with professional
standards, that there was appropriate continuiynafersen personnel working on the audit, availghilf national office consultation, and
availability of personnel at foreign affiliates Ahdersen to conduct the relevant portions of thditau

/sl MARTHA J. DEMSKI
Martha J. Demski

Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary

End of Filing
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